
 

1 

 

  RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT  
Regular Board Meeting, Board of Trustees 

District Office, 1000 Yulupa Avenue   
May 8, 2018 

 
 

                         AGENDA    
 
                                  

  

The Rincon Valley Union School District complies with ADA requirements and upon request, 
will attempt to reasonably accommodate individuals with disabilities by making meeting 
material available in appropriate alternative formats (pursuant to Government Code Section 
54953.2).  Anyone requiring reasonable accommodation to participate in the meeting should 
contact the Rincon Valley Union School District at 542-7375, 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
  
   

1.        OPEN SESSION                   5:00 p.m.  
 CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON CLOSED 
 SESSION ITEMS 
 This time is reserved for citizens, employees, and representatives of school groups 
 to address the Board on items that are on the closed session agenda. Persons 
 addressing the Board are requested to state their names and whether or not they are a 
 resident of the district. The Board President reserves the right to limit comments from 
 the public as well as limit the total number of minutes used on any one topic.   
 
3. CLOSED SESSION:  Items discussed in closed session are confidential in nature 

and may not be discussed by participants outside of this session.  Any action 
taken by the Board during closed session shall be reported upon in open 
session. 

 
3.1 Conference with the Board’s labor negotiator, Tony Roehrick, regarding 

Gov. Code 54957.6): 
  

3.1 a  Negotiations with Rincon Valley Union Teachers’ Association 
(represented certificated employees) 

 
The purpose of this Board Meeting is to hear, discuss, or deliberate on matters that are on the 
approved agenda.  This agenda has been carefully planned to reflect the goals and vision of 
our district.  The agenda is available on line 72 hours before the Board Meeting and posted at 
each school site, as required by law 
   
4. OPEN SESSION:  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE,         6:00 p.m. 
 CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
5.        ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSED SESSION DECISION 



 

2 

 

6. AGENDA MODIFICATIONS 
 
7. AGENDA AND CONSENT ITEM APPROVAL 
 (Consent Items a Board Member wishes to discuss will be  
 moved to the Action Item section) 
 

7.1 Minutes of April 10, 2018, Regular Board Meeting 
 Minutes of April 20, 2018, Governance/Administration Retreat 
 
7.2  Declare Surplus Property 

The Rincon Valley Union School District declares the following as surplus 
property: 

 1981 Ford Tractor 

 Safe/file Cabinet (4 drawer) 
 

7.3 Approval of Purchase Orders 
  This represents purchase orders dated April 1, 2018 – April 30, 2018  
  

7.4 Approval of Warrants: 
 This represents warrants dated April 1, 2018 – April 30, 2018  

 
 7.5 Policy Updates – CSBA March 2018 
 

Adopt Revised: 
BP/AR 1312.3, Uniform Complaint Procedures 
AR 3230, Federal Grand Funds 
AR 3514.2, Integrated Pest Management 
BP/AR 3551, Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund 
BP/AR 3553, Free and Reduced Price Meals 
BP 4111/4211/4311, Recruitment and Selection 
BP/AR 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11, Sexual Harassment 
AR 4161.1/4361.1, Personal Illness/Injury Leave 
AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8, Family Care and Medical Leave 
AR 4261.1, Personal Illness/Injury Leave 
BP/AR 5022, Student and Family Privacy Rights 
BP/E 5145.6, Parental Notifications 
BP 6162.5, Student Assessment 
BP/AR 6171, Title I Programs 

   
8. PUBLIC HEARING:  Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP)      6:02 p.m. 
 The Public Hearing is for the purpose of soliciting comments/questions regarding the  
 Rincon Valley Union School District’s Local Control Accountability Plan.   
 
9. PUBLIC HEARING:  2018-2019 Preliminary Budget            6:03 p.m.  

The Public Hearing is for the purpose of soliciting comments/questions regarding the 
Rincon Valley Union School District’s 2018-2019 Preliminary Budget.  The District will 
present a Reserve Transparency disclosure. 



 

3 

 

10. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CALENDAR  
 
 May 9  Site Visits, 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. 
 

May 10 RVUTA Negotiations, 7:30 a.m. – 3:00 p.m. 
 

May 10 District End of Year Party, Friedman Center, 4:00 – 5:30 p.m. 
 
May 10 RVCS-Matanzas Meet and Greet, 6:00 – 7:00 p.m. 

 
 May 15 Special Board Meeting, 9:30 – 3:30, RVCS Matanzas, Room 24 
 
 May 16 Site Visits, 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. 
 

May 16 RVCS-Sequoia Meet and Greet, 6:00 – 7:00 p.m. 
 

May 18 Diane Moresi Annual All District Track Meet – 9:00 a.m. – 12 noon, 
Montgomery High 

 
Open House Dates:    
May 17  Austin Creek and Whited 

 May 22 Spring Creek and Binkley 
 May 23 Village and Sequoia 
 May 24 Madrone and Matanzas 

 

May 19  Rose Parade – 10:00 a.m. 
 
May 21 Agenda Setting, District Office, 5:00 p.m.  
  
May 24 - RVCS Portfolio Presentations 
   
May 25 Tentative RVUTA Negotiations – 8:00 a.m. – 12:00 noon 
   
June 1 Last Day of School 

   Promotion Ceremonies: 
   -RVCS Sequoia, 9:00 a.m. – Friedman Center 
   -Austin Creek, Madrone, Sequoia, Binkley, Whited, 10:30 a.m. 
   -Village, 11:00 a.m. 
   -Matanzas, 12:00 noon 
      -RVCS Matanzas, Brunch: 10:45 –11:30 / Promotion:11:30 –12:45 
 

 June 4 Rincon Valley Education Foundation Meeting 
   District Office, 7:00 p.m. 
 
 June 7 Special Board Meeting, 6:00 p.m. 
   5927 Chandler Ct, Santa Rosa  
       



 

4 

 

June 12 Regular Board Meeting, District Office 
  6:00 p.m.  

 
11. PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 

This time is reserved for citizens, employees, and representatives of school groups 
 to address the Board on items that are not on the agenda.  By law, the Board 
 cannot take action upon or discuss items that are not on the approved agenda, but 
 welcomes your comments.  Persons addressing the Board are requested to state 
 their names and whether or not they are a resident of the district. The Board President 
 reserves the right to limit comments from the public as well as limit the total number of 
 minutes used on any one topic.  

  
If you wish to address the Board on any item on the agenda, please make your request 
at the time the item is being discussed.  Persons wanting to address the Board will be 
recognized and requested to state their name and whether or not they are a resident of 
the district.  The Board President will also reserve the right to limit comments as well as 
limit the total number of minutes used on any agenda item.   

 

12.     SUPERINTENDENT’S COMMENTS, LEGISLATIVE UPDATE, CORRESPONDENCE 
 

13. AWARDS/SPECIAL RECOGNITION  
 

13.1 100+ Hours of Community Service  
The Board will recognize the students who have earned 100 or more community 
service hours.  The students will receive a Gold Mayor’s Certificate and a service 
medal at their promotion ceremonies. 

         
14. INFORMATION  
 

Instruction 
 
14.1 Curriculum and Instruction Report 

Dr. Metzger will report on the following  
14.1a Art Program and Participation 
14.1b Professional Development Summary 
14.1c Home Study Report 

--Dr. Terry Metzger 
 

14.2 Student Services Report 
Mrs. Myhers will report on the following: 
     14.2a Student Support Summary 
     14.2b  Family Survey Summary 
--Mrs. Cathy Myhers 
 
 
 
 



 

5 

 

 Fiscal 
 
 14.3 Oak Park Update 
  Dr. Roehrick will give an update on the Oak Park property. 
  --Dr. Tony Roehrick 
 
 Governance 
 
 14.4 Draft of 2018-2019 District Goals 
  The Board will discuss a draft of the 2018-2019 District goals. 
  --Dr. Tony Roehrick 
 
15. ACTION 
   
 Instruction 
 
 15.1 Odyssey of the Mind State Competition-Resolution 05-18-20 

Board of Trustees will consider approving  Resolution #05-18-20, recognizing the 
Sequoia students who won the Odyssey of the Mind State Competition. 
--Dr. Terry Metzger 

 
 Fiscal 
 

15.2 Education Protection Account  Resolution #05-18-21 
 Board of Trustees will consider approving Resolution #05-18-21, Education 

Protection Account. 
 --Dr. Joe Pandolfo 

 
 15.3 District Program Fees 

Board of Trustees will consider approving District Program Fees for  
2018-19. 
--Dr. Joe Pandolfo 

 
15.4 Contract Approval between Rincon Valley Union School District and 

Sodexo, American, LLC 
 Board of Trustees will consider approving a contract renewal between Rincon 

Valley Union School District and Sodexo, America, LLC for food service 
purposes, July 1, 2018- June 30, 2019. 

 --Dr. Joe Pandolfo 
 

15.5 Rincon Valley Union School District Actuarial Study of Retiree Health 
Liabilities Under GASB 74/75 

 Board of Trustees will consider accepting the Rincon Valley Union School District 
Actuarial Study of Retiree Health Liabilities Under GASB 74/75. 

 --Dr. Joe Pandolfo 
 
 



 

6 

 

15.6 Bid Approval for Roof Replacement – Sequoia School 
 Board of Trustees will consider approving Cornerstone Roofing as the lowest 

responsive bidder for the roof replacement work at Sequoia School. 
 --Dr. Joe Pandolfo 
 
15.7 Bid Approval for Binkley School Landscape and Paving 
 Board of Trustees will consider approving the lowest responsive bid for the 

Binkley School landscape and paving work. 
 --Dr. Joe Pandolfo 
 
15.8 Lease Lease-back Agreement with Arntz Construction- Village Phase 2 
 Board of trustees will consider approving a Lease Lease-back Agreement with 

Arntz Construction for the Village Phase 2 construction project. 
 --Dr. Joe Pandolfo 
 
15.9 Form J-13A – Request for Allowance of Attendance Due to Emergency 

Conditions 
 Board of Trustees will consider approving Form J-13A, Request for Allowance of 

Attendance Due to Emergency Conditions. 
 --Dr. Joe Pandolfo 
 
15.10 Contract Amendment Exhibit A – Sung Light & Power 
 Board of Trustees will consider approving a contract amendment to  

Exhibit A with Sun Light & Power for the Village School and District Office solar 
project. 
--Dr. Joe Pandolfo 

 
Human Resources 

 
 15.11 Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified Educators for 2018-2019 

Board of Trustees will consider approving Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified  
 Educators for 2018-2019. 

  --Dr. Tony Roehrick 
 

15.12 AB1200 Public Disclosure of Salary Settlement Agreement with California 
School Employees’ Association Chapter #284 
Board of Trustees will consider approving AB 1200 Public Disclosure of Salary 
Settlement Agreement with California School Employees’ Association Chapter 
#284. 
--Dr. Tony Roehrick 
 

 15.13 Interim Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum - Contract 
  Board of Trustees will consider approving a contract for Michael Herfurth  
  As the Interim Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum. 
  --Dr. Tony Roehrick 
 
 



 

7 

 

15.14 Classified Employee of the Year for 2018 – Resolution #05-18-22 
Board of Trustees will consider approving Resolution #05-18-21, Classified 
Employee of the Year 2018, Jeff Exline. 

 --Dr. Tony Roehrick 
 

15.15 Certificated Employee of the Year for 2018– Resolution #05-18-23 
Board of Trustees will consider approving Resolution #05-18-22, Certificated 
Employee of the Year 2018, Diane Wagner. 

  --Dr. Tony Roehrick 
 
 Governance 
 

15.16 Safe Schools Plans 
Board of Trustees will consider approving the Safe Schools Plan for Binkley. 
--Dr.Tony Roehrick 

 
15.17 Specifications of Election Order, Resolution #05-18-24 

Board of Trustees will consider approving Resolution #05-18-24,  
Specifications of Election Order, November 6, 2018. 
--Dr. Tony Roehrick 

 
16. PERSONNEL  
         
 16.1 Certificated Management – Resignation 

 Terry Metzger, Assistant Superintendent Curriculum & Instruction, District, 
effective June 30, 2018 

 
16.2 Certificated Management – Interim Appointments 

 Mike Herfurth, Interim Assistant Superintendent Curriculum & Instruction, 
District, effective July 1, 2018 

 Lisa Christopherson, Interim Principal, Madrone, effective July 1, 2018 
 

16.3 Certificated – Retirements 
 Ellen Featherly, RSP Teacher, Village, effective June 2, 2018 
 Mary Kortbein, Teacher, Sequoia, effective June 2, 2018 
 Janel Sugiyama, Teacher, Sequoia, effective June 2, 2018 

 
16.4 Certificated – Leave of Absence Requests 

 Mary Bedient, Student Support Coordinator, Spring Creek, requesting 30% 
leave of absence, effective August 8, 2018 – May 31, 2019 

 Kristy Weber, Teacher, Sequoia, effective August 8, 2018 – January 11, 2019 
 Karina Conklin, Teacher, Spring Creek, effective August 27 – November 2, 

2018 
 

16.5   Classified Management – Leave of Absence Request 
 Jessica Boelter, Occupational Therapist, District, effective March 26 – June 2, 

2018 



 

8 

 

 
16.6 Classified – New Hires 

 Tom Buckman, Substitute Van Driver, District, effective April 24, 2018 
 

16.7 Classified – Retirements 
 Cappy Weber, Instructional Paraeducator, Kindergarten Aide, Binkley, 

effective June 2, 2018 
 Curtis Lytle, Maintenance II, District, effective October 31, 2018 

 
16.8 Classified – Resignations  

 Stefanie Kiernan, Noon Duty I, Whited, effective March 29, 2018 
 Dana Williams, Sp. Ed. Inst. Assistant II, Sequoia, effective April 30, 2018 
 Caleb Pettey, Day Care Assistant, Sequoia, effective May 1, 2018 
 Asia Teixeira, Human Resources Assistant, District, effective May 18, 2018 
 

16.9 Classified – Leave of Absence Request 
 Sasha Cave, Business Clerk, District, effective July 30 – November 30, 2018 

 

17. CSEA / RVUTA COMMENTS       
 

18. BOARD OF TRUSTEE COMMENTS/COMMITTEE REPORTS/REQUESTS FOR 
INFORMATION 

 
19. NEXT BOARD MEETING AGENDA ITEMS 

 Student Discipline – Annual Review 

 Attendance Report 

 ELA/Math Reoprt 

 EL Report 

 Site Visits Report 

 Facility Committee Report 

 LCAP Approval 

 Preliminary Budget 

 Budget Transfers 

 Board Goals Approval 

 Supt Evaluation and Contract 
 

20.    ADJOURN 



 

1 
 

     RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT  
Regular Board Meeting, Board of Trustees 

District Office, 1000 Yulupa Avenue 
April 10, 2018       

 

 
MINUTES 

 
Present:              Mrs. Cynthia Evers 
         Mr. Jeff Gospe 

      Mrs. Carol Lynn Wood 
         Mr. Chris Rafanelli  
         Mr. Mike Cook  
   
Administrators:       Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent 

      Dr. Joe Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent of Business  
      Dr. Terry Metzger, Assistant Superintendent of Curriculum 

         Mrs. Cathy Myhers. Assistant Superintendent of Student Services 
          
Others:        Interested Staff and Community Members 
        
   
1.        OPEN SESSION           
 CALL TO ORDER 
 Mrs. Evers called the meeting to order at 4:37 p.m. 
 
2. PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON CLOSED 
 SESSION ITEMS 
 None 

 
3. CLOSED SESSION 
 Mrs. Wood moved and Mr. Cook seconded to recess to closed session at 4:38 p.m.  
 to discuss the following:  Unanimous. 
 

3.1 Public Employees Performance Evaluations- Superintendent 
           (Government Code Section 54957) 
 
3.2 Conference with Labor Negotiators, Gov. Code 54957.6 

  Agency Designated Representative – Cynthia Evers 
  Unrepresented Employee:  Superintendent 

 
3.3 Conference with the Board’s labor negotiator, Tony Roehrick, regarding 

Gov. Code 54957.6): 
  

3.3 a  Negotiations with Rincon Valley Union Teachers’ Association 
(represented certificated employees) 

 



 

2 
 

3.3 b Negotiations with California School Employees Association (CSEA) 
Chapter #284 

 
3.4 Conference with Legal Counsel –Anticipated Litigation, Gov. Code 54956.9 

  -One potential case 
 
4. OPEN SESSION:  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE,    6:00 p.m. 
 ROLL CALL 

Mr. Gospe moved and Mr. Cook seconded to adjourn closed session and return to open 
session at 6:02 p.m.:  Unanimous. 

 
5. ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSED SESSION DECISIONS 
 Mrs. Evers announced that no action was taken in closed session. 
 
6. AGENDA MODIFICATIONS 
 The Board will return to closed session following the open session meeting. 
 
7. AGENDA AND CONSENT ITEM APPROVAL 

Mr. Gospe moved and Mr. Cook seconded to approve the agenda and following 
consent items:  Unanimous. 

 
7.1 Minutes of March13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting 

 
 7.2 Williams Settlement Quarterly Report – January 1- March 31, 2018 
  Board of Trustees will approve the Williams Settlement Quarterly Complaint  
  Summary, January 1 – March 31, 2018. 
  
 7.3 Citizens’ Oversight Committee Member Resignation 

The Board will accept the resignation of Joe Ruppe as a member of the Measure 
F Bond Citizens’ Oversight Committee. 

 
 7.4 Change Order – Village Elementary School Phase 1 

Approval of Change Order 002 for Village Elementary School Phase 1, dated 
March 30, 2018. 
 

7.5 Approval of Purchase Orders 
  This represents purchase orders dated March 1 through April 1, 2018. 
 

7.6 Approval of Warrants 
  This represents warrants dated March 1 through April 1, 2018. 
   



 

3 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – Developer Fee Increase      
The Board will accept comments from the public on the proposed adoption of a 
Developer Fee Justification Study for the District and an increase in the statutory school 
facility fee (“Level I Fee”) on new residential and commercial/industrial developments as 
approved by the State Allocation Board on January 24, 2018 to fund the construction or 
reconstruction of school facilities. 

 
 Public Hearing opened at 6:07 p.m. 
 Comments: None 
 Public Hearing closed at 6:08 p.m. 
 
9. PUBLIC HEARING – Solar         6:03 p.m. 

The Board will accept comments from the public regarding the intention of the 
Board of the Rincon Valley Union School District to consider entering into an energy 
service contract with Sun Light & Power to design and install solar photovoltaic 
generating facilities at the District Office and Village Elementary School, pursuant to  
the terms of Government Code Section 4217.12. 
 
Public Hearing opened at 6:08 p.m. 

 Comments: None 
Public Hearing closed at 6:09 p.m. 

 
10. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CALENDAR 
 Mrs. Evers announced the following: 
  
      RVUTA Negotiations  April 12, 8:00 – 3:00 p.m., District Office 
 
  
 
      Board/Admin Retreat  April 20 
      8:30 a.m. – 3:00 p.m., Saddle Club 
 
      Apple Blossom Parade  April 21 
  
      GATE Mini Camp   April 21, 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 noon, Village   

 
Board Agenda Setting  April 24 

      District Office, 5:00 p.m. 
       

     RVEF Arts and Science  May 2, 4:00 – 7:00 p.m. 
             Showcase   Friedman Center 
 
      Spring Concert   May 3, Santa Rosa Bible Church 
  Village and Matanzas  6:00 – 7:00 p.m. 
       Binkley and Madrone  7:30 – 8:30 p.m. 
            Honor Choir     
 



 

4 
 

        Spring Concert   May 4, Santa Rosa Bible Church 
  Austin Creek    6:00 – 7:00 p.m. 
  Sequoia and Whited  7:30 – 8:30 p.m. 
           Abracajazz    
 
    Human Race   May 5 
 
    Spring Orchestra Concert May 7 –  Austin Creek 
  Binkley /Madrone  5:45 –  6:45 
  Austin Creek/Sequoia 6:45 –  7:45 
  Whited  
  Village/Matanzas  7:45 – 8:45 
  Honor Orch. 
 
    Board Meeting   May 8, 6:00 p.m. 
      Closed Session – 4:30 p.m., District Office 
  
    Site Visits              May 9 
            9:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. 
 

   RVCS Spring Concert  May 9, 6:30 – 8:30 p.m. 
      Sequoia Gym 
 
    District End of Year  May 10, 4:00 – 5:30 p.m. 
       Celebration              Friedman Center 
 
    RV Ed. Foundation  May 14, 7:00 p.m. 
      District Office 
 
     Special Board Meeting  May 15, 9:30 a.m. 
      RVCS Matanzas, Room 24 
 
     Diane Moresi   May 18, 8 – 12 
     District Track Meet  Montgomery High School 
  

    Open House Dates:  May 17, Austin Creek and Whited 
      May 22, Spring Creek and Binkley 
      May 23, Village and Sequoia 
      May 24, Madrone and Matanzas 
 
 11. PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 

Name:  John Kemnec--resident of the district 
Topic: Student behavior at residential fence-Matanzas School 
 Mr. Kemnec would like to work with the district to resolve the conflicts taking 
 place  between Matanzas and the residents along the track fence line. 

Mr.Kemnec submitted a letter from Matanzas principal and a police report to be 
added to public record. 



 

5 
 

Name: Mr. Harvey Rouleau, III—resident of the district 
Topic:  Student behavior along residential fence – Matanzas School 

Mr. Rouleau would like to work with the district to resolve student behavior 
issues that are witnessed by residents.  

 
 Mr. Rafanelli requested that the district follow-up on this topic.  
 
12.      SUPERINTENDENT’S COMMENTS, LEGISLATIVE UPDATE, CORRESPONDENCE 
 Dr. Roehrick commented on the following: 

 The annual Board/Admin Retreat will be held on Friday, April 20.  The focus will 
be to look closely at our efforts in five areas that include--ELA and 1st year 
implementation of Benchmark Advance, Mathematics, EL achievement gap, 
school climate, and building capacity of principals as instructional leaders. 
Some teachers have been invited to attend in order to add depth to the 
conversation.   

 The CalPERS Board is considering increasing the employer contribution rates 
above what has already been approved through the 2024-25 school year.   
Under this proposal, to be considered at the April 17 CalPERS Board meeting, 
rates for next year will increase to 18.06% rather than the anticipated 17.70%.  
For the 2024-25 year, employer contribution rates would increase from the 
currently approved 25.1% to 26.0%.  This year’s employer contribution rate is 
15.531%.  

 
13. AWARDS / SPECIAL RECOGNITION   
      

13.1 Classified Employee of the Month 
Mr. Cook moved and Mr.Rafanelli seconded to approve the Resolution for Diana 
Cavallero, Classified Employee of the Month of April, 2018:  Unanimous. 

 
Mr. Cook read the resolution.  Mrs. Cecilia Holt, Village Principal, read her letter 
commending Diana Cavallero for her willingness to always be of assistance to 
Village teachers and staff, her ability to be flexible, and her fun and loving attitude 
towards events and children.  The computer lab isn’t going to be the same next 
year as Diana is retiring.   

 
13.2 Certificated Employee of the Month 

Mr. Rafanelli moved and Mr.Cook seconded to approve the Resolution for 
Kristine Warren, Certificated Employee of the Month of April, 2018:  Unanimous. 

 
Mr. Rafanelli  read the resolution.  Mrs. Kelly Lister, Binkley Principal, read her 
letter commending Kristine Warren for her years of teaching at Matanzas, Spring 
Creek, and Binkley.  She has belief in each of her students that they can meet 
high expectations.  Kristine draws out her scholars by learning their strengths 
and purposefully designing lessons and activities where those strengths are 
shared with their classmates.  Kristine shares her talents and strengths with the 
school and district by participating in many trainings, events, and committees; 
and has a positive impact on Binkley. 



 

6 
 

14. INFORMATION 
 

14.1 Food Service Report 
Mrs. Alison Smith, Food Service & Operations Supervisor, and Ms. Kaila 
Raygoza, Sodexo Consultant, gave their annual report on the District’s Food 
Service Program.  The report included a financial summary including student 
participation, staffing recommendations, compliance, accomplishments, 
promotions, and goals. 

   
 Instruction    
 

14.2 Curriculum and Instruction Report 
Dr. Metzger reported on the following: 
 
14.2 a  Summer School Plan 
There are significant renovation projects happening at nearly all of our schools 
over the summer. This year, the installation of windows and air conditioning 
creates unsafe conditions for students. Based on the student achievement data, 
we will prioritize the ELD Academy this summer. It is our intent to reinstate 
Summer School in 2019. 

We have secured 6 classrooms, plus some office space, at Madrone Elementary 
to operate the ELD Academy from July 9-26, 2018. Approximately 120 English 
Learners will be served in the program (including about 20 incoming 
kindergarteners).  Mrs. Erika Noone will be the principal.  We are in the process 
of hiring staff. 

14.2 b   District Curriculum Committee Update 
The District Curriculum Committee has continued to develop recommendations 
for further implementation of high quality instruction in the areas of ELA, ELD, 
and Math.  Representatives from the committee were present at the Board 
meeting to make formal recommendations in each of the areas studied.  The 
Board discussed and gave input on the recommendations.   

   
 14.3 Student Services Report 
   Mrs. Myhers gave an update on the following: 
 

 14.3a    District Behavior Committee update 
Based on prior conversation regarding the curriuculum committee discussion,   
Mrs. Myhers shared that the counseling team will be focusing on the family 
component beginning with TK-K to set the tone for attendance, classroom 
climate, and academic expectations. 

 
The Behavior Committee held their second meeting, focused on roles of 
different staff in supporting the successful implementation of Tier I programs and 
in identifying Tier II supports.  The committee spent a significant amount of time 
on outlining the process for when a student moves from Tier I to needing Tier II 
interventions.   



 

7 
 

 It was expected that day 2 would be the most challenging in creating a 
shared understanding/agreement of how students would move from Tier I 
to Tier II and what supports are a part of Tier II.   

          Committee members agreed to start with the following Tier II steps: 
 Collection of data on the behaviors including antecedents, 

frequency, duration and consequences.   
 Collaborative creation of a plan to address 1-2 behaviors at 

a time 
 Home to School communication system to support the plan 
 Two-three-week review of the plan implementation and 

efficacy 
 Ongoing review and adjustments to the plan 

  
The committee will meet again on April 23rd.   The focus of this meeting 
will be to review the documents that were generated/modified from the last 
meeting and to discuss Tier III interventions.  It is the hope of the 
committee to also start a discussion on creating an In School Suspension 
(ISS) Program.   
   

    14.3b    Student Survey 
The Student Climate Survey is given to students in grades 3-8 each 
spring.  The information that is received from it is critical to the planning of 
programs and services.  There are 11 questions and students are asked 
to rate their response as Always, Often, Sometimes or Never.  Some 
questions ask for students to explain their response.  Mrs. Myhers shared 
the areas of positive growth; however, the survey represents the stressors 
that have been felt this year.  Many areas on the survey showed a decline 
in positive responses.  While it is not surprising that students are feeling 
more unsettled, this year, it is disappointing.  The results indicate that we 
are on the right path with the District Behavior Committee.  It is important 
that we continue to work with staff and students to ensure that they have 
the tools to understand and regulate emotions.   Students reported that 
other students treat them and others with respect always/often only 65.3% 
of the time.  There is work to be done in that area. The data will be shared 
with the Principals and Counselors to discuss how the programs that we 
currently have in place need to change to support student needs.   Staff 
will track some of the negative survey participants. 

 
 Fiscal 
 
 14.4 District Budget Committee Update 

Dr. Pandolfo gave an update on the work of the District Budget Committee. 
The District Budget Committee last met on March 22, 2018. Both CTA and CSEA 
sent representatives to the meeting, and it was articulated that they found the 
meeting informative.  Also in attendance were board members Jeff Gospe and 
Mike Cook as well as Dr. Roehrick and Dr. Pandolfo. There are other members 



 

8 
 

who were not able to attend. The information shared to the committee was 
essentially the same information presented to the board on March 13th for the 
Second Interim Report.  In addition to the challenges to balancing the general 
fund caused largely by increased pension system obligations and declining 
enrollment, there was discussion on the challenges with the Day Care and Food 
Service Budgets.  The board discussed the challenges and gave input on 
possible solutions regarding the Day Care and Food Service programs to reduce 
or eliminate there operating deficits. 

 
Governance 
 

 14.5 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) Update 
Dr. Roehrick reviewed the district’s updated Local Control and Accountability 
Plan. The District has followed its extensive process to assess our progress in 
meeting the current year’s Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) goals, to 
gather input from stakeholders on our goals, and on shaping the new LCAP. The 
first draft of the LCAP goals and actions/services was developed and shared 
through face-to-face meetings and through a survey.  The result is the current 
document presented at this meeting to the Governing Board. 

 
The 2018-19 LCAP carries over our goals and various means to achieve the 
goals from the 2017-18 plan.  Two goals were consolidated for efficiency.  
For the second year, the leading input from all stakeholders is to increase 
counseling at our schools.  Our challenge to meet this desire is fiscal as the 
District’s resources continue to be eroded by the ongoing increases to support 
employee State retirement plans. The proposed LCAP identifies our greatest 
areas for focus and provides a blueprint of actions and services to meet our 
goals.   

           Proposed changes to the document will be incorporated into the next version of 
the document.  In addition, as final budget information is received, and the 
proposed 2018-19 district budget is developed, financial information in the goals 
and summary sections will be updated.  The LCAP will return to the May 8 
meeting for a public hearing.  If any changes are needed, they will be 
incorporated into the document to return to the June 12 Board meeting for 
adoption. 
 
 

 
 14.6 Policy Updates – CSBA March 2018  

The Board reviewed and discussed the following recommended CSBA March 
2018 policy revisions: 

 
Adopt Revised: 
BP/AR 1312.3, Uniform Complaint Procedures 
AR 3230, Federal Grant Funds 
AR 3514.2, Integrated Pest Management 



 

9 
 

BP/AR 3551, Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund 
BP/AR 3553, Free and Reduced Price Meals 
BP 4111/4211/4311, Recruitment and Selection 
BP/AR 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11, Sexual Harassment 
AR 4161.1/4361.1, Personal Illness/Injury Leave 
AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8, Family Care and Medical Leave 
AR 4261.1, Personal Illness/Injury Leave 
BP/AR 5022, Student and Family Privacy Rights 
BP/E 5145.6, Parental Notifications 
BP 6162.5, Student Assessment 
BP/AR 6171, Title I Programs 
 

15. ACTION           
  
 Fiscal 
 

15.1 Adopting Developer Fees, Resolution #04-18-18 
 Mr.Gospe moved and Mr. Cook seconded to approve Resolution #04-18-18, 
 adopting development fees in residential and commercial and industrial 

development to fund construction or reconstruction of school facilities pursuant to 
Government Code 6062 (a).  5-ayes 0-noes 0-Abstain 

 
 Roll Call: Mrs. Evers      aye 
                       Mr.Gospe       aye 
   Mrs. Wood      aye 
   Mr. Rafanelli   aye 
   Mr. Cook         aye 

 
15.2 Approval of Resolution #04-18-19 and Contracts with Sun Light and Power 
 Mr. Cook moved and Mr. Gospe seconded to approve the  contracts and 

Resolution, entering into an energy service contract with Sun Light & Power to 
design and install solar photovoltaic generating facilities at the District Office and 
Village Elementary School:  5-ayes 0-noes 0-Abstain 

a. Design Build Solar Contract 
b. Exhibit D to Sun Light and Power Contract 
c. Solar Operations and Maintenance Agreement 
d. Solar Performance Guarantee Agreement 
e. Resolution #04-18-19 

   
Roll Call: Mrs. Evers      aye 

                       Mr.Gospe       aye 
   Mrs. Wood      aye 
   Mr. Rafanelli   aye 
   Mr. Cook         aye 

 
 
 



 

10 
 

 Governance 
 

15.3 Spring Creek Matanzas Charter Application Renewal 
Mr. Rafanelli moved and Mr. Gospe seconded to  approve the Spring Creek 
Matanzas Charter application renewal, effective July 1, 2018 – June 30, 2023:  
Unanimous. 

 
 15.4 Safe Schools Plans 

Mr.Gospe moved and Mrs. Wood seconded to approve the Safe Schools Plan for 
Austin Creek, Madrone, Spring Creek Matanzas and RVCS Matanzas, Sequoia 
and RVCS Sequoia, Village, and Whited:  Unanimous. 
 
Dr. Roehrick shared that schools are required to review their Safe Schools Plan 
annually with the site councils and have them approved by the Board.  This is 
separate from the Emergency Response Plan.    Binkley’s Plan will be brought to 
the Board in May for approval. 

 
16. PERSONNEL 

Mrs. Wood moved and Mr. Rafanelli seconded to approve the following personnel 
items:  Unanimous. 
 

 16.1 Certificated – Temporary Teacher Promoted to Probationary Status 
 Casey Wilson, Teacher, Village, effective March 16, 2018 

 
16.2 Certificated – Job Shares Approved 

 Ashley Klaus/Melissa Harryman, Austin Creek, 1st Grade 
 Alicia Hildebrandt/Erika Noone, Binkley, 4th Grade 
  Melissa Rodda/Celia Dippel, Madrone, Transitional Kindergarten 
 Jaime Ives/Morgan Langlois, Madrone, 2nd  Grade 
 Megan Byrum/Shannon Palmer, Sequoia, 1st Grade 
 Heather Conneely/Kasey Rush, Spring Creek, Kindergarten 
 Jill Dennler/Clare Shubel, Village, Kindergarten 
 Debbie Perry/Andree Moll, Whited, 3rd Grade 

 
16.3 Certificated – Leave of Absence Requests 

 Celia Dippel, Teacher, Madrone, effective May 21, 2018 – October 31, 2018 
 Nicole Rinehart, Teacher, Village, effective August 8, 2018 – January 4, 2019 

 
16.4 Certificated – Resignation 

 Jennifer Killam, RSP Teacher, Madrone, effective June 1, 2018 
 
16.5 Classified – New Hires 

 Manyvanh Phalavong, Substitute Cashier, District, effective March 5, 2018 
 Mary Denise Alvear, Co-Volleyball Coach, Austin Creek, effective March 15, 

2018 
 Joanne Reed, Co-Volleyball Coach, Austin Creek, effective March 15, 2018 
 Kampy Pongkhamsing, Substitute Custodian, District, effective April 9, 2018 



 

11 
 

 Kay Reed, Substitute Cashier, District, effective April 9, 2018 
 

16.6 Classified – Retirements 
 Diana Cavallero, Computer Tech/Day Care Assistant, Village, effective July 

31, 2018 
 Mark Cleveland, Maintenance III, District, effective September 30, 2018 

 
16.7 Classified – Resignations  

 Lakshmi Acharya, Noon Duty I, Austin Creek, effective June 1, 2018 
 Alicia Graves, Library Clerk, Binkley, effective June 1, 2018 
 Mark Newall, Computer Tech, Austin Creek, effective June 1, 2018 
 Debra Winkelman, Instructional Assistant, Austin Creek, effective June 1, 2018 

 
17. CSEA / RVUTA COMMENTS 
 RVUTA:  None 
 CSEA:    None 
 

18. BOARD OF TRUSTEE COMMENTS/COMMITTEE REPORTS/REQUESTS FOR  
  INFORMATION 
 

 Site Visits 
Mrs. Wood commented on how impressed she was with the CEL (Center for 
Educational Leadership) walkthroughs she joined with administrators today.  It 
was impressive and fascinating to watch the process.   She is proud that we are 
participating in this program.   

 
19. NEXT BOARD AGENDA ITEMS 

 GATE Report 
 Arts Participation 
 Professional Development Summary 
 Home Study Report 
 Student Support Summary 
 Education Protection Account 
 Public Hearing – Preliminary Budget 
 Public Hearing- LCAP 
 Community Input Summary Report 
 Community Service Recognition 
 Board Goals 
 Day Care Fees 
 Special Recognition – Odyssey of the Mind State Competition Winners 
 Resolution for Employees of the Year 
 Declaration of Need 

 
20.   CLOSED SESSION 
       Mr. Rafanelli moved and Mr. Cook seconded to return to closed session to continue      

discussion on the closed session items  at 8:55 p.m.:   Unanimous. 



 

12 
 

 
21.   OPEN SESSION 

Mr. Gospe moved and Mr. Rafanelli seconded to return to open session at 9:52 p.m.:  
Unanimous. 

 
22.   ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION  
        Mrs. Evers announced that no action was taken in closed session. 
 
23.  ADJOURN 

Mr. Gospe moved and Mrs. Wood seconded to adjourn the meeting at 9:53 p.m.:  
Unanimous. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 Tony Roehrick, Ed.D. 
 Secretary to the Board of trustees 



 

1 
 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT  
Governance/Administration Retreat 

Wild Oak Saddle Club 
550 White Oak Drive, Santa Rosa 

April 20, 2018 
 

MINUTES 
 
Present:  Mrs. Cynthia Evers 
   Mr. Jeff Gospe 

Mrs. Carol Lynn Wood 
   Mr. Chris Rafanelli 
   Mr. Mike Cook 
    
Administrators: Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent 
   Mrs. Cathy Myhers, Assistant Superintendent Student Services 
   Mrs. Denise Reich, Direct, Rincon Valley Partnership 
   

Principals 
Teacher Representative 
RVUTA and CSEA representatives 

 
 

 
1.       OPEN SESSION:           

     CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 Mrs. Evers called the meeting to order at 8:38 a.m. 
 
2.        AGENDA MODIFICATIONS 
 None 
 
3. AGENDA APPROVAL 
 Mrs. Wood moved and Mr. Gospe seconded to approve the agenda:  Unanimous. 
 
4. PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
 None. 
 
5. INFORMATION 
 

5.1 District Annual Goals/Planning for 2018-2019 
Board of Trustees and administrators discussed the district’s annual goals and 
planning for 2018-2019. 

  
6. PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON CLOSED 
 SESSION ITEMS 
 None    
 
 



 

2 
 

7. CLOSED SESSION:   
 Mrs. Wood moved and Mr. Gospe seconded to recess to closed session at 3:35 p.m. to 

discuss the following:  Unanimous. 
 

7.1 Public Employees Performance Evaluations- Superintendent 
           (Government Code Section 54957) 

 
8. OPEN SESSION 

Mr. Gospe moved and Mrs. Wood seconded to adjourn closed session and return to 
open session at 4:54 p.m.:  Unanimous. 
 

9. ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 Mrs. Evers announced that no action was taken in closed session. 
 
10. ADJOURN 

Mr. Gospe moved and Mrs. Wood seconded to adjourn the meeting at 4:55 p.m.:  
Unanimous 





















Community Relations BP 1312.3(a) 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES 
 
 
The Governing Board recognizes that the district has the primary responsibility to ensure 
compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational 
programs. The Board encourages early resolution of complaints whenever possible. To 
resolve complaints which may require a more formal process, the Board adopts the uniform 
system of complaint processes specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 and the accompanying 
administrative regulation. 
 
Complaints Subject to the UCP 
 
The district's uniform complaint procedures (UCP) shall be used to investigate and resolve 
the following complaints: 
 
1. Any complaint alleging district violation of applicable state or federal law or 

regulations governing adult education programs, After School Education and Safety 
programs, agricultural vocational education, American Indian education centers and 
early childhood education program assessments, bilingual education, peer assistance 
and review programs for teachers, career technical and technical education and 
training programs, child care and development programs, child nutrition programs, 
compensatory education, consolidated categorical aid programs, Economic Impact 
Aid, English learner programs, federal education programs in Title I-VII, migrant 
education, Regional Occupational Centers and Programs, school safety plans, special 
education programs, State Preschool Programs, Tobacco-Use Prevention Education 
programs, and any other district-implemented program which is listed in Education 
Code 64000(a) 

 
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 
(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance) 
(cf. 5131.62 - Tobacco) 
(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development) 
(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 
(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education) 
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 
(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs) 
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners) 
(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program) 
(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 
(cf. 6178.1 - Work-Based Learning) 
(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 
(cf. 6200 - Adult Education) 
 
2. Any complaint alleging the occurrence of unlawful discrimination (such as 

discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying) against any student, employee, 
or other person participating in district programs and activities, including, but not 
limited to, those programs or activities funded directly by or that receive or benefit 
from any state financial assistance, based on the person's actual or perceived  
 



 BP 1312.3(b) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
 characteristics of race or ethnicity, color, ancestry, nationality, national origin, 

immigration status, ethnic group identification, age, religion, marital status, 
pregnancy, parental status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, 
gender, gender identity, gender expression, or genetic information, or any other 
characteristic identified in Education Code 200 or 220, Government Code 11135, or 
Penal Code 422.55, or based on his/her association with a person or group with one or 
more of these actual or perceived characteristics  (5 CCR 4610) 

 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 
 
3. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the requirement to provide 

reasonable accommodation to a lactating student on school campus to express breast 
milk, breastfeed an infant child, or address other breastfeeding-related needs of the 
student  (Education Code 222) 

 
(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 
 
4. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the prohibition against requiring 

students to pay fees, deposits, or other charges for participation in educational 
activities  (5 CCR 4610) 

 
(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges) 
(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District) 
 
5. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with legal requirements related to the 

implementation of the local control and accountability plan  (Education Code 52075) 
 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
 
6. Any complaint, by or on behalf of any student who is a foster youth, alleging district 

noncompliance with any legal requirement applicable to the student regarding 
placement decisions, the responsibilities of the district's educational liaison to the 
student, the award of credit for coursework satisfactorily completed in another school 
or district, school transfer, or the grant of an exemption from Board-imposed 
graduation requirements (Education Code 48853, 48853.5, 49069.5, 51225.1, 
51225.2) 

 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 
 
7. Any complaint, by or on behalf of a homeless student as defined in 42 USC 11434a, a 

former juvenile court school student, or a child of a military family as defined in  
 



 BP 1312.3(c) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
 Education Code 49701 who transfers into the district after his/her second year of high 

school, alleging district noncompliance with any requirement applicable to the 
student regarding the award of credit for coursework satisfactorily completed in 
another school or district or the grant of an exemption from Board-imposed 
graduation requirements  (Education Code 51225.1, 51225.2) 

 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 
(cf. 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students) 
 
8. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the requirements of Education 

Code 51228.1 and 51228.2 that prohibit the assignment of a student in grades 9-12 to 
a course without educational content for more than one week in any semester or to a 
course the student has previously satisfactorily completed, without meeting specified 
conditions (Education Code 51228.3) 

 
(cf. 6152 - Class Assignment) 
 
9. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the physical education 

instructional minutes requirement for students in elementary school  (Education Code 
51210, 51223) 

 
(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 
 
10. Any complaint alleging retaliation against a complainant or other participant in the 

complaint process or anyone who has acted to uncover or report a violation subject to 
this policy 

 
11. Any other complaint as specified in a district policy 
 
The Board recognizes that alternative dispute resolution (ADR) can, depending on the nature 
of the allegations, offer a process to reach a resolution to the complaint that is acceptable to 
all parties. ADR such as mediation may be offered to resolve complaints that involve more 
than one student and no adult. However, mediation shall not be offered or used to resolve any 
complaint involving sexual assault or where there is a reasonable risk that a party to the 
mediation would feel compelled to participate. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure 
that the use of ADR is consistent with state and federal laws and regulations. 
 
The district shall protect all complainants from retaliation. In investigating complaints, the 
confidentiality of the parties involved shall be protected as required by law. For any 
complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, 
intimidation, or bullying), the Superintendent or designee shall keep the identity of the  
 
 



 BP 1312.3(d) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
complainant, and/or the subject of the complaint if he/she is different from the complainant, 
confidential when appropriate and as long as the integrity of the complaint process is 
maintained. 
 
(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information) 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information) 
 
When an allegation that is not subject to the UCP is included in a UCP complaint, the district 
shall refer the non-UCP allegation to the appropriate staff or agency and shall investigate 
and, if appropriate, resolve the UCP-related allegation(s) through the district's UCP. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to district staff to ensure awareness 
and knowledge of current law and related requirements, including the steps and timelines 
specified in this policy and the accompanying administrative regulation. 
 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of all UCP complaints and the 
investigations of those complaints in accordance with applicable law and district policy. 
 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
 
Non-UCP Complaints 
 
The following complaints shall not be subject to the district's UCP but shall be referred to the 
specified agency:  (5 CCR 4611) 
 
1. Any complaint alleging child abuse or neglect shall be referred to the County 

Department of Social Services, the County Protective Services Division, and the 
appropriate law enforcement agency. 

 
(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 
 
2. Any complaint alleging health and safety violations by a child development program 

shall, for licensed facilities, be referred to Department of Social Services and shall, 
for licensing-exempt facilities, be referred to the appropriate Child Development 
regional administrator. 

 
3. Any complaint alleging fraud shall be referred to the Legal, Audits and Compliance 

Branch of the California Department of Education. 
 



 BP 1312.3(e) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
Any complaint alleging employment discrimination or harassment shall be investigated and 
resolved by the district in accordance with the procedures specified in AR 4030 - 
Nondiscrimination in Employment. 
 
Any complaint related to sufficiency of textbooks or instructional materials, emergency or 
urgent facilities conditions that pose a threat to the health or safety of students or staff, or 
teacher vacancies and misassignments shall be investigated and resolved in accordance with 
the procedures in AR 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures.  (Education Code 
35186) 
 
(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 
222  Reasonable accommodations; lactating students 
8200-8498  Child care and development programs 
8500-8538  Adult basic education 
18100-18203  School libraries 
32280-32289  School safety plan, uniform complaint procedures 
33380-33384 California Indian Education Centers 
35186  Williams uniform complaint procedures 
44500-44508  California Peer Assistance and Review Program for Teachers 
48853-48853.5  Foster youth 
48985  Notices in language other than English 
49010-49013  Student fees 
49060-49079  Student records 
49069.5  Rights of parents 
49490-49590  Child nutrition programs 
49701 Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children 
51210  Courses of study grades 1-6 
51223  Physical education, elementary schools 
51225.1-51225.2  Foster youth, homeless children, former juvenile court school students, and military-
connected students; course credits; graduation requirements 
51226-51226.1  Career technical education 
51228.1-51228.3  Course periods without educational content 

 
 
 
Legal Reference continued:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 BP 1312.3(f) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (continued) 

EDUCATION CODE (continued) 
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan, especially: 
52075  Complaint for lack of compliance with local control and accountability plan requirements 
52160-52178  Bilingual education programs 
52300-52462 Career technical education 
52500-52616.24  Adult schools 
54000-54029  Economic Impact Aid 
54400-54425  Compensatory education programs 
54440-54445  Migrant education 
54460-54529  Compensatory education programs 
56000- 56865  Special education programs 
59000-59300  Special schools and centers 
64000-64001  Consolidated application process 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
11135  Nondiscrimination in programs or activities funded by state 
12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
104420  Tobacco-Use Prevention Education 
PENAL CODE 
422.55  Hate crime; definition 
422.6  Interference with constitutional right or privilege 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 
11023  Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
3080  Application of section 
4600-4687  Uniform complaint procedures 
4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1221  Application of laws 
1232g  Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 
1681-1688  Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 
6301-6576  Title I basic programs 
6801-7014  Title III language instruction for limited English proficient and immigrant students 
7101-7184  Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act 
7201-7283g  Title V promoting informed parental choice and innovative programs 
7301-7372  Title V rural and low-income school programs 
12101-12213  Title II equal opportunity for individuals with disabilities 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 
794  Section 504 of Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
2000d-2000e-17  Title VI and Title VII Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 
2000h-2-2000h-6  Title IX of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
6101-6107  Age Discrimination Act of 1975 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 
35.107  Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints 

 
 
 
Legal Reference continued:  (see next page) 
 



 BP 1312.3(g) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (continued) 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 
100.3  Prohibition of discrimination on basis of race, color or national origin 
104.7  Designation of responsible employee for Section 504 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
106.8  Designation of responsible employee for Title IX 
106.9  Notification of nondiscrimination on basis of sex 
110.25  Notification of nondiscrimination on the basis of age 

 
Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Sample UCP Board Policies and Procedures 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 
Dear Colleague Letter:  Title IX Coordinators, April 2015 
Dear Colleague Letter: Bullying of Students with Disabilities, August 2013 
Dear Colleague Letter: Harassment and Bullying, October 2010 
Revised Sexual Harassment Guidance: Harassment of Students by School Employees, Other Students, 
or Third Parties, January 2001 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE PUBLICATIONS 
Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI Prohibition Against National 
Origin Discrimination Affecting Limited English Proficient Persons, 2002 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 
Family Policy Compliance Office: http://familypolicy.ed.gov 
U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/ocr 
U.S. Department of Justice: http://www.justice.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: March 2018 



Community Relations AR 1312.3(a) 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES 
 
 
Except as the Governing Board may otherwise specifically provide in other district policies, 
these uniform complaint procedures (UCP) shall be used to investigate and resolve only the 
complaints specified in BP 1312.3. 
 
(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees) 
(cf. 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials) 
(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 
 
Compliance Officers 
 
The district designates the individual(s) identified below as the employee(s) responsible for 
coordinating the district's response to complaints and for complying with state and federal 
civil rights laws. The individual(s) also serve as the compliance officer(s) specified in AR 
5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment as the responsible employee(s) to handle complaints 
regarding unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or 
bullying). The individual(s) shall receive and coordinate the investigation of complaints and 
shall ensure district compliance with law. 
 
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 
 

  
Superintendent 
1000 Yulupa Ave. 
Santa Rosa  CA  95405 
(707) 542-7375 

 
The compliance officer who receives a complaint may assign another compliance officer to 
investigate and resolve the complaint. The compliance officer shall promptly notify the 
complainant and respondent, if applicable, if another compliance officer is assigned to the 
complaint. 
 
In no instance shall a compliance officer be assigned to a complaint in which he/she has a 
bias or conflict of interest that would prohibit him/her from fairly investigating or resolving 
the complaint. Any complaint against a compliance officer or that raises a concern about the 
compliance officer's ability to investigate the complaint fairly and without bias shall be filed 
with the Superintendent or designee who shall determine how the complaint will be 
investigated. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 AR 1312.3(b) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees assigned to investigate and 
resolve complaints receive training and are knowledgeable about the laws and programs at 
issue in the complaints to which they are assigned. Training provided to such employees 
shall cover current state and federal laws and regulations governing the program, applicable 
processes for investigating and resolving complaints, including those alleging unlawful 
discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), applicable 
standards for reaching decisions on complaints, and appropriate corrective measures.  
Assigned employees may have access to legal counsel as determined by the Superintendent 
or designee. 
 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 9124 - Attorney) 
 
The compliance officer or, if necessary, any appropriate administrator shall determine 
whether interim measures are necessary during and pending the result of an investigation. If 
interim measures are determined to be necessary, the compliance officer or the administrator 
shall consult with the Superintendent, the Superintendent's designee, or, if appropriate, the 
site principal to implement one or more interim measures. The interim measures shall remain 
in place until the compliance officer determines that they are no longer necessary or until the 
district issues its final written decision, whichever occurs first. 
 
Notifications 
 
The district's UCP policy and administrative regulation shall be posted in all district schools 
and offices, including staff lounges and student government meeting rooms.  (Education 
Code 234.1) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall annually provide written notification of the district's 
UCP to students, employees, parents/guardians of district students, district advisory 
committee members, school advisory committee members, appropriate private school 
officials or representatives, and other interested parties. The notification shall include 
information regarding the prohibition of discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and 
bullying; unlawful student fees; local control and accountability plan (LCAP) requirements; 
and requirements related to the educational rights of foster youth, homeless students, former 
juvenile court school students, and children of military families.  (Education Code 262.3, 
48853, 48853.5, 49010-49013, 49069.5, 51225.1, 51225.2, 52075; 5 CCR 4622) 
 
(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 
(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges) 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
 



 AR 1312.3(c) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 
(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 
(cf. 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students) 
 
The notice shall: 
 
1. Identify the person(s), position(s), or unit(s) responsible for receiving complaints 
 
2. Advise the complainant of any civil law remedies that may be available to him/her 

under state or federal antidiscrimination laws, if applicable 
 
3. Advise the complainant of the appeal process, including, if applicable, the 

complainant's right to take a complaint directly to the California Department of 
Education (CDE) or to pursue remedies before civil courts or other public agencies, 
such as the U.S. Department of Education's Office for Civil Rights (OCR) in cases 
involving unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, 
or bullying). 

 
4. Include statements that: 
 

a. The district has the primary responsibility to ensure compliance with 
applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational 
programs. 

 
b. The complaint review shall be completed within 60 calendar days from the 

date of receipt of the complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to an 
extension of the timeline. 

 
c. A complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as 

discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying) must be filed not later 
than six months from the date it occurred, or six months from the date the 
complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged unlawful 
discrimination. The time for filing may be extended for up to 90 days by the 
Superintendent or designee for good cause upon written request by the 
complainant setting forth the reasons for the extension. 

 
d. Complaints should be filed in writing and signed by the complainant. If a 

complainant is unable to put his/her complaint in writing, for example, due to 
conditions such as a disability or illiteracy, district staff shall assist him/her in 
the filing of the complaint. 

 
 
 



 AR 1312.3(d) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 

 
e. If a complaint is not filed in writing but the district receives notice of any 

allegation that is subject to the UCP, the district shall take affirmative steps to 
investigate and address the allegations, in a manner appropriate to the 
particular circumstances. 

 
 If the allegation involves retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as 

discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying) and the investigation 
confirms that discrimination has occurred, the district will take steps to 
prevent recurrence of discrimination and correct its discriminatory effects on 
the complainant, and on others, if appropriate. 

 
f. A student enrolled in a public school shall not be required to pay a fee for 

his/her participation in an educational activity that constitutes an integral 
fundamental part of the district's educational program, including curricular 
and extracurricular activities. 

 
g. The Board is required to adopt and annually update the LCAP in a manner 

that includes meaningful engagement of parents/guardians, students, and other 
stakeholders in the development and/or review of the LCAP. 

 
h. A foster youth shall receive information about educational rights related to 

his/her educational placement, enrollment in and checkout from school, as 
well as the responsibilities of the district liaison for foster youth to ensure and 
facilitate these requirements and to assist the student in ensuring proper 
transfer of his/her credits, records, and grades when he/she transfers between 
schools or between the district and another district. 

 
i. A foster youth, homeless student, former juvenile court school student, or 

child of a military family who transfers into a district high school or between 
district high schools as applicable shall be notified of the district's 
responsibility to: 
 
(1) Accept any coursework or part of the coursework that the student has 

satisfactorily completed in another public school, juvenile court 
school, or a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency, and to issue full 
or partial credit for the coursework completed 

 
(2) Not require the student to retake any course or a portion of a course 

which he/she has satisfactorily completed in another public school, 
juvenile court school, or a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency 

 
 
 



 AR 1312.3(e) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 

 
(3) If the student has completed his/her second year of high school before 

the transfer, provide the student information about district-adopted 
coursework and Board-imposed graduation requirements from which 
he/she may be exempted pursuant to Education Code 51225.1 

 
j. The complainant has a right to appeal the district's decision to CDE by filing a 

written appeal within 15 calendar days of receiving the district's decision. 
 

 In any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory 
harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the respondent also shall have the right 
to file an appeal with CDE in the same manner as the complainant, if he/she is 
dissatisfied with the district's decision. 

 
k. The appeal to CDE must include a copy of the complaint filed with the district 

and a copy of the district's decision. 
 

l. Copies of the district's UCP are available free of charge. 
 
The annual notification, complete contact information of the compliance officer(s), and 
information related to Title IX as required pursuant to Education Code 221.61 shall be posted 
on the district web site and may be provided through district-supported social media, if 
available. 
 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 
(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all students and parents/guardians, including 
students and parents/guardians with limited English proficiency, have access to the relevant 
information provided in the district's policy, regulation, forms, and notices concerning the 
UCP. 
 
If 15 percent or more of students enrolled in a particular district school speak a single 
primary language other than English, the district's policy, regulation, forms, and notices 
concerning the UCP shall be translated into that language, in accordance with Education 
Code 234.1 and 48985. In all other instances, the district shall ensure meaningful access to all 
relevant UCP information for parents/guardians with limited English proficiency. 
 
District Responsibilities 
 
All UCP-related complaints shall be investigated and resolved within 60 calendar days of the 
district's receipt of the complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to an extension of 
the timeline.  (5 CCR 4631) 
 



 AR 1312.3(f) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
For complaints alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, 
intimidation, or bullying), the district shall inform the respondent when the complainant 
agrees to an extension of the timeline for investigating and resolving the complaint. 
 
The compliance officer shall maintain a record of each complaint and subsequent related 
actions, including steps taken during the investigation and all information required for 
compliance with 5 CCR 4631 and 4633. 
 
All parties involved in the allegations shall be notified when a complaint is filed and when a 
decision or ruling is made. However, the compliance officer shall keep all complaints or 
allegations of retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, 
intimidation, or bullying) confidential except when disclosure is necessary to carry out the 
investigation, take subsequent corrective action, conduct ongoing monitoring, or maintain the 
integrity of the process.  (5 CCR 4630, 4964) 
 
All complainants shall be protected from retaliation. 
 
Filing of Complaints 
 
The complaint shall be presented to the compliance officer who shall maintain a log of 
complaints received, providing each with a code number and a date stamp. 
 
All complaints shall be filed in writing and signed by the complainant.  If a complainant is 
unable to put a complaint in writing due to conditions such as a disability or illiteracy, district 
staff shall assist him/her in the filing of the complaint.  (5 CCR 4600) 
 
Complaints shall also be filed in accordance with the following rules, as applicable: 
 
1. A complaint alleging district violation of applicable state or federal law or regulations 

governing the programs specified in the accompanying Board policy (item #1 of the 
section "Complaints Subject to the UCP") may be filed by any individual, public 
agency, or organization.  (5 CCR 4630) 

 
2. Any complaint alleging noncompliance with law regarding the prohibition against 

requiring students to pay student fees, deposits, and charges or any requirement 
related to the LCAP may be filed anonymously if the complaint provides evidence, or 
information leading to evidence, to support an allegation of noncompliance. A 
complaint about a violation of the prohibition against the charging of unlawful 
student fees may be filed with the principal of the school or with the Superintendent 
or designee. However, any such complaint shall be filed no later than one year from 
the date the alleged violation occurred.  (Education Code 49013, 52075; 5 CCR 4630) 

 
 



 AR 1312.3(g) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
3. A complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, 

intimidation, or bullying) may be filed only by a person who alleges that he/she 
personally suffered the unlawful discrimination or by a person who believes that an 
individual or any specific class of individuals has been subjected to it. The complaint 
shall be initiated no later than six months from the date when the alleged unlawful 
discrimination occurred, or six months from the date when the complainant first 
obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged unlawful discrimination. The time for 
filing may be extended for up to 90 days by the Superintendent or designee for good 
cause upon written request by the complainant setting forth the reasons for the 
extension.  (5 CCR 4630) 

 
4. When a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory 

harassment, intimidation, or bullying) is filed anonymously, the compliance officer 
shall pursue an investigation or other response as appropriate, depending on the 
specificity and reliability of the information provided and the seriousness of the 
allegation. 

 
5. When the complainant of unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory 

harassment, intimidation, or bullying) or the alleged victim, when he/she is not the 
complainant, requests confidentiality, the compliance officer shall inform him/her 
that the request may limit the district's ability to investigate the conduct or take other 
necessary action. When honoring a request for confidentiality, the district shall 
nevertheless take all reasonable steps to investigate and resolve/respond to the 
complaint consistent with the request. 

 
Mediation 
 
Within three business days after the compliance officer receives the complaint, he/she may 
informally discuss with all the parties the possibility of using mediation. Mediation shall be 
offered to resolve complaints that involve more than one student and no adult. However, 
mediation shall not be offered or used to resolve any complaint involving an allegation of 
sexual assault or where there is a reasonable risk that a party to the mediation would feel 
compelled to participate. If the parties agree to mediation, the compliance officer shall make 
all arrangements for this process. 
 
Before initiating the mediation of a complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination 
(such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the compliance officer shall 
ensure that all parties agree to make the mediator a party to relevant confidential information.  
The compliance officer shall also notify all parties of the right to end the informal process at 
any time. 
 
If the mediation process does not resolve the problem within the parameters of law, the 
compliance officer shall proceed with his/her investigation of the complaint. 



 AR 1312.3(h) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
The use of mediation shall not extend the district's timelines for investigating and resolving 
the complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to such an extension of time. If 
mediation is successful and the complaint is withdrawn, then the district shall take only the 
actions agreed upon through the mediation. If mediation is unsuccessful, the district shall 
then continue with subsequent steps specified in this administrative regulation. 
 
Investigation of Complaint 
 
Within 10 business days after the compliance officer receives the complaint, the compliance 
officer shall begin an investigation into the complaint. 
 
Within one business day of initiating the investigation, the compliance officer shall provide 
the complainant and/or his/her representative with the opportunity to present the information 
contained in the complaint to the compliance officer and shall notify the complainant and/or 
his/her representative of the opportunity to present the compliance officer with any evidence, 
or information leading to evidence, to support the allegations in the complaint. Such evidence 
or information may be presented at any time during the investigation. 
 
In conducting the investigation, the compliance officer shall collect all available documents 
and review all available records, notes, or statements related to the complaint, including any 
additional evidence or information received from the parties during the course of the 
investigation. He/she shall individually interview all available witnesses with information 
pertinent to the complaint, and may visit any reasonably accessible location where the 
relevant actions are alleged to have taken place. At appropriate intervals, the compliance 
officer shall inform both parties of the status of the investigation. 
 
To investigate a complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the compliance officer shall interview 
the alleged victim(s), any alleged offenders, and other relevant witnesses privately, 
separately, and in a confidential manner. As necessary, additional staff or legal counsel may 
conduct or support the investigation. 
 
A complainant's refusal to provide the district's investigator with documents or other 
evidence related to the allegations in the complaint, failure or refusal to cooperate in the 
investigation, or engagement in any other obstruction of the investigation may result in the 
dismissal of the complaint because of a lack of evidence to support the allegation. Similarly, 
a respondent's refusal to provide the district's investigator with documents or other evidence 
related to the allegations in the complaint, failure or refusal to cooperate in the investigation, 
or engagement in any other obstruction of the investigation may result in a finding, based on 
evidence collected, that a violation has occurred and in the imposition of a remedy in favor of 
the complainant.  (5 CCR 4631) 
 
 



 AR 1312.3(i) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
In accordance with law, the district shall provide the investigator with access to records and 
other information related to the allegation in the complaint and shall not in any way obstruct 
the investigation. Failure or refusal of the district to cooperate in the investigation may result 
in a finding based on evidence collected that a violation has occurred and in the imposition of 
a remedy in favor of the complainant.  (5 CCR 4631) 
 
The compliance officer shall apply a "preponderance of the evidence" standard in 
determining the veracity of the factual allegations in a complaint. This standard is met if the 
allegation is more likely to be true than not. 
 
Report of Findings 
 
Unless extended by written agreement with the complainant, a final decision shall be sent to 
the complainant within 60 calendar days of the district's receipt of the complaint. Within 30 
calendar days of receiving the complaint, the compliance officer shall prepare and send to the 
complainant a written report, as described in the section "Final Written Decision" below. If 
the complainant is dissatisfied with the compliance officer's decision, he/she may, within five 
business days, file his/her complaint in writing with the Board. 
 
The Board may consider the matter at its next regular Board meeting or at a special Board 
meeting convened in order to meet the 60-day time limit within which the complaint must be 
answered. When required by law, the matter shall be considered in closed session.  The 
Board may decide not to hear the complaint, in which case the compliance officer's decision 
shall be final. 
 
If the Board hears the complaint, the compliance officer shall send the Board's decision to the 
complainant within 60 calendar days of the district's initial receipt of the complaint or within 
the time period that has been specified in a written agreement with the complainant.  (5 CCR 
4631) 
 
In resolving any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory 
harassment, intimidation, and bullying), the respondent also shall be sent the district's 
decision and, in the same manner as the complainant, may file a complaint with the Board if 
dissatisfied with the decision. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 AR 1312.3(j) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
Final Written Decision 
 
The district's decision on how it will resolve the complaint shall be in writing and shall be 
sent to the complainant and respondent.  (5 CCR 4631) 
 
In consultation with district legal counsel, information about the relevant part of a decision 
may be communicated to a victim who is not the complainant and to other parties who may 
be involved in implementing the decision or are affected by the complaint, as long as the 
privacy of the parties is protected. In a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and bullying), notice of the district's decision to the 
alleged victim shall include information about any sanction to be imposed upon the 
respondent that relates directly to the alleged victim. 
 
If the complaint involves a limited-English-proficient student or parent/guardian and the 
student involved attends a school at which 15 percent or more of the students speak a single 
primary language other than English, then the decision shall also be translated into that 
language.  In all other instances, the district shall ensure meaningful access to all relevant 
information for parents/guardians with limited English proficiency. 
 
For all complaints, the decision shall include:  (5 CCR 4631) 
 
1. The findings of fact based on the evidence gathered. In reaching a factual 

determination, the following factors may be taken into account: 
 
a.  Statements made by any witnesses 
 
b.  The relative credibility of the individuals involved 
 
c.  How the complaining individual reacted to the incident 
 
d.  Any documentary or other evidence relating to the alleged conduct 

 
e.  Past instances of similar conduct by any alleged offenders 
 
f. Past false allegations made by the complainant 

 
2. The conclusion(s) of law 
 
3. Disposition of the complaint 
 
4. Rationale for such disposition 
 
 



 AR 1312.3(k) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 

For complaints of retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory 
harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the disposition of the complaint shall include a 
determination for each allegation as to whether retaliation or unlawful discrimination 
has occurred. 
 
The determination of whether a hostile environment exists may involve consideration 
of the following: 
 
a. The manner in which the misconduct affected one or more students' education 
 
b. The type, frequency, and duration of the misconduct 
 
c. The relationship between the alleged victim(s) and offender(s) 
 
d. The number of persons engaged in the conduct and at whom the conduct was 

directed 
 
e. The size of the school, location of the incidents, and context in which they 

occurred 
 
f. Other incidents at the school involving different individuals 

 
5. Corrective action(s), including any actions that have been taken or will be taken to 

address the allegations in the complaint and including, with respect to a student fees 
complaint, a remedy that comports with Education Code 49013 and 5 CCR 4600 
 
For complaints of unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, 
intimidation, or bullying), the decision may, as required by law, include: 
 
a. The corrective actions imposed on the respondent 
 
b. Individual remedies offered or provided to the complainant or another person 

who was the subject of the complaint, but this information should not be 
shared with the respondent. 

 
c. Systemic measures the school has taken to eliminate a hostile environment 

and prevent recurrence 
 
6. Notice of the complainant's and respondent's right to appeal the district's decision to 

CDE within 15 calendar days, and procedures to be followed for initiating such an 
appeal 

 
 



 AR 1312.3(l) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
The decision may also include follow-up procedures to prevent recurrence or retaliation and 
for reporting any subsequent problems. 
 
For complaints alleging unlawful discrimination based on state law (such as discriminatory 
harassment, intimidation, and bullying), the decision shall also include a notice to the 
complainant that: 
 
1. He/she may pursue available civil law remedies outside of the district's complaint 

procedures, including seeking assistance from mediation centers or public/private 
interest attorneys, 60 calendar days after the filing of an appeal with CDE.  
(Education Code 262.3) 

 
2. The 60 days moratorium does not apply to complaints seeking injunctive relief in 

state courts or to discrimination complaints based on federal law.  (Education Code 
262.3) 

 
3. Complaints alleging discrimination based on race, color, national origin, sex, gender, 

disability, or age may also be filed with the U.S. Department of Education, Office for 
Civil Rights at www.ed.gov/ocr within 180 days of the alleged discrimination. 

 
Corrective Actions 
 
When a complaint is found to have merit, the compliance officer shall adopt any appropriate 
corrective action permitted by law. Appropriate corrective actions that focus on the larger 
school or district environment may include, but are not limited to, actions to reinforce district 
policies; training for faculty, staff, and students; updates to school policies; or school climate 
surveys. 
 
For complaints involving retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory 
harassment, intimidation, or bullying), appropriate remedies that may be offered to the victim 
but not communicated to the respondent may include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
1. Counseling 
 
2. Academic support 
 
3. Health services 
 
4. Assignment of an escort to allow the victim to move safely about campus 
 
5. Information regarding available resources and how to report similar incidents or 

retaliation 
 



 AR 1312.3(m) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
6. Separation of the victim from any other individuals involved, provided the separation 

does not penalize the victim 
 
7. Restorative justice 
 
8. Follow-up inquiries to ensure that the conduct has stopped and there has been no 

retaliation 
 
9. Determination of whether any past actions of the victim that resulted in discipline 

were related to the treatment the victim received and described in the complaint 
 
For complaints involving retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory 
harassment, intimidation, or bullying), appropriate corrective actions that focus on a student 
offender may include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
1. Transfer from a class or school as permitted by law 
 
2. Parent/guardian conference 
 
3. Education regarding the impact of the conduct on others 
 
4. Positive behavior support 
 
5. Referral to a student success team 
 
6. Denial of participation in extracurricular or co-curricular activities or other privileges 

as permitted by law 
 
7. Disciplinary action, such as suspension or expulsion, as permitted by law 
 
When an employee is found to have committed retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such 
as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the district shall take appropriate 
disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal, in accordance with applicable law and 
collective bargaining agreement. 
 
The district may also consider training and other interventions for the larger school 
community to ensure that students, staff, and parents/guardians understand the types of 
behavior that constitute unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, 
intimidation, or bullying), that the district does not tolerate it, and how to report and respond 
to it. 
 
When a complaint is found to have merit, an appropriate remedy shall be provided to the 
complainant or other affected person. 



 AR 1312.3(n) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
If a complaint alleging noncompliance with the laws regarding student fees, deposits, and 
other charges, physical education instructional minutes for students in elementary schools, or 
any requirement related to the LCAP is found to have merit, the district shall provide a 
remedy to all affected students and parents/guardians subject to procedures established by 
regulation of the State Board of Education.  (Education Code 49013, 51223, 52075) 
 
For complaints alleging noncompliance with the laws regarding student fees, the district shall 
attempt in good faith, by engaging in reasonable efforts, to identify and fully reimburse all 
affected students and parents/guardians who paid the unlawful student fees within one year 
prior to the filing of the complaint.  (Education Code 49013; 5 CCR 4600) 
 
Appeals to the California Department of Education 
 
Any complainant who is dissatisfied with the district's final written decision of a complaint 
regarding any specified federal or state educational program subject to the UCP may file an 
appeal in writing with CDE within 15 calendar days of receiving the district's decision.  
(Education Code 222, 48853, 48853.5, 49013, 49069.5, 51223, 51225.1, 51225.2, 51228.3, 
52075; 5 CCR 4632) 
 
When a respondent in any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and bullying) is dissatisfied with the district's final 
written decision, he/she, in the same manner as the complainant, may file an appeal with 
CDE. 
 
The complainant or respondent shall specify the basis for the appeal of the decision and how 
the facts of the district's decision are incorrect and/or the law has been misapplied. The 
appeal shall be sent to CDE with a copy of the original locally filed complaint and a copy of 
the district's decision in that complaint.  (5 CCR 4632) 
 
Upon notification by CDE that the complainant or respondent has appealed the district's 
decision, the Superintendent or designee shall forward the following documents to CDE:  (5 
CCR 4633) 
 
1. A copy of the original complaint 
 
2. A copy of the written decision 
 
3. A summary of the nature and extent of the investigation conducted by the district, if 

not covered by the decision 
 
4. A copy of the investigation file including, but not limited to, all notes, interviews, and 

documents submitted by the parties and gathered by the investigator 
 



 AR 1312.3(o) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
5. A report of any action taken to resolve the complaint 
 
6. A copy of the district's uniform complaint procedures 
 
7. Other relevant information requested by CDE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: March 2018 



Business and Noninstructional Operations AR 3230(a) 
 
FEDERAL GRANT FUNDS 
 
 
To ensure the lawful expenditure of any federal formula or discretionary grant funds awarded 
to the district, the Superintendent or designee shall comply with the requirements of the 
Office of Management and Budget's Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (the "Uniform Guidance"), as contained in 2 
CFR 200.0-200.521 and Appendices I-XII. 
 
Allowable Costs 
 
Prior to obligating or spending any federal grant funds, the Superintendent or designee shall 
determine whether a proposed purchase is an allowable expenditure in accordance with 2 
CFR 200.400-200.475 and the terms and conditions of the award. He/she shall also determine 
whether the expense is a direct or indirect cost as defined in 2 CFR 200.413 and 200.414 and, 
if the purchase will benefit other programs not included in the grant award, the appropriate 
share to be allocated to the federal grant. 
 
(cf. 3350 - Travel Expenses) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall review and approve all transactions involving federal 
grant funds and shall ensure the proper coding of expenditures consistent with the California 
School Accounting Manual. 
 
(cf. 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases) 
(cf. 3314 - Payment for Goods and Services) 
 
Period of Performance 
 
All obligations of federal funds shall occur on or between the beginning and ending dates of 
the grant project and shall be paid no later than 90 days after the end of the funding period, 
unless specifically authorized by the grant award to be carried over beyond the initial term of 
the grant.  (2 CFR 200.77, 200.308, 200.309, 200.343) 
 
Procurement 
 
When procuring goods and services with a federal grant, the Superintendent or designee shall 
comply with the standards contained in 2 CFR 200.317-200.326 and Appendix II of Part 200, 
or with any applicable state law or district policy that is more restrictive. 
 
As appropriate to encourage greater economy and efficiency, the Superintendent or designee 
shall avoid acquisition of unnecessary or duplicative items, give consideration to 
consolidating or breaking out procurements, analyze lease versus purchase alternatives, 
consider entering into an interagency agreement for procurement of common or shared goods 
and services, and/or use federal excess or surplus property.  (2 CFR 200.318) 
 
 
 



 AR 3230(b) 
 
 
FEDERAL GRANT FUNDS  (continued) 
 
 
The procurement of goods or services with federal funds shall be conducted in a manner that 
provides full and open competition in accordance with state laws and district regulations and 
the following requirements: 
 
1. Any purchase of supplies or services that does not exceed the "micro-purchase" 

threshold specified in 48 CFR 2.101 may be awarded without soliciting competitive 
quotes, provided that the district considers the price to be reasonable and maintains 
written evidence of this reasonableness in the record of all micro-purchases.  (2 CFR 
200.67, 200.320) 

 
2. For any purchase that exceeds the micro-purchase threshold but is less than the bid 

limit required by Public Contract Code 20111, the Superintendent or designee shall 
utilize "small-purchase" procedures that include obtaining price or rate quotes from 
an adequate number of qualified sources.  (2 CFR 200.320) 

 
3. Contracts for goods or services over the bid limits required by Public Contract Code 

20111 shall be awarded pursuant to California law and AR 3311 - Bids, unless 
exempt from bidding under the law. 

 
(cf. 3311 - Bids) 
 
4. If a purchase is exempt from bidding and the district's solicitation is by a request for 

proposals, the award may be made by either a fixed-price or cost-reimbursement type 
contract awarded to the entity whose proposal is most advantageous to the program, 
with price and other factors considered.  (2 CFR 200.320) 

 
(cf. 3312 - Contracts) 
 
5. Procurement by noncompetitive proposals (sole sourcing) may be used only when the 

item is available exclusively from a single source, the need or emergency will not 
permit a delay resulting from competitive solicitation, the awarding agency expressly 
authorizes sole sourcing in response to the district's request, and/or competition is 
determined inadequate after solicitation of a number of sources.  (2 CFR 200.320) 

 
6. Time and materials type contracts may be used only after a determination that no 

other contract is suitable and if the contract includes a ceiling price that the contractor 
exceeds at its own risk.  Time and materials type contract means a contract for which 
the cost is the sum of the actual cost of materials and direct labor hours charged at 
fixed hourly rates that reflect wages, general administrative expenses, and profit.  
(200.328) 

 
For any purchase of $25,000 or more, the Superintendent or designee shall verify that any 
vendor which is used to procure goods or services is not excluded or disqualified by the 
federal government.  (2 CFR 180.220, 200.213) 



 AR 3230(c) 
 
 
FEDERAL GRANT FUNDS  (continued) 
 
 
All solicitations shall incorporate a clear and accurate description of the technical 
requirements for the material, product, or service to be procured. Such description shall not, 
in competitive procurements, contain features which unduly restrict competition. The 
description shall avoid detailed product specifications to the extent possible, but may include 
a statement of the qualitative nature of the material, product, or service to be procured and, 
when necessary, shall set forth those minimum essential characteristics and standards to 
which it must conform if it is to satisfy its intended use. When it is impractical or not 
economical to make a clear and accurate description of the technical requirements, a brand 
name or equivalent description may be used to define the performance or other salient 
requirements of procurement, clearly stating the specific features of the named brand which 
must be met by offers. In addition, every solicitation shall identify all requirements which the 
offer must fulfill and any other factors to be used in evaluating bids or proposals.  (2 CFR 
200.319) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain sufficient records to document the 
procurement, including, but not limited to, the rationale for the method of procurement, 
selection of the contract type, contractor selection or rejection, and the basis for the contract 
price.  (2 CFR 200.318) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all contracts for purchases using federal 
grant funds contain the applicable contract provisions described in Appendix II to Part 200 - 
Contract Provisions for Non-Federal Entity Contracts Under Federal Awards.  (2 CFR 
200.326) 
 
Capital Expenditures 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall obtain prior written approval from the awarding agency 
before using federal funds to make capital expenditures, including the acquisition of land, 
facilities, equipment, and intellectual property and expenditures to make additions, 
improvements, modifications, replacements, rearrangements, reinstallations, renovations, or 
alterations to capital assets that materially increase their value or useful life.  (2 CFR 200.12, 
200.13, 200.20, 200.33, 200.48, 200.58, 200.89, 200.313, 200.439) 
 
Conflict of Interest 
 
No Governing Board member, district employee, or district representative shall participate in 
the selection, award, or administration of a contract supported by federal funds if he/she has a 
real or apparent conflict of interest, such as when he/she or a member of his/her immediate 
family, his/her partner, or an organization which employs or is about to employ any of them 
has a financial interest in or a tangible personal benefit from a firm considered for a contract. 
Such persons are prohibited from soliciting or accepting gratuities, favors, or anything of 
monetary value from contractors or subcontractors unless the gift is an unsolicited item of 
nominal value.  (2 CFR 200.318) 



 AR 3230(d) 
 
 
FEDERAL GRANT FUNDS  (continued) 
 
 
Employees engaged in the selection, award, and administration of contracts shall also comply 
with BB 9270 - Conflict of Interest. 
 
(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest) 
 
Cash Management 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure the district's compliance with 2 CFR 200.305 
pertaining to payments and cash management, including compliance with applicable methods 
and procedures that minimize the time elapsing between the transfer of funds to the district 
and the district's disbursement of funds.  (2 CFR 200.305) 
 
When authorized by law, the district may receive advance payments of federal grant funds, 
limited to the minimum amounts needed and timed in accordance with the actual immediate 
cash requirements of the district for carrying out the purpose of the program or project. 
Except under specified conditions, the district shall maintain the advance payments in an 
interest-bearing account. The district shall remit interest earned on the advanced payment to 
the awarding agency on an annual basis, but may retain interest amounts specified in 2 CFR 
200.305 for administrative expenses.  (2 CFR 200.305) 
 
When required by the awarding agency, the district shall instead submit a request for 
reimbursement of actual expenses incurred. The district may also request reimbursement as 
an alternative to receiving advance payments.  (2 CFR 200.305) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain source documentation supporting the 
expenditure of federal funds, such as invoices, time sheets, payroll stubs, or other appropriate 
documentation. 
 
Personnel 
 
All district employees who are paid in full or in part with federal funds, including employees 
whose salary is paid with state or local funds but is used to meet a required match or in-kind 
contribution to a federal program, shall document the amount of time they spend on grant 
activities.  (2 CFR 200.430) 
 
Records 
 
Except as otherwise provided in 2 CFR 200.333, or where state law or district policy requires 
a longer retention period, financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and all 
other district records related to a federal award shall be retained for a period of three years 
from the date of submission of the final expenditure report or, for a federal award that is 
renewed quarterly or annually, from the date of the submission of the quarterly or annual 
financial report.  (2 CFR 200.333) 
 



 AR 3230(e) 
 
 
FEDERAL GRANT FUNDS  (continued) 
 
 
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
 
Audits 
 
Whenever the district expends $750,000 or more in federal grant funds during a fiscal year, it 
shall arrange for either a single audit or a program-specific audit in accordance with 2 CFR 
200.507 or 200.514.  (2 CFR 200.501) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the audit meets the requirements specified 
in 2 CFR 200.500-200.521. 
 
Specified records pertaining to the audit of federal funds expended by the district shall be 
transmitted to the clearinghouse designated by the federal Office of Management and Budget 
and shall be made available for public inspection. Such records shall be transmitted within 30 
days after receipt of the auditor's report or within nine months after the end of the audit 
period, whichever is sooner, unless a longer period is agreed to in advance by the federal 
agency or a different period is specified in a program-specific audit guide.  (2 CFR 200.512) 
 
In the event that the audit identifies any deficiency, the Superintendent or designee shall 
promptly act to either correct the identified deficiency, produce recommended improvements, 
or demonstrate that the audit finding is invalid or does not warrant action.  (2 CFR 200.26, 
200.508, 200.511) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: March 2018 



Business and Noninstructional Operations AR 3514.2(a) 
 
INTEGRATED PEST MANAGEMENT 
 

 
Definitions 
 
Integrated pest management (IPM) means a strategy that focuses on long-term prevention or 
suppression of pest problems through a combination of techniques such as monitoring for 
pest presence and establishing treatment threshold levels, using nonchemical practices to 
make the habitat less conducive to pest development, improving sanitation, and employing 
mechanical and physical controls.  (Education Code 17609; Food and Agricultural Code 
13181) 
 
(cf. 3510 - Green School Operations) 
 
School site means any facility used as a child day care facility or for kindergarten, 
elementary, or secondary school purposes and includes the buildings or structures, 
playgrounds, athletic fields, vehicles, or any other area of property visited or used by 
students.  (Education Code 17609) 
 
Program Components 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall designate an employee at the district office and/or 
school site to develop, implement, and coordinate an IPM strategy that incorporates effective, 
least toxic pest management practices. 
 

The IPM coordinator shall prepare and annually update a districtwide or school site IPM plan 
based on the template provided by the California Department of Pesticide Regulation (DPR). 
 

The IPM plan shall include the name of the district and/or school IPM coordinator, the 
pesticides expected to be applied at the school site by district employees and/or pest control 
applicators, and a date that the plan shall be reviewed and, if necessary, updated.  (Education 
Code 17611.5) 
 

The district shall use pesticides that pose the least possible hazard and are effective in a 
manner that minimizes risks to people, property, and the environment. Such pesticides shall 
only be used after careful monitoring indicates they are needed according to pre-established 
guidelines and treatment thresholds.  (Food and Agricultural Code 13181) 
 

The IPM plan and this administrative regulation shall not apply to reduced-risk pesticides, 
including self-contained baits or traps, gels or pastes used for crack and crevice treatments, 
antimicrobials, and pesticides exempt from registration by law.  (Education Code 17610.5; 3 
CCR 6147) 
 

The district's program shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, the following 
components: 
 

1. Identifying and monitoring pest population levels and identifying practices that could 
affect pest populations.  Strategies for managing the pest shall be influenced by the 
pest species and whether that species poses a threat to people, property, or the 
environment. 



 AR 3514.2(b) 
 
 
INTEGRATED PEST MANAGEMENT  (continued) 
 
 
2. Setting action threshold levels to determine when pest populations or vegetation at a 

specific location might cause unacceptable health or economic hazards that would 
indicate corrective action should be taken. 

 
3. Modifying or eliminating pest habitats to deter pest populations and minimize pest 

infestations. 
 

4. Considering a full range of possible alternative cost-effective treatments. Such 
alternative treatments may include taking no action or controlling the pest by 
physical, horticultural, or biological methods. Cost or staffing considerations alone 
will not be adequate justification for the use of chemical control agents. 

 
5. Selecting nonchemical pest management methods over chemical methods whenever 

such methods are effective in providing the desired control or, when it is determined 
that chemical methods must be used, giving preference to those chemicals that pose 
the least hazardous effects to people and the environment. 

 

No pesticide that is prohibited by DPR or the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, 
as listed on the DPR web site, shall be used at a school site.  (Education Code 
17610.1) 

 
6. Limiting pesticide purchases to amounts needed for the year.  Pesticides shall be 

stored at a secure location that is not accessible to students and unauthorized staff.  
They shall be stored and disposed of in accordance with state regulations and product 
label directions. 

 
(cf. 3514 - Environmental Safety) 
(cf. 3514.1 - Hazardous Substances) 
 
7. Informing parents/guardians and employees regarding pesticide use as described in 

the sections "Notifications" and "Warning Signs" below. 
 

8. Ensuring that persons applying pesticides follow label precautions and are sufficiently 
trained in the principles and practices of IPM as described in the section "Training" 
below. 

 

9. Evaluating the effectiveness of treatments to determine if revisions to the IPM plan 
are needed. 

 
Training 
 

The IPM coordinator and any employee or contractor who may be designated to apply a 
pesticide at a school site shall annually complete a DPR-approved training course on IPM 
and the safe use of pesticides in relation to the unique nature of school sites and children's 
health.  (Education Code 17614; Food and Agricultural Code 13186.5) 



 AR 3514.2(c) 
 
 
INTEGRATED PEST MANAGEMENT  (continued) 
 
 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
 
Any district employee who handles pesticides shall also receive pesticide-specific safety 
training prior to applying pesticides and annually thereafter in accordance with 3 CCR 6724. 
 
Notifications 
 
Staff and parents/guardians of students enrolled at a school site shall be annually notified, in 
writing, regarding pesticide products expected to be applied at the school site in the 
upcoming year. The notification shall include at least the following:  (Education Code 17612) 
 
1. The name of each pesticide product expected to be applied in the upcoming year and 

the active ingredient(s) in it 
 
2. The Internet address (http://www.cdpr.ca.gov/schoolipm) used to access information 

on pesticides and pesticide use reduction developed by the DPR pursuant to Food and 
Agricultural Code 13184 

 
3. If the school has posted its IPM plan, the Internet address where the plan may be 

found 
 
4. The opportunity to view a copy of the IPM plan in the school office 
 
5. An opportunity for interested persons to register to receive prior notification of each 

application of a pesticide at the school site 
 
6. Other information deemed necessary by the IPM coordinator 
 
(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
(cf. 3517 - Facilities Inspection) 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
Whenever a person registers to receive notice of individual pesticide application pursuant to 
item #5 above, the IPM coordinator shall notify such registered persons of individual 
pesticide applications at least 72 hours prior to the application. The notice shall include the 
product name, the active ingredient(s) in the product, and the intended date of application.  
(Education Code 17612) 
 
If a pesticide product not included in the annual notification is subsequently intended for use 
at a school site, the IPM coordinator shall provide written notification of its intended use to 
staff and parents/guardians of students enrolled at the school, at least 72 hours prior to the 
application.  (Education Code 17612) 
 



 AR 3514.2(d) 
 
 
INTEGRATED PEST MANAGEMENT  (continued) 
 
 
If a school chooses to use a pesticide not exempted pursuant to Education Code 17610.5, it 
shall post the school or district IPM plan on the school's web site or, if the school does not 
have a web site, then on the district web site. If neither the school nor district has a web site, 
then the IPM plan shall be included with the annual notification sent to staff and 
parents/guardians pursuant to Education Code 17612 as described above. When not required, 
the IPM coordinator may post or distribute the IPM plan at his/her discretion.  (Education 
Code 17611.5) 
 
Whenever the IPM coordinator deems that the immediate use of a pesticide is necessary to 
protect the health and safety of students, staff, or other persons at the school site, he/she shall 
make every effort to provide the required notifications prior to the application of the 
pesticide.  (Education Code 17612) 
 
Warning Signs 
 
The IPM coordinator shall post a warning sign at each area of the school site where 
pesticides will be applied that shall be visible to all persons entering the treated area. The 
sign shall be posted at least 24 hours prior to the application and shall remain posted until 72 
hours after the application. The warning sign shall prominently display the following 
information:  (Education Code 17612) 
 
1. The term "Warning/Pesticide Treated Area" 
 
2. The product name, manufacturer's name, and the EPA's product registration number 
 
3. Intended areas and dates of application 
 
4. Reason for the pesticide application 
 
When advance posting is not possible due to an emergency condition requiring immediate 
use of a pesticide to protect the health and safety of students, staff, or other persons or the 
school site, the warning sign shall be posted immediately upon application and shall remain 
posted until 72 hours after the application.  (Education Code 17609, 17612) 
 
Records 
 
At the end of each calendar year, the IPM coordinator shall submit to DPR, on a form 
provided by DPR, a copy of the records of all pesticide use at the school site for that year, 
excluding any pesticides exempted by law and any pesticide use reported by the pest control 
operator pursuant to Food and Agricultural Code 13186. The IPM coordinator may submit 
more frequent reports at his/her discretion.  (Education Code 17611) 
 
 



 AR 3514.2(e) 
 
 
INTEGRATED PEST MANAGEMENT  (continued) 
 
 
Each school site shall maintain records of all pesticide use at the school for four years, and 
shall make the information available to the public, upon request, in accordance with the 
California Public Records Act. A school may meet this requirement by retaining a copy of 
the warning sign posted for each pesticide application with a recording on that copy of the 
amount of the pesticide used.  (Education Code 17611) 
 
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
 
Pesticide Use near School Site 
 
Upon receiving notification pursuant to 3 CCR 6692 that a grower expects to use  
agricultural pesticides within one-quarter mile of a school site Monday through Friday from 
6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m., the principal or designee shall notify the Superintendent or designee, 
IPM coordinator, staff at the school site, and parents/guardians of students enrolled at the 
school. 
 
The principal or designee may communicate with any grower within one-quarter mile of the 
school to request that the grower not apply pesticides during evenings or weekends when 
school activities are scheduled. 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 AR 3514.2(f) 
 
 
INTEGRATED PEST MANAGEMENT  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
17366 Legislative intent (fitness of buildings for occupancy) 
17608-17614  Healthy Schools Act of 2000 
48980  Notice at beginning of term 
48980.3  Notification of pesticides 
BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE 
8593.2  Licensed pest control operators; training requirements 
FOOD AND AGRICULTURAL CODE 
11401-12408  Pest control operations and agricultural chemicals 
13180-13188  Healthy Schools Act of 2000 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
3543.2  Scope of representation; right to negotiate safety conditions 
6250-6270  California Public Records Act 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 3 
6147  Pesticides exempted from registration requirements 
6690-6692  Pesticide use near school sites 
6724  Training of employees handling pesticides 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 8 
340-340.2  Employer's obligation to provide safety information 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 7 
136-136y  Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodentcide Act 

 
Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF PESTICIDE REGULATION PUBLICATIONS 
California School IPM Model Program Guidebook 
Healthy Schools Act Requirements for Public K-12 Schools 
School District Integrated Pest Management Plan Template 
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
Pest Control in the School Environment: Implementing Integrated Pest Management (IPM), May 2017 
WEB SITES 
California Department of Education:  http//www.cde.ca.gov 
California Department of Pesticide Regulation, School IPM:   http://www.cdpr.ca.gov/schoolipm 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Integrated Pest Management at Schools:  
https://www.epa.gov/managing-pests-schools 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: March 2018 



Business and Noninstructional Operations  BP 3551(a) 
 
FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND 
 
 
The Governing Board intends that school food services shall be a self-supporting, nonprofit 
program. To ensure program quality and increase cost effectiveness, the Superintendent or 
designee shall centralize and direct the purchasing of foods and supplies, the planning of 
menus, and the auditing of all food service accounts for the district. 
 
(cf. 3100 - Budget) 
(cf. 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases) 
(cf. 3311 - Bids) 
(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 
(cf. 3552 - Summer Meal Program) 
(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all food service personnel possess the 
required qualifications and receive ongoing professional development related to the effective 
management and implementation of the district's food service program in accordance with 
law. 
 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
 
At least once each year, food service administrators, other appropriate personnel who 
conduct or oversee administrative procedures, and other food service personnel shall receive 
training provided by the California Department of Education (CDE).  (42 USC 1776) 
 
Meal Sales 
 
Meals may be sold to students, district employees, Board members, and employees or 
members of the fund or association maintaining the cafeteria.  (Education Code 38082) 
 
In addition, meals may be sold to nonstudents, including parents/guardians, volunteers, 
students' siblings, or other individuals, who are on campus for a legitimate purpose. Any 
meals served to nonstudents shall not be subsidized by federal or state reimbursements, food 
service revenues, or U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) foods. 
 
Meal prices, as recommended by the Superintendent or designee and approved by the Board, 
shall be based on the costs of providing food services and consistent with Education Code 
38084 and 42 USC 1760. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish strategies and procedures for the collection of 
meal payments, including delinquent meal payments. Such procedures shall conform with 2 
CFR 200.426 and any applicable CDE guidance. The Superintendent or designee shall 
clearly communicate these procedures to students and parents/guardians, and shall make this 
policy and the accompanying administrative regulation available to the public. 
 
 



 BP 3551(b) 
 
 
FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND  (continued) 
 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that a student whose parent/guardian has unpaid 
school meal fees is not overtly identified, shamed, treated differently, or served a meal that 
differs from the meal served to other students.  (Education Code 49557.5) 
 
Students who are enrolled in the free or reduced-price meal program shall receive meals free 
of charge or at a reduced price in accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative 
regulation. Such students shall not be overtly identified or treated differently from other 
students. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 
 
Cafeteria Fund 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish a cafeteria fund independent of the district's 
general fund. 
 
The wages, salaries, and benefits of food service employees shall be paid from the cafeteria 
fund.  (Education Code 38103) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that state and federal funds provided through 
school meal programs are allocated only for purposes related to the operation or 
improvement of food services and reasonable and necessary indirect program costs as 
allowed by law. 
 
(cf. 3230 - Federal Grant Funds) 
(cf. 3400 - Management of District Assets/Accounts) 
(cf. 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability) 
 
Contracts with Outside Services 
 
With Board approval, the district may enter into a contract for food service consulting 
services or management services in one or more district schools.  (Education Code 45103.5; 
42 USC 1758; 7 CFR 210.16) 
 
(cf. 3312 - Contracts) 
(cf. 3600 - Consultants) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 BP 3551(c) 
 
 
FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND  (continued) 
 
 
Procurement of Foods, Equipment and Supplies 
 
To the maximum extent practicable, foods purchased for use in school meals by the district 
or by any entity purchasing food on its behalf shall be domestic commodities or products. 
Domestic commodity or product means an agricultural commodity that is produced in the 
United States and a food product that is processed in the United States substantially using 
agricultural commodities that are produced in the United States.  (42 USC 1760; 7 CFR 
210.21) 
 
A nondomestic food product may be purchased for use in the district's food service program 
only as a last resort when the product is not produced or manufactured in the United States in 
sufficient and reasonable quantities of a satisfactory quality, or when competitive bids reveal 
the costs of a United States product are significantly higher than the nondomestic product. In 
such cases, the Superintendent or designee shall retain documentation justifying the use of 
the exception. 
 
Furthermore, the district shall accept a bid or price for an agricultural product grown in 
California before accepting a bid or price for an agricultural product grown outside the state, 
if the quality of the California-grown product is comparable and the bid or price does not 
exceed the lowest bid or price of a product produced outside the state.  (Food and Agriculture 
Code 58595) 
 
Bid solicitations and awards for purchases of equipment, materials, or supplies in support of 
the district's child nutrition program, or for contracts awarded pursuant to Public Contract 
Code 2000, shall be consistent with the federal procurement standards in 2 CFR 200.318-
200.326. Awards shall be let to the most responsive and responsible party. Price shall be the 
primary consideration, but not the only determining factor, in making such an award.  (Public 
Contract Code 20111) 
 
Program Monitoring and Evaluation 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall present to the Board, at least annually, financial reports 
regarding revenues and expenditures related to the food service program. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide all necessary documentation required for the 
Administrative Review conducted by the CDE to ensure compliance of the district's food 
service program with federal requirements related to maintenance of the nonprofit school 
food service account, meal charges, paid lunch equity, revenue from nonprogram goods, 
indirect costs, and USDA foods. 
 
(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance) 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 



 BP 3551(d) 
 
 
FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
38080-38086  Cafeteria, establishment and use 
38090-38095  Cafeterias, funds and accounts 
38100-38103  Cafeterias, allocation of charges 
42646  Alternate payroll procedure 
45103.5  Contracts for management consulting services; restrictions 
49490-49493  School breakfast and lunch programs 
49500-49505  School meals 
49554  Contract for services 
49550-49564.5  Meals for needy students 
49580-49581  Food recovery program 
FOOD AND AGRICULTURE CODE 
58595  Preference for California-grown agricultural products 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
113700-114437  California Retail Food Code 
PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE 
2000-2002 Responsive bidders 
20111  Contracts 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
15550-15565  School lunch and breakfast programs 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
1751-1769j  School lunch programs 
1771-1791  Child nutrition, including: 
1773  School breakfast program 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 
200.56  Indirect costs, definition 
200.318-200.326  Procurement standards 
200.400-200.475  Cost principles 
200 Appendix VII  Indirect cost proposals 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 
210.1-210.31  National School Lunch Program 
220.1-220.21  National School Breakfast Program 
250.1-250.70  USDA foods 

 
 
 
Management Resources:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 BP 3551(e) 
 
 
FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND  (continued) 
 
 
 
Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
California School Accounting Manual 
Food Distribution Program Administrative Manual 
Storage and Inventory Management of U.S. Department of Agriculture Foods, NSD Management 
Bulletin, FDP-01-2018, January 2018 
Unpaid Meal Charges: Local Meal Charge Policies, Clarification on Collection of Delinquent Meal 
Payments, and Excess Student Account Balances, NSD Management Bulletin, SNP-03-2017, April 
2017 
Clarification for the Use of Alternate Meals in the National School Lunch and School Breakfast 
Programs, Bad Debt Policies, and the Handling of Unpaid Meal Charges, NSD Management Bulletin, 
USDA-SNP-06-2015, May 2015 
Cafeteria Funds--Allowable Uses, NSD Management Bulletin, NSD-SNP-07-2013, May 2013 
Paid Lunch Equity Requirement, NSD Management Bulletin, USDA-SNP-16-2012, October 2012 
Adult and Sibling Meals in the National School Lunch and School Breakfast Programs, NSD 
Management Bulletin 00-111, July 2000 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE PUBLICATIONS 
FAQs About School Meals 
Unpaid Meal Charges: Guidance and Q&A, SP 23-2017, March 2017 
Indirect Costs: Guidance for State Agencies and School Food Authorities SP 60-2016, September 2016 
Overcoming the Unpaid Meal Challenge: Proven Strategies from Our Nation's Schools, September 
2016 
Unpaid Meal Charges: Local Meal Charge Policies, SP 46-2016, July 2016 
Compliance with and Enforcement of the Buy American Provision in the National School Lunch 
Program, SP 24-2016, February 2016 
Discretionary Elimination of Reduced Price Charges in the School Meal Programs, SP 17-2014, 
January 2014 
WEB SITES 
California Department of Education, Nutrition Services Division: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu 
California School Nutrition Association: http://www.calsna.org 
U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service: http://www.fns.usda.gov/cnd 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: March 2018 



Business and Noninstructional Operations AR 3551(a) 
 
FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND 
 
 
Payments for Meals 
 
With the exception of students who are eligible to receive meals at no cost, students may pay 
on a per-meal basis or may submit payments in advance. The Superintendent or designee 
shall maintain a system for accurately recording payments received and tracking meals 
provided to each student. 
 
(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 
(cf. 3552 - Summer Meal Program) 
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 
(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance) 
 
At the beginning of the school year, and whenever a student enrolls during the school year, 
parents/guardians shall be notified of the district's meal payment policies and be encouraged 
to prepay for meals whenever possible. The Superintendent or designee shall communicate 
the district's meal payment policies through multiple methods, including, but not limited to: 
 
1. Explaining the meal charge policy within registration materials provided to 

parents/guardians at the start of the school year 
 
2. Including the policy in print versions of student handbooks, if provided to 

parents/guardians annually 
 
3. Providing the policy whenever parents/guardians are notified regarding the 

application process for free and reduced-price meals, such as in the distribution of 
applications at the start of the school year 

 
4. Posting the policy on the district's web site 
 
5. Establishing a system to notify parents/guardians when a student's meal payment 

account has a low or negative balance 
 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
In any school that uses a system of meal tickets or other similar medium of exchange rather 
than an electronic point-of-sale system, the Superintendent or designee shall develop a 
process for providing replacement tickets to any student who reports his/her tickets as lost or 
stolen. However, whenever any student reports an excessive number of lost or stolen tickets, 
the Superintendent or designee shall notify the parent/guardian and may provide an 
alternative method of tracking meal usage for that student. 
 
In order to avoid potential misuse of a student's food service account by someone other than 
the student in whose name the account has been established, the Superintendent or designee  
 



 AR 3551(b) 
 
 
FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND  (continued) 
 
 
shall verify a student's identity when setting up the account and when charging any meal to 
the account. The Superintendent or designee shall investigate any claim that a bill does not 
belong to a student or is inaccurate, shall not require a student to pay a bill that appears to be 
the result of identity theft, and shall open a new account with a new account number for a 
student who appears to be the subject of identity theft. 
 
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
 
Any payments made to a student's food service account shall, if not used within the school 
year, be carried over into the next school year or be refunded to the student's 
parents/guardians. 
 
Unpaid and Delinquent Meal Charges 
 
No later than 10 days after a student's school meal account has reached a negative balance, 
the Superintendent or designee shall so notify the student's parent/guardian. Before sending 
this notification, the district shall exhaust all options and methods to directly certify the 
student for free or reduced-price meals. If the district is not able to directly certify the 
student, the notice to the parent/guardian shall include a paper copy of, or an electronic link 
to, an application for free or reduced-price meals and the Superintendent or designee shall 
contact the parent/guardian to encourage submission of the application.  (Education Code 
49557.5) 
 
The district may attempt to collect unpaid school meal fees from a parent/guardian, but shall 
not use a debt collector.  (Education Code 49557.5) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may enter into an agreement with a student's parent/guardian 
for payment of the student's unpaid meal charge balance over a period of time. As necessary, 
the repayment plan may allow the unrecovered or delinquent debt to carry over into the next 
fiscal year. 
 
The district shall not direct any action toward a student to collect unpaid school meal fees.  
(Education Code 49557.5) 
 
The district's efforts to collect debt shall be consistent with district policies and procedures, 
California Department of Education (CDE) guidance, and 2 CFR 200.426. The district shall 
not spend more than the actual debt owed in efforts to recover unpaid meal charges. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of the efforts made to collect unpaid 
meal charges and, if applicable, financial documentation showing when the unpaid meal 
balance has become an operating loss. 
 



 AR 3551(c) 
 
 
FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND  (continued) 
 
 
Reimbursement Claims 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of the number of meals served each 
day by school site and by category of free, reduced-price, and full-price meals.  The 
Superintendent or designee shall submit reimbursement claims for school meals to CDE 
using the online Child Nutrition Information and Payment System. 
 
Donation of Leftover Food 
 
To minimize waste and reduce food insecurity, the district may provide sharing tables where 
students and staff may return appropriate unused cafeteria food items to be made available to 
students during the course of a regular school meal time. If food on the sharing tables is not 
taken by a student, the school cafeteria may donate the food to a food bank or any other 
nonprofit charitable organization.  (Health and Safety Code 114079) 
 
Food that may be donated includes prepackaged, nonpotentially hazardous food with the 
packaging still intact and in good condition, whole uncut produce, unopened bags of sliced 
fruit, unopened containers of milk that are immediately stored in a cooling bin maintained at 
41 degrees Fahrenheit or below, and perishable prepackaged food if it is placed in a proper 
temperature-controlled environment. The preparation, safety, and donation of food shall be 
consistent with Health and Safety Code 113980.  (Health and Safety Code 114079) 
 
Cafeteria Fund 
 
All proceeds from food sales and other services offered by the cafeteria shall be deposited in 
the cafeteria fund as provided by law. The income and expenditures of any cafeteria 
revolving account established by the Governing Board shall be recorded as income and 
expenditures of the cafeteria fund.  (Education Code 38090, 38091) 
 
(cf. 3100 - Budget) 
(cf. 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases) 
 
The cafeteria fund shall be used only for those expenditures authorized by the Board as 
necessary for the operation of school cafeterias in accordance with Education Code 38100-
38103, 2 CFR Part 200 Appendix VII, and the California School Accounting Manual. 
 
Any charges to, or transfers from, a food service program shall be dated and accompanied by 
a written explanation of the expenditure's purpose and basis.  (Education Code 38101) 
 
(cf. 3110 - Transfer of Funds) 
 
Indirect costs charged to the food service program shall be based on either the district's prior 
year indirect cost rate or the statewide average approved indirect cost rate for the second 
prior fiscal year, whichever is less.  (Education Code 38101) 



 AR 3551(d) 
 
 
FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND  (continued) 
 
 
Net cash resources in the nonprofit school food service shall not exceed three months average 
expenditures.  (2 CFR 220.14) 
 
U.S. Department of Agriculture Foods 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that foods received through the U.S. Department 
of Agriculture (USDA) are handled, stored, and distributed in facilities which:  (7 CFR 
250.14) 
 
1. Are sanitary and free from rodent, bird, insect, and other animal infestation 
 
2. Safeguard foods against theft, spoilage, and other loss 
 
3. Maintain foods at proper storage temperatures 
 
4. Store foods off the floor in a manner to allow for adequate ventilation 
 
5. Take other protective measures as may be necessary 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain inventories of USDA foods in accordance 
with 7 CFR 250.59 and CDE procedures, and shall ensure that foods are used before their 
expiration dates. 
 
USDA donated foods shall be used in school lunches as far as practicable. USDA foods also 
may be used in other nonprofit food service activities, including, but not limited to, school 
breakfasts or other meals, a la carte foods sold to students, meals served to adults directly 
involved in the operation and administration of the food service and to other school staff, and 
training in nutrition, health, food service, or general home economics instruction for students, 
provided that any revenues from such activities accrue to the district's nonprofit food service 
account.  (7 CFR 250.59) 
 
Contracts with Outside Services 
 
The term of any contract for food service management or consulting services shall not exceed 
one year. Any renewal of the contract or further requests for proposals to provide such 
services shall be considered on a year-to-year basis.  (Education Code 45103.5; 7 CFR 
210.16) 
 
Any contract for management of the food service operation shall be approved by CDE and 
comply with the conditions in Education Code 49554 and 7 CFR 210.16 as applicable. The 
district shall retain control of the quality, extent, and general nature of its food services, 
including prices to be charged to students for meals, and shall monitor the food service  
 



 AR 3551(e) 
 
 
FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND  (continued) 
 
 
operation through periodic on-site visits.  The district shall not enter into a contract with a 
food service company to provide a la carte food services only, unless the company agrees to 
offer free, reduced-price, and full-price reimbursable meals to all eligible students.  
(Education Code 49554; 42 USC 1758; 7 CFR 210.16) 
 
Any contract for consulting services shall not result in the supervision of food service 
classified staff by the management consultant, nor shall it result in the elimination of any 
food service classified staff or position or have any adverse effect on the wages, benefits, or 
other terms and conditions of employment of classified food service staff or positions. All 
persons providing consulting services shall be subject to applicable employment conditions 
related to health and safety as listed in Education Code 45103.5.  (Education Code 45103.5) 
 
(cf. 3312 - Contracts) 
(cf. 3515.6 - Criminal Background Checks for Contractors) 
(cf. 3600 - Consultants) 
(cf. 4112.4/4212.4/4312.4 - Health Examinations) 
(cf. 4212 - Appointments and Conditions of Employment) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: March 2018 



Business and Noninstructional Operations BP 3553(a) 
 
FREE AND REDUCED PRICE MEALS 
 
 
The Governing Board recognizes that adequate nutrition is essential to the development, 
health, and learning of all students. The Superintendent or designee shall facilitate and 
encourage the participation of students from low-income families in the district's food service 
program. 
 
(cf. 3551 - Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund) 
(cf. 3552 - Summer Meal Program) 
(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 
(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development) 
(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 
(cf. 6177 - Summer Learning Programs) 
 
The district shall provide at least one nutritionally adequate meal each school day, free of 
charge or at a reduced price, for students whose families meet federal eligibility criteria.  
(Education Code 49550, 49552) 
 
To provide optimal nutrition and reduce the administrative burden of food service operations, 
the Superintendent or designee shall assess the eligibility of district schools to provide 
breakfast and/or lunch free of charge to all students at the school under a federally funded 
universal meal service provision, such as Provision 2 or the Community Eligibility Provision, 
pursuant to 42 USC 1759a. 
 
If any district school meets the criteria for a "very high poverty school" through its eligibility 
for the federal Community Eligibility Provision reimbursement rate pursuant to 42 USC 
1759a, the district shall apply to the California Department of Education (CDE) to operate a 
universal meal service, unless the Board adopts a resolution stating that the district is unable 
to comply with this requirement due to fiscal hardship. The resolution shall be part of the 
public agenda for at least two consecutive Board meetings, first as an information item and 
then as an action item. The Board shall reconsider the resolution at least once every four 
years.  (Education Code 49564; 42 USC 1759a) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that meals provided through the free and 
reduced-price meals program meet applicable state and/or federal nutritional standards in 
accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative regulation. 
 
(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 
 
Schools participating in the Special Milk Program pursuant to 42 USC 1772 shall provide 
milk at no charge to students who meet federal eligibility criteria for free or reduced-price 
meals. 
 
The Board shall approve, and shall submit to the CDE for approval, a plan that ensures that 
students eligible to receive free or reduced-price meals and milk are not treated differently 
from other students.  (Education Code 49557) 
 



BP 3553(b) 
 
 
FREE AND REDUCED PRICE MEALS  (continued) 
 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance) 
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 
 
Confidentiality/Release of Records 
 
All applications and records related to eligibility for the free and reduced-price meal program 
shall be confidential and may not be released except as provided by law and authorized by 
the Board or pursuant to a court order.  (Education Code 49558) 
 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
 
The Board authorizes designated employees to use individual records pertaining to student 
eligibility for the free and reduced-price meal program for the following purposes:  
(Education Code 49558) 
 
1. Disaggregation of academic achievement data 
 
(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 
 
2. Identification of students eligible for services under the federal Elementary and 

Secondary Education Act pursuant to 20 USC 6301-6576 
 
(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs) 
 
If a student transfers from the district to another district, charter school, county office of 
education program, or private school, the Superintendent or designee may share the student's 
meal eligibility information to the other educational agency to assist in the continuation of 
the student's meal benefits. 
 
The Superintendent or designee may release the name and eligibility status of a student 
participating in the free or reduced-price meal program to another school district, charter 
school, or county office of education that is serving a student living in the same household 
for purposes related to program eligibility and data used in local control funding formula 
calculations.  (Education Code 49558) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may release the name and eligibility status of a student 
participating in the free or reduced-price meal program to the Superintendent of Public 
Instruction for purposes of determining allocations under the local control funding formula 
and for assessing accountability of that funding.  (Education Code 49558) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may release information on the school lunch program 
application to the local agency that determines eligibility for participation in the Medi-Cal 
program if the student has been approved for free meals or, if included in the agreement with  
 



 BP 3553(c) 
 
 
FREE AND REDUCED PRICE MEALS  (continued) 
 
 
the local agency, for reduced-price meals. He/she also may release information on the school 
lunch application to the local agency that determines eligibility for CalFresh or another 
nutrition assistance program authorized under 7 CFR 210.1 if the student has been approved 
for free or reduced-price meals. Information may be released for these purposes only if the 
student's parent/guardian consents to the sharing of information and the district has entered 
into a memorandum of understanding with the local agency which, at a minimum, includes 
the roles and responsibilities of the district and local agency and the process for sharing the 
information. After sharing information with the local agency for purposes of determining 
eligibility for that program, no further information shall be shared unless otherwise 
authorized by law.  (Education Code 49557.2, 49557.3, 49558) 
 
(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
48980  Notice at beginning of term 
49430-49434  Pupil Nutrition, Health, and Achievement Act of 2001 
49490-49494  School breakfast and lunch programs 
49500-49505  School meals 
49510-49520  Nutrition 
49530-49536  Child Nutrition Act of 1974 
49547-49548.3  Comprehensive nutrition service 
49550-49564.5  Meals for needy students 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
15510  Mandatory meals for needy students 
15530-15535  Nutrition education 
15550-15565  School lunch and breakfast programs 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1232g  Federal Educational Rights and Privacy Act 
6301-6576 Elementary and Secondary Education Act 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
1751-1769j  School lunch program 
1771-1791  Child nutrition, especially: 
1773  School breakfast program 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 
210.1-210.31  National School Lunch Program 
220.10-220.21  National School Breakfast Program 
245.1-245.13  Determination of eligibility for free and reduced-price meals and free milk 

 
 
 
Management Resources: (see next page) 
 
 
 
 



 BP 3553(d) 
 
 
FREE AND REDUCED PRICE MEALS  (continued) 
 
 
 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Monitoring for Success: A Guide for Assessing and Strengthening Student Wellness Policies, 2012 
Student Wellness: A Healthy Food and Physical Activity Policy Resource Guide, 2012 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Direct Certification Implementation ChecklistFree and Reduced-Price Meals: Universal Meal Service, 
Nutrition Services Division Management Bulletin SNP-01-2018, January 2018 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE PUBLICATIONS 
Eligibility Manual for School Meals:  Determining and Verifying Eligibility, July 2015 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE PUBLICATIONS (continued) 
Provision 2 Guidance: National School Lunch and School Breakfast Programs, Summer 2002 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education, Nutrition Services Division: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu 
California Food Policy Advocates: https://cfpa.net 
California Project LEAN (Leaders Encouraging Activity and Nutrition): 
http://www.californiaprojectlean.org 
U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service: http://www.fns.usda.gov/cnd 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: March 2018 



Business and Noninstructional Operations AR 3553(a) 
 
FREE AND REDUCED PRICE MEALS 
 
 
Applications 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district's application form for free and 
reduced-price meals and related materials include the statements specified in Education Code 
49557 and 7 CFR 245.5. The district's application packet shall include the notifications and 
information listed in Education Code 49557.2. 
 
(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 
(cf. 3551 - Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund) 
(cf. 3552 - Summer Meal Program) 
 
The application form and related information shall be distributed in paper form to all 
parents/guardians at the beginning of each school year and shall be available to students at all 
times during the school day.  (Education Code 48980, 49520; 42 USC 1758; 7 CFR 245.5) 
 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
In addition, the district application form for free and reduced price meals shall be available 
online. The online application form shall require completion of only those questions 
necessary for determining eligibility, contain clear instructions for families that are homeless 
or migrant, and comply with other requirements specified in Education Code 49557. 
 
An application form and related information shall also be provided whenever a new student 
is enrolled. 
 
At the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall send a public 
release, containing the same information supplied to parents/guardians and including 
eligibility criteria, to local media, the local unemployment office, and any major employers 
in the district attendance area contemplating large layoffs. Copies of the public release shall 
be made available upon request to any interested person.  (7 CFR 245.5) 
 
Eligibility 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall determine students' eligibility for the free and reduced-
price meal program based on the criteria specified in 42 USC 1758 and 1773 and 7 CFR 
245.1-245.13 and made available by the California Department of Education. 
 
Participants in the CalFresh, California Work Opportunity and Responsibility to Kids 
(CalWORKS), and Medi-Cal programs shall be directly certified for enrollment in the free 
and reduced-price meal program without further application. Participants in other state or 
federal programs may be directly certified when authorized by law.  (Education Code 49561, 
49562; 42 USC 1758; 7 CFR 245.6) 
 
 
 



 AR 3553(b) 
 
 
FREE AND REDUCED PRICE MEALS  (continued) 
 
 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 
(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program) 
 
Verification of Eligibility 
 
Not later than November 15 of each year, the Superintendent or designee shall verify the 
eligibility of a sample of household applications approved for the school year in accordance 
with the sample sizes and procedures specified in 42 USC 1758 and 7 CFR 245.6a.  (42 USC 
1758; 7 CFR 245.6a) 
 
If the review indicates that the initial eligibility determination is correct, the Superintendent 
or designee shall verify the approved household application. If the review indicates that the 
initial eligibility determination is incorrect, the Superintendent or designee shall:  (42 USC 
1758; 7 CFR 245.6a) 
 
1. If the eligibility status changes from reduced price to free, make the increased 

benefits immediately available and notify the household of the change in benefits 
 
2. If the eligibility status changes from free to reduced price, first verify the application, 

then notify the household of the correct eligibility status, and, when required by law, 
send a notice of adverse action as described below 

 
3. If the eligibility status changes from free or reduced price to paid, send the household 

a notice of adverse action as described below 
 
If any household is to receive a reduction or termination of benefits as a result of verification 
activities, or if the household fails to cooperate with verification efforts, the Superintendent 
or designee shall reduce or terminate benefits, as applicable, and shall properly document and 
retain on file in the district the reasons for ineligibility. He/she also shall send a notice of 
adverse action to any household that is to receive a reduction or termination of benefits. Such 
notice shall be provided 10 days prior to the actual reduction or termination of benefits. The 
notice shall advise the household of:  (7 CFR 245.6a) 
 
1. The change and the reasons for the change 
 
2. The right to appeal, when the appeal must be filed to ensure continued benefits while 

awaiting a hearing and decision, and instructions on how to appeal 
 
3. The right to reapply at any time during the school year 
 
 
 
 



 AR 3553(c) 
 
 
FREE AND REDUCED PRICE MEALS  (continued) 
 
 
Confidentiality/Release of Records 
 
The Superintendent designates the following district employee(s) to use individual records 
pertaining to student participation in the free and reduced-price meal program for the purpose 
of disaggregation of academic achievement data and/or the provision of services under the 
federal Elementary and Secondary Education Act pursuant to 20 USC 6301-6576. 
 

_____________________________________ 
(title or position) 

 
In using the records for such purposes, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that:  
(Education Code 49558) 
 
1. No individual indicators of participation in the free and reduced-price meal program 

are maintained in the permanent records of any student if not otherwise allowed by 
law. 

 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
 
2. Information regarding individual student participation in the free and reduced-price 

meal program is not publicly released. 
 
(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information) 
 
3. All other confidentiality provisions required by law are met. 
 
4. Information collected regarding individual students certified to participate in the free 

and reduced-price meal program is destroyed when no longer needed for its intended 
purpose. 

 
Nondiscrimination Plan 
 
The district's plan for students receiving free or reduced-price meals shall ensure the 
following:  (Education Code 49557; 42 USC 1758) 
 
1. The names of the students shall not be published, posted, or announced in any 

manner, or used for any purpose other than the National School Lunch and School 
Breakfast Programs, unless otherwise provided by law. 

 
2. There shall be no overt identification of any of the students by the use of special 

tokens or tickets or by any other means. 
 
3. The students shall not be required to work for their meals or for milk. 



 AR 3553(d) 
 
 
FREE AND REDUCED PRICE MEALS  (continued) 
 
 
4. The students shall not be required to use a separate dining area, go through a separate 

serving line or entrance, or consume their meals or milk at a different time. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance) 
 
When more than one lunch, breakfast, or type of milk is offered, the students shall have the 
same choice of meals or milk as is available to those students who pay the full price.  
(Education Code 49557; 7 CFR 245.8) 
 
Prices 
 
The maximum price that shall be charged to eligible students for reduced-price meals shall be 
40 cents for lunch and 30 cents for breakfast.  (42 USC 1758, 1773) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: March 2018 



All Personnel BP 4111(a) 
 4211 
RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION 4311 
 
 
The Governing Board is committed to employing suitable, qualified individuals to effectively 
carry out the district's vision, mission, and goals. 
 
(cf. 0000 - Vision) 
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 
(cf. 4000 - Concepts and Roles) 
(cf. 4100 - Certificated Personnel) 
(cf. 4200 - Classified Personnel) 
(cf. 4300 - Administrative and Supervisory Personnel) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall develop equitable, fair, and transparent recruitment and 
selection processes and procedures that ensure individuals are selected based on 
demonstrated knowledge, skills, and competence and not on any bias, personal preference, or 
unlawful discrimination. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 
(cf. 4032 - Reasonable Accommodation) 
(cf. 4111.2/4211.2/4311.2 - Legal Status Requirement) 
 
When a vacancy occurs, the Superintendent or designee shall review the job description for 
the position to ensure that it accurately describes the major functions and duties of the 
position.  He/she shall also disseminate job announcements to ensure a wide range of 
candidates. 
 
The district's selection procedures shall include screening processes, interviews, 
recommendations from previous employers, and observations when appropriate, as necessary 
to identify the best possible candidate for a position. 
 
(cf. 4112.61/4212.61/4312.61 - Employment References) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may establish an interview committee to rank candidates and 
recommend finalists. During job interviews, applicants may be asked to describe or 
demonstrate how they will be able to perform the duties of the job. All discussions and 
recommendations shall be confidential in accordance with law. 
 
(cf. 2230 - Representative and Deliberative Groups) 
 
No inquiry shall be made with regard to any information prohibited by state or federal 
nondiscrimination laws. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall not inquire, orally or in writing, in regard to an 
applicant's salary history information, including compensation and benefits. He/she shall also 
not rely on salary history information as a factor in determining whether to offer employment 
to an applicant or the salary to offer. However, the Superintendent or designee may consider  
 



 BP 4111(b) 
 4211 
 4311 
 
 
RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION  (continued) 
 
 
salary information that is disclosable under state or federal law or that the applicant discloses 
voluntarily and without prompting. Upon request, the Superintendent or designee shall 
provide the applicant the pay scale for the position to which he/she is applying.  (Labor Code 
432.3) 
 
For each position, the Superintendent or designee shall present to the Board one candidate 
who meets all qualifications established by law and the Board for the position. No person 
shall be employed by the Board without the recommendation or endorsement of the 
Superintendent or designee. 
 
(cf. 4112 - Appointment and Conditions of Employment) 
(cf. 4112.2 - Certification) 
(cf. 4112.22 - Staff Teaching English Learners) 
(cf. 4112.23 - Special Education Staff) 
(cf. 4112.8/4212.8/4312.8 - Employment of Relatives) 
(cf. 4212 - Appointment and Conditions of Employment) 
(cf. 4312.1 - Contracts) 
 
Incentives 
 
With Board approval and in accordance with district needs, the district may provide 
incentives to recruit teachers, administrators, or other employees, such as signing bonuses, 
assistance with beginning teacher induction and/or credential costs, mentoring, additional 
compensation, and/or subsidized housing. 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 BP 4111(c) 
 4211 
 4311 
 
 
RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 
35035 Responsibilities of superintendent 
44066  Limitations on certification requirement 
44259  Teaching credential; exception; designated subjects; minimum requirements 
44750  Teacher recruitment resource center 
44830-44831  Employment of certificated persons 
44858  Age or marital status in certificated positions 
44859  Prohibition against certain rules and regulations re: residency 
45103-45139  Employment (classified employees) 
49406  Examination for tuberculosis 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
815.2  Liability of public entities and public employees 
6250-6276.48 Public Records Act 
12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act, including: 
12940-12957  Discrimination prohibited; unlawful practices 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
53570-53574 Teacher Housing Act of 2016 
LABOR CODE 
432.3 Salary information 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 5 
552 Freedom of Information Act 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 8 
1324a  Unlawful employment of aliens 
1324b  Unfair immigration related employment practices 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1681-1688 Title IX prohibition against discrimination 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
2000d-2000d-7  Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964 
2000e-2000e-17  Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended 
12101-12213  Americans with Disabilities Act 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 
35.101-35.190  Americans with Disabilities Act 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
106.51-106.61  Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in employment in education program or 
activities 
COURT DECISIONS 
C.A. v William S. Hart Union High School District et al., (2012) 138 Cal.Rptr.3d 1 

 
 
 
Management Resources: (see next page) 
 
 
 
 



 BP 4111(d) 
 4211 
 4311 
 
 
RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION  (continued) 
 
 
 
Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENTS EDUCATIONAL SERVICES ASSOCIATION 
PUBLICATIONS 
Teacher Recruitment in California: An Analysis of Effective Strategies, Research Brief, Veritas 
Research and Evaluation Group, October 2017 
WEB SITES 
California County Superintendents Educational Services Association: http://ccsesa.org/recruit 
California Department of Education: https://www.cde.ca.gov 
California Department of Fair Employment and Housing: http://www.dfeh.ca.gov 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://www.ctc.ca.gov 
Education Job Opportunities Information Network: http://www.edjoin.org 
Teach USA:  https://culturalvistas.org/programs/us/teach-usa 
U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission:  http://www.eeoc.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: March 2018 



All Personnel BP 4119.11(a) 
 4219.11 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT 4319.11 
 
 
The Governing Board is committed to providing a safe work environment that is free of 
harassment and intimidation. The Board prohibits sexual harassment against district 
employees and retaliatory behavior or action against any person who complains, testifies, or 
otherwise participates in the complaint process established for the purpose of this policy. 
 
Sexual harassment includes, but is not limited to, harassment that is based on the gender, 
gender identity, gender expression, or sexual orientation of the victim. 
 
This policy shall apply to all district employees and to other persons on district property or 
with some employment relationship with the district, such as interns, volunteers, contractors, 
and job applicants. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 
 
Any district employee who engages or participates in sexual harassment or who aids, abets, 
incites, compels, or coerces another to commit sexual harassment in violation of this policy is 
subject to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal. 
 
(cf. 4117.7/4317.7 - Employment Status Reports) 
(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall take all actions necessary to ensure the prevention, 
investigation, and correction of sexual harassment, including but not limited to: 
 
1. Providing training to employees in accordance with law and administrative regulation 
 
2. Publicizing and disseminating the district's sexual harassment policy to employees 

and others to whom the policy may apply 
 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 
 
3. Ensuring prompt, thorough, and fair investigation of complaints 
 
4. Taking timely and appropriate corrective/remedial action(s), which may require 

interim separation of the complainant and the alleged harasser and subsequent 
monitoring of developments 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall periodically evaluate the effectiveness of the district's 
strategies to prevent and address harassment. Such evaluation may involve conducting 
regular anonymous employee surveys to assess whether harassment is occurring or is 
perceived to be tolerated, partnering with researchers or other agencies with the needed  
 
 



 BP 4119.11(b) 
 4219.11 
 4319.11 
 
 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 
 
 
expertise to evaluate the district's prevention strategies, and using any other effective tool for 
receiving feedback on systems and/or processes. As necessary, changes shall be made to the 
harassment policy, complaint procedures, or training. 
 
Sexual Harassment Reports and Complaints 
 
Any district employee who feels that he/she has been sexually harassed in the performance of 
his/her district responsibilities or who has knowledge of any incident of sexual harassment by 
or against another employee shall immediately report the incident to his/her direct supervisor, 
another supervisor, the district's coordinator for nondiscrimination, the Superintendent, or, if 
available, a complaint hotline or an ombudsman. A supervisor or administrator who receives 
a harassment complaint shall promptly notify the coordinator. 
 
Complaints of sexual harassment shall be filed and investigated in accordance with the 
complaint procedure specified in AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment. An 
employee may bypass his/her supervisor in filing a complaint where the supervisor is the 
subject of the complaint. 
 
All complaints and allegations of sexual harassment shall be kept confidential to the extent 
necessary to carry out the investigation or to take other subsequent necessary actions.  (2 
CCR 11023) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 BP 4119.11(c) 
 4219.11 
 4319.11 
 
 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sex 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act, especially: 
12940  Prohibited discrimination 
12950  Sexual harassment; distribution of information 
12950.1 Sexual harassment training 
LABOR CODE 
1101  Political activities of employees 
1102.1  Discrimination:  sexual orientation 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 
11009  Employment discrimination 
11021 Retaliation 
11023 Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction 
11024  Sexual harassment training and education 
11034  Terms, conditions, and privileges of employment 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs receiving state 
financial assistance 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1681-1688 Title IX prohibition against discrimination 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
2000e-2000e-17  Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
106.1-106.9 Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs or activities 
106.51-106.61 Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in employment in education program or activities 
COURT DECISIONS 
Department of Health Services v. Superior Court of California, (2003) 31 Cal.4th 1026 
Faragher v. City of Boca Raton, (1998) 118 S.Ct. 2275 
Burlington Industries v. Ellreth, (1998) 118 S.Ct. 2257 
Gebser v. Lago Vista Independent School District, (1998) 118 S.Ct. 1989 
Oncale v. Sundowner Offshore Serv. Inc., (1998) 118 S.Ct. 998 
Meritor Savings Bank, FSB v. Vinson et al., (1986) 447 U.S. 57 

 
Management Resources: 

U.S. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMMISSION PUBLICATIONS 
Promising Practices for Preventing Harassment, November 2017 
WEB SITES 
California Department of Fair Employment and Housing:  http://www.dfeh.ca.gov 
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission:  http://www.eeoc.gov 
U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  
http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/index.html 

 

 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: March 2018 



All Personnel AR 4119.11(a) 
 4219.11 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT 4319.11 
 
 
This administrative regulation shall apply to all allegations of sexual harassment involving 
employees, interns, volunteers, and job applicants, but shall not be used to resolve any 
complaint by or against a student. 
 
Definitions 
 
Prohibited sexual harassment includes, but is not limited to, unwelcome sexual advances, 
unwanted requests for sexual favors, or other unwanted verbal, visual, or physical conduct of 
a sexual nature made against another person of the same or opposite sex in the work or 
educational setting when:  (Education Code 212.5; Government Code 12940; 2 CCR 11034) 
 
1. Submission to the conduct is made explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of the 

individual's employment. 
 
2. Submission to or rejection of the conduct is used as the basis for an employment 

decision affecting the individual. 
 
3. Submission to or rejection of the conduct is used as the basis for any decision 

affecting the individual regarding benefits, services, honors, programs, or activities 
available at or through the district. 

 
Prohibited sexual harassment also includes conduct which, regardless of whether or not it is 
motivated by sexual desire, is so severe or pervasive as to unreasonably interfere with the 
victim's work performance or create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work environment. 
 
Examples of actions that might constitute sexual harassment in the work or educational 
setting, whether committed by a supervisor, a co-worker, or a non-employee, include, but are 
not limited to: 
 
1. Unwelcome verbal conduct such as sexual flirtations or propositions; graphic 

comments about an individual's body; overly personal conversations or pressure for 
sexual activity; sexual jokes or stories; unwelcome sexual slurs, epithets, threats, 
innuendoes, derogatory comments, sexually degrading descriptions, or the spreading 
of sexual rumors 

 
2. Unwelcome visual conduct such as drawings, pictures, graffiti, or gestures; sexually 

explicit emails; displaying sexually suggestive objects 
 
3. Unwelcome physical conduct such as massaging, grabbing, fondling, stroking, or 

brushing the body; touching an individual's body or clothes in a sexual way; 
cornering, blocking, leaning over, or impeding normal movements 

 
 
 



 AR 4119.11(b) 
 4219.11 
 4319.11 
 
 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 
 
 
Training 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all employees receive training regarding the 
district's sexual harassment policies when hired and periodically thereafter.  The training 
shall include how to recognize prohibited or harassing conduct, the procedures for reporting 
and/or filing complaints involving an employee, employees' duty to use the district's 
complaint procedures, and employee obligations when a sexual harassment report involving a 
student is made to the employee. The training shall also include information about processes 
for employees to informally share or obtain information about harassment without filing a 
complaint. 
 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 
 

Every two years, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that supervisory employees 
receive at least two hours of classroom or other effective interactive training and education 
regarding sexual harassment. All such newly hired or promoted employees shall receive 
training within six months of their assumption of the new position.  (Government Code 
12950.1) 
 

A supervisory employee is any employee having the authority, in the interest of the district, 
to hire, transfer, suspend, lay off, promote, discharge, assign, reward, or discipline other 
employees, or the responsibility to direct them, adjust their grievances, or effectively 
recommend such action, when the exercise of the authority is not of a merely routine or 
clerical nature, but requires the use of independent judgment.  (Government Code 12926) 
 
(cf. 4300 - Administrative and Supervisory Personnel) 
 
The district's sexual harassment training and education program for supervisory employees 
shall be aimed at assisting them in preventing and effectively responding to incidents of 
sexual harassment, as well as implementing mechanisms to promptly address and correct 
wrongful behavior. The training shall include, but is not limited to, the following:  
(Government Code 12950.1; 2 CCR 11024) 
 
1. Information and practical guidance regarding federal and state laws on the 

prohibition, prevention, and correction of sexual harassment, the remedies available 
to sexual harassment victims in civil actions, and potential district and/or individual 
exposure or liability 

 
2. The types of conduct that constitute sexual harassment and practical examples which 

illustrate sexual harassment, discrimination, and retaliation using training modalities  
 



 AR 4119.11(c) 
 4219.11 
 4319.11 
 
 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 
 
 
 such as role plays, case studies, and group discussions, based on factual scenarios 

taken from case law, news and media accounts, and hypotheticals based on workplace 
situations and other sources 

 
3. A supervisor's obligation to report sexual harassment, discrimination, and retaliation 

of which he/she becomes aware and what to do if the supervisor himself/herself is 
personally accused of harassment 

 
4. Strategies for preventing harassment, discrimination, and retaliation and appropriate 

steps to ensure that remedial measures are taken to correct harassing behavior, 
including an effective process for investigation of a complaint 

 
5. The essential elements of the district's anti-harassment policy, including the limited 

confidentiality of the complaint process and resources for victims of unlawful sexual 
harassment, such as to whom they should report any alleged sexual harassment, and 
how to use the policy if a harassment complaint is filed 

 
6. A copy of the district's sexual harassment policy and administrative regulation, which 

each participant shall acknowledge in writing that he/she has received 
 
7. The definition and prevention of abusive conduct that addresses the use of derogatory 

remarks, insults, or epithets, other verbal or physical conduct that a reasonable person 
would find threatening, intimidating, or humiliating, and the gratuitous sabotage or 
undermining of a person's work performance 

 
8.  Practical examples of harassment based on gender identity, gender expression, and 

sexual orientation 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall retain for at least two years the records of any training 
provided to supervisory employees. Such records shall include the names of trained 
employees, date of the training, the type of training, and the name of the training provider.  (2 
CCR 11024) 
 
Notifications 
 
A copy of the Board policy and this administrative regulation shall:  (Education Code 231.5) 
 
1. Be displayed in a prominent location in the main administrative building, district 

office, or other area of the school where notices of district rules, regulations, 
procedures, and standards of conduct are posted 

 
 



 AR 4119.11(d) 
 4219.11 
 4319.11 
 
 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 
 
 
2. Be provided to every district employee at the beginning of the first quarter or 

semester of the school year or whenever a new employee is hired 
 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 
 
3. Appear in any school or district publication that sets forth the school's or district's 

comprehensive rules, regulations, procedures, and standards of conduct 
 
All employees shall receive a copy of an information sheet prepared by the California 
Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH) or the district that contains, at a 
minimum, components on:  (Government Code 12950) 
 
1. The illegality of sexual harassment 
 
2. The definition of sexual harassment under applicable state and federal law 
 
3. A description of sexual harassment, with examples 
 
4. The district's complaint process available to the employee 
 
5. The legal remedies and complaint process available through DFEH and the Equal 

Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) 
 
6. Directions on how to contact DFEH and the EEOC 
 
7. The protection against retaliation provided by 2 CCR 11021 for opposing harassment 

prohibited by law or for filing a complaint with or otherwise participating in an 
investigation, proceeding, or hearing conducted by DFEH and the EEOC 

 
In addition, the district shall post, in a prominent and accessible location, the DFEH poster on 
discrimination in employment and the illegality of sexual harassment and the DFEH poster 
regarding transgender rights.  (Government Code 12950) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: March 2018 



Certificated Personnel AR 4161.1(a) 
 4361.1 
PERSONAL ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE 
 
 
Certificated employees employed five school days per week are entitled to 10 days' leave of 
absence with full pay for personal illness or injury (sick leave) per school year of service.  
Employees who work less than five school days per week (part-time employees) shall be 
granted sick leave in proportion to the time they work.  However, any part-time employee 
who is entitled to less than three days of paid sick leave per year due to the amount of time 
worked shall be granted sick leave pursuant to Labor Code 246, if he/she is eligible.  
(Education Code 44978; Labor Code 245-249) 
 
(cf. 4161/4261/4361 - Leaves) 
(cf. 4161.9/4261.9/4361.9 - Catastrophic Leave Program) 
 
Use of Sick Leave 
 
Certificated employees may use sick leave for absences due to: 
 
1. Accident or illness, whether or not the absence arises out of or in the course of 

employment; quarantine which results from contact with other persons having a 
contagious disease during the employee's performance of his/her duties; or temporary 
inability to perform assigned duties because of illness, accident, or quarantine 
(Education Code 44964) 

 
(cf. 4157.1/4257.1/4357.1 - Work-Related Injuries) 
 
2. Pregnancy, miscarriage, childbirth, and related recovery (Education Code 44965, 

44978) 
 
(cf. 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave) 
 
3. Personal necessity  (Education Code 44981) 
 
(cf. 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 - Personal Leaves) 
 
4. Medical and dental appointments, in increments of not less than one hour 
 
5. Industrial accidents or illnesses when leave granted specifically for that purpose has 

been exhausted  (Education Code 44984) 
 
(cf. 4161.11/4261.11/4361.11 - Industrial Accident/Illness Leave) 
 
6. Need of the employee to bond with a child within one year of the child's birth, 

adoption, or foster care placement (parental leave) (Education Code 44977.5; 
Government Code 12945.2, 12945.6; 29 USC 2612; 29 CFR 825.112)  

 
 
 



 AR 4161.1(b) 
 4361.1 
 
 
PERSONAL ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
7. Need of the employee or his/her family member, as defined in Labor Code 245.5, for 

the diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing health condition or for preventive care 
(Labor Code 233, 246.5) 

 
8. Need of the employee to seek or obtain any relief or medical attention specified in 

Labor Code 230(c) and/or 230.1(a) for the health, safety, or welfare of the employee 
or his/her child, when the employee has been a victim of domestic violence, sexual 
assault, or stalking  (Labor Code 233, 246.5) 

 
For the purposes specified in items #7-8, an employee may use, in any calendar year, the 
amount of sick leave he/she would accrue during six months at his/her current rate of 
entitlement.  (Labor Code 233) 
 
An employee may take sick leave at any time during the school year, even if credit for sick 
leave has not yet been accrued.  (Education Code 44978) 
 
An employee shall reimburse the district for any unearned sick leave used as of the date of 
his/her termination. 
 
Unused days of sick leave shall be accumulated from year to year without limitation.  
(Education Code 44978) 
 
At the beginning of each school year, employees shall be notified of the amount of sick leave 
they have accumulated. 
 
The district shall not require new employees to waive leave accumulated in a previous 
district.  (Education Code 44979, 44980) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall notify any certificated employee who leaves the district 
after at least one school year of employment that if the employee accepts a certificated 
position in another district, county office of education, or community college district within 
one year, he/she may request that the district transfer his/her accumulated sick leave to the 
new employer.  (Education Code 44979, 44980) 
 
Additional Leave for Disabled Military Veterans 
 
In addition to any other entitlement for sick leave with pay, a certificated employee who is a 
former active duty member of the U.S. Armed Forces or a former or current member of the 
California National Guard or a federal reserve component shall be entitled to sick leave with 
pay of up to 10 days for the purpose of undergoing medical treatment, including mental 
health treatment, for a military service-connected disability rated at 30 percent or more by the  
 



 AR 4161.1(c) 
 4361.1 
 
 

PERSONAL ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 

U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs. An eligible employee who works less than five days 
per week shall be entitled to such leave in proportion to the time he/she works. (Education 
Code 44978.2) 
 

The amount of leave shall be credited to the employee either on the date the employee 
receives confirmation of the submission of his/her disability application to the U.S. 
Department of Veterans Affairs or on the first day the employee begins or returns to 
employment after active duty, whichever is later.  When the employee receives his/her 
disability rating decision, he/she shall report that information to the Superintendent or 
designee. If the disability rating decision makes the employee eligible for the leave, the time 
used before the decision shall be counted toward the 10-day maximum leave. If the disability 
rating decision makes the employee ineligible for the leave, the district may change the sick 
leave time used before the disability rating decision to an alternative leave balance.  
(Education Code 44978.2) 
 

The Superintendent or designee may require verification, in accordance with the section 
"Verification Requirements" below, that the employee used the leave to obtain treatment of a 
military service-connected disability. 
 

Leave for military-service connected disability shall be available for 12 months following the 
first date that the leave was credited. Leave not used during the 12-month period shall not be 
carried over and shall be forfeited.  (Education Code 44978.2) 
 

Notification of Absence 
 
An employee shall notify the district of his/her need to be absent as soon as such need is 
known, so that substitute services may be secured. This notification shall include an estimate 
of the expected duration of absence. If the absence becomes longer than estimated, the 
employee shall so notify the district. If the duration of absence becomes shorter than 
estimated, the employee shall notify the district not later than three o'clock in the afternoon 
of the day preceding the day on which he/she intends to return to work. If the employee fails 
to notify the district and the failure results in a substitute being secured, the cost of the 
substitute shall be deducted from the employee's pay. 
 
(cf. 4121 - Temporary/Substitute Personnel) 
 
Continued Absence After Available Sick Leave Is Exhausted/Differential Pay 
 
During each school year, when a certificated employee has exhausted all available sick leave, 
including all accumulated sick leave, and, due to illness or accident, continues to be absent 
from his/her duties for an additional period of up to five school months, the employee shall  
 
 
 



 AR 4161.1(d) 
 4361.1 
 
 
PERSONAL ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
receive his/her regular salary minus the actual cost of a substitute to fill the position. If the 
district has made every reasonable effort to secure the services of a substitute and has been 
unable to do so, the amount that would have been paid to a substitute shall be deducted from 
the employee's salary.  (Education Code 44977) 
 
An employee shall not be provided more than one five-month period per illness or accident. 
However, if the school year ends before the five-month period is exhausted, the employee 
may take the balance of the five-month period in a subsequent school year.  (Education Code 
44977) 
 
Absence Beyond Five-Month Period/Reemployment List 
 
If a certificated employee is not medically able to resume his/her duties after the five-month 
period provided pursuant to Education Code 44977, the employee shall be placed either in 
another position or on a reemployment list. Placement on the reemployment list shall be for 
24 months for probationary employees or 39 months for permanent employees and shall 
begin at the expiration of the five-month period. If during this time the employee becomes 
medically able, he/she shall be returned to employment in a position for which he/she is 
credentialed and qualified.  (Education Code 44978.1) 
 
(cf. 4116 - Probationary/Permanent Status) 
 
Parental Leave 
 
During each school year, a certificated employee may use all available sick leave, including 
accumulated sick leave, for the purpose of parental leave for a period up to 12 work weeks.  
The 12-week period shall be reduced by any period of sick leave, including accumulated sick 
leave, taken during a period of such parental leave. (Education Code 44977.5) 
 
Eligibility for such leave shall not require 1,250 hours of service with the district during the 
previous 12 months. (Education Code 44977.5) 
 
An employee who has exhausted all available sick leave, including accumulated sick leave, 
and continues to be absent on account of parental leave shall receive differential pay for the 
remainder of the 12 work weeks.  (Education Code 44977.5) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 AR 4161.1(e) 
 4361.1 
 
 
PERSONAL ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
Parental leave taken pursuant to Education Code 44977.5 shall run concurrently with the 
parental leave taken pursuant to Government Code 12945.2 or 12945.6, and the aggregate 
amount of parental leave shall not exceed 12 work weeks in a 12-month period. (Education 
Code 44977.5; Government Code 12945.2, 12945.6) 
 
Verification Requirements 
 
After any absence due to illness or injury, the employee shall verify the absence by 
submitting a completed and signed district absence form to his/her immediate supervisor. 
 
The Superintendent or designee may require verification whenever an employee's absence 
record shows chronic absenteeism or a pattern of absences immediately before or after 
weekends and/or holidays or whenever available evidence clearly indicates that an absence is 
not related to illness or injury. 
 

In addition, the Superintendent or designee may require an employee to visit a physician 
selected by the district, at district expense, in order to receive a report on the medical 
condition of the employee. The report shall include a statement as to the employee's need for 
further leave of absence and a prognosis as to when the employee will be able to return to 
work. If the report concludes that the employee's condition does not warrant continued 
absence, the Superintendent or designee may, after giving notice to the employee, deny 
further leave. 
 

Any district request for additional verification by an employee's physician or a district-
selected physician shall be in writing and shall specify that the report to be submitted to the 
district should not contain the employee's genetic information. 
 

Any genetic information received by the district on behalf of an employee shall be treated as 
a confidential medical record, maintained in a file separate from the employee's personnel 
file, and shall not be disclosed except in accordance with 29 CFR 1635.9. 
 

Before returning to work, an employee who has been absent for surgery, hospitalization, or 
extended medical treatment may be asked to submit a letter from his/her physician stating 
that he/she is able to return to duty and stipulating any necessary restrictions or limitations. 
 
(cf. 4032 - Reasonable Accommodation) 
(cf. 4113.4/4213.4/4313.4 - Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment) 
 

Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act Requirements 
 
No employee shall be denied the right to use accrued sick days, and the district shall not in 
any manner discriminate or retaliate against an employee for using or attempting to use sick 
leave, filing a complaint with the Labor Commissioner, or alleging district violation of Labor 
Code 245-249. 



 AR 4161.1(f) 
 4361.1 
 
 
PERSONAL ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
To ensure the district's compliance with Labor Code 245-249, the Superintendent or designee 
shall: 
 
1. At a conspicuous location in each workplace, display a poster on paid sick leave that 

includes the following information: 
 
a. That an employee is entitled to accrue, request, and use paid sick days 
 
b. The amount of sick days provided by Labor Code 245-249 
 
c. The terms of use of paid sick days 

 
d. That discrimination or retaliation against an employee for requesting and/or 

using sick leave is prohibited by law and that an employee has the right to file 
a complaint with the Labor Commissioner if the district discriminates or 
retaliates against him/her 

 
2. Provide at least 24 hours or three days of paid sick leave to each eligible employee to 

use per year and allow eligible employees to use accrued sick leave upon reasonable 
request 

 
3. Provide eligible employees written notice, on their pay stub or other document issued 

with their pay check, of the amount of paid sick leave they have available 
 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 
 
4. Keep a record documenting the hours worked and paid sick days accrued and used by 

each eligible employee for three years 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 AR 4161.1(g) 
 4361.1 
 
 
PERSONAL ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
44964  Power to grant leave of absence in case of illness, accident, or quarantine 
44965  Granting of leaves of absence for pregnancy and childbirth 
44976  Transfer of leave rights when school is transferred to another district 
44977  Salary deduction during absence from duties up to five months after sick leave is exhausted 
44977.5  Differential pay during parental leave up to 12 weeks after sick leave is exhausted 
44978  Provisions for sick leave of certificated employees 
44978.1  Inability to return to duty; placement in another position or on reemployment list 
44978.2  Leave for military service connected disability 
44979  Transfer of accumulated sick leave to another district 
44980  Transfer of accumulated sick leave to a county office of education 
44981  Leave of absence for personal necessity 
44983  Exception to sick leave when district adopts specific rule 
44984  Industrial accident or illness 
44986  Leave of absence for disability allowance applicant 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
12945.1-12945.2  California Family Rights Act 
12945.6  Parental leave 
LABOR CODE 
220  Sections inapplicable to public employees 
230  Jury duty; legal actions by domestic violence, sexual assault and stalking victims, right to time off 
230.1  Employers with 25 or more employees; domestic violence, sexual assault and stalking victims, 
right to time off 
233  Illness of child, parent, spouse or domestic partner 
234  Absence control policy 
245-249  Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act of 2014 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
5601  Transfer of accumulated sick leave 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 
2601-2654  Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, as amended 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
2000ff-2000ff-11  Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 29 
825.100-825.800  Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 
1635.1-1635.12  Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 
COURT DECISIONS 
Veguez v. Governing Board of Long Beach Unified School District, (2005) 127 Cal.App.4th 406 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: March 2018 



All Personnel AR 4161.8(a) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE 
 
 
The district shall not deny any eligible employee the right to family care, medical, or 
pregnancy disability leave (PDL) pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA), 
the California Family Rights Act (CFRA), or the Fair Employment and Housing Act (FEHA) 
nor restrain or interfere with the employee's exercise of such right. In addition, the district 
shall not discharge an employee or discriminate or retaliate against him/her for taking such 
leave or for his/her opposition to or challenge of any unlawful district practice in relation to 
any of these laws or for his/her involvement in any related inquiry or proceeding.  
(Government Code 12945, 12945.2; 2 CCR 11094; 29 USC 2615) 
 
(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 
(cf. 4032 - Reasonable Accommodation) 
(cf. 4033 - Lactation Accommodation) 
 
Definitions 
 
The words and phrases defined below shall have the same meaning throughout this 
administrative regulation except where a different meaning is otherwise specified. 
 
Child (son or daughter) means a biological, adopted, or foster child; a stepchild; a legal 
ward; or a child to whom the employee stands in loco parentis, as long as the child is under 
18 years of age or an adult dependent child.  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 11087; 29 
USC 2611) 
 
Eligible employee for FMLA and CFRA purposes means an employee who has been 
employed with the district for at least 12 months and who has at least 1,250 hours of service 
with the district during the previous 12-month period. However, these requirements shall not 
apply when an employee applies for PDL.  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 11087; 29 
USC 2611; 29 CFR 825.110) 
 
Employee disabled by pregnancy means an employee whose health care provider states that 
the employee is:  (2 CCR 11035) 
 
1. Unable because of pregnancy to perform any one or more of the essential functions of 

the job or to perform any of them without undue risk to the employee or other persons 
or to the pregnancy's successful completion 

 
2. Suffering from severe "morning sickness" or needs to take time off for prenatal or 

postnatal care, bed rest, gestational diabetes, pregnancy-induced hypertension, 
preeclampsia, postpartum depression, childbirth, loss or end of pregnancy, recovery 
from childbirth or loss or end of pregnancy, or any other pregnancy-related condition 

 
 
 
 



 AR 4161.8(b) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 
 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
Parent means a biological, foster, or adoptive parent; a stepparent; a legal guardian; or 
another person who stood in loco parentis to the employee when the employee was a child. 
Parent does not include a spouse's parents.  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 11087; 29 
USC 2611; 29 CFR 825.122) 
 
Serious health condition means an illness, injury (including, but not limited to, on-the-job 
injuries), impairment, or physical or mental condition of the employee or his/her child, 
parent, or spouse, including, but not limited to, treatment for substance abuse, that involves 
either of the following:  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 11087, 11097; 29 USC 2611; 29 
CFR 825.113-825.115) 
 
1. Inpatient care in a hospital, hospice, or residential health care facility, any subsequent 

treatment in connection with such inpatient care, or any period of incapacity 
 
A person is considered an inpatient when a health care facility formally admits 
him/her to the facility with the expectation that he/she will remain overnight and 
occupy a bed, even if it later develops that the person can be discharged or transferred 
to another facility and does not actually remain overnight. 
 
Incapacity means the inability to work, attend school, or perform other regular daily 
activities due to a serious health condition, its treatment, or the recovery that it 
requires. 

 
2. Continuing treatment or continuing supervision by a health care provider, including 

one or more of the following: 
 
a. A period of incapacity of more than three consecutive full days 
 
b. Any period of incapacity or treatment for such incapacity due to a chronic 

serious health condition 
 
c. Any period of incapacity due to pregnancy or for prenatal care under FMLA 
 
d. Any period of incapacity which is permanent or long term due to a condition 

for which treatment may not be effective 
 
e. Any period of absence to receive multiple treatments, including recovery, by a 

health care provider 
 
 
 



 AR 4161.8(c) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 
 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
Spouse means a partner in marriage as defined in Family Code 300, including same sex 
partners in marriage, or a registered domestic partner within the meaning of Family Code 
297-297.5.  (Family Code 297, 297.5, 300; 2 CCR 11087; 29 CFR 825.122) 
 
Eligibility 
 
The district shall grant FMLA or CFRA leave to eligible employees for any of the following 
reasons:  (Government Code 12945.2, 12945.6; 29 USC 2612; 29 CFR 825.112) 
 
1. The birth of a child of the employee or placement of a child with the employee in 

connection with the employee's adoption or foster care of the child (parental leave) 
 
2. To care for the employee's child, parent, or spouse with a serious health condition 
 
3. The employee's own serious health condition that makes him/her unable to perform 

one or more essential functions of his/her position 
 
4. Any qualifying exigency arising out of the fact that the employee's spouse, child, or 

parent is a military member on covered active duty or call to covered active duty (or 
has been notified of an impending call or order to covered active duty) 

 
5. To care for a covered servicemember with a serious injury or illness if the covered 

servicemember is the employee's spouse, child, parent, or next of kin, as defined 
 
In addition, the district shall grant PDL to any employee who is disabled by pregnancy, 
childbirth, or other related medical condition.  (Government Code 12945; 2 CCR 11037) 
 
Terms of Leave 
 
An eligible employee shall be entitled to a total of 12 work weeks of FMLA or CFRA leave 
during any 12-month period, except in the case of leave to care for a covered servicemember 
as provided under "Military Caregiver Leave" below. To the extent allowed by law, CFRA 
and FMLA leaves shall run concurrently.  (Government Code 12945.2; 29 USC 2612) 
 
This 12-month period shall be measured forward from the date the employee's first family 
care and medical leave begins.  (29 CFR 825.200) 
 
 AR 4161.8(d) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 



 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
In addition, any employee who is disabled by pregnancy, childbirth, or other related 
condition shall be entitled to PDL for the period of the disability not to exceed four months. 
For a part-time employee, the four months shall be calculated on a proportional basis.  
(Government Code 12945; 2 CCR 11042) 
 
PDL shall run concurrently with FMLA leave for disability caused by an employee's 
pregnancy. At the end of the employee's FMLA leave for disability caused by pregnancy, or 
at the end of four months of PDL, whichever occurs first, a CFRA-eligible employee may 
request to take CFRA leave of up to 12 work weeks, for the reason of the birth of a child or 
to bond with or care for the child.  (Government Code 12945, 12945.2; 2 CCR 11046, 11093) 
 
Leave taken for the birth or placement of a child must be concluded within the 12-month 
period beginning on the date of the birth or placement of the child. Such leave does not need 
to be taken in one continuous period of time.  (2 CCR 11090; 29 USC 2612) 
 
If both parents of a child work for the district, their family care and medical leave related to 
the birth or placement of the child shall be limited to a combined total of 12 work weeks. 
This restriction shall apply regardless of the legal status of both parents' relationship.  
(Government Code 12945.2, 12945.6; 2 CCR 11088; 29 USC 2612) 
 
Use/Substitution of Paid Leave 
 
OPTION 1:  An employee shall use his/her accrued vacation leave, other accrued time off, 
and any other paid time off negotiated with the district for any otherwise unpaid FMLA or 
CFRA leave not involving his/her own serious health condition. For PDL, CFRA, or FMLA 
leave due to an employee's own serious health condition, the employee shall use accrued sick 
leave and may use accrued vacation leave and other paid time off at his/her option.  
(Government Code 12945, 12945.2, 12945.6; 2 CCR 11044; 29 USC 2612) 
 
The district and employee may also negotiate for the employee's use of any additional paid or 
unpaid time off instead of using the employee's CFRA leave.  (2 CCR 11092) 
 
(cf. 4141/4241 - Collective Bargaining Agreement) 
(cf. 4161/4261/4361 - Leaves) 
(cf. 4161.1/4361.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave) 
(cf. 4261.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 AR 4161.8(e) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 
 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
 
Intermittent Leave/Reduced Work or Leave Schedule 
 
PDL and family care and medical leave for the serious health condition of an employee or 
his/her child, parent, or spouse may be taken intermittently or on a reduced work or leave 
schedule when medically necessary, as determined by the health care provider of the person 
with the serious health condition. However, the district shall limit leave increments to the 
shortest period of time that the district's payroll system uses to account for absences or use of 
leave provided it is not to be greater than one hour.  (2 CCR 11042, 11090; 29 USC 2612) 
 
(cf. 4113.4/4213.4/4313.4 - Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment) 
 
The basic minimum duration of leave for the birth, adoption, or foster care placement of a 
child shall be two weeks.  However, the district shall grant a request for such leave of less 
than two weeks on any two occasions.  (2 CCR 11090; 29 USC 2612) 
 
The district may require an employee to transfer temporarily to an available alternative 
position under any of the following circumstances:  (2 CCR 11041, 11090; 29 USC 2612) 
 
1. The employee needs intermittent leave or leave on a reduced work schedule that is 

foreseeable based on a planned medical treatment for the employee or family 
member. 

 
2. A medical certification is provided by the employee's health care provider that, 

because of pregnancy, the employee has a medical need to take intermittent leave or 
leave on a reduced work schedule. 

 
3. The district agrees to permit intermittent leave or leave on a reduced work schedule 

due to the birth, adoption, or foster care placement of the employee's child. 
 
The alternative position must have equivalent pay and benefits and must better accommodate 
recurring periods of leave than the employee's regular job, and the employee must be 
qualified for the position. Transfer to an alternative position may include altering an existing 
job to better accommodate the employee's need for intermittent leave or a reduced work or 
leave schedule.  (2 CCR 11041, 11090; 29 USC 2612) 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 AR 4161.8(f) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 
 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
Request for Leave 
 
The district shall consider an employee's request for PDL or family care and medical leave 
only if the employee provides at least verbal notice sufficient to make the district aware of 
the need to take the leave and the anticipated timing and duration of the leave.  (2 CCR 
11050, 11091) 
 
For family care and medical leave, the employee need not expressly assert or mention 
FMLA/CFRA to satisfy this requirement. However, he/she must state the reason the leave is 
needed (e.g., birth of child, medical treatment).  If more information is necessary to 
determine whether the employee is eligible for family care and medical leave, the 
Superintendent or designee shall inquire further and obtain the necessary details of the leave 
to be taken.  (2 CCR 11091) 
 
The district shall respond to requests for leave as soon as practicable, but no later than five 
business days after receiving the employee's request.  (2 CCR 11091) 
 
Based on the information provided by the employee, the Superintendent or designee shall 
designate the leave, paid or unpaid, as FMLA/CFRA qualifying leave and shall give notice of 
such designation to the employee. Failure of an employee to respond to permissible inquiries 
regarding the leave request may result in denial of CFRA protection if the district is unable to 
determine whether the leave is CFRA qualifying.  (2 CCR 11091; 29 CFR 825.300) 
 
When an employee is able to foresee the need for PDL or family care and medical leave at 
least 30 days in advance of the leave, the employee shall provide the district with at least 30 
days advance notice before the leave. When the 30 days notice is not practicable because of a 
lack of knowledge of when leave will be required to begin, a change in circumstances, a 
medical emergency, or other good cause, the employee shall provide the district with notice 
as soon as practicable. Failure of an employee to provide required notice may result in a 
denial of leave.  (2 CCR 11050, 11091) 
 
In all instances, the employee shall consult with the Superintendent or designee and make a 
reasonable effort to schedule, subject to the health care provider's approval, any planned 
appointment or medical treatment or supervision so as to minimize disruption to district 
operations.  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 11050, 11091) 
 
Certification of Health Condition 
 
Within five business days of an employee's request for family care and medical leave for 
his/her own or his/her child's, parent's, or spouse's serious health condition, the  
 



 AR 4161.8(g) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 
 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
Superintendent or designee shall request that the employee provide certification by a health 
care provider of the need for leave. Upon receiving the district's request, the employee shall 
provide the certification within 15 days, unless either the Superintendent or designee 
provides additional time or it is not practicable under the particular circumstances, despite the 
employee's diligent, good faith efforts.  (2 CCR 11091; 29 CFR 825.305) 
 
The certification shall include the following:  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 11087; 29 
USC 2613) 
 
1. The date on which the serious health condition began 
 
2. The probable duration of the condition 
 
3. If the employee is requesting leave to care for a child, parent, or spouse with a serious 

health condition, both of the following: 
 
a. Statement that the serious health condition warrants the participation of the 

employee to provide care, such as by providing psychological comfort, 
arranging for third party care, or directly providing or participating in the 
medical care of the child, parent, or spouse during a period of the treatment or 
supervision 

 
b. Estimated amount of time the health care provider believes the employee 

needs to care for the child, parent, or spouse 
 
4. If the employee is requesting leave because of his/her own serious health condition, a 

statement that due to the serious health condition, he/she is unable to work at all or is 
unable to perform one or more essential functions of his/her job 

 
5. If the employee is requesting leave for intermittent treatment or on a reduced work or 

leave schedule for planned medical treatment, a statement of the medical necessity for 
the leave, the dates on which treatment is expected to be given, the duration of such 
treatment, and the expected duration of the leave 

 
When an employee has provided sufficient medical certification to enable the district to 
determine whether the employee's leave request is FMLA/CFRA-eligible, the Superintendent 
or designee shall notify the employee within five business days whether the leave is 
FMLA/CFRA-eligible.  The Superintendent or designee may also retroactively designate 
leave as FMLA/CFRA leave as long as appropriate notice is given to the employee and there 
is no harm or injury to the employee.  (2 CCR 11091; 29 CFR 825.301) 
 



 AR 4161.8(h) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 
 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
If the Superintendent or designee doubts the validity of a certification that accompanies a 
request for leave for the employee's own serious health condition, he/she may require the 
employee to obtain a second opinion from a district-approved health care provider, at district 
expense. If the second opinion is contrary to the first, the Superintendent or designee may 
require the employee to obtain a third medical opinion from a third health care provider 
approved by both the employee and the district, again at district expense. The opinion of the 
third health care provider shall be final and binding.  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 
11091; 29 USC 2613) 
 
For PDL, the Superintendent or designee shall request that the employee provide certification 
by a health care provider of the need for leave at the time the employee gives notice of the 
need for PDL, or within two business days of giving the notice. If the need for PDL is 
unforeseen, the Superintendent or designee shall request the medical certification within two 
business days after the leave commences. The Superintendent or designee may request 
certification at some later date if he/she has reason to question the appropriateness of the 
leave or its duration.  (2 CCR 11050) 
 
For PDL that is foreseeable and for which at least 30 days notice has been given, the 
employee shall provide the medical certification before the leave begins. When this is not 
practicable, the employee shall provide the certification within the time frame specified by 
the Superintendent or designee which must be at least 15 days after the request, unless it is 
not practicable under the particular circumstances despite the employee's diligent, good faith 
efforts.  (2 CCR 11050) 
 

Medical certification for PDL purposes shall include a statement that the employee needs to 
take the leave because the employee is disabled by pregnancy, childbirth, or a related medical 
condition, the date on which the employee became disabled because of pregnancy, and the 
estimated duration of the leave.  (2 CCR 11050) 
 
If additional PDL or family care and medical leave is needed when the time estimated by the 
health care provider expires, the district may require the employee to provide recertification 
in the manner specified for the leave.  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 11050; 29 USC 
2613) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall not request any genetic information related to an 
employee except as authorized by law in accordance with the California Genetic Information 
Nondiscrimination Act of 2011. 
 
 
 
 



 AR 4161.8(i) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 
 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
Release to Return to Work 
 
Upon expiration of an employee's PDL or family care and medical leave taken for his/her 
own serious health condition, the employee shall present certification from the health care 
provider that he/she is able to resume work. The certification shall address the employee's 
ability to perform the essential functions of his/her job. 
 
(cf. 4112.4/4212.4/4312.4 - Health Examinations) 
 
Rights to Reinstatement 
 
Upon granting an employee's request for PDL or FMLA/CFRA leave, the Superintendent or 
designee shall guarantee to reinstate the employee in the same or a comparable position when 
the leave ends.  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 11043, 11089; 29 USC 2614) 
 
However, the district may refuse to reinstate an employee returning from FMLA or CFRA 
leave to the same or a comparable position if all of the following apply:  (Government Code 
12945.2; 2 CCR 11089; 29 USC 2614) 
 
1. The employee is a salaried "key employee" who is among the highest paid 10 percent 

of district employees who are employed within 75 miles of the employee's worksite. 
 
2. The refusal is necessary to prevent substantial and grievous economic injury to 

district operations. 
 
3. The district informs the employee of its intent to refuse reinstatement at the time it 

determines that the refusal is necessary, and the employee fails to immediately return 
to service. 

 
(cf. 4117.3 - Personnel Reduction) 
(cf. 4217.3 - Layoff/Rehire) 
 
The district may also refuse to reinstate an employee to the same or a comparable position if 
the FMLA/CFRA leave was fraudulently obtained by the employee.  (2 CCR 11089; 29 CFR 
825.216) 
 
The district may refuse to reinstate an employee to the same position after taking PDL if, at 
the time the reinstatement is requested, the employee would not otherwise have been 
employed in that position for legitimate business reasons unrelated to the employee's PDL.  
(2 CCR 11043) 
 
 



 AR 4161.8(j) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 
 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
Maintenance of Benefits/Failure to Return from Leave 
 
During the period when an employee is on PDL or family care and medical leave, he/she 
shall maintain his/her status with the district and the leave shall not constitute a break in 
service for purposes of longevity, seniority under any collective bargaining agreement, or any 
employee benefit plan.  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 11092; 29 USC 2614) 
 
For up to a maximum of four months for PDL and 12 work weeks for other family care and 
medical leave, the district shall continue to provide an eligible employee the group health 
plan coverage that was in place before he/she took the leave. The employee shall reimburse 
the district for premiums paid during the leave if he/she fails to return to district employment 
after the expiration of all available leaves and the failure is for a reason other than the 
continuation, recurrence, or onset of a serious health condition or other circumstances beyond 
his/her control.  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 11044, 11092; 29 USC 2614; 29 CFR 
825.213) 
 
(cf. 4154/4254/4354 - Health and Welfare Benefits) 
 
In addition, during the period when an employee is on PDL or family care and medical leave, 
the employee shall be entitled to continue to participate in other employee benefit plans 
including life insurance, short-term or long-term disability insurance, accident insurance, 
pension and retirement plans, and supplemental unemployment benefit plans to the same 
extent and under the same conditions as would apply to an unpaid leave taken for any other 
purpose.  However, for purposes of pension and retirement plans, the district shall not make 
plan payments for an employee during any unpaid portion of the leave period and the leave 
period shall not be counted for purposes of time accrued under the plan.  (Government Code 
12945.2; 2 CCR 11044, 11092) 
 
Military Family Leave Resulting from Qualifying Exigencies 
 
An eligible employee may take up to 12 work weeks of unpaid FMLA leave, during each 12-
month period established by the district in the section entitled "Terms of Leave" above, for 
one or more qualifying exigencies while his/her child, parent, or spouse who is a military 
member is on covered active duty or on call to covered active duty status.  (29 USC 2612; 29 
CFR 825.126) 
 
Covered active duty means duty during the deployment of a member of the regular Armed 
Forces to a foreign country or duty during the deployment of a member of the National 
Guard or Reserves to a foreign country under a call or an order to active duty in support of a 
contingency operation pursuant to law.  (29 USC 2611; 29 CFR 825.126) 
 



 AR 4161.8(k) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 
 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
Qualifying exigencies include time needed to:  (29 CFR 825.126) 
 
1. Address issues arising from short notice deployment of up to seven calendar days 

from the date of receipt of call or order of short notice deployment 
 
2. Attend military events and related activities, such as any official ceremony or family 

assistance program related to the covered active duty or call to covered active duty 
status 

 
3. Arrange child care or attend school activities arising from the covered active duty or 

call to covered active duty, such as arranging for alternative child care, enrolling or 
transferring a child to a new school, or attending meetings 

 
4. Make or update financial and legal arrangements to address a military member's 

absence 
 
5. Attend counseling provided by someone other than a health care provider 
 
6. Spend time (up to 15 days of leave per instance) with a military member who is on 

short-term, temporary, rest and recuperation leave during deployment 
 
7. Attend to certain post-deployment activities, such as arrival ceremonies or 

reintegration briefings 
 
8. Care for a military member's parent who is incapable of self-care when the care is 

necessitated by the military member's covered active duty 
 
9. Address any other event that the employee and district agree is a qualifying exigency 
 
The employee shall provide the Superintendent or designee with notice of the need for the 
qualifying exigency leave as soon as practicable, regardless of how far in advance such leave 
is foreseeable.  (29 CFR 825.302) 
 
An employee who is requesting leave for qualifying exigencies shall provide the 
Superintendent or designee with a copy of the military member's active duty orders, or other 
documentation issued by the military, and the dates of the service. In addition, the employee 
shall provide the Superintendent or designee with certification of the qualifying exigency 
necessitating the leave. The certification shall contain the information specified in 29 CFR 
825.309. 
 
 



 AR 4161.8(l) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 
 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
The employee's qualifying exigency leave may be taken on an intermittent or reduced work 
or leave schedule basis.  (29 CFR 825.302) 
 
During the period of qualified exigency leave, the district's rule regarding an employee's use 
of his/her accrued vacation leave and any other accrued paid or unpaid time off, as specified 
in the section "Use/Substitution of Paid Leave" above, shall apply. 
 
Military Caregiver Leave 
 
The district shall grant an eligible employee up to a total of 26 work weeks of leave during a 
single 12-month period, measured forward from the first date the leave is taken, to care for a 
covered servicemember with a serious illness or injury.  In order to be eligible for such 
military caregiver leave, the employee must be the spouse, son, daughter, parent, or next of 
kin of the covered servicemember. This 26-week period is not in addition to, but rather is 
inclusive of, the 12 work weeks of leave that may be taken for other FMLA qualifying 
reasons.  (29 USC 2611, 2612; 29 CFR 825.127) 
 
Covered servicemember may be:  (29 CFR 825.127) 
 
1. A current member of the Armed Forces, including a member of the National Guard or 

Reserves, who is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy; is otherwise 
in outpatient status; or is otherwise on the temporary disability retired list for a 
serious injury or illness 

 
2. A veteran who was discharged or released under conditions other than dishonorable at 

any time during the five-year period prior to the first date the eligible employee takes 
FMLA leave to care for the covered veteran 

 
Son or daughter of a covered servicemember means the biological, adopted, or foster child, 
stepchild, legal ward, or a child of any age for whom the covered servicemember stood in 
loco parentis.  (29 CFR 825.127) 
 
Parent of a covered servicemember means the covered servicemember's biological, adopted, 
step, or foster parent, or any other individual who stood in loco parentis to the covered 
servicemember (except "parents in law").  (29 CFR 825.127) 
 
Next of kin means the nearest blood relative to the covered servicemember, or as designated 
in writing by the covered servicemember.  (29 USC 2611, 2612) 
 
 
 



 AR 4161.8(m) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 
 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
Outpatient status means the status of a member of the Armed Forces assigned to a military 
medical treatment facility as an outpatient or a unit established for the purpose of providing 
command and control of members of the Armed Forces receiving medical care as outpatients.  
(29 USC 2611; 29 CFR 825.127) 
 
Serious injury or illness means:  (29 USC 2611; 29 CFR 825.127) 
 
1. For a current member of the Armed Forces, an injury or illness incurred by the 

member in the line of duty on active duty, or that existed before the beginning of the 
member's active duty and was aggravated by the member's service in the line of duty 
while on active duty in the Armed Forces, and that may render the member medically 
unfit to perform the duties of the member's office, grade, rank, or rating. 

 
2. For a veteran, an injury or illness incurred or aggravated by the member's service in 

the line of duty on active duty in the Armed Forces, including the National Guard or 
Reserves, that manifested itself before or after the member became a veteran and that 
is at least one of the following: 
 
a. A continuation of a serious injury or illness incurred or aggravated while the 

veteran was a member of the Armed Forces and rendered him/her unable to 
perform the duties of his/her office, grade, rank, or rating 

 
b. A physical or mental condition for which the veteran has received a U.S. 

Department of Veterans Affairs (VA) Service-Related Disability Rating of 50 
percent or greater, based wholly or partly on that physical or mental condition 

 
c. A physical or mental condition that substantially impairs the veteran's ability 

to secure or follow a substantially gainful occupation by reason of one or 
more disabilities related to his/her military service or that would do so but for 
treatment received by the veteran 

 
d. An injury, including a psychological injury, on the basis of which the veteran 

has been enrolled in the VA's Program of Comprehensive Assistance for 
Family Caregivers 

 
The employee shall provide reasonable and practicable notice of the need for the leave in 
accordance with the procedures in the section entitled "Request for Leave" above. 
 
 
 
 



 AR 4161.8(n) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 
 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
An employee requesting leave to care for a covered servicemember with a serious injury or 
illness shall provide the Superintendent or designee with certification from an authorized 
health care provider of the servicemember that contains the information specified in 29 CFR 
825.310. 
 
The leave may be taken intermittently or on a reduced work or leave schedule when 
medically necessary. An employee taking military caregiver leave in combination with other 
leaves pursuant to this administrative regulation shall be entitled to a combined total of 26 
work weeks of leave during a single 12-month period. When both spouses work for the 
district and both wish to take such leave, the spouses are limited to a maximum combined 
total of 26 work weeks during a single 12-month period.  (29 USC 2612) 
 
During the period of military caregiver leave, the district's rule regarding an employee's use 
of his/her accrued vacation leave and other accrued paid or unpaid time off, as specified in 
the section "Use/Substitution of Paid Leave" above, shall apply. 
 
Notifications 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide the following notifications regarding state and 
federal law related to PDL or FMLA/CFRA leave: 
 
1. General Notice: Information explaining the provisions of the FEHA/PDL and 

FMLA/CFRA and employee rights and obligations shall be posted in a conspicuous 
place on district premises, or electronically, and shall be included in employee 
handbooks.  (2 CCR 11049, 11095; 29 USC 2619) 

 
The general notice shall also explain an employee's obligation to provide the 
Superintendent or designee with at least 30 days notice of the need for the requested 
leave, when the need is reasonably foreseeable at least 30 days prior to the start of the 
leave.  (2 CCR 11050, 11091) 

 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 
 
2. Eligibility Notice: When an employee requests leave, including PDL, or when the 

Superintendent or designee acquires knowledge that an employee's leave may be for 
an FMLA/CFRA qualifying reason, the Superintendent or designee shall, within five 
business days, provide notification to the employee of his/her eligibility to take such 
leave.  (2 CCR 11049, 11091; 29 CFR 825.300) 

 
3. Rights and Responsibilities Notice:  Each time the eligibility notice is provided to 

an employee, the Superintendent or designee shall provide written notification  
 



 AR 4161.8(o) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 
 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
 explaining the specific expectations and obligations of the employee, including any 

consequences for a failure to meet those obligations. Such notice shall include, as 
applicable:  (29 CFR 825.300) 
 
a. A statement that the leave may be designated and counted against the 

employee's annual FMLA/CFRA leave entitlement and the appropriate 12-
month entitlement period, if qualifying 

 

b. Any requirements for the employee to furnish medical certification of a 
serious health condition, serious injury or illness, or qualifying exigency 
arising out of active duty or call to active duty status and the consequences of 
failing to provide the certification 

 
c. The employee's right to use paid leave, whether the district will require use of 

paid leave, conditions related to any use of paid leave, and the employee's 
entitlement to take unpaid leave if the employee does not meet the conditions 
for paid leave 

 
d. Any requirements for the employee to make premium payments necessary to 

maintain health benefits, the arrangement for making such payments, and the 
possible consequences of failure to make payments on a timely basis 

 
e. The employee's status as a "key employee" if applicable, potential 

consequence that restoration may be denied following the FMLA leave, and 
explanation of the conditions required for such denial 

 
f. The employee's right to maintenance of benefits during the leave and 

restoration to the same or an equivalent job upon return from leave 
 
g. The employee's potential liability for health insurance premiums paid by the 

district during the employee's unpaid FMLA leave should the employee not 
return to service after the leave 

 
Any time the information provided in the above notice changes, the Superintendent or 
designee shall, within five business days of his/her receipt of an employee's first 
notice of need for leave, provide the employee with a written notice referencing the 
prior notice and describing any changes to the notice.  (29 CFR 825.300) 

 
4. Designation Notice: When the Superintendent or designee has information (e.g., 

sufficient medical certification) to determine whether the leave qualifies as  
 



 AR 4161.8(p) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 
 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
 FMLA/CFRA leave, he/she shall, within five business days, provide written 

notification designating the leave as FMLA/CFRA qualifying or, if the leave will not 
be so designated, the reason for that determination.  (2 CCR 11091; 29 CFR 825.300) 
 
If the amount of leave needed is known, the notice shall include the number of hours, 
days, or weeks that will be counted against the employee's FMLA/CFRA entitlement. 
If it is not possible to provide that number at the time of the designation notice, 
notification shall be provided of the amount of leave counted against the employee's 
entitlement upon request by the employee and at least once in every 30-day period if 
leave was taken in that period.  (29 CFR 825.300) 

 
If the district requires paid leave to be used during an otherwise unpaid family care 
and medical leave, the notice shall so specify.  If the district requires an employee to 
present a release to return to work certification that addresses the employee's ability 
to perform the essential functions of the job, the notice shall also specify that 
requirement.  (2 CCR 11091, 11097; 29 CFR 825.300) 
 
Any time the information provided in the designation notice changes, the 
Superintendent or designee shall, within five business days, provide the employee 
with written notice referencing the prior notice and describing any changes to the 
notice.  (29 CFR 825.300) 

 
Records 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records pertaining to an individual employee's 
use of family care and medical leave in accordance with law.  (Government Code 12946; 29 
USC 2616; 42 USC 2000ff-1; 29 CFR 825.500) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 AR 4161.8(q) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 
 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
44965  Granting of leaves of absence for pregnancy and childbirth 
FAMILY CODE 
297-297.5  Rights, protections, and benefits under law; registered domestic partners 
300  Validity of marriage 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
12926  Fair employment and housing act, definitions 
12940  Unlawful employment practices 
12945  Pregnancy; childbirth or related medical condition; unlawful practice 
12945.1-12945.2  California Family Rights Act 
12945.6  Parental leave 
12946  Fair Employment and Housing Act: discrimination prohibited 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 
11035-11051  Sex discrimination: pregnancy, childbirth and related medical conditions 
11087-11098  California Family Rights Act 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 1 
7  Definition of marriage 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 
2601-2654  Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, as amended 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
2000ff-1-2000ff-11  Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 29 
825.100-825.800  Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 
COURT DECISIONS 
United States v. Windsor, (2013) 699 F.3d 169 
Faust v. California Portland Cement Company, (2007) 150 Cal.App.4th 864 
Tellis v. Alaska Airlines, (9th Cir., 2005) 414 F.3d 1045 

 
Management Resources: 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR PUBLICATIONS 
Military Family Leave Provisions of the FMLA Frequently Asked Questions and Answers 
WEB SITES 
California Department of Fair Employment and Housing:  http://www.dfeh.ca.gov 
U.S. Department of Labor, FMLA:  http://www.dol.gov/whd/fmla 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: March 2018 



Classified Personnel  AR 4261.1(a) 
 
PERSONAL ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE 
 
 
Classified employees employed five days a week are entitled to 12 days' leave of absence 
with full pay for personal illness or injury (sick leave) per fiscal year. Employees who work 
less than a full fiscal year or fewer than five days a week (part-time employees) shall be 
granted sick leave in proportion to the time they work.  However, any part-time employee 
whose work hours are so few as to entitle him/her to less than 24 hours of paid sick leave per 
fiscal year shall be granted sick leave pursuant to Labor Code 246, if he/she is eligible.  
(Education Code 45191; Labor Code 245-249) 
 
(cf. 4161/4261/4361 - Leaves) 
(cf. 4161.9/4261.9/4361.9 - Catastrophic Leave Program) 
 
Use of Sick Leave 
 
A classified employee may use sick leave for absences due to: 
 
1. Accident or illness, whether or not the absence arises out of or in the course of 

employment, or by quarantine which results from contact with other persons having a 
contagious disease during the employee's performance of his/her duties  (Education 
Code 45199) 

 
2. Pregnancy, childbirth, and recovery  (Education Code 45193) 
 
(cf. 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave) 
 
3. Personal necessity as specified in Education Code 45207 
 
(cf. 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 - Personal Leaves) 
 
4. Medical or dental appointments, in increments of not less than one hour 
 
5. Industrial accident or illness when leave granted specifically for that purpose has been 

exhausted  (Education Code 45192) 
 
(cf. 4161.11/4261.11/4361.11 - Industrial Accident/Illness Leave) 
 
6. Need of an employee to bond with a child within one year of the child's birth, 

adoption, or foster care placement (parental leave)  (Education Code 45196.1; 
Government Code 12945.2, 12945.6; 29 USC 2612; 29 CFR 825.112) 

 
7. Need of the employee or his/her family member, as defined in Labor Code 245.5, for 

the diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing health condition or for preventive care 
(Labor Code 233, 246.5) 

 
 
 



 AR 4261.1(b) 
 
 
PERSONAL ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE (continued) 
 
 
8. Need of the employee to seek or obtain any relief or medical attention specified in 

Labor Code 230(c) and 230.1(a) for the health, safety, or welfare of the employee, or 
his/her child, when the employee has been a victim of domestic violence, sexual 
assault, or stalking  (Labor Code 233, 246.5) 

 
For the purposes specified in items #7-8, an employee may use, in any calendar year, the 
amount of sick leave he/she would accrue during six months at his/her current rate of 
entitlement.  (Labor Code 233) 
 
An employee may take leave for personal illness or injury at any time during the year, even if 
credit for such leave has not yet been accrued. However, a new full-time classified employee 
shall not be entitled to more than six days of sick leave until he/she has completed six months 
of active service with the district.  (Education Code 45191) 
 
Unused days of sick leave shall be accumulated from year to year without limitation. 
(Education Code 45191) 
 
An employee shall reimburse the district for any unearned sick leave used as of the date of 
his/her termination. 
 
The district shall not require newly employed classified employees to waive leave 
accumulated in a previous district. However, if the employee's previous employment was 
terminated for cause, the transfer of the accumulated leave shall be made only if approved by 
the Governing Board.  (Education Code 45202) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall notify any classified employee whose employment with 
the district is terminated after at least one calendar year for reasons other than for cause that, 
if he/she accepts employment in another district, county office of education, or community 
college district within one year of the termination of employment, he/she shall be entitled to 
request that the district transfer his/her accumulated sick leave to his/her new employer.  
(Education Code 45202) 
 
Additional Leave for Disabled Military Veterans 
 
In addition to any other entitlement for sick leave with pay, a classified employee who is a 
former active duty member of the U.S. Armed Forces or a former or current member of the 
California National Guard or a federal reserve component shall be entitled to sick leave with 
pay of up to 12 days for the purpose of undergoing medical treatment, including mental 
health treatment, for a military service-connected disability rated at 30 percent or higher by 
the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs. An eligible employee who works less than five 
days per week shall be entitled to such leave in proportion to the time he/she works. 
(Education Code 45191.5) 
 



 AR 4261.1(c) 
 
 
PERSONAL ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE (continued) 
 
 
The amount of leave shall be credited to the employee either on the date the employee 
receives confirmation of the submission of his/her disability application to the U.S. 
Department of Veterans Affairs or on the first day the employee begins or returns to 
employment after active duty, whichever is later.  When the employee receives his/her 
disability rating decision, he/she shall report that information to the Superintendent or 
designee. If the disability rating decision makes the employee eligible for the leave, the time 
used before the decision shall be counted toward the 12-day maximum leave. If the disability 
rating decision makes the employee ineligible for the leave, the district may change the sick 
leave time used before the disability rating decision to an alternative leave balance.   
(Education Code 45191.5) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may require verification, in accordance with the section 
“Verification Requirements” below, that the employee used the leave to obtain treatment of a 
military service-connected disability. 
 
Leave for military-service connected disability shall be available for 12 months following the 
first date that the leave was credited. Leave not used during the 12-month period shall not be 
carried over and shall be forfeited.  (Education Code 45191.5) 
 
Notification of Absence 
 
An employee shall notify the Superintendent or the designated manager or supervisor of 
his/her need to be absent as soon as such need is known so that the services of a substitute 
may be secured as necessary. This notification shall include an estimate of the expected 
duration of absence. If the absence becomes longer than estimated, the employee shall so 
notify the district. If the duration of absence becomes shorter than estimated, the employee 
shall notify the district not later than three o'clock in the afternoon of the day preceding the 
day on which he/she intends to return to work. If the employee fails to notify the district and 
the failure results in a substitute being secured, the cost of the substitute shall be deducted 
from the employee's pay. 
 
Continued Absence After Available Sick Leave Is Exhausted/Differential Pay 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 AR 4261.1(d) 
 
 
PERSONAL ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE (continued) 
 
 
Each year, each regular classified employee shall be credited with no fewer than 100 working 
days of paid leave for personal illness or accident, including current year and accumulated 
days of leave. When the current year and accumulated days at full pay are exhausted, the 
remainder of the 100 days shall be compensated at 50 percent of the employee's regular 
salary. Any of the 100 days of leave not used during the year in which they are credited shall 
be forfeited and shall not accumulate from year to year. This paid leave shall be exclusive of 
any other paid leave, holidays, vacation, or compensatory time to which the employee may 
be entitled.  (Education Code 45196) 
 
Parental Leave 
 
During each school year, a classified employee may use all available sick leave, including 
accumulated sick leave, for the purpose of parental leave for a period up to 12 work weeks. 
The 12-week period shall be reduced by any period of sick leave, including accumulated sick 
leave, taken during a period of such parental leave.  (Education Code 45196.1) 
 
Eligibility for such leave shall not require 1,250 hours of service with the district during the 
previous 12 months. (Education Code 45196.1) 
 
An employee who has exhausted all available sick leave, including accumulated sick leave, 
and continues to be absent on account of parental leave shall receive differential pay for the 
remainder of the 12 work weeks.  (Education Code 45196.1) 
 
Parental leave taken pursuant to Education Code 45196.1 shall run concurrently with the 
parental leave taken pursuant to Government Code 12945.2 or 12945.6, and the aggregate 
amount of parental leave shall not exceed 12 work weeks in a 12-month period. (Education 
Code 45196.1; Government Code 12945.2, 12945.6) 
 
Extension of Leave 
 
A permanent employee who is absent because of a personal illness or injury and who has 
exhausted all available sick leave, vacation, compensatory overtime, and any other paid leave 
shall be so notified, in writing, and offered an opportunity to request additional leave. The 
Board may grant the employee additional leave, paid or unpaid, for a period not to exceed six 
months and may renew this leave for two additional six-month periods or for lesser periods. 
The total additional leave granted shall not exceed 18 months. (Education Code 45195) 
 
(cf. 4216 - Probationary/Permanent Status) 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 AR 4261.1(e) 
 
 
PERSONAL ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE (continued) 
 
 
If the employee is still unable to resume his/her duties after all available paid and unpaid 
leaves have been exhausted, the employee shall be placed on a reemployment list for a period 
of 39 months. If during this time the employee becomes able to resume the duties of his/her 
position, he/she shall be offered reemployment in the first vacancy in the classification of 
his/her previous assignment. During the 39 months, the employee's reemployment shall take 
preference over all other applicants except those laid off for lack of work or lack of funds, in 
which case the employee shall be ranked according to his/her seniority. (Education Code 
45195) 
 
Verification Requirements 
 
After any absence due to illness or injury, the employee shall submit a completed and signed 
district absence form to his/her immediate supervisor. 
 
The Superintendent or designee may require verification whenever an employee's absence 
record shows chronic absenteeism or a pattern of absences immediately before or after 
weekends and/or holidays or whenever available evidence clearly indicates that an absence is 
not related to illness or injury. 
 
In addition, the Superintendent or designee may require an employee to visit a physician 
selected by the district, at district expense, in order to receive a report on the medical 
condition of the employee. The report shall include a statement as to the employee's need for 
additional leave of absence and a prognosis as to when the employee will be able to return to 
work. If the report concludes that the employee's condition does not warrant continued 
absence, the Superintendent or designee may, after giving notice to the employee, deny the 
request for additional leave. 
 
Any district request for additional verification by an employee's physician or a district-
selected physician shall be in writing and shall specify that the report to be submitted to the 
district should not contain the employee's genetic information. 
 
Any genetic information received by the district on behalf of an employee shall be treated as 
a confidential medical record, maintained in a file separate from the employee's personnel 
file, and shall not be disclosed except in accordance with 29 CFR 1635.9. 
 
Before returning to work, an employee who has been absent for surgery, hospitalization, or 
extended medical treatment may be asked to submit a letter from his/her physician stating 
that he/she is able to return to work and stipulating any recommended restrictions or 
limitations. 
 
(cf. 4032 - Reasonable Accommodation) 
(cf. 4113.4/4213.4/4313.4 - Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment) 
 
 



 AR 4261.1(f) 
 
 
PERSONAL ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE (continued) 
 
 
Short-Term and Substitute Employees 
 
 
Except for a retired annuitant who is not reinstated to the retirement system, any short-term 
or substitute employee who works for 30 or more days within a year of his/her employment 
shall accrue, on a regular basis, paid sick leave of up to 24 hours by the 120th calendar day of 
his/her employment or each calendar year or 12-month period. Accrued paid sick days shall 
carry over to the following year of employment, up to a maximum of 48 hours.  (Labor Code 
246) 
 
Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act Requirements 
 
No employee, including a short-term or substitute employee, shall be denied the right to use 
accrued sick days and the district shall not in any manner discriminate or retaliate against an 
employee for using or attempting to use sick leave, filing a complaint with the Labor 
Commissioner, or alleging district violation of Labor Code 245-249. 
 
To ensure the district's compliance with Labor Code 245-249, the Superintendent or designee 
shall: 
 
1. At a conspicuous location in each workplace, display a poster on paid sick leave that 

includes the following information: 
 
a. That an employee is entitled to accrue, request, and use paid sick days 
 
b. The amount of sick days provided by Labor Code 245-249 
 
c. The terms of use of paid sick days 
 
d. That discrimination or retaliation against an employee for requesting and/or 

using sick leave is prohibited by law and that an employee has the right to file 
a complaint with the Labor Commissioner if the district discriminates or 
retaliates against him/her 

 
2. Provide at least 24 hours or three days of paid sick leave to each eligible employee to 

use per year and allow eligible employees to use accrued sick leave upon reasonable 
request 

 
3. Provide eligible employees written notice, on their pay stub or other document issued 

with their pay check, of the amount of paid sick leave they have available 
 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 
 
 
 



 AR 4261.1(g) 
 
 
PERSONAL ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE (continued) 
 
 
4. Keep a record documenting the hours worked and paid sick days accrued and used by 

each eligible employee for three years 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
45103 Substitute employees 
45190 Leaves of absence and vacations 
45191 Leaves of absence for illness and injury 
45191.5  Leave for military service connected disability 
45193 Leave of absence for pregnancy (re use of sick leave under certain circumstances) 
45195 Additional leave for nonindustrial accident or illness; reemployment preference 
45196 Salary; deductions during sick leave 
45196.1  Differential pay during parental leave up to 12 weeks after sick leave is exhausted 
45202 Transfer of accumulated sick leave and other benefits 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
12945.1-12945.2  California Family Rights Act 
12945.6  Parental leave 
LABOR CODE 
230  Jury duty; legal actions by domestic violence, sexual assault and stalking victims, right to time off 
230.1  Employers with 25 or more employees; domestic violence, sexual assault and stalking victims, 
right to time off 
233 Illness of child, parent, spouse or domestic partner 
245-249  Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act of 2014 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 
2601-2654  Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, as amended 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
2000ff-2000ff-11  Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 29 
825.100-825.800  Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 
1635.1-1635.12  Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 
COURT DECISIONS 
California School Employees Association v. Colton Joint Unified School District, (2009) 170 
Cal.App.4th  957 
California School Employees Association v. Tustin Unified School District, (2007) 148 Cal.App.4th 
510 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
53 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 111 (1970) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: March 2018 



Students BP 5022(a) 
 
STUDENT AND FAMILY PRIVACY RIGHTS 
 
 
The Governing Board respects the rights of district students and their parents/guardians with 
regard to the privacy of their personal beliefs and the confidentiality of their personal 
information. 
 
(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 
(cf. 5021 - Noncustodial Parents) 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information) 
(cf. 6162.8 - Research) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may collect, disclose, or use students' personal information 
for the exclusive purpose of developing, evaluating, or providing educational products or 
services for or to students or educational institutions, such as the following:  (20 USC 1232h) 
 
1. College or other postsecondary education recruitment or military recruitment 
 
2. Book clubs, magazines, and programs providing access to low-cost literary products 
 
3. Curriculum and instructional materials used by elementary and secondary schools 
 
4. Tests and assessments to provide cognitive, evaluative, diagnostic, clinical, aptitude, 

or achievement information about students (or to generate other statistically useful 
data for the purpose of securing such tests and assessments) and the subsequent 
analysis and public release of the aggregate data from such tests and assessments 

 
(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 
(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 
 
5. The sale by students of products or services to raise funds for school-related or 

education-related activities 
 
(cf. 1321 - Solicitation of Funds from and by Students) 
 
6. Student recognition programs 
 
(cf. 5126 - Awards for Achievement) 
 
The Superintendent or designee is prohibited from collecting, disclosing, or using a student's 
individually identifiable information, including his/her name, parent/guardian's name, home 
or other physical address, telephone number, or social security number, for the purpose of 
marketing or selling that information or providing the information to others for that purpose. 
 
 
 
 
 



 BP 5022(b) 
 
 
STUDENT AND FAMILY PRIVACY RIGHTS  (continued) 
 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall consult with parents/guardians regarding the 
development of regulations pertaining to other uses of personal information, which shall, at a 
minimum, address the following:  (20 USC 1232h) 
 
1. Arrangements for protecting student privacy when collecting, disclosing, or using 

students' individually identifiable information for any purpose 
 
2. Arrangements to protect student privacy in the administration of surveys that may 

request information about the personal beliefs and practices of students and their 
families 

 
3. The rights of parents/guardians to inspect the following, and any applicable 

procedures for granting reasonable access to the following in a reasonable period of 
time: 
 
a. Survey instruments requesting information about their personal beliefs and 

practices or those of their children 
 
b. Instructional materials used as part of their children's educational curriculum 

 
c. Instruments used in the collection of personal information for the purpose of 

marketing or sale 
 
4. Any nonemergency physical examinations or screenings that the school may 

administer 
 
(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committee) 
(cf. 1230 - School-Connected Organizations) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians of the adoption or continued 
use of the district's policy pertaining to the rights specified in items #1-4 above.  (20 USC 
1232h) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 BP 5022(c) 
 
 
STUDENT AND FAMILY PRIVACY RIGHTS  (continued) 
 
 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
234.7  Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status 
49076.7  Privacy of student records; social security numbers 
49450-49458  Physical examinations 
49602  Confidentiality of personal information received during counseling 
51101  Parents Rights Act of 2002 
51513  Test, questionnaire, survey, or examination concerning personal beliefs 
51514  Nonremoval of survey questions pertaining to sexual orientation or gender identity 
51938    Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS Prevention Education Act; notice and parental excuse 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1232g  Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 
1232h  Protection of pupil rights 

 
Management Resources: 

WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 
U.S. Department of Education, Family Policy Compliance Office: http://www.ed.gov/offices/OM/fpco 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: March 2018 



Students AR 5022(a) 
 
STUDENT AND FAMILY PRIVACY RIGHTS 
 
 
Surveys Requesting Information about Beliefs and Practices 
 
A student's parent/guardian, or a student who is an adult or emancipated minor, shall provide 
prior written consent before the student is required to participate in a survey inquiring about 
one or more of the following:  (Education Code 51513; 20 USC 1232h) 
 
1. Political affiliations or beliefs of the student or his/her parent/guardian 
 
2. Mental or psychological problems of the student or his/her family 
 
3. Sexual behavior or attitudes or personal beliefs and practices in family life or 

morality 
 
4. Illegal, anti-social, self-incriminating, or demeaning behavior 
 
5. Critical appraisals of other individuals with whom the student has close family 

relationships 
 
6. Legally recognized privileged or analogous relationships, such as those of lawyers, 

physicians, or ministers 
 
7. Religious practices, affiliations, or beliefs of the student or his/her parent/guardian 
 
8. Income, except to the extent that income is required to be disclosed by law for 

participation in a program or for receiving financial assistance under such a program 
 
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 
(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development) 
 
If a student participates in such a survey requesting information about personal beliefs and 
practices, school officials and staff members shall not request or disclose the student's 
identity. 
 
(cf. 6162.8 - Research) 
 
Notwithstanding the above requirements for prior written consent, the district may administer 
to students in grades 7-12 anonymous, voluntary, and confidential research and evaluation 
tools to measure student health risks and behaviors, including tests and surveys about student 
attitudes or practices related to sex as long as parents/guardians are provided written notice 
and given an opportunity to request, in writing, that their child not participate.  (Education 
Code 51938) 
 
If the district administers a voluntary survey that already includes questions pertaining to 
sexual orientation and/or gender identity, the Superintendent or designee shall not remove 
such questions.  (Education Code 51514) 



 AR 5022(b) 
 
 
STUDENT AND FAMILY PRIVACY RIGHTS  (continued) 
 
 
Parent/Guardian Access to Surveys and Instructional Materials 
 
The parent/guardian of any district student, upon his/her request, shall have the right to 
inspect:  (Education Code 51938; 20 USC 1232h) 
 
1. A survey or other instrument to be administered or distributed to his/her child that 

either collects personal information for marketing or sale or requests information 
about beliefs and practices 

 
2. Any instructional material to be used as part of his/her child's educational curriculum 
 
(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 
 
Within a reasonable period of time after receiving a parent/guardian's request, the principal or 
designee shall permit the parent/guardian to view the survey or other document he/she 
requested. A parent/guardian may view the document any time during normal business hours. 
 
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 
 
No student shall be subject to penalty for his/her parent/guardian's exercise of any of the 
rights stated above. 
 
Health Examinations 
 
Authorized school officials may administer to any student any physical examination or 
screening permitted under California law. However, no student shall be subjected to a 
nonemergency, invasive physical examination without prior written notice to his/her 
parent/guardian, unless an applicable state law authorizes the student to provide consent 
without parent/guardian notification.  (20 USC 1232h) 
 
Invasive physical examination means any medical examination that involves the exposure of 
private body parts or any act during such examination that includes incision, insertion, or 
injection into the body, but does not include a properly authorized hearing, vision, or 
scoliosis screening.  (20 USC 1232h) 
 
(cf. 5131.61 - Drug Testing) 
(cf. 5141.21 - Administering Medication and Monitoring Health Conditions) 
(cf. 5141.3 - Health Examinations) 
(cf. 5141.32 - Health Screening for School Entry) 
(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 
 
Notifications 
 
At the beginning of the school year, the Superintendent or designee shall notify 
parents/guardians of:  (20 USC 1232h) 



 AR 5022(c) 
 
 
STUDENT AND FAMILY PRIVACY RIGHTS (continued) 
 
 
1. The district's policy regarding student privacy 
 
2. The process to opt their children out of participation in any activity described in this 

administrative regulation and the accompanying Board policy 
 
3. The specific or approximate dates during the school year when the following 

activities are scheduled: 
 
a. Survey requesting personal information 
 
b. Physical examinations or screenings 
 
c. Collection of personal information from students for marketing or sale 

 
Prior to administering any anonymous and voluntary survey regarding health risks and 
behaviors to students in grades 7-12, the district shall provide parents/guardians with written 
notice that the survey is to be administered.  (Education Code 51938) 
 
Parents/guardians shall also be notified of any substantive change to this policy and 
administrative regulation within a reasonable period of time after adoption of the change.  
(20 USC 1232h) 
 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: March 2018 



Students BP 5145.6(a) 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS 
 
 
The Governing Board desires to promote effective communication between the school and 
the home and to keep parents/guardians informed regarding educational programs, school 
operations, and the legal rights of students and their parents/guardians. The Superintendent or 
designee shall send parents/guardians and students all notifications required by law and any 
other notifications he/she believes will promote parental understanding and involvement. 
 
(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 
(cf. 5022 - Student and Family Privacy Rights) 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
 
Notice of the rights and responsibilities of parents/guardians as specified in Education Code 
48980 shall be sent at the beginning of each academic year and may be provided by regular 
mail, in electronic form when so requested by the parent/guardian, or by any other method 
normally used by the district for written communication with parents/guardians.  (Education 
Code 48981) 
 
No activity specified in Education Code 48980 shall be undertaken with respect to any 
particular student unless his/her parent/guardian has been informed of such action through 
the annual notification or other separate special notification. Such notice shall state the 
activity that will be undertaken and the approximate date on which the activity will occur.  
(Education Code 48983-48984) 
 
The annual notification shall include a request that the parent/guardian sign the notice and 
return it to the school or, if the notice is provided in electronic format, that the 
parent/guardian submit a signed acknowledgment of receipt of the notice to the school. The 
parent/guardian's signature is an acknowledgment of receipt of the information but does not 
indicate that consent to participate in any particular program has been given or withheld.  
(Education Code 48982) 
 
Whenever a student enrolls in a district school during the school year, his/her 
parents/guardians shall be given all required parental notifications at that time. 
 
Notifications shall be presented in an understandable and uniform format and, to the extent 
practicable, in a language that parents/guardians can understand. 
 
Whenever 15 percent or more of the students enrolled in a district school speak a single 
primary language other than English, as determined from the California Department of 
Education census data collected pursuant to Education Code 52164, all notices sent to the 
parent/guardian of any such student shall, in addition to being written in English, be written 
in the primary language, and may be responded to either in English or the primary language.  
(Education Code 48981, 48985) 
 
 
 
 



 BP 5145.6(b) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
Whenever an employee learns that a student's parent/guardian is unable to understand the 
district's printed notifications for any reason, he/she shall inform the principal or designee, 
who shall work with the parent/guardian to establish other appropriate means of 
communication. 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
221.5  Prohibited sex discrimination 
231.5  Sexual harassment policy 
234.7  Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status 
262.3  Appeals for discrimination complaints; information regarding  availability of civil remedies 
310  Language acquisition programs 
313  Reclassification of English learners, parental consultation 
313.2  Long-term English learner, notification 
440  English language proficiency assessment; instruction in English language development 
8483  Before/after school program; enrollment priorities 
17288  Building standards for university campuses 
17611.5-17612  Notification of pesticide use 
32221.5  Insurance for athletic team members 
32255-32255.6  Right to refuse harmful or destructive use of animals 
32390  Fingerprint program; contracts; funding; consent of parent/guardian 
33479.3 The Eric Paredes Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act 
35160.5  Extracurricular and cocurricular activities 
35178.4  Notice of accreditation status 
35182.5  Advertising in the classroom 
35183  School dress codes; uniforms 
35186  Complaints concerning deficiencies in instructional materials and facilities 
35211  Driver training; district insurance, parent/guardian liability 
35256  School Accountability Report Card 
35258  School Accountability Report Card 
35291  Rules for student discipline 
37616  Consultation regarding year-round schedule 
39831.5  School bus rider rules and information 
44050  Employee codes of conduct, employee interactions with students 
44808.5  Permission to leave school grounds 
46010.1  Notice regarding excuse to obtain confidential medical services 
46014  Regulations regarding absences for religious purposes 
46600-46611  Interdistrict attendance agreements 
48000  Minimum age of admission 
48070.5  Promotion or retention of students 
48204  Residency requirements 
48205  Absence for personal reasons 
48206.3  Students with temporary disabilities; individual instruction; definitions 

 
 
 
Legal Reference continued:  (see next page) 
 



 BP 5145.6(c) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (continued) 

EDUCATION CODE  (continued) 
48207-48208  Students with temporary disabilities in hospitals 
48213  Prior notice of exclusion from attendance 
48216  Immunization 
48260.5  Notice regarding truancy 
48262  Need for parent conference regarding truancy 
48263  Referral to school attendance review board or probation department 
48301  Interdistrict transfers 
48350-48361  Open Enrollment Act 
48354  Option to transfer from school identified under Open Enrollment Act 
48357  Status of application for transfer from school identified under Open Enrollment Act 
48412  Certificate of  proficiency 
48432.3  Voluntary enrollment in continuation education 
48432.5  Involuntary transfers of students 
48850-48859 Education of foster youth and homeless students 
48900.1  Parental attendance required after suspension 
48904  Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct 
48904.3  Withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts 
48906  Notification of release of student to peace officer 
48911  Notification in case of suspension 
48911.1  Assignment to supervised suspension classroom 
48912  Closed sessions; consideration of suspension 
48915.1  Expelled students; enrollment in another district 
48916  Readmission procedures 
48918  Rules governing expulsion procedures 
48929  Transfer of student convicted of violent felony or misdemeanor 
48980  Required notification at beginning of term 
48980.3  Notification of pesticide use 
48981  Time and means of notification 
48982  Parent signature acknowledging receipt of notice 
48983  Contents of notice 
48984  Activities prohibited unless notice given 
48985  Notices to parents in language other than English 
48987  Child abuse information 
49013  Use of uniform complaint procedures for complaints regarding student fees 
49063  Notification of parental rights 
49067  Student evaluation; student in danger of failing course 
49068  Transfer of permanent enrollment and scholarship record 
49069  Absolute right to access 
49070  Challenging content of student record 
49073  Release of directory information 
49073.6  Student records, social media 
49076  Access to student records 
49077  Access to information concerning a student in compliance with court order 

 
 
 
Legal Reference continued:  (see next page) 
 



 BP 5145.6(d) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (continued) 

EDUCATION CODE  (continued) 
49403  Cooperation in control of communicable disease and immunization 
49423  Administration of prescribed medication for student 
49451  Physical examinations: parent's refusal to consent 
49452.5  Screening for scoliosis 
49452.7  Information on type 2 diabetes 
49452.8  Oral health assessment 
49456  Results of vision or hearing test 
49471-49472  Insurance 
49475  Student athletes; concussions and head injuries 
49480  Continuing medication regimen for nonepisodic conditions 
49510-49520  Duffy-Moscone Family Nutrition Education and Services Act of 1970 
49557.5  Child Hunger Prevention and Fair Treatment Act of 2017; notice of negative balance in meal 
account 
51225.1 Exemption from district graduation requirements 
51225.2 Course credits; foster youth, homeless youth, former juvenile court school students and 
military-connected students 
51225.3  Graduation requirements; courses that satisfy college entrance criteria 
51229  Course of study for grades 7-12 
51513  Personal beliefs; privacy 
51938  HIV/AIDS and sexual health instruction 
52164  Language census 
52164.1  Census-taking methods; determination of primary language; assessment of language skills 
52164.3  Reassessment of English learners; notification of results 
54444.2  Migrant education programs; parent involvement 
56301  Child-find system; policies regarding written notification rights 
56321  Special education: proposed assessment plan 
56321.5-56321.6  Notice of parent rights pertaining to special education 
56329  Written notice of right to findings; independent assessment 
56341.1  Development of individualized education program; right to audio record meeting 
56341.5  Individualized education program team meetings 
56343.5  Individualized education program meetings 
56521.1  Behavioral intervention 
58501  Alternative schools; notice required prior to establishment 
60615  Exemption from state assessment 
60641  California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress 
69432.9  Submission of grade point average to Cal Grant program 
CIVIL CODE 
1798.29  District records, breach of security 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
1596.857  Right to enter child care facility 
104420  Tobacco use prevention 
104855  Availability of topical fluoride treatment 
116277  Lead testing of school drinking water 
120365-120375  Immunizations 
120440  Sharing immunization information 
124100-124105  Health screening and immunizations 

 
 
Legal Reference continued:  (see next page) 



 BP 5145.6(e) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (continued) 

PENAL CODE 
626.81  Notice of permission granted to sex offender to volunteer on campus 
627.5  Hearing request following denial or revocation of registration 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
852  Exemptions from state assessments 
863  Reports of state assessment results 
3052  Behavioral intervention 
4622  Notification of uniform complaint procedures 
4631  Uniform complaint procedures; notification of decision and right to appeal 
4702  Student transfer from school identified under Open Enrollment Act 
4917  Notification of sexual harassment policy 
11303  Reclassification of English learners 
11511.5  English language proficiency assessment; test results 
11523  Notice of proficiency examinations 
18066  Child care policies regarding excused and unexcused absences 
18094-18095  Notice of Action; child care services 
18114  Notice of delinquent fees; child care services 
18118-18119  Notice of Action; child care services 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 17 
2951  Hearing tests 
6040  Time period to obtain needed immunizations 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1232g  Family Educational and Privacy Rights Act 
1232h  Privacy rights 
1415  Procedural safeguards 
6311  State plan 
6312  Local educational agency plans 
6318  Parent and family engagement 
7908  Armed forces recruiter access to students 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
1758  Child nutrition programs 
11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 
245.5  Eligibility criteria for free and reduced-price meals 
245.6a  Verification of eligibility for free and reduced-price meals 

 
 
 
Legal Reference continued:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 BP 5145.6(f) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (continued) 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
99.7  Student records, annual notification 
99.30 Disclosure of personally identifiable information 
99.34  Student records, disclosure to other educational agencies 
99.37  Disclosure of directory information 
104.32  District responsibility to provide free appropriate public education 
104.36  Procedural safeguards 
104.8  Nondiscrimination 
106.9  Dissemination of policy, nondiscrimination on basis of sex 
200.48 Teacher qualifications 
300.300  Parent consent for special education evaluation 
300.322  Parent participation in IEP team meetings 
300.502  Independent educational evaluation of student with disability 
300.503  Prior written notice regarding identification, evaluation, or placement of student with 
disability 
300.504  Procedural safeguards notice for students with disabilities 
300.508  Due process complaint 
300.530  Discipline procedures 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 40 
763.84  Asbestos inspections, response actions and post-response actions 
763.93  Asbestos management plans 

 
Management Resources: 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE PUBLICATIONS 
Unpaid Meal Charges: Guidance and Q&A, SP 23-2017, March 2017 
Civil Rights Compliance and Enforcement -- Nutrition Programs and Services, FNS Instruction 113-1, 
2005 
WEB SITES 
U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service: http://www.fns.usda.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: March 2018 



Students E 5145.6(a) 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS 
 
 

Cautionary Notice:  Government Code 17581.5 releases districts from the obligation to perform specified 
mandated activities when the Budget Act does not provide reimbursement during that fiscal year. The 
Budget Act of 2017 (AB 97, Ch. 14, Statutes of 2017) extends the suspension of these requirements 
through the 2017-18 fiscal year. As a result, certain provisions of the following Exhibit related to scoliosis 
screening and bus safety instruction may be suspended. 

 
Note:  The following exhibit lists notices which the law explicitly requires be provided to parents/guardians. 
See the referenced Board policy, administrative regulation, or Board bylaw for further information about 
related program and notice requirements. For example, see AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures for 
the contents of the annual notice regarding uniform complaint procedures as mandated by 5 CCR 4622. 
 
The exhibit does not include other notices that are recommended throughout CSBA's sample policy manual 
but are not required by law. The district may revise the exhibit to reflect additional notifications provided by 
the district. 

 
 Education or Board Policy/  
When to Other Legal Administrative 
Notify Code Regulation #  Subject 
 
I.  Annually 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code BP 0410 Right to a free public 
year 234.7   education regardless of 
    immigration status or 
    religious beliefs 
 
Beginning of each school  Education Code BP 6142.2 Information on the district's 
year 310 AR 6174 language acquisition 
    programs 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code  AR 3514.2 Use of pesticide product, 
year 17611.5, 17612,   active ingredients, Internet 
 48980.3  address to access information, 
   and, if district has no web site 
   and uses certain pesticides, 
   integrated pest management 
   plan 
  
By February 1 Education Code  BP 0510 School Accountability 
 35256, 35258  Report Card provided 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code  AR 5144 District and site discipline 
year 35291, 48980 AR 5144.1 rules 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code BP 4119.21 Code of conduct addressing 
year 44050       4219.21 employee interactions with 
        4319.21 students 
 
 
 
 



 E 5145.6(b) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 Education or Board Policy/  
When to Other Legal Administrative 
Notify Code Regulation #  Subject 
 
I.  Annually  (continued) 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code  AR 5113 Absence for confidential 
year 46010.1  medical services 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code BP 5116.2 District policy authorizing 
year, if district has adopted 48929, 48980  transfer 
policy on involuntary transfer    
of students convicted of certain 
crimes when victim is enrolled 
at same school   
 
Beginning of each school Education Code  BP 6111 Schedule of minimum days 
year  48980  and student-free staff 
    development days 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code  AR 5145.7  Copy of sexual harassment 
year 48980, 231.5;  policy as related to students 
 5 CCR 4917 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code  AR 5145.8 Right to refrain from harmful 
year 48980, 32255-  or destructive use of animals 
 32255.6 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code BP 5111.1  All statutory attendance 
year 48980, 35160.5,  AR 5116.1 options, available local 
 46600-46611,  AR 5117 attendance options, options for 
 48204, 48301,   meeting residency, form for 
 48350-48361   changing attendance, appeals 
    process 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code AR 5113 Absence for religious 
year, if Board allows 48980, 46014   exercises or purposes 
such absence 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code AR 5113 Excused absences; grade/credit 
year 48980, 48205 BP 6154 cannot be reduced due to 
    excused absence if work or test 

   has been completed; full text 
of Education Code 48205 

 
Beginning of each school Education Code AR 6183 Availability of home/hospital 
year 48980, 48206.3,  instruction for students with 
 48207, 48208  temporary disabilities 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code BP 5141.31 School immunization program 
year 48980, 49403   
 



 E 5145.6(c) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 Education or Board Policy/  
When to Other Legal Administrative 
Notify Code Regulation #  Subject 
 
I.  Annually  (continued) 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code AR 5141.21 Administration of 
year 48980, 49423,  prescribed medication 
 49480 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code AR 5141.3 Right to refuse consent to 
year 48980, 49451;  physical examination 
 20 USC 1232h 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code BP 5143 Availability of 
year 48980, 49471,  insurance 
 49472 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code AR 1312.3 Uniform complaint procedures, 
year 49013; 5 CCR  available appeals, civil law 
 4622  remedies 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code AR 5125 Challenge, review, and 
year 49063 AR 5125.3 expunging of records 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code AR 5125 Student records: inspect and 
year 49063, 49069;  review, access, types, location, 
 20 USC 1232g;  persons responsible, location 
 34 CFR 99.7  of log, access criteria, cost of 
   copies, amendment requests, 
   criteria to determine legitimate 
   educational interest, course 
   prospectus availability 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code AR 5125.1 Release of directory 
year 49063, 49073;  information 
 20 USC 1232g; 
 34 CFR 99.37 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code AR 3553 Eligibility and application 
year 49520, 48980;  process for free and reduced- 
 42 USC 1758;  price meals 
 7 CFR 245.5   
 
Beginning of each school Education Code AR 5022 Notice of privacy policy and 
year 51513; 20 USC BP 6162.8 dates of activities re: survey, 
 1232h  health examination, or 
   collection of personal 
   information for marketing; 
   process to opt out of such 
   activities; inspection rights 
   and procedures 



 E 5145.6(d) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 Education or Board Policy/  
When to Other Legal Administrative 
Notify Code Regulation #  Subject 
 
I.  Annually  (continued) 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code BP 6164.4 Parental rights re: special 
year 56301  education identification, 
   referral, assessment, 
   instructional planning, 
   implementation and review, 
   and procedures for initiating 
   a referral for assessment 
 
Beginning of each school  Education Code AR 6181 Alternative schools 
year 58501, 48980 
 
Beginning of each school Health and Safety AR 5141.6 Availability of dental fluoride 
year Code 104855  treatment; opportunity to 
   accept or deny treatment 
 
Annually 5 CCR 852; AR 6162.51 Student's participation in state 
 Education Code  assessments; option to request 
 60615  exemption from testing 
 
Beginning of each school  20 USC 6312; BP 4112.2 Right to request information 
year, if district receives  34 CFR 200.48 AR 4222 re: professional qualifications 
Title I funds   of child's teacher and 
   paraprofessional 
 
Beginning of each school 34 CFR 104.8, BP 0410 Nondiscrimination 
year 106.9 BP 6178  
 
Beginning of each school 40 CFR 763.84, AR 3514 Availability of asbestos 
year to parent, teacher, and  763.93  management plan; any 
employee organizations or, in   inspections, response actions 
their absence, individuals   or post-response actions 
   planned or in progress 
 
Beginning of each school USDA SP-23-2017 AR 3551 District policy on meal 
year   payments 
 
II.  At Specific Times During the Student's Academic Career 
 
Beginning in grade 7,   Education Code BP 6164.2 Course selection and 
at least once prior to course 221.5, 48980  career counseling 
selection and career counseling 
 
Upon a student's enrollment  Education Code BP 6142.2 Information on the district's 
 310 AR 6174 language acquisition 
    programs 
 



 E 5145.6(e) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 Education or Board Policy/  
When to Other Legal Administrative 
Notify Code Regulation #  Subject 
 

II.  At Specific Times During the Student's Academic Career (continued) 
 
When child first enrolls in a Education Code AR 5142.1 Fingerprinting program 
public school, if school offers 32390, 48980 
a fingerprinting program 
 
When participating in  Education Code  None Civil liability, insurance 
driver training courses under  35211  coverage 
the jurisdiction of the district 
 
Upon registration in K-6, if Education Code AR 3543 School bus safety rules and 
students have not previously 39831.5  information, list of stops, rules 
been transported   of conduct, red light crossing 
   instructions, bus danger zones, 
   walking to and from stops 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code AR 5112.5 Open campus 
year for high school students, 44808.5, 48980 
if high school is open campus 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code AR 6146.1 How each graduation 
year in grades 9-12, if district 48980, 51225.3  requirement does or does not 
allows career technical education   satisfy college entrance a-g 
(CTE) course to satisfy   course criteria; district CTE 
graduation requirement   courses that satisfy a-g criteria 
 
Upon a student's enrollment Education Code AR 5125 Specified rights related to 
 49063 AR 5125.3 student records 
 
When students enter grade 7 Education Code AR 5141.3 Specified information on type 
 49452.7  2 diabetes 
 
When in kindergarten, Education Code AR 5141.32 Requirement for oral health 
or first grade if not previously 49452.8  assessment, explanation of 
enrolled in public school   law, importance of oral health, 
   agency contact, privacy rights 
 
Beginning of each school year  Education Code AR 6143 College admission 
for students in grades 9-12 51229, 48980  requirements, UC and CSU 
   web sites that list certified 
   courses, description of CTE, 
   CDE Internet address, how 
   students may meet with 
   counselors 
 
 
 
 



 E 5145.6(f) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 Education or Board Policy/  
When to Other Legal Administrative 
Notify Code Regulation #  Subject 
 
II.  At Specific Times During the Student's Academic Career  (continued) 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code AR 6142.1 Sexual health and HIV 
year for students in grades  51938, 48980  prevention education, right to 
7-12, or at time of    view A/V materials, whether 
enrollment if after beginning   taught by district staff or 
of year   outside consultants, right to 
   request specific Education 

 Code sections, right to excuse 
 

Within 20 working days of Education Code AR 6162.51 Results of tests; test 
receiving results of standardized 60641; 5 CCR 863  purpose, individual score 
achievement tests or, if results   and intended use 
not available in school year, 
within 20 working days of start 
of next school year 
 
By October 15 for students in Education Code AR 5121 Forwarding of student's grade 
grade 12 69432.9 AR 5125 point average to Cal Grant 
   program; timeline to opt out 
 
When child is enrolled Health and Safety AR 5141.32 Health screening 
in kindergarten Code 124100,  examination 
 124105 
 
To students in grades 11-12, 5 CCR 11523 AR 6146.2 Notice of proficiency 
early enough to enable    examination provided 
registration for fall test   under Education Code 48412 
 
To secondary students, if 20 USC 7908 AR 5125.1 Request that district not release 
district receives Title I funds    name, address, phone number 
   of child to military recruiters 
   without prior written consent 
 
III.  When Special Circumstances Occur 
 
In the event of a breach of Civil Code  BP 3580 Types of records affected, 
security of district records, 1798.29 date of breach, description of 
to affected persons incident, contact information 
 for credit reporting agencies  
 
Upon receipt of a complaint Education Code AR 1312.3 Civil law remedies 
alleging discrimination 262.3  available to complainants 
 
When determining whether an Education Code AR 6174 Description of reclassification 
English learner should be 313; 5 CCR 11303  process, opportunity for 
reclassified as fluent English   parent/guardian to participate 
proficient 



 E 5145.6(g) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 Education or Board Policy/  
When to Other Legal Administrative 
Notify Code Regulation #  Subject 
 
III.  When Special Circumstances Occur  (continued) 
 
When student is identified Education Code AR 6174 Reason for classification, level 
as English learner and district 313.2, 440;   of English proficiency, 
receives Title I or Title III 20 USC 6312  identification as long-term 
funds for English learner   English learner, description 
programs, not later than 30   of program(s), option to 
days after beginning of school   decline program or choose 
year or within two weeks of    alternate, option to remove 
placement if identified during    student from program at any 
school year   time, exit requirements of 
   program 
 
When homeless or foster youth Education Code AR 5148.2 Right to priority enrollment; 
applies for enrollment in 8483  how to request priority 
before/after school program   enrollment 
 
Before high school student Education Code None University campus buildings 
attends specialized 17288  may not meet Education Code 
secondary program on a   requirements for structural 
university campus   safety 
 
At least 72 hours before Education Code AR 3514.2 Intended use of pesticide 
use of pesticide product 17612  product 
not included in annual list 
 
To members of athletic Education Code AR 5143 Offer of insurance; no-cost and 
teams 32221.5  low-cost program options 
 
Annually to parents/guardians  Education Code AR 6145.2 Information on sudden 
of student athletes before they   33479.3  cardiac arrest 
participate in competition 
 
If school has lost its WASC Education Code BP 6190 Loss of status, potential 
accreditation status 35178.4  consequences 
 
 
When district has contracted Education Code BP 3312 Advertising will be used in the 
for electronic products or 35182.5   classroom or learning center 
services that disseminate 
advertising 
 
At least six months before Education Code AR 5132 Dress code policy requiring 
implementing uniform policy 35183   schoolwide uniform 
 
Before implementing a Education Code BP 6117 Public hearing on year-round 
year-round schedule 37616   schedule 
 



 E 5145.6(h) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 Education or Board Policy/  
When to Other Legal Administrative 
Notify Code Regulation #  Subject 
 
III.  When Special Circumstances Occur  (continued) 
 
When interdistrict transfer Education Code AR 5117 Appeal process 
is requested and not approved 46601 
or denied within 30 days 
 
Before early entry to Education Code AR 5111 Effects, advantages and 
kindergarten, if offered 48000  disadvantages of early entry 
 
When student identified as Education Code AR 5123 Student at risk of 
being at risk of retention 48070.5  retention 
 
When student excluded due to Education Code AR 5112.2 Student has been excluded 
quarantine, contagious or 48213 BP 5141.33 from school 
infectious disease, danger to 
safety or health 
 
Before already admitted  Education Code AR 5141.31 Need to submit evidence of 
student is excluded for lack  48216; 17 CCR   immunization or exemption 
of immunization 6040   within 10 school days; referral 
    to medical care 
 
When a student is Education Code AR 5113.1 Truancy, parental obligation, 
classified as truant  48260.5, 48262   availability of alternative 
    programs, student 
    consequences, need for 
    conference 
 
When a truant is referred Education Code AR 5113.1 Name and address of SARB 
to a SARB or probation 48263   or probation department and 
department    reason for referral 
 
When a school is identified on Education Code AR 5118 Student's option to transfer 
the state's Open Enrollment List 48354; 5 CCR   to another school 
 4702 
 
Within 60 days of receiving Education Code AR 5118 Whether student's transfer 
application for transfer out of  48357; 5 CCR    application is accepted or 
open enrollment school 4702   rejected; reasons for rejection 
 
When student requests to Education Code AR 6184 Copy of district policy and 
voluntarily transfer to 48432.3   regulation on continuation 
continuation school    education 
 
Prior to involuntary transfer Education Code AR 6184 Right to request meeting prior 
to continuation school 48432.5  to involuntary transfer to 
   continuation school 
 



 E 5145.6(i) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 Education or Board Policy/  
When to Other Legal Administrative 
Notify Code Regulation #  Subject 
 
III.  When Special Circumstances Occur  (continued) 
 
To person holding educational Education Code AR 6173.1 Basis for the placement 
rights, prior to recommending 48853.5  recommendation 
placement of foster youth  
outside school of origin 
 
When student is removed from Education Code AR 5144.4 Parental attendance required; 
class and teacher requires 48900.1   timeline for attendance 
parental attendance at school 
 
Prior to withholding grades, Education Code AR 5125.2 Damaged school property 
diplomas, or transcripts 48904   
 
When withholding grades, Education Code AR 5125.2 Next school will continue 
diplomas or transcripts 48904.3   withholding grades, diplomas, 
from transferring student    or transcripts 
 
When student is released Education Code BP 5145.11 Release of student to peace 
to peace officer 48906   officer for the purpose of 
    removing minor from school, 
    unless taken into custody as 
    victim of suspected child abuse 
 
At time of suspension Education Code BP 5144.1 Notice of suspension 
 48911 AR 5144.1 
 
When original period of Education Code AR 5144.1 Extension of suspension 
suspension is extended 48911 
 
At the time a student is Education Code  AR 5144.1 The student's assignment to 
assigned to a supervised  48911.1   a supervised suspension 
suspension classroom    classroom 
 
Before holding a closed Education Code AR 5144.1 Intent to hold a closed session 
session re: suspension 48912   re: suspension 
 
When student expelled Education Code BP 5119 Hearing re: possible danger 
from another district for 48915.1,   presented by expelled 
certain acts seeks admission 48918   student 
 
When readmission is Education Code AR 5144.1 Reasons for denial; 
denied 48916   determination of assigned 
    program 
 
When expulsion occurs Education Code AR 5144.1 Readmission procedures 
 48916 
 



 E 5145.6(j) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 Education or Board Policy/  
When to Other Legal Administrative 
Notify Code Regulation #  Subject 
 
III.  When Special Circumstances Occur  (continued) 
 
At least 10 calendar days  Education Code AR 5144.1 Notice of expulsion 
before expulsion hearing 48918   hearing 
 
When expulsion or Education Code AR 5144.1 Decision to expel; right to 
suspension of expulsion 48918   appeal to county board; 
occurs    obligation to inform new 
    district of status 
 
Before involuntary transfer of Education Code BP 5116.2 Right to request a meeting 
student convicted of certain 48929, 48980  with principal or designee 
crime when victim is enrolled 
at same school 
 
One month before the Education Code BP 6111 When minimum days are 
scheduled minimum day 48980   scheduled after beginning 
    of the school year 
 
When parents/guardians  Education Code AR 5141.4 Guidelines for filing 
request guidelines for filing 48987   complaint of child abuse 
complaint of child abuse    at a school site with local 
at a school site    child protective agencies 
 
When student in danger Education Code AR 5121 Student in danger 
of failing a course 49067  of failing a course 
 
When student transfers Education Code AR 5125 Right to receive copy of 
from another district or 49068  student's record and to 
private school   challenge its content 
 
When parent/guardian's Education Code AR 5125.3 If board sustains allegations, 
challenge of student record is 49070  the correction or destruction 
denied and parent/guardian   of record; if denied, right to 
appeals   submit written objection 
 
When district is considering Education Code BP 5125 Opportunity for input on 
program to gather safety-related 49073.6  proposed program 
information from students' 
social media activity 
 
When district adopts program Education Code AR 5125 Information is being gathered, 
to gather information from 49073.6  access to records, process for 
students' social media activity,   removal or corrections, 
and annually thereafter   destruction of records 
 
 
 



 E 5145.6(k) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 Education or Board Policy/  
When to Other Legal Administrative 
Notify Code Regulation #  Subject 
 
III.  When Special Circumstances Occur  (continued) 
 
Within 24 hours of Education Code AR 5125 Release of student record to a 
release of information 49076  judge or probation officer for 
to a judge or probation   conducting truancy mediation 
officer   program or for presenting 
   evidence at a truancy petition 
 
Before release of Education Code AR 5125 Release of information 
information pursuant to 49077  pursuant to court order 
court order or subpoena   or subpoena 
 
When screening results in Education Code AR 5141.3 Scoliosis screening 
suspicion that student 49452.5 
has scoliosis 
 
When test results in Education Code AR 5141.3 Vision or hearing test results 
discovery of visual or 49456; 17 CCR 
hearing defects 2951 
 
Within 10 days of  Education Code AR 3551 Negative balance in meal 
negative balance in meal 49557.5  account; encouragement to 
account   apply for free or reduced- 
   price meals 
 
Annually to parents/guardians  Education Code AR 6145.2 Information on concussions 
of student athletes before their   49475  and head injuries 
first practice or competition 
 
Within 30 days of foster youth, Education Code BP 6146.1 Exemption from local 
homeless youth, former 51225.1 AR 6173 graduation requirements, effect 
juvenile court school student,   AR 6173.1 on college admission, option 
or child of military family  AR 6173.3 for fifth year of high school 
being transferred between 
high schools 
 
Before any test/survey Education Code AR 5022 Permission for test, survey 
questioning personal beliefs 51513  questioning personal beliefs 
 
At least 14 days before HIV Education Code AR 6142.1 Instruction in HIV prevention 
prevention or sexual health 51938   or sexual health by guest 
instruction, if arrangement   speaker or outside consultant 
made for guest speaker after 
beginning of school year    
 
Prior to administering survey Education Code AR 5022 Notice that the survey will 
regarding health risks and 51938  be administered 
behaviors to students in 7-12 



 E 5145.6(l) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 Education or Board Policy/  
When to Other Legal Administrative 
Notify Code Regulation #  Subject 
 

III.  When Special Circumstances Occur  (continued) 
  
Within 30 calendar days Education Code AR 6174 Results of state test of 
of receipt of results of 52164.1,  English proficiency 
assessment or reassessment 52164.3; 
of English proficiency 5 CCR 11511.5 
 
When migrant education Education Code BP 6175 Parent advisory council 
program is established 54444.2 AR 6175 membership composition 
 
When child participates in Health and Safety AR 5148 Parent/guardian right to enter 
licensed child care and Code 1596.857   facility 
development program 
 
When district receives Health and Safety AR 3513.3 The district's tobacco-free 
Tobacco-Use Prevention Code 104420   schools policy and 
Education Funds     enforcement procedures 
 
When testing by community  Health and Safety AR 3514 Elevated lead level at school 
water system finds presence  Code 116277 
of lead exceeding specified 
level 
 
When sharing student Health and Safety AR 5125 Types of information to be 
immunization information Code 120440   shared, name and address of 
with an immunization    agency, acceptable use of the 
system    information, right to examine, 
    right to refuse to share 
 
At least 14 days prior to Penal Code 626.81 AR 1240 Dates and times permission 
sex offender coming on  BP 1250 granted; obtaining information 
campus as volunteer    from law enforcement 
 
When hearing is requested by Penal Code 627.5 AR 3515.2 Notice of hearing 
person asked to leave   
school premises 
 
When responding to complaint 5 CCR 4631 AR 1312.3 Findings, disposition of 
re: discrimination, special    complaint, any corrective 
education, or noncompliance    actions, appeal rights and 
with law    procedures 
 
When child participates in 5 CCR 18066 AR 5148 Policies re: excused and 
licensed child care and     unexcused absences 
development program 
 
Within 30 days of application 5 CCR 18094, AR 5148 Approval or denial of 
for subsidized child care or 18118 AR 5148.3 services 
preschool services 



 E 5145.6(m) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 Education or Board Policy/  
When to Other Legal Administrative 
Notify Code Regulation #  Subject 
 
III.  When Special Circumstances Occur  (continued) 
 
Upon recertification or update 5 CCR 18095, AR 5148 Any change in service, such 
of application for child care 18119 AR 5148.3 as in fees, amount of service, 
or preschool services    termination of service 
 
Upon child's enrollment in 5 CCR 18114 AR 5148 Policy on fee collection 
child care program 
 
When payment of child care 5 CCR 18114 AR 5148 Notice of delinquent fees 
fees is seven days late 
 
When district substantively 20 USC 1232h AR 5022 Notice of any substantive 
changes policy on student    change in policy or regulation 
privacy rights 
 
For districts receiving Title I 20 USC 6312 AR 4112.2 Timely notice to parent/ 
funds, when child has been    guardian of child's assignment 
assigned or taught for four or 
more consecutive weeks by a 
teacher who does not meet 
state certification requirements 
for the grade level/subject taught 
 
For districts receiving Title I 20 USC 6312 AR 6174 Reasons for placement, level 
funds, not later than 30 days    of proficiency, instructional 
after beginning of school year,    methods, how program meets 
to parents/guardians of English    child's strengths and teaches 
learners   English, exit requirements, 
   right to choose other program 
 
For schools receiving Title I 20 USC 6318 AR 6020 Notice of policy 
funds, upon development of  
parent involvement policy 
 
When household is selected 42 USC 1758; AR 3553 Need to submit verification 
for verification of eligibility 7 CFR 245.6a  information; any subsequent 
for free or reduced-price meals   change in benefits; appeals 
 
When student is homeless or 42 USC 11432; AR 6173 Educational and related 
unaccompanied minor Education Code  opportunities; transportation 
 48852.5  services; placement decision 
   and right to appeal 
 
When student transfers 34 CFR 99.34 AR 5125 Right to review records 
out of state and records are 
disclosed without consent 
pursuant to 34 CFR 99.30 



 E 5145.6(n) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 Education or Board Policy/  
When to Other Legal Administrative 
Notify Code Regulation #  Subject 
 
III.  When Special Circumstances Occur  (continued) 
 
When district receives  USDA FNS BP 3555 Rights and responsibilities, 
federal funding assistance Instruction 113-1  nondiscrimination policy, 
for nutrition program   complaint procedures 
 
IV.  Special Education Notices 
 
Prior to conducting initial Education Code BP 6159.1 Proposed evaluation plan, 
evaluation 56301, 56321, AR 6159.1 related parental rights, 
 56321.5, 56321.6,  AR 6164.4 prior written notice, 
 56329; 20 USC  procedural safeguards 
 1415(d); 34 CFR 
 300.502, 300.503 
 
Before functional behavioral Education Code AR 6159.4 Notification and consent 
assessment begins 56321 
 
24 hours before IEP Education Code AR 6159 Intention to audio-record 
when district intending to  56341.1  IEP meeting 
record 
 
Early enough to ensure Education Code AR 6159 Time, purpose, location, who 
opportunity for parent/ 56341.5;  will attend, participation of 
guardian to attend IEP meeting 34 CFR 300.322  others with special knowledge, 
   transition statements if 
   appropriate 
 
When parent/guardian orally Education Code AR 6159 Need for written request 
requests review of IEP 56343.5 
 
Within one school day of Education Code AR 6159.4 Emergency intervention 
emergency intervention or 56521.1 
serious property damage 
 
Whenever there is a proposal 20 USC 1415(c); AR 6159 Prior written notice 
or refusal to initiate or change 34 CFR 300.300,  AR 6159.1 
the identification, evaluation, 300.503 
placement, or FAPE, including 
when parent/guardian revokes 
consent for services 
 
Upon filing of state complaint 20 USC 1415(d); AR 6159.1 Procedural safeguards 
 34 CFR 300.504  notice 
 
When disciplinary measures 20 USC 1415(k); AR 5144.2 Decision and procedural 
are taken or change in 34 CFR 300.530  safeguards notice 
placement 



 E 5145.6(o) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 Education or Board Policy/  
When to Other Legal Administrative 
Notify Code Regulation #  Subject 
 
IV. Special Education Notices  (continued) 
 
Upon requesting a 20 USC 1415(k); AR 6159.1 Student's name, address, 
due process hearing 34 CFR 300.508  school, description of problem, 
   proposed resolution 
 
Eligibility for services 34 CFR 104.32, AR 6164.6 District responsibilities, district 
under Section 504 104.36  actions, procedural safeguards 
 
V.  Classroom Notices 
 
In each classroom in each Education Code AR 1312.4 Complaints re: sufficiency of 
school 35186 E 1312.4 instructional materials, teacher 
   vacancy or misassignment, 
 maintenance of facilities 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Exhibit CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
version: March 2018 



Instruction BP 6162.5(a) 
 
STUDENT ASSESSMENT 
 
 
The Governing Board recognizes that student assessments are an important instructional and 
accountability tool.  To obtain the most accurate evaluation of student performance, the 
district shall use a variety of measures, including district, state, and/or national assessments. 
 
(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 
 
Assessment data shall be used to help determine individual students' progress, mastery of 
academic standards, appropriate placement in district programs, and/or eligibility for 
graduation. In addition, summary data on student assessment results shall be used by the 
district to identify and review student achievement goals in the district's local control and 
accountability plan, evaluate district educational programs in order to identify needed 
improvements, and, as appropriate, evaluate staff performance. 
 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
(cf. 2140 - Evaluation of the Superintendent) 
(cf. 4115 - Evaluation/Supervision) 
(cf. 4315 - Evaluation/Supervision) 
(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 
(cf. 5123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention) 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 
(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 
(cf. 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program) 
 
In selecting or developing any district assessment, the Superintendent or designee shall 
examine evidence of its reliability, its validity for the intended purpose and for various 
student populations, and the extent to which it aligns with the material that is being taught. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that assessments are administered in accordance 
with law and test publisher's directions, and that test administration procedures are fair and 
equitable for all students. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 6162.54 - Test Integrity/Test Preparation) 
 
As appropriate, assessment results shall be disaggregated by student subgroup, classroom, 
grade level, and/or school site to allow for critical analysis of student needs. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide professional development as needed to assist 
administrators and teachers in interpreting and using assessment data to improve student 
performance and the instructional program. 
 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
 
 
 



 BP 6162.5(b) 
 
 
STUDENT ASSESSMENT  (continued) 
 
 
When districtwide and school-level results of student assessments are published by the state, 
the Superintendent or designee may provide supplementary information to assist 
parents/guardians and the community in understanding test results. 
 
(cf. 0510 - School Accountability Report Card) 
 
Interim and Formative Assessments 
 
State interim and formative assessments may be used in combination with other sources of 
information to gain timely feedback about student progress in an effort to continually adjust 
instruction to improve learning. Results from interim and formative assessments shall not be 
used for any high-stakes purpose, including, but not limited to, teacher or other school staff 
evaluation, accountability, student grade promotion or retention, graduation, course or class 
placement, identification for gifted or talented education, reclassification of English learners, 
or identification as an individual with exceptional needs.  (Education Code 60642.6, 60642.7) 
 
(cf. 5123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention) 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 
(cf. 6152 - Class Assignment) 
(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education) 
(cf. 6172 - Gifted and Talented Student Program) 
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that teachers who administer interim and 
formative assessments have access to all functions and information designed for teacher use 
related to such assessments and student performance on the assessments.  (Education Code 
60642.6) 
 
Individual Record of Accomplishment 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that each student, by the end of grade 12, has an 
individual record of accomplishment that includes the following:  (Education Code 60607) 
 
1. The results of the state achievement tests required and administered as part of the 

California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress, or any predecessor 
assessments, pursuant to Education Code 60640-60649 

 
2. The results of any end-of-course examinations taken 
 
3. The results of any vocational education certification examinations taken 
 
(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 
 
 



 BP 6162.5(c) 
 
 
STUDENT ASSESSMENT  (continued) 
 
 
No individual record of accomplishment shall be released to any person, other than the 
student's parent/guardian or a teacher, counselor, or administrator directly involved with the 
student, without the written consent of the student's parent/guardian, or the student if he/she 
is an adult or emancipated minor.  The student or his/her parent/guardian may authorize the 
release of the record of accomplishment to a postsecondary educational institution for the 
purposes of credit, placement, or admission.  (Education Code 60607) 
 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
313  Assessment of English language development 
10600-10610  California Education Information System 
44660-44665  Evaluation and assessment of performance of certificated employees (Stull Act) 
49558  Free and reduced-price meals; use of individual applications and records 
51041  Evaluation of educational program 
51450-51455  Golden State Seal Merit Diploma 
52052  Accountability; numerically significant student subgroups 
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 
60600-60649  Assessment of academic achievement, especially: 
60640-60649  California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress 
60800  Physical fitness testing 
60810-60812  Assessment of English language development 
60900  California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
850-864  California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
9622  National Assessment of Educational Progress 

 
Management Resources: 

WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education, Testing and Accountability: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta 
Smarter Balanced Assessment Consortium:  http://www.smarterbalanced.org 
U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: March 2018 



Instruction BP 6171(a) 
 
TITLE I PROGRAMS 
 
 
The Governing Board desires to provide a high-quality education that enables all students to 
meet challenging state academic standards. In schools with a large number or percentage of 
economically disadvantaged families, the district shall use Title I funds to provide services 
that strengthen the academic program and provide support to students at risk of failing to 
achieve academic standards. 
 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 
(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 
(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 
 
Title I funds shall be used to supplement, not supplant, funds available from state and local 
sources for the education of students participating in Title I programs.  (20 USC 6314, 6321) 
 
Descriptions of how the district will address the required components of the Title I local 
educational agency plan, as specified in 20 USC 6312, shall be included within the district's 
control and accountability plan (LCAP), the LCAP Federal Addendum, or another document. 
School-level strategies shall be aligned with the district's plan and be tailored to the specific 
needs of the students at the school. 
 
(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 
(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans) 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
 
In addition, the district and each school receiving Title I funds shall develop a written 
parent/guardian and family engagement policy in accordance with 20 USC 6318. 
 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
 
Comparability of Services 
 
In schools receiving Title I funds, state and local funds shall be used to provide services that, 
taken as a whole, are at least comparable to services in schools that are not receiving Title I 
funds or, if all district schools are receiving Title I funds, that are substantially comparable in 
each school. Comparability may be determined on a school-by-school basis or by grade span.  
(20 USC 6321) 
 
To demonstrate comparability of services among district schools, the district shall: 
 
1. Adopt and implement a districtwide salary schedule 
 
2. Ensure equivalence in teachers, administrators, and other staff, as measured by either 

or both of the following: 
 
 
 



 BP 6171(b) 
 
 
TITLE I PROGRAMS  (continued) 
 

 
a. The ratio of students to instructional staff at each Title I school within a grade 

span, which shall not exceed 110 percent of the average ratio for all non-Title 
I district schools within that grade span 

 
b. Salary expenditures for instructional staff at each Title I school, which shall 

be no less than 90 percent of the average salary expenditure across non-Title I 
district schools. 

 
3. Ensure equivalence in the provision of curriculum materials and instructional 

supplies, by determining whether the per-student expenditure of state and local funds 
for curriculum materials and instructional supplies in Title I schools is between 90 
and 110 percent of the districtwide average 

 
4. Determine whether the amount of state and local funds allocated per student for each 

grade span is between 90 and 110 percent of the per student average for each grade 
span in non-Title I schools 

 
(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials) 
 
In determining comparability, the district shall not include staff salary differentials for years 
of employment. The district also may exclude unpredictable changes in student enrollment or 
personnel assignments that occur after the beginning of the school year, state and local funds 
expended for language instruction educational programs, state and local funds expended for 
the excess costs of providing services to students with disabilities, and supplemental state or 
local funds expended in any school attendance area or school for programs that specifically 
meet the intent and purposes of Title I.  (20 USC 6321) 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall annually assess comparability in accordance with the 
above criteria and maintain records documenting the district's compliance.  If any instances 
of noncomparability are identified, the Superintendent or designee shall promptly implement 
adjustments as needed to ensure comparability. 
 
Participation of Private School Students 
 
The district shall provide or contract to provide special educational services, instructional 
services (including evaluations to determine the progress being made in meeting students' 
academic needs), counseling, mentoring, one-on-one tutoring, or other Title I benefits to 
eligible private school students residing in a participating school attendance area. Such 
services and benefits shall be provided on an equitable basis in comparison to services and 
other benefits for public school students.  (20 USC 6320, 7881) 
 
 
 



 BP 6171(c) 
 
 
TITLE I PROGRAMS  (continued) 
 
 
Program Evaluation 
 
The Board shall regularly monitor the progress of economically disadvantaged and low-
achieving students in Title I schools. During the annual evaluation of the district's progress 
toward achieving each goal identified in the LCAP or other planning document addressing 20 
USC 6312, the Board shall review disaggregated data on academic achievement, school 
attendance, and other outcomes for such students and shall ensure that strategies are revised 
as necessary to support continuous improvement. 
 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
(cf. 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
11503  Parent involvement programs in Title I schools 
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 
54420-54425  State Compensatory Education 
64001  Single plan for student achievement, consolidated application programs 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
6301  Program purpose 
6311-6322 Improving basic programs for disadvantaged students, including: 
6312  Local educational agency plan 
6313  Eligibility of schools and school attendance areas; funding allocation 
6314  Title I schoolwide programs 
6315  Targeted assistance schools 
6318  Parent and family engagement 
6320  Participation of private school students 
6321  Comparability of services 
6333-6335 Grants to local educational agencies 
6391-6399  Education for migrant students 
7881  Participation of private school students 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
200.1-200.73 Improving basic programs for disadvantaged students 

 
 
 
Management Resources:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 BP 6171(d) 
 
 
TITLE I PROGRAMS  (continued) 
 
 
 
Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Frequently Asked Questions About Title I Schoolwide Programs 
Local Control and Accountability Plan Federal Addendum Template 
Meeting Title I, Part A Comparability Requirements, October 2017 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Fiscal Changes and Equitable Services Requirements Under the Elementary and Secondary Education 
Act of 1965 (ESEA), as Amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act, Non-Regulatory Guidance, 
November 21, 2016 
Title I Fiscal Issues, Non-Regulatory Guidance, February 2008 
Designing Schoolwide Programs, Non-Regulatory Guidance, March 22, 2006 
Title I Services to Eligible Private School Students, October 17, 2003 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education: https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw 
U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: March 2018 



Instruction AR 6171(a) 
 
TITLE I PROGRAMS 
 
 
Schoolwide Programs 
 
A school may operate a Title I schoolwide program in order to upgrade the entire educational 
program of the school when at least 40 percent of the students in the school attendance area, 
or at least 40 percent of the students enrolled in the school, are from low-income families.  
(20 USC 6314; 34 CFR 200.25) 
 
A school that does not meet these criteria may operate a Title I schoolwide program if it 
receives a waiver from the California Department of Education.  (20 USC 6314) 
 
Any school operating a schoolwide program shall develop a comprehensive plan with the 
involvement of parents/guardians, other members of the community to be served, and 
individuals who will carry out the plan, including teachers, principals, other school leaders, 
paraprofessionals present in the school, administrators (including administrators of other 
federal education programs), the district, tribes and tribal organizations present in the 
community, and, if appropriate, specialized instructional support personnel, technical 
assistance providers, school staff, secondary school students as applicable, and other 
individuals determined by the school.  (20 USC 6314) 
 
(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans) 
 
The schoolwide program plan shall be based on a comprehensive needs assessment of the 
entire school and shall be incorporated into a single plan for student achievement which also 
incorporates the plans required for other categorical programs included in the state's 
consolidated application.  (Education Code 64001; 20 USC 6314) 
 
(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 
 
The plan shall describe the strategies that the school will implement to address school needs, 
including a description of how such strategies will:  (20 USC 6314) 
 
1. Provide opportunities for all students, including economically disadvantaged students, 

ethnic subgroups, students with disabilities, and English learners, to meet state 
academic standards 

 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 
 
2. Use methods and instructional strategies that strengthen the school's academic 

program, increase the amount and quality of learning time, and help provide an 
enriched and accelerated curriculum, which may include programs, activities, and 
courses necessary to provide a well-rounded education 

 
(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 
(cf. 6111 - School Calendar) 
(cf. 6112 - School Day) 



 AR 6171(b) 
 
 
TITLE I PROGRAMS  (continued) 
 
 
(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation) 
(cf. 6177 - Summer Learning Programs) 
 
3. Address the needs of all students in the school, but particularly the needs of those at 

risk of not meeting state academic standards, through activities which may include 
the following: 
 
a. Counseling, school-based mental health programs, specialized instructional 

support services, mentoring services, and other strategies to improve students' 
skills outside the academic subject areas 

 
(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 
(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams) 
 

b. Preparation for and awareness of opportunities for postsecondary education 
and the workforce, which may include career and technical education 
programs and broadening secondary school students' access to coursework to 
earn postsecondary credit while still in high school 

 
(cf. 6141.4 - International Baccalaureate Program) 
(cf. 6141.5 - Advanced Placement) 
(cf. 6172.1 - Concurrent Enrollment in College Classes) 
(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 
 

c. Implementation of a schoolwide tiered model to prevent and address problem 
behavior, and early intervention services, coordinated with similar activities 
and services carried out under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 

 
d. Professional development and other activities for teachers, paraprofessionals, 

and other school personnel to improve instruction and use of data from 
academic assessments and to recruit and retain effective teachers, particularly 
in high-need subjects 

 
(cf. 4111/4211/4311 - Recruitment and Selection) 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4222 - Teacher Aides/Paraprofessionals) 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
 

e. Strategies for assisting preschool children in the transition from early 
childhood education programs to local elementary school programs 

 
(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education) 
 
 



 AR 6171(c) 
 
 
TITLE I PROGRAMS  (continued) 
 
 
The plan shall also include a description of any applicable federal, state, and local programs 
that will be consolidated in the schoolwide program.  (20 USC 6314; 34 CFR 200.27) 
 
The plan and its implementation shall be regularly monitored and revised as necessary based 
on student needs to ensure that all students are provided opportunities to meet state academic 
standards.  (20 USC 6314) 
 
Targeted Assistance Programs 
 
Any school that receives Title I funds but does not operate a schoolwide program shall use 
Title I funds to provide services to eligible students who are failing, or most at risk of failing, 
to meet state academic standards. Students shall be identified on the basis of multiple, 
educationally related, objective criteria, except that students in preschool through grade 2 
shall be selected solely on the basis of criteria, including objective criteria, established by the 
district and supplemented by the school.  (20 USC 6315) 
 
Eligible students include those who are economically disadvantaged; students with 
disabilities; migrant students, including those who participated in a migrant education 
program pursuant to 20 USC 6391-6399 in the preceding two years; English learners; 
students who participated in a Head Start or state preschool program in the preceding two 
years; students in a local institution for neglected or delinquent children and youth or 
attending a community day program for such students; and homeless students.  (20 USC 
6315) 
 
Any targeted assistance program shall:  (20 USC 6315) 
 
1. Use program resources to help participating students meet state academic standards, 

which may include programs, activities, and academic courses necessary to provide a 
well-rounded education 

 
2. Use methods and instructional strategies that strengthen the academic program, 

through activities which may include: 
 
a. Expanded learning time, before- and after-school programs, and summer 

programs and opportunities 
 
b. A schoolwide tiered model to prevent and address behavior problems, and 

early intervention services, coordinated with similar activities and services 
carried out under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 

 
3. Coordinate with and support the regular education program, which may include 

services to assist preschool students in the transition to elementary school programs 
 



 AR 6171(d) 
 
 
TITLE I PROGRAMS  (continued) 
 
 
4. Provide professional development to teachers, principals, other school leaders, 

paraprofessionals, and, if appropriate, specialized instructional support personnel and 
other school personnel who work with eligible students in Title I programs or in the 
regular education program. The professional development shall be provided using 
funds from Title I and, to the extent practicable, other sources. 

 
5. Implement strategies to increase the involvement of parents/guardians of participating 

students 
 
6. If appropriate and applicable, coordinate and integrate federal, state, and local 

services and programs, such as programs supported by the Elementary and Secondary 
Education Act, violence prevention programs, nutrition programs, housing programs, 
Head Start programs, adult education programs, career technical education programs, 
and comprehensive or targeted support and improvement activities under 20 USC 
6311 

 
7. Provide assurances to the Superintendent or designee that the program will: 

 
a. Help provide an accelerated, high-quality curriculum 
 
b. Minimize the removal of students from the regular classroom during regular 

school hours for instruction supported by Title I funds 
 
c. On an ongoing basis, review the progress of participating students and revise 

the targeted assistance program, if necessary, to provide additional assistance 
to enable such students to meet state academic standards 

 
Participation of Private School Students 
 
Teachers and families of participating private school students shall have an opportunity to 
participate, on an equitable basis, in parent/guardian and family engagement activities and 
professional development pursuant to 20 USC 6318.  (20 USC 6320, 7881) 
 
Each year the Superintendent or designee shall contact officials of private schools with 
students who reside within district boundaries, regardless of whether the private school they 
attend is located within the district or whether or not those officials have previously indicated 
any interest in program participation, and invite them to a meeting to discuss the intent of 
Title I and the roles of public and private school officials. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall consult with appropriate private school officials, in a 
meaningful and timely manner, during the design and development of the district's Title I  
 
 



 AR 6171(e) 
 
 
TITLE I PROGRAMS  (continued) 
 
 
programs, with the goal of reaching agreement on how to provide equitable and effective 
programs for eligible private school students. Such consultation shall occur before the district 
makes any decision that affects the opportunities of eligible private school students to 
participate in Title I programs and shall include consultation on issues such as the following:  
(20 USC 6320, 7881; 34 CFR 200.56) 
 
1. How the needs of private school students will be identified 
 
2. What services will be offered 
 
3. How, where, and by whom the services will be provided 
 
4. How the services will be academically assessed and how assessment results will be 

used to improve those services 
 
5. The size and scope of the equitable services to be provided to eligible private school 

students, the proportion of funds to be allocated for such services, and how that 
proportion of funds is determined 

 
6. The method or sources of data that are used to determine the number of students from 

low-income families in participating school attendance areas who attend private 
schools 

 
7. How and when the district will make decisions about the delivery of services to such 

students, including a thorough consideration and analysis of the views of private 
school officials on the provision of services through a third-party provider 

 
8. How, if the district disagrees with the views of private school officials on the 

provision of services through a third-party provider, the district will provide to private 
school officials a written analysis of the reasons that the district has chosen not to use 
a contractor 

 
9. Whether the district will provide services directly or through a separate government 

agency, consortium, entity, or third-party contractor 
 
10. Whether to provide services to eligible private school students by pooling funds or on 

a school-by-school basis 
 
11. When services will be provided, including the approximate time of day 
 
 
 
 



 AR 6171(f) 
 
 
TITLE I PROGRAMS  (continued) 
 
 
12. Whether to consolidate and use funds provided under Title I with other funds 

available for services to private school students 
 
If the district disagrees with the views of private school officials with respect to any of the 
above issues, the district shall provide the officials, in writing, the reasons that the district 
disagrees.  (20 USC 6320) 
 
Meetings between district and private school officials shall continue throughout 
implementation and assessment of services.  (20 USC 6320) 
 
The district shall maintain, and shall provide to the CDE, a written affirmation signed by 
officials of each participating private school that consultation has occurred. The affirmation 
shall provide the option for private school officials to indicate their belief that timely and 
meaningful consultation has not occurred or that the program design is not equitable with 
respect to private school students. If private school officials do not provide the affirmation 
within a reasonable period of time, the district shall send documentation to the CDE 
demonstrating that the consultation has, or attempts at such consultation have, taken place.  
(20 USC 6320) 
 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall also maintain copies of program descriptions, notices, 
funding allocations, and other communications and records pertaining to the provision of 
services to private school students. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: March 2018 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-PUBLIC HEARING- 

 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

1000 YULUPA AVE. 

SANTA ROSA, CA  95405 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

TUESDAY, May 8, 2018 

6:02 P.M. 

RINCON VALLEY UNION DISTRICT OFFICE 

 
Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 

 

 

The Board of Trustees shall encourage participation by parents, teachers, members of the 

community interested in the affairs of the school district, and bargaining unit leaders, to 

discuss the LCAP at the public hearing on May 8, 2018. 

 

The LCAP will be available in the lobby of the Rincon Valley Union School District office, 

located at 1000 Yulupa Ave., Santa Rosa, CA  95405, for public inspection between the hours 

of 8 a.m. and 5 p.m. from May 1  to May 8, 2018.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 147

LCAP Year (select from 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20) 
 

            2018-19    

 
 
Local Control Accountability Plan and Annual Update (LCAP) Template 

Local Control 
Accountability Plan 
and Annual Update 
(LCAP) Template 

Addendum: General instructions & regulatory requirements.  

Appendix A: Priorities 5 and 6 Rate Calculations 

Appendix B: Guiding Questions: Use as prompts (not limits) 

LCFF Evaluation Rubrics [Note: this text will be hyperlinked to the 
LCFF Evaluation Rubric web page when it becomes available.]: 
Essential data to support completion of this LCAP. Please analyze the 
LEA’s full data set; specific links to the rubrics are also provided within 
the template. 
 

 
LEA Name 

Rincon Valley Union School 
District            

Contact Name and Title 

Tony Roehrick, Ed.D.            
Superintendent 

Email and Phone 

troehrick@rvusd.org            
(707) 542-7375 

 
 

2017-20 Plan Summary 
The Story 
Describe the students and community and how the LEA serves them. 

Rincon Valley Union School District is primarily a TK through 6th grade elementary district.  The 
district also operates a charter 7-8 middle school program housed on two campuses.  The district is 
located in the eastern portion of Santa Rosa.  The district community consists of mostly residential 
housing, with the typical commercial properties to support residential living.  The significant 
business, shopping, and industrial portions of Santa Rosa are located outside of the district's 
boundaries.  Santa Rosa is the county seat for Sonoma County and is located in the North Bay 
Area, approximately 54 miles north of San Francisco.  Sonoma County is well know for its wine and 
tourism industries. 
 
Enrollment for district in 2016-17 was 3,552 students.  Of these, 57% self-identified as White, not 
Hispanic, 28% self-identified as Hispanic, 5% self-identified as Asian, not Hispanic, and 3% self-
identified as African American, not Hispanic.  The remaining 7% of students self-identified as other 
ethnicities.  In terms of language demographics, 78% of students are English only, 12% are English 
learners, 6% are reclassified English learners, and 3% are initial reclassified English learners.  33% 
of the district's students are eligible for the free and reduced lunch program. 
 
The district operates ten school programs located on eight campuses.  Seven of the programs are 
organized as district operated charter schools.  The schools include Austin Creek (K-6), Binkley 
Charter (TK-6), Madrone (TK-6), Sequoia (K-6), Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter (TK-6, operated on 
two campuses), Village Charter (K-6), Whited Charter (K-6), Rincon Valley Charter School-Matanzas 
(7-8), and Rincon Valley Charter School-Sequoia (7-8).  The district maintains TK-3 class sizes 
under 24 and staffs grade 4-8 class size at 30:1.  The district does not configure combination 
classes, resulting in all general education classes of a single grade level.  Each school is provided 
with a site administrator, an office manager, office support staff (TK-6 schools), bilingual family 
liaison, a support coordinator to manage interventions programs, a dedicated counselor and a 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018

https://www.caschooldashboard.org/#/Details/49708960000000/3/EquityReport


Page 2 of 147

counselor intern.  Special Education support includes RSP teachers and support staff, Special Day 
Classes (K-6), school psychologists, behaviorists, speech and language teachers, and other 
ancillary support staff as designated by student IEPs.  Schools are also provided English learner 
instructional support and interventions specialists.  The district employs a number of Consulting 
Teachers to provide support for teachers in ELA, math, technology, GATE, and English learner 
services. 
 
         

 
 

LCAP Highlights 
Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’s LCAP. 

The 2017-18 RVUSD LCAP builds upon our prior year goals and initiatives.  We have consolidated 
two goals (Basic Supports with Full Range of Courses), though have retained the essence of our 
original six that address the State's eight priority areas.  In doing so, we have made adjustments to 
our annual measurable outcomes to incorporate the new California School Dashboard 
accountability metrics.  RVUSD has take the approach to weave parent involvement throughout our 
goals.  We have defined parent involvement to comprise of three components: 
1. Parents as leaders (e.g., site council, ELAC/DELAC, Parent Advisory) 
2. Parents as partners (e.g., attending parent/teacher conferences, parent organizations) 
3. Parents as learners (e.g., parent education) 
 
Goal #1 addresses the foundational aspects of effective schools (Basic Supports) to include: 
1. Highly qualified teachers 
2. Standards aligned instructional materials 
3. Facilities in good repair 
4. Access to the full range of core courses 
5. Deep involvement of parents as leaders 
 
Items 1 - 3 above are required by the State to address.  Item #4 is our former Goal #2.  Access to 
the full range of core courses has been folded in this goal because we consider this to as 
foundational as the other items included in Goal #1.  RVUSD has added parent leadership as an 
additional foundational pillar because we know that deep involvement by parents in leadership roles 
is a key indicator of a healthy and vibrant learning community.  In the prior LCAP year, our outcome 
was to ensure each school had a functioning parent organization, a site council, and for those 
schools with 50 or more English learners, an English Learner Advisory Council (ELAC).  This LCAP 
year requires schools to have these leadership groups fully constituted as measured by each 
groups' bylaws. 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 3 of 147

Goal #3 addresses safe and positive school environments.  This has been an area of emphasis for 
the District.  In 2015-16, we committed extensive fiscal resources to bring full-time counselors to 
our schools.  We also created an office clerk position to assist us better monitor and address 
attendance issues.  Other efforts include expanding school-wide programs that intentionally provide 
students with the tools they need to be thoughtful and respectful members of our society.  We 
believe we have made tremendous progress in this area.  We are now moving beyond the 
implementation phase of our efforts to fine-tuning how we use our new resources to ensure 
students continue to experience safe and nurturing learning environments. 
 
Goal #4 addresses our expectations concerning language arts achievement.  Our metrics include 
State assessment results on the CAASPP, as well as local benchmark assessments.  Though we 
are attentive to the progress of all of our students, we have specifically identified being at grade 
level at the end of 3rd grade as our overarching goal.  We have done this because of the extensive 
research clearly linking end of 3rd grade status in reading as an indicator of future success as 
learners. 
 
Goal #5 addresses our expectations concerning mathematics achievement.  Our metrics include 
State assessment results on the CAASPP, as well as local benchmark assessments.  Though we 
are attentive to the progress of all of our students, we have specifically identified being at grade 
level at the end of 6th grade as our overarching goal.  We know that if students are not at grade 
level by the end of 8th grade, they will be unable to complete all of the required math coursework in 
high school to be eligible for a four year college.  However, since our middle school population 
represents only a small percentage of our elementary students (most attend the comprehensive 
middle schools in the secondary district) we are using 6th grade as our key grade. 
 
Goal #6 addresses the progress of our English learners in attaining English proficiency.  In the prior 
LCAP year, our metrics were tied to the former State English learner accountability model.  We 
have adjusted our metrics to align with the California Dashboard.  However, with the change in the 
State assessment that measures English learner progress in attaining English, the California 
School Dashboard will be in a holding pattern during much of the three years this LCAP represents. 
         
 

 

Review of Performance 
Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the 
LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, stakeholder input, or other 
information, what progress is the LEA most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build upon that 
success? This may include identifying any specific examples of how past increases or improvements in 
services for low-income students, English learners, and foster youth have led to improved performance for 
these students. 
 
Greatest Progress 
The LCFF Rubrics that are the underpinning of the California School Dashboard provide status and 
change information based on the spring 2016 and 2017 results.  As a district, we are in the Green 
zone for English language arts (ELA) for all students with a Status of High (33.8 pts. above Level 3) 
and a Change of Maintained (-0.24 pts.).  For ELA, our socio-economically disadvantaged students 
Maintained.  In Mathematics, we are in the Green zone for all students with a Status of High (18.4 
pts. above level 3) and a Change of Increased (+ 3.5 pts.).  In Mathematics, all of our subgroups 
either Maintained or Increased over the following year. 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 4 of 147

Our California School Dashboard results for English learner progress was also promising.  This 
measure the percent of students who have made increased one level on the CELDT from the prior 
year.  Our Status was High (84.3%) and our Change was Increased Significantly (19.2%).  This 
placed us in the Blue zone on the LCFF Rubric.  Other measures attest to our solid gains in English 
learner progress.  Our reclassification rate, based on the October 2017 census, shows 14.8% of 
English learners were reclassified.  Our LCAP goal for 2017-18 was 15%. 
 
 

 
Referring to the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, identify any state indicator or local performance indicator for which 
overall performance was in the “Red” or “Orange” performance category or where the LEA received a “Not 
Met” or “Not Met for Two or More Years” rating. Additionally, identify any areas that the LEA has determined 
need significant improvement based on review of local performance indicators or other local indicators. What 
steps is the LEA planning to take to address these areas with the greatest need for improvement?  
 
Greatest Needs 
For English Language Arts, there are four subgroups in the Orange zone (English learners, socio-
economically disadvantaged, students with disabilities, and Hispanic students).  We have adopted a 
new ELA program that includes a comprehensive ELD component.  This program includes specific 
materials and strategies for differentiation of curriculum for varying groups of students.  We have 
provided extensive professional development for our teachers and will provide additional 
professional development this summer. 
 
In Mathematics, English learners are in the Orange zone.  We identified improvement in 
Mathematics as a key initiative for the LCAP years this plan addresses.  Additional Professional 
development designed to ensure greater consistency in instruction occurs.  We have also provided 
extensive professional development for our principals in both the components of our math program 
and also in strategies to collect data on program implementation and coaching for teachers.  Our 
overall focus on increasing principal capacity as instructional leaders is a key aspect of our efforts. 
 
For Suspension /Rate, here are two subgroups in the Orange zone (socio-economically 
disadvantaged and two or more races).  The increases in suspensions from year to year is due to an 
internal recording protocol of suspensions.  Suspensions were over-reported last year.  We expect 
this area to rectify itself in future years. 
 
 
 

 
Referring to the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, identify any state indicator for which performance for any student 
group was two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. What steps is the LEA 
planning to take to address these performance gaps? 
 
Performance Gaps 
For English Language Arts, there are four subgroups in the Orange zone (English learners, socio-
economically disadvantaged, students with disabilities, and Hispanic students) that are two levels 
below the all students result of being in the blue zone.  We have adopted a new ELA program that 
includes a comprehensive ELD component.  This program includes specific materials and strategies 
for differentiation of curriculum for varying groups of students.  We have provided extensive 
professional development for our teachers and will provide additional professional development this 
summer. 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 5 of 147

In Mathematics, English learners (Orange zone) are the only subgroup to be two levels below the all 
students in the Green zone.  We identified improvement in Mathematics as a key initiative for the 
LCAP years this plan addresses.  Additional Professional development designed to ensure greater 
consistency in instruction occurs.  We have also provided extensive professional development for 
our principals in both the components of our math program and also in strategies to collect data on 
program implementation and coaching for teachers.  Our overall focus on increasing principal 
capacity as instructional leaders is a key aspect of our efforts. 
 
 

 
If not previously addressed, identify the two to three most significant ways that the LEA will increase or improve 
services for low-income students, English learners, and foster youth. 
 
Increased or Improved services 
The key improved service for English learners is the provision of a comprehensive and daily 
designated ELD program that will be delivered to English leaners based on their current status on 
the continuum of acquiring English.  Extensive professional development for all teachers occurred 
last the summer.   Site and district administrators have also received this training and are therefore, 
better equipped to guide the implementation of our new new ELA/ELD curriculum.  We also have 
two full-time consulting teachers that will assist teachers.  Our administrative team will continually 
review their observations of practice so we understand the success of our implementation.  While 
none of this improved service is funded through supplemental funding, it does demonstrate the 
District's commitment to closing our achievement gap and accelerating reclassification for our 
English learners.   
 

 

Budget Summary 
Complete the table below. LEAs may include additional information or more detail, including graphics. 
 
DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
Total General Fund Budget Expenditures For LCAP Year $30,375,152.00 

 

Total Funds Budgeted for Planned Actions/Services to 
Meet The Goals in the LCAP for LCAP Year 

$8,771,500.00 

 
The LCAP is intended to be a comprehensive planning tool but may not describe all General Fund Budget 
Expenditures. Briefly describe any of the General Fund Budget Expenditures specified above for the LCAP 
year not included in the LCAP. 

All of the district's expenditures that support our LCAP goals are embedded with each goal.  
Additional General Fund expenditures support our core mission as an educational organization.  
these include, but are not limited to clerical, custodial, maintenance, food service, and other related 
administrative costs.         
 
 
DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
Total Projected LCFF Revenues for LCAP Year $11,752,122.00 

 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 6 of 147

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2017-18 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 1 
Every student has access to highly qualified teachers, standards aligned instructional materials, and facilities in good repair (Basic 
Supports).          

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
1.  Every teacher providing core instruction is classified as highly qualified 
as defined by the State of California's Highly Qualified teacher criteria and 
measured by an audit of all teacher credentials. 
2.  Every student is provided core instructional materials that align to the 
California State adopted standards as supported by the State textbook 
adoption criteria as verified by the Instructional Materials Order Form 
submitted by each teacher. 
3.  Every school and learning facility operated by the District meets the 
State's criteria of good repair as verified by annual FIT site inspections. 
4.  Each school has full parent leadership participation on parent groups, 
site councils, and ELACS for schools with 50 or more English learners, as 
defined by each groups bylaws. 
        

 1. Every student received all core instruction from highly qualified teachers as 
defined by the State of California's Highly Qualified teacher criteria and 
measured by 
an audit of all teacher credentials. 
2. Every student was provided standards aligned instructional materials in all 
core 
subject areas as supported by the State textbook adoption criteria as verified 
by the 
Instructional Materials Order Form submitted by each teacher. 
3. Every student was housed in facilities that meet the State criteria for being 
in 
good repair as verified by annual FIT site inspections. 
4. Parents participate in a number of site-based decision-making groups that 
include Site Council, PTA/PTO, and ELAC.  The percent of parent 
participation in Site Council, as defined by their bylaws, is 100%.  The 
percent of parent participation in PTA/PTO, as defined by their bylaws, is 
100%.  The percent of parent participation in ELAC, as defined by their 
bylaws, is 100%. 
 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 7 of 147

Expected Actual 

17-18 
1.  Every teacher providing core instruction is classified as highly qualified 
as defined by the State of California's Highly Qualified teacher criteria and 
measured by an audit of all teacher credentials. 
2.  Every student is provided core instructional materials that align to the 
California State adopted standards as supported by the State textbook 
adoption criteria as verified by the Instructional Materials Order Form 
submitted by each teacher. 
3.  Every school and learning facility operated by the District meets the 
State's criteria of good repair as verified by annual FIT site inspections. 
4.  Parent groups have multiple opportunities to advise individual schools 
and the District as evidenced by school and district calendared events. 
        
Baseline 
1.  Every student received all core instruction from highly qualified teachers 
as defined by the State of California's Highly Qualified teacher criteria and 
measured by an audit of all teacher credentials. 
2.  Every student was provided standards aligned instructional materials in 
all core subject areas as supported by the State textbook adoption criteria 
as verified by the Instructional Materials Order Form submitted by each 
teacher. 
3.  Every student was housed in facilities that meet the State criteria for 
being in good repair as verified by annual FIT site inspections. 
4.  Parents were provided multiple opportunities to participate in leadership 
groups including  PTA/PTO, School Site Council, School and District 
Advisory Committees, and ELAC/DELAC,  that consult and advise individual 
schools and the District. 
        
 

 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 
Ensure every student receives all 
core instruction from highly 
qualified teachers. 

 Every student received all core 
instruction from highly 
qualified teachers. 
 

 Kindergarten Assistants salary 
and benefits (mgmt KIND, OBJ 2-
3) 0000: Unrestricted LCFF 
$52,000  

 Kindergarten Assistants salary 
and benefits (mgmt KIND, OBJ 2-
3) 0000: Unrestricted LCFF 
$47,869 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 8 of 147

For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

Maintain highly qualified teachers 
and site staff– salary and benefits 
(Mgmt 0100, Obj.  11-3)  0000: 
Unrestricted LCFF $5,800,000  

 Maintain highly qualified teachers 
and site staff– salary and benefits 
(Mgmt 0100, Obj. 11-3) 0000: 
Unrestricted LCFF $5,871,700 

District staff salary and benefits  
(MGMT 5100, obj. 1-3) 0000: 
Unrestricted LCFF $208,000  

 District staff salary and benefits 
(MGMT 5100, obj. 1-3) 0000: 
Unrestricted LCFF $224,643 

Action 2 
Ensure every student is provided 
with standards aligned instructional 
materials in all core subject areas. 
For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

 Every student was provided 
standards aligned instructional 
materials in all core subject areas. 

 Obj 4110  MGMT 5200 0000: 
Unrestricted LCFF $100,000  

 Obj 4110 MGMT 5200 0000: 
Unrestricted LCFF $73,297 

Action 3 
Ensure every student is housed in 
facilities that meet the State criteria 
for being in good repair.   

 Every student was housed in 
facilities that meet the State criteria 
for being in good repair. 

 8150  LCFF $1,500,000   8150  LCFF $1,493,140 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 9 of 147

For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

Action 4 
Ensure each school has full parent 
leadership participation on parent 
groups, site councils, and ELACS 
for schools with 50 or more English 
learners. 
For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

 Every school had a site council, an 
active parent group, and for those 
sites with the requisite number of 
English learners, an ELAC.  In 
addition, every school's parent 
group described above was fully 
constituted with parent 
participation as defined by each 
group's bylaws. 

 No additional costs      No additional costs    

 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
The actions and services for this goal were fully implemented and every goal achieved. Our annual analysis of teacher assignments 
revealed that all teachers are highly qualified and possess the appropriate credentials for their assignments. Our annual sufficiency 
resolution, as adopted by the Governing Board verified that every student was in possession of all adopted core instructional 
materials.  This was after each teacher verified they had sufficient instructional materials for every one of their assigned students. Our 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 10 of 147

annual inspections of individual school facilities noted that all campuses were in either good or exceptional condition. As in past years, 
individual schools and the district have been successful in garnering parent participation on school and district leadership committees 
and groups.         
 
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
The district's actions and services to meet this goal and metrics have been fully met, therefore, the stated actions and services were 
highly effective.         
 
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
The only material difference is for action #2 whereby we budgeted $100,000 for standards aligned instructional materials.  Our 
estimated actual expenditures were $73,297, which is $26,703 less than budgeted and is 73% of what was anticipated.  This was due 
to our ability to purchase more of the anticipated items in the prior fiscal year than was anticipated during the LCAP development 
process.         
 

 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
Analysis: The District has met all of the its Williams Act indicators. As a result, the district can assert that it continues to attract and hire 
highly qualified and appropriately credential teachers for all vacancies. Core adopted instructional materials are available in sufficient 
supply to ensure each student is provided with all core adopted materials. The district continues to provide school facilities that are in 
great condition as evidenced by our annual site inspections and lack of concern as reported by our greater community. Parents 
continue to be deeply involved in site and district leadership committees and groups. 
 
Change: Since the District is meeting its Williams Act indicators, no changes to the revised LCAP have been made in these areas.  
However, for 2018-19, the current goal #2 has been collapsed within Goal #1.  The reasons for this are outlined in the 2018-19 goals 
section. 
         
 

 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 11 of 147

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2017-18 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 2 
Every student has access to the full range of courses offered by the District.          

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
Local Priorities:   

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
Participation of students in the District's GATE, special education, and 
advanced coursework programs mirror the demographics of the District's 
students, especially for English learner and socio-economically 
disadvantaged students as measured by an audit of the sub-group 
participation in each program.          

17-18 
Participation of students in the District's GATE, special education, and 
advanced coursework programs mirror the demographics of the District's 
students, especially for English learner and socio-economically 
disadvantaged students as measured by an audit of the sub-group 
participation in each program.          

 The District has mistakenly interpreted the State's definition of course access 
to include specialized programs, rather than limit to subject matter courses.  
The programs in this goal are provided based on district, state, and federal 
criteria for participation, therefore not all students will have access to our 
special education or GATE programs.  The advanced coursework referenced 
for our middle school was a one year experiment (2016-17) and was not 
continued in the current year.  As noted in the goals section, this goal as 
been collapsed into Goal #1 for the 2018-19 school year. 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 12 of 147

Expected Actual 

Baseline 
Every student in the Rincon Valley Union School District has access to the 
full range of courses offered by the District.  As a core K-6 district, courses 
are provided through grade level classes.  In the charter middle school 
(grades 7-8), every student maintains a similar schedule, differing by 
elective choice.  Programs such as GATE, advanced coursework (grades 7-
8), and special education are only offered to students who meet predefined 
criteria. 
 
An examination of students who are identified as gifted revealed three 
subgroups are underrepresented based on the demographics of our district 
as a whole: Hispanic/Latino (27% of our total population, 11% of the GATE 
population), English Learners (10% of our total population, 0% of the GATE 
population), and Economically Disadvantaged students (33% of our total 
population, 14% of the GATE population). 
 
An examination of students who have been identified as being eligible for 
special education and related services revealed over representation of two 
subgroups of students:  English Learners (10% of the total population, 18% 
of the special education population) and Economically Disadvantaged 
students (33% of the total population, 44% of the special education 
population).  The examination also identified an under represented group: 
White (58% of our total population, 43% of our special education 
population). 
 
An examination of students who were identified for Advanced Coursework in 
middle school revealed two subgroups are underrepresented based on the 
demographics of the school as a whole: Hispanic/Latino (27% of our total 
population, 8% of the Advanced Coursework population) and Economically 
Disadvantaged students (27% of our total population, 11% of the Advanced 
Coursework population). 
        
 

 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 
Implement any changes to the 
District's GATE identification 
process found to unfairly identify 

 N/A  No additional costs      No additional costs    

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 13 of 147

students based on any 
demographic factor such as 
English language proficiency, 
culture, or socio-economic 
background. 
For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

Action 2 
Implement any changes to the 
District's special education 
identification process found to 
unfairly identify students based on 
any demographic factor such as 
English language proficiency, 
culture, or socio-economic 
background. 
For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

 N/A  No additional costs      No additional costs    

Action 3 
Implement any changes to the 
District's special education 

 N/A  No additional costs      No additional costs    

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 14 of 147

identification process found to 
unfairly identify students based on 
any demographic factor such as 
English language proficiency, 
culture, or socio-economic 
background. 
For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

Action 4 
Identify middle school students 
eligible for advanced coursework 
at the beginning of each school 
year based on quantitative 
(placement test) and qualitative 
(prior teacher recommendation, 
observation of student critical 
thinking/problem solving) 
measures.  
For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

 N/A  No additional costs      No additional costs    

 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 15 of 147

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Section N/A:  The actions and services noted in this goal are irrelevant to the State's intend of course access as special education and 
GATE are programs with defined access criteria.  In addition, the advanced coursework planned for this LCAP year was not provided.  
Therefore, this goal has been collapsed into Goal #1.         
 
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
Section N/A:  The actions and services noted in this goal are irrelevant to the State's intend of course access as special education and 
GATE are programs with defined access criteria.  In addition, the advanced coursework planned for this LCAP year was not provided.  
Therefore, this goal has been collapsed into Goal #1.         
 
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Section N/A:  The actions and services noted in this goal are irrelevant to the State's intend of course access as special education and 
GATE are programs with defined access criteria.  In addition, the advanced coursework planned for this LCAP year was not provided.  
Therefore, this goal has been collapsed into Goal #1.         
 

 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
Section N/A:  The actions and services noted in this goal are irrelevant to the State's intend of course access as special education and 
GATE are programs with defined access criteria.  In addition, the advanced coursework planned for this LCAP year was not provided.  
Therefore, this goal has been collapsed into Goal #1.         
 

 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 16 of 147

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2017-18 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 3 
Every student is enrolled in a school that promotes a positive school climate that results in a safe learning environment.           

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        

Local Priorities:   
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 17 of 147

Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
1.  Maintain district-wide P-2 attendance rate at 96% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students. 
2.  Reduce district-wide P-2 chronic absenteeism rate to below 5% for all 
students and significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, and special education students. 
3.  Maintain district-wide P-2 charter middle school drop-out rate at 0% for 
all students and significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, and special education students as measured 
by CALPADS. 
4.  Reduce district-wide P-2 pupil suspension rate below 1.1% for all 
students and significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, and special education students. 
5.  Maintain district-wide P-2 pupil expulsion rate at 0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students. 
6.  Increase the number of students who self-identify they attend a school 
with a positive school climate as measured by the district-wide local student 
climate survey (79% of students report "often"/"always" feeling safe at 
school and 82% of students reported being happy at school "often/always". 
 
As an elementary district, high school drop-out and graduation rates do not 
apply. 
        

 1.  P-2 attendance rates are not available at this time.  This information will 
be added once the data is available. 
It is expected that P-2 data is collected in April and will applied to actual 
outcomes once it is available. 
2.Same 
3.Same 
4.Same 
5.Same 
6. Students self-identify they attend a school with a positive school climate as 
measured by the district-wide local student climate survey (77% of students 
report "often"/"always" feeling safe at school and 80% of students reported 
being happy at school "often/always". 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 18 of 147

Expected Actual 

17-18 
1.  Increase district-wide P-2 attendance rate to 96.5% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students. 
2.  Reduce district-wide P-2 chronic absenteeism rate to below 5% for all 
students and significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, and special education students. 
3.  Maintain district-wide P-2 charter middle school drop-out rate at 0% for 
all students and significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, and special education students as measured 
by CALPADS. 
4.  Reduce district-wide P-2 pupil suspension rate below 1.1% for all 
students and significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, and special education students. 
5.  Maintain district-wide P-2 pupil expulsion rate at 0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students. 
6.  Increase the number of students who self-identify they attend a school 
with a positive school climate as measured by the district-wide local student 
climate survey (79% of students report "often"/"always" feeling safe at 
school and 78% of students reported being happy at school "often/always". 
 
As an elementary district, high school drop-out and graduation rates do not 
apply. 
        
Baseline 
The number of students who self-identify they attend a school with a positive 
school climate as measured by the district-wide local student climate survey 
was 79% of students report "often"/"always" feeling safe at school and 78% 
of students reported being happy at school "often/always".        
 

 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 
Maintain counseling programs at 
each school. 

 Counseling programs have been 
maintained at each school 

 MNGMT 6150 0000: Unrestricted 
LCFF $165,000  

 MNGMT 6150 0000: Unrestricted 
LCFF $119,525 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 19 of 147

For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

Action 2 
Maintain clerical attendance 
support for each school. 
For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

 Clerical support for attendance has 
been maintained at each school 

 MGMT OFFC 0000: Unrestricted 
LCFF $235,500  

 MGMT OFFC 0000: Unrestricted 
LCFF $240,106 

Action 3 
Expand school site participation in 
Restorative Practices. 

 Restorative Practices and 
Restorative Conferencing have 
been expanded to include training 
for classified staff and new 
teachers to 4th-6th grade.   

 MGMT MAAD 0000: Unrestricted 
Supplemental $30,000  

 MGMT MAAD 0000: Unrestricted 
Supplemental $30,000 

MGMT MAAD 0000: Unrestricted 
LCFF $14,005  

 MGMT MAAD 0000: Unrestricted 
LCFF $564 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 20 of 147

For Actions/Services included 
as contributing to meeting the 
Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        
 
Scope of Services 
X LEA-wide        
 
Locations 
X All Schools        

Action 4 
Maintain the PlayWorks program to 
increase student participation.  
For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

 Playworks continues to be an area 
of need and focus.  Staffing has 
been the biggest challenge to this 
action.   

 Part of designated reserve 0000: 
Unrestricted LCFF 0  

 Part of designated reserve 0000: 
Unrestricted LCFF 0 

Action 5 
Provide ongoing school-based 
activities that promote school to 
home/school collaboration such as 
Back to School Night, Open 
House, Family Math Night, Family 
Literacy Night, and other site-
based community events. 

 The District has continued to offer 
Back to School Nights, Open 
House, Math Nights and Gate 
Camp.  A large district-wide parent 
event had been planned for the fall 
of 2017 and was displaced due to 
the October Wildfires and the need 

 No additional costs      No additional costs    

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 21 of 147

For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

to provide resources to our 
community.   

Action 6 
Continue district-wide efforts to 
implement culturally responsive 
teaching practices. 
For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

 Schools showcase their cultural 
diversity through events and 
providing families opportunity to 
participate in parent organizations.  
Teachers embed culturally relevant 
material into their instruction and 
projects throughout the year.  

 MGMT 5200  OBJ 5200 0000: 
Unrestricted LCFF $12,000  

 MGMT 5200 OBJ 5200 0000: 
Unrestricted LCFF $9,860 

 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
All of the actions/services were implemented during the 2017-18 LCAP year.  Counseling and attendance clerk positions were 
maintained.  Restorative practices training was expanded to classified employees.  Schools continue to provide many opportunities for 
enhancing cultural awareness and celebrations.  Our challenges have been to hire classified staff to fill all of the Yard Duty II positions 
to provide the PlayWorks program.  The October fires canceled our hallmark parent engagement event, though several other trainings 
were held.          

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 22 of 147

 

 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
This section to be updated once P-2 data is available.         
 

 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
There were two material difference between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual expenditures for Goal #3.  The first was in 
action #1 where $165,000 was allocated, though only $119,525 was expended.  This is a difference of $45,475 and 72% of the 
budgeted amount.  The reason for the material difference was there were classified counseling stipends budgeted in unrestricted for 
$56,000 in the prior year. In 2017/18 we decreased the stipend amount to $27,000 and are paying it out of Medi-Cal funds.  The 
second was in action #3 where $14,005 was allocated, though only $564 was expended.  This is a difference of $13,441 and 4% of 
the budgeted amount.  The reason for the material difference was there were originally teacher extra duties that were budgeted for 
that were not needed.           
 

 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
This section to be updated once P-2 data is available.         
 

 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 23 of 147

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2017-18 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 4 
Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or exceeding the CAASPP English language arts 
standard with special attention to 3rd grade students.            

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
1.  Increase the percent of all 3rd grade students meeting or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for language arts to 60%. 
2.  Increase the percent of English learner 3rd students grade meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP standard for language arts to 30%. 
3.  Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged 3rd grade 
students meeting or exceeding the CAASPP standard for language arts to 
50%. 
4.  60% of students will meet or exceed local benchmarks at each trimester. 
 
The Academic Performance Index, UC/CSU/CTE courses, AP test 
participation, and EAP do not apply as the district does not serve high 
school students. 
        

 1. 61% of all 3rd grade students met or exceeded the 2017 CAASPP 
standard for language arts. 
2. 19% percent of English learner 3rd grade students met or exceeded the 
2017 CAASPP standard for language arts. 
3. 38% percent of socio-economically disadvantaged 3rd grade students met 
or exceeded the 2017 CAASPP standard for language arts. 
4. 79% percent of 3rd grade students met or exceeded local reading 
benchmarks at Trimester 2. 
 
The Fall 2017 update of the California Dashboard designates the District as 
High (33.8 pts. above Level 3) for our Status and Maintained (-2.4 pts.) for 
our Change.  Our rubric color is Green. 
 
The Academic Performance Index, UC/CSU/CTE courses, AP test 
participation, and EAP do not apply as the district does not serve high school 
students. 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 24 of 147

Expected Actual 

17-18 
1.  Increase the percent of all 3rd grade students meeting or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for language arts to 70%. 
2.  Increase the percent of English learners 3rd students grade meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP standard for language arts to 40%. 
3.  Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged 3rd grade 
students meeting or exceeding the CAASPP standard for language arts to 
60%. 
4.  65% of students will meet or exceed local benchmarks at each trimester. 
        
Baseline 
Spring 2017 CAASPP results are unavailable at the time the LCAP was 
adopted, therefore the districts progress in meeting the expected annual 
outcomes will be included in the 2016-17 Annual Update that is incorporated 
into the 2018-19 LCAP. 
 
Based on CAASPP results, the California School Dashboard report 
designates the District as Medium (8.2 pts. above Level 3) for our Status 
and Maintained (+0.2 pts.) for our Change.  Our rubric color is Yellow.  
However, these results are relevant to the 2015-16 LCAP year, not the 
2016-17 LCAP year this update is intended to address. 
 
Trimester 2 local benchmark (STAR Reading) data: 
 
District-wide:  68% of all students met benchmark; 29% of English learners 
met benchmark; 53% of economically disadvantaged students met 
benchmark. 
Third grade: 64% of all students met benchmark; 40% of English learners 
met benchmark; 57% of economically disadvantaged students met 
benchmark. 
 
Early literacy screening (DIBELS) data for K-1: 
70% of all students ready for "core" instruction, 51% of English learners 
ready for "core instruction; 56% of economically disadvantaged students 
ready for "core" instruction. 
 
Kindergarten Readiness (READY) data:  52% of all students entered 
Kindergarten "ready to go", 28% of English earners entered Kindergarten 
"ready to go"; (economically disadvantaged status was not tracked for this 
data. 
        
 

 

 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 25 of 147

Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 
Maintain a systematic reading 
instructional program (K-3 SIPPS). 
For Actions/Services included 
as contributing to meeting the 
Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        
 
Scope of Services 
X LEA-wide        
 
Locations 
X All Schools        

 SIPPS has been fully implemented 
across the district. This year all 
schools provided refresher courses 
for SIPPS to grade K-3 teachers to 
re-calibrate the instructional 
routines and procedures. 

 No additional Cost      No additional Cost    

Action 2 
Maintain and utilize a Multi-tiered 
System of Support (MTSS) for 
students not meeting CAASPP 
and/or local benchmark 
assessment targets. 

 Each school operates a Multi-
Tiered System of Support (MTSS) 
to identify students who do not 
meet state and/or local 
benchmarks. Schools are assigned 
a Student Support Coordinator 
who trains/manages a team of 
interventionists to provide support 
for students. 

 Intervention Budgets (MGMT 
0652-0653) 0000: Unrestricted 
Supplemental $240,000  

 Intervention Budgets (MGMT 
0652) 0000: Unrestricted 
Supplemental $221,523 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 26 of 147

For Actions/Services included 
as contributing to meeting the 
Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        
 
Scope of Services 
X LEA-wide        
 
Locations 
X All Schools        

Action 3 
Participate in the Sonoma County 
READY Program to measure 
school readiness of all 
Kindergarten students. 
For Actions/Services included 
as contributing to meeting the 
Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        
 
Scope of Services 
X LEA-wide        
 
Locations 
X All Schools        
 Specific Grade Spans: 

Kindergarten         

 All kindergarten teachers 
participated in the READY project 
in Aug/Sept 2017. Teachers used 
the information to communicate 
with parents and provide additional 
support for students who scored in 
the "not ready" zone on the 
assessment/observation tool. 

 No additional Cost      No additional Cost    

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 27 of 147

Action 4 
Provide a summer school program 
for primary grade students not on 
track to meet 3rd grade CAASPP 
ELA targets. 
For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
 Specific Student Groups: 

Special Education        
 
Location(s) 
 
For Actions/Services included 
as contributing to meeting the 
Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        
 
Scope of Services 
X LEA-wide        
 
Locations 
X All Schools        

 Due to construction projects 
across the district (which created 
unsafe conditions for students on 
campuses), we did not offer 
summer school in July 2017. It is 
our intent to continue this action, 
pending the availability of safe 
campuses, in 2018 or 2019. 

 MGMT 0650 0000: Unrestricted 
Supplemental $35,000  

 MGMT 0650 0000: Unrestricted 
Supplemental $9,203 

MGMT 0650 0000: Unrestricted 
LCFF $8,000  

 MGMT 0650 0000: Unrestricted 
LCFF $0 

Action 5 
Continue to provide support and 
professional development for 
teachers and principals towards full 
alignment of instruction to the 
California State ELA/ELD 
standards. 

 We have provided professional 
development towards full ELA/ELD 
standards alignment through 
buyback days, District Wednesday 
inservices, Consulting Teacher 
coaching and support, and optional 

 No additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness Funds     

 No additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness Funds    

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 28 of 147

For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

after school workshops. Principals 
embarked on a year-long study of 
the 5 Dimensions of Teaching and 
Learning (Center for Educational 
Leadership). 

Action 6 
Provide a Technology Summer 
Institute to train staff in effective 
integration of technology into ELA 
instruction. 
For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

 Technology integration was 
embedded into the Benchmark 
Advance summer trainings. 

 No additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness Funds     

 No additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness Funds    

Action 7 
Provide parent education that 
provides strategies for families to 
support reading skills, such as, 
decoding, fluency, and 
comprehension, for their children.  
 

 Schools hosted family literacy 
night events and offered parent 
workshops in early literacy. 

 Included in Student Support 
Budget      

 Included in Student Support 
Budget    

 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 29 of 147

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
All actions and services, except summer school, were implemented. There was some variation between schools in the level of parent 
education that was provided. For example, all schools held a family literacy event, but at some schools offered a series of parent 
workshops while other schools offered only one class. Additionally, the implementation of a new ELA/ELD program in 2017-18 has 
provided structure and support for the actions and services described herein.         
 
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
Districtwide, we saw an overall gain of 4% in the percent of students scoring Met or Exceeded Standard on the 2017 ELA CAASPP. 
Local assessments also continue to show an increasing number of students who are meeting or exceeding benchmark.          
 
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
There was a material difference between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual expenditures for action #4, where $43,000 was 
allocated, though only $9,203 was expended.  This is a difference of $33,977 and 21% of the budgeted amount.  The reason for the 
material difference was that due to summer construction, the only summer school program held was our ELD Academy designed for 
English learners.           
 

 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
Our success in meeting our local and LCFF evaluation rubric goals gives us confidence in our plan to increase student achievement in 
English Language Arts.  Therefore, we will continue with the same actions/services for the 2018-19 LCAP year.         
 

 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 30 of 147

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2017-18 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 5 
Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or exceeding the CAASPP Math standard with special 
attention to 8th grade students.            

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
1.  Increase the percent of all 6th grade students meeting or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for math to 55%. 
2.  Increase the percent of English learner 6th students grade meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP standard for math to 55%. 
3.  Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged 6th grade 
students meeting or exceeding the CAASPP math to 35%. 
4.  Establish a baseline for local benchmark assessments to ensure 
students are on track to meet 6th grade CAASPP standard. 
        

 1. 46% of all 6th grade students met or exceeded the 2017 CAASPP 
standard for math. 
2. 8% percent of English learner 6th grade students met or exceeded the 
2017 CAASPP standard for math. 
3. 20% percent of socio-economically disadvantaged 6th grade students met 
or exceeded the 2017 CAASPP standard for math. 
4. We are piloting two local benchmark assessments to ensure students are 
on track to meet 6th grade CAASPP standard. The calculation of a baseline 
and decisions about cut scores for "met standard" will be determined after the 
third trimester. 
 
The Fall 2017 update of the California Dashboard designates the District as 
High (18.4 pts. above Level 3) for our Status and Increased (+3.5 pts.) for our 
Change.  Our rubric color is Green. 
 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 31 of 147

Expected Actual 

17-18 
1.  Increase the percent of all 6th grade students meeting or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for math to 55%. 
2.  Increase the percent of English learner 6th students grade meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP standard for math to 55%. 
3.  Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged 6th grade 
students meeting or exceeding the CAASPP math to 35%. 
4.  Establish a baseline for local benchmark assessments to ensure 
students are on track to meet 6th grade CAASPP standard. 
        
Baseline 
Spring 2017 CAASPP results are unavailable at the time the LCAP was 
adopted, therefore the districts progress in meeting the expected annual 
outcomes will be included in the 2016-17 Annual Update that is incorporated 
into the 2018-19 LCAP. 
 
Based on CAASPP results, the California School Dashboard report 
designates the District as Medium (-17.0 pts. above Level 3) for our Status 
and Declined (-1.3 pts.) for our Change.  Our rubric color is Orange.  
However, these results are relevant to the 2015-16 LCAP year, not the 
2016-17 LCAP year this update is intended to address. 
 
2016-17 Local Measures 
 
We piloted a new local benchmark this year and our goal was to establish a 
baseline. The platform we piloted proved difficult to manage and our 
Trimester 2 data could not be compared to Trimester 1 due to concerns 
about validity of scores in Trimester 1). If we set the benchmark at 70% 
correct for Trimester 2: District-wide:  37% of all students met benchmark; 
12% of English learners met benchmark; 22% of economically 
disadvantaged students met benchmark. 
        
 

 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 32 of 147

Maintain intervention programs for 
students not meeting CAASPP 
and/or local benchmark targets. 
For Actions/Services included 
as contributing to meeting the 
Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        
 
Scope of Services 
X LEA-wide        
 
Locations 
X All Schools        

 Each school operates a Multi-
Tiered System of Support (MTSS) 
to identify students who do not 
meet state and/or local 
benchmarks. Schools are assigned 
a Student Support Coordinator 
who trains/manages a team of 
interventionists to provide support 
for students. 

 No additional cost      No additional cost    

Action 2 
Provide a summer school program 
for intermediate grade students not 
on track to meet 8th grade 
CAASPP Math targets. 
For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
 Specific Student Groups: 

Special Education        
 
Location(s) 
 

 Due to construction projects 
across the district (which created 
unsafe conditions for students on 
campuses), we did not offer 
summer school in July 2017. It is 
our intent to continue this action, 
pending the availability of safe 
campuses, in 2018 or 2019. 

 No additional cost - Included in 
Goal 4 #2     

 No additional cost - Included in 
Goal 4 #2    

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 33 of 147

For Actions/Services included 
as contributing to meeting the 
Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        
 
Scope of Services 
X LEA-wide        
 
Locations 
X All Schools        

Action 3 
Continue to provide support and 
professional development for 
teachers and principals towards full 
alignment of instruction to the 
California State Math standards. 
For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

 We have provided professional 
development towards full Math 
standards alignment through 
District Wednesday inservices, 
Consulting Teacher coaching and 
support, and optional after school 
workshops. Principals embarked 
on a year-long study of the 5 
Dimensions of Teaching and 
Learning (Center for Educational 
Leadership). 
 
2017-18 actions included a 
renewed focus on the adopted 
Math program, including additional 
training and support for teachers; 
creation and revision of 
assessments; and curriculum 
maps to help with pacing, key 
standards, and grading. 
 

 No additional Cost       No additional Cost     

Action 4 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 34 of 147

Provide a Technology Summer 
Institute to train staff in effective 
integration of technology into Math 
instruction. 
For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

 Technology integration was 
embedded into the Engage New 
York Math summer trainings. 

 No additional cost      No additional cost    

Action 5 
Provide training to teachers and 
principals in the implementation of 
a new local math benchmark 
assessment. 
For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

 The Math Consulting Teacher 
provided support and direction for 
teachers in the administration of 
the assessments, and worked with 
teacher representatives throughout 
the year to create and/or revise 
end-of-module assessments. 
Principals received limited training 
this year, but will spend time at the 
end of the year examining student 
performance from beginning to end 
of year, discussing our baselines 
and cut scores, and developing a 
plan for improving the use of 
assessment results to drive 
classroom instruction. 

 No additional cost      No additional cost    

Action 6 
Provide parent education that 
strengthens parent understanding 
of the mathematical concepts and 
practices embedded within the 
California State standards. 
 

 Each school held a Family Math 
(or STEAM) night. 

 Immaterial cost       Immaterial cost    

 
DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 35 of 147

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
All actions and services for Goal 5, except summer school, were implemented this year.         
 

 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
Examination of local math assessment results through the end of the second trimester indicate that about 60% of students in grades 
kindergarten through grade 3 are performing at or above "met standard." This percentage shrinks considerably in the intermediate 
grades. In response to this data, we have provided additional support and training for our intermediate grade math teachers.         
 
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
There were no material differences between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual expenditures.         
 

 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
2017-18 actions included a renewed focus on the adopted Math program, including additional training and support for teachers; 
creation and revision of assessments; and curriculum maps to help with pacing, key standards, and grading. This focus is not called 
out separately in the LCAP, but is reflected in the Actual Actions/Services portion of this Annual Update. This focus will continue in 
2018-19 and be reflected in the Actions/Services section.         
 

 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 36 of 147

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2017-18 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 6 
Every English learner moves at least one level on the California English learner assessment (CELDT or LPAC) and is on target and 
within timelines, as defined by State and local criteria, to become Reclassified as Fluent English Proficient (RFEP).          

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
1.  The California Dashboard will show a Status of High, with 75% or more 
of English learners demonstrating at least one level of growth on the 
CELDT, representing an Increase towards Change. 
2.  15% of English learners district wide will be reclassified as Fluent English 
Proficient (RFEP). 
        
17-18 
1.  The California Dashboard will show a Status of High, with 75% or more 
of English learners demonstrating at least one level of growth on the 
CELDT, representing an Increase towards Change. 
2.  15% of English learners district wide will be reclassified as Fluent English 
Proficient (RFEP). 
        

 1. The Fall 2017 update of the California Dashboard shows a Status of High, 
with 84.3% or more of English learners demonstrating at least one level of 
growth on the CELDT, resulting in a Change of Significant over the prior year 
of 19.2%. 
2. 14.8% of English learners district wide were reclassified as Fluent English 
Proficient (RFEP). 
 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 37 of 147

Expected Actual 

Baseline 
The California Dashboard results show the percentage of English learners, 
plus RFEP students, demonstrating at least one level of growth on the 2015 
CELDT from the 2014 CELDT was 69.4%.  This represents a status of 
Medium.  These results were a Decline from the previous year of 6.4% 
(75.8%) of English learners demonstrated at least one level of growth on the 
CELDT. 
 
The percent of English learners reclassified at the October census for the 
2016-17 school year was 17.2%.  This is a four year high and an increase of 
4.8% over the prior year. 
        
 

 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 
Implement designated ELD 
programs and adopt for the 2017-
18 school year. 
For Actions/Services included 
as contributing to meeting the 
Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X English Learners        
 
Scope of Services 
X LEA-wide        
 
Locations 
X All Schools        

 First-year implementation of 
Benchmark Advance Designated 
ELD began in September 2017. 

 ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 
0000: Unrestricted Supplemental 
$22,000  

 ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 
0000: Unrestricted Supplemental 
$22,000 

ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC)  
0000: Unrestricted LCFF $59,215  

 ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 
0000: Unrestricted LCFF $84,309 

Action 2 
Maintain support and professional 
development for teachers and 

 Integrated ELD strategies has 
been embedded into mandatory 

 No Additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness      

 No Additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness    

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 38 of 147

principals with full implementation 
of integrated ELD. 
For Actions/Services included 
as contributing to meeting the 
Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X English Learners        
 
Scope of Services 
X LEA-wide        
 
Locations 
X All Schools        

professional development sessions 
this year and several optional 
workshops have been offered for 
interested teachers and principals. 

Action 3 
Provide a summer ELD academy 
that targets English learners at the 
intermediate CELDT level to 
accelerate their acquisition of 
English toward reclassification 
thereby preventing their 
classification as a long term 
English learner. 
For Actions/Services included 
as contributing to meeting the 
Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X English Learners        
 
Scope of Services 
X LEA-wide        
 
Locations 
X All Schools        

 A two-week ELD Academy was 
offered in July 2017. 
Approximately 100 students from 
across the district maintained 
regular attendance in the program. 

 MGMT ELDA 0000: Unrestricted 
Supplemental $25,000  

 MGMT ELDA 0000: Unrestricted 
Supplemental $19,283 

Action 4 
DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 39 of 147

Provide parents of English learners 
support and resources in order for 
them to assist their children with 
homework. 
For Actions/Services included 
as contributing to meeting the 
Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X English Learners        
 
Scope of Services 
X LEA-wide        
 
Locations 
X All Schools        

 English Learner Advisory 
Committees (ELACs), Pasitos, 
Latino Family Literacy, and 
Homework Clubs have been 
utilized to provide support for 
parents to assist their children with 
school/homework. 

 Included in MGMT 0652 - no 
additional cost     

 Included in MGMT 0652 - no 
additional cost    

Action 5 
Provide adult English classes for 
parents who are English learners. 
For Actions/Services included 
as contributing to meeting the 
Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X English Learners        
 
Scope of Services 
X LEA-wide        
 
Locations 
X All Schools        

 We began a partnership with 
Santa Rosa Junior College in 
September 2017. Parents and 
community members can attend 
adult English classes twice per 
week, with open enrollment 
throughout the year. 

 Resource 0000, MGMT 4201 
0000: Unrestricted Supplemental 
$25,000  

 Resource 0000, MGMT 4201 
0000: Unrestricted Supplemental 
$26,186 

Action 6 
Provide instructional support to EL 
students with EL Assistants. 

 The EL Coordinator provides 
monthly training for EL Assistants. 
Topics include high leverage 
strategies for language acquisition, 

 Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 
0000: Unrestricted Supplemental 
$16,500  

 Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 
0000: Unrestricted Supplemental 
$16,500 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 40 of 147

For Actions/Services included 
as contributing to meeting the 
Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X English Learners        
 
Scope of Services 
X LEA-wide        
 
Locations 
X All Schools        

working with teachers, supporting 
ELs in reading and mathematics, 
and examining student CELDT 
data. This has allowed our EL 
Assistants to provide more 
structured support for English 
Learners. 

Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 
0000: Unrestricted LCFF $5,986  

 Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 
0000: Unrestricted LCFF $189 

 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
The actions/services for this goal were fully implemented during the 2017-18 LCAP year.  Our most significant step this year was the 
implementation of comprehensive, district-wide designated ELD instruction.           
 
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
Our actions/services for this goal have been consistent over the past three years.  Therefore, our success in significantly increasing 
the percent of ELs advancing at least one level on the CELDT is connected to our plan described under this goal.         
 
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
There were two material difference between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual expenditures for Goal #6.  The first was in 
action #1 where $59,215 was allocated, though $84,309 was expended.  This is a difference of $25,094 and 142% of the budgeted 
amount.  The reason for the material difference was that originally only salaries were budgeted.  The larger amount expended includes 
the associated benefits.  The second was in action #6 where $5,986 was allocated, though only $189 was expended.  This is a 
difference of $5,797 and 3% of the budgeted amount.  The reason for the material difference was an inability to hire for a vacant 
position.           
 

 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 41 of 147

Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
Our success in meeting our local and LCFF evaluation rubric goals gives us confidence our plan to increase English language 
acquisition among our EL students is working.  Therefore, we will continue with the same actions/services for the 2018-19 LCAP year.         
 

 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 42 of 147

Stakeholder Engagement 
 

 

LCAP Year: 2018-19 
 

 

Involvement Process for LCAP and Annual Update 
 
How, when, and with whom did the LEA consult as part of the planning process for this LCAP/Annual Review and Analysis? 

Introduction 
The Rincon Valley Union School District is committed to meaningful stakeholder engagement and understand this is an integral part 
in developing an effective strategic plan.  As such, the Rincon Valley Union School District used a variety of site and district-based 
meetings and events to involve and hear from our stakeholders.  These included a series of site-based meetings for each of our 
stakeholder groups led by our principals throughout the Annual Update, a series of site-based meetings, co-presented by the 
principals and the superintendent, to review the initial draft of the new LCAP, and a series of district-wide meetings with other 
stakeholder groups, such as employees (CTA, CSEA, non-represented), District English Learner Advisory Committee (DELAC), 
Parent Advisory Committee (PAC), and students. 
        
 
Austin Creek held three stakeholder sessions on December 6, 2017 (Site Council), December 11, 2017 (Parent Community), and 
December 18, 2017 (Student Council).  These meetings were principal led based on a script developed by the District LCAP 
Committee for site-based input.  Each group discussed progress in meeting current goals.  Suggestions for modifying goals and/or 
actions/services were encouraged. 
        
 
Binkley held four stakeholder sessions on November 14, 2017 (Binkley Boosters Parent Group), November 15, 2017 (Classified 
Employees), November 26, 2017 (ELAC), and December 1, 2017 (Site Council).  These meetings were principal led based on a 
script developed by the District LCAP Committee for site-based input.  Each group discussed progress in meeting current goals.  
Suggestions for modifying goals and/or actions/services were encouraged. 
        
 
Madrone held three stakeholder sessions on December 4, 2017 (Site Council), December 18, 2017 (ELAC), and December 18, 2017 
(Parent Community).  These meetings were principal led based on a script developed by the District LCAP Committee for site-based 
input.  Each group discussed progress in meeting current goals.  Suggestions for modifying goals and/or actions/services were 
encouraged. 
        

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 43 of 147

 
Rincon Valley Charter School held five stakeholder sessions on November 11, 2017 (Executive Committee), November 15, 2017 
(Students), November 16, 2017 (Students), November 28, 2017 (Parents' Association), and November 28, 2017 (Staff). These 
meetings were vice-principal led based on a script developed by the District LCAP Committee for site-based input.  Each group 
discussed progress in meeting current goals.  Suggestions for modifying goals and/or actions/services were encouraged. 
        
 
Spring Creek-Matanzas held three stakeholder sessions on November 2, 2017 (Staff), November 15, 2017 (PTA), and November 17, 
2017 (Site Council and ELAC).  These meetings were principal led based on a script developed by the District LCAP Committee for 
site-based input.  Each group discussed progress in meeting current goals.  Suggestions for modifying goals and/or actions/services 
were encouraged. 
        
 
Sequoia held two stakeholder sessions on December 4, 2017 (Site Council), December 18, 2017 (ELAC), and December 18, 2017 
(Parent Community).  These meetings were principal led based on a script developed by the District LCAP Committee for site-based 
input.  Each group discussed progress in meeting current goals.  Suggestions for modifying goals and/or actions/services were 
encouraged. 
        
 
Village held four stakeholder sessions on November 1, 2017 (Parents' Club), November 2, 2017 (Site Council), November 3, 2017 
(Teachers), and November 16, 2017 (ELAC).   These meetings were principal led based on a script developed by the District LCAP 
Committee for site-based input.  Each group discussed progress in meeting current goals.  Suggestions for modifying goals and/or 
actions/services were encouraged. 
        
 
Whited School held two stakeholder sessions on December 7, 2017 (PTO) and December 21, 2017 (ELAC).  These meetings were 
principal led based on a script developed by the District LCAP Committee for site-based input.  Each group discussed progress in 
meeting current goals.  Suggestions for modifying goals and/or actions/services were encouraged. 
        
 
Administrative Council, including site and district administrators and bargaining unit representation, met on December 19, 2017 and 
February 20, 2018.  The group  reviewed reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and made recommendations 
concerning draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years. 
        
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 44 of 147

District English Learner Advisory Council met on January 31, 2018.  The group reviewed reviewed progress made toward meeting 
goals in 2016-17 and made recommendations concerning draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next 
three years. 
        
 
Superintendent's Student Advisory Committee met on February 8, 2018.  The group  reviewed reviewed progress made toward 
meeting goals in 2016-17 and made recommendations concerning draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the 
next three years. 
        
 
The District held two community-wide LCAP input meetings on February 20, 2018 (Matanzas) and March 7, 2017 (Austin Creek).  
The group  reviewed reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and made recommendations concerning draft of 
goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years. 
        
 
Parent Advisory Committee met on March 7, 2018.  The group  reviewed reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 
and made recommendations concerning draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years. 
        
 
The District conducted a stakeholder survey from March 5 through March 12, 2018.  Included were the following stakeholder groups:  
Parents/guardians of enrolled students, certificated, classified, and administrative employees, and middle school students.  The 
survey was conducted in English and Spanish.  Participants reviewed reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and 
made recommendations concerning draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years. 
        
 
The District met with our teachers' association, RVUTA, on March 13, 2018.  The group  reviewed reviewed progress made toward 
meeting goals in 2016-17 and made recommendations concerning draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the 
next three years. 
        
 
The District met with our classified employees association, CSEA, On March 15, 2018.  The group  reviewed reviewed progress 
made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and made recommendations concerning draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and 
actions/services for the next three years. 
        
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 45 of 147

Governing Board met on April 10, 2018.  Trustees  reviewed reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and made 
recommendations concerning draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years. 
        
 
Governing Board met on May 8, 2018.  Trustees held a Public Hearing on the 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP.  At the same 
meeting, there was a public hearing on the 2017-18 Budget. 
        
 
Governing Board met on June 12, 2018.  Trustees approved the 2018-19, 2019-20, 2020-21 LCAP and 2018-19 Budget. 
        

         
 

Impact on LCAP and Annual Update 
 
How did these consultations impact the LCAP for the upcoming year? 

 
Austin Creek stakeholder feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• Appreciate the variety of supervised activities provided students during recess 
• Appreciate teachers willingness to hold regular (weekly) circles 
• Appreciate support for students in writing and math 
 
Austin Creek stakeholder suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP to include: 
• Ongoing support for families with GATE students 
        
 
Binkley stakeholder feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• Appreciate having a full-time counselor 
• Appreciate the routine students have developed to participate in the supervised recess activities 
• Appreciate the site's town hall meetings 
• Appreciate the results shown for students with SIPPS 
• Appreciate the role of the support coordinator in organizing and delivering intervention 
• Appreciate the establishment of a homework club 
 
Suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP to include: 
• Provide additional training for classified classroom assistants in the new ELA and math programs. 
• Focus on deepening involvement of parents when students are in Kindergarten 
• Develop more ways to support second language parents support their children with homework at home 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 46 of 147

        
 
Madrone stakeholder feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• Appreciate the new facility and field/track 
• Appreciate the counselors, especially following the fires 
• Appreciate the role of the office clerks in reducing truancy 
• Appreciate the positive impact of Restorative Circles and Kimochis 
• Appreciate the extra support for struggling students 
• Appreciate the support that EL assistants provide English leaners 
 
Suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP to include: 
• Recommend training in NGSS for teachers 
• Recommend to continue the provision of daycare for Back-to-School Night 
• Establish a homework club 
• Recommend that Family Math Night provide more opportunities for parents to learn more about the math program 
• Recommend that adult English classes be offered at night 
        
 
RVCS stakeholder feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• Appreciate the hard work the teachers provide on behalf of students 
• Appreciate the quality of the school facilities 
• Appreciate the focus on Project Based Learning 
• Appreciate the availability of counseling 
• Appreciate circles 
• Appreciate Fall Festival as a community building event 
 
Suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• Recommend providing teachers with professional development aimed at challenging GATE students within the context of the daily classroom 
• Recommend ongoing training in ELD 
• Recommend additional counseling time 
• Recommend more dances and game nights 
• Recommend more support for struggling students, e.g., student support coordinator, older students as tutors 
• Recommend moving away from the block schedule for math instruction 
• Recommend more planning time focused on aligning classroom assessments to standards 
        
 
Spring Creek-Matanzas stakeholders feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• Appreciate the counselor remains consistent between the two sites 
• Appreciate the Restorative Practices program 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 47 of 147

• Appreciate having organized activities for students at recess 
• Appreciate having Spanish language support for parents at conferences 
 
Suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• Consistent practices among staff for homework 
• Increase and find new ways to communicate to the community about school-based activities and parent meetings 
• Increase counseling time 
• Provide access to technology beyond school hours with families that lack these resources at home 
• Open computer labs and library as options for students at recess 
• Minimize the impact of losing out on classroom instruction and activities for students pulled for various support programs 
• Look at scheduling options for translators for conferences 
        
 
Sequoia stakeholder feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• Appreciate the process for identifying GATE students that has expanded beyond the Raven 
• Appreciate opportunities, such as Family Math Night, when parents can learn alongside their children 
 
Suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• Provision of resources and training for parents in math 
        
 
Village stakeholder feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• Appreciate the high level of instruction provided students by the teachers 
• Appreciate the facility improvements being made that will improve classrooms and playground options for students 
• Appreciate the level of school-to-home communication 
• Appreciate the use of non-traditional instruments being used to identify GATE students 
• Appreciate the contributions of the counselors 
• Appreciate evening programs such as Story Night 
• Appreciate additional support efforts and the communication with parents about these options 
• Appreciate the Engage NY math training last summer 
• Appreciate the designated ELD time 
• Appreciate the work of the ELD Coordinator in assisting families support English language acquisition of students 
 
Suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• Provide more support and materials for teachers to implement NGSS 
• Increase counseling and dedicate time for SEL instruction into the classroom routine 
• Recommend more assemblies that teach about cultural differences 
• Recommend increasing classroom push-in support 
• Increase communication from the classrooms on how to support students with math at home 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 48 of 147

        
 
Whited stakeholder feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• Appreciate the counselor program 
• Appreciate the school's homework club 
• Appreciate the focus on designated ELD program 
• Appreciate Kimochis and Restorative Practices 
• Appreciate the PlayWorks program 
 
Suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• Increasing counseling time 
• Provide more information to families about the social/emotional programs 
• Provide an indoor play option for students in the morning 
• Increase after school tutoring options for student 
• Send math activities home for parents to work on with their children 
• Provide more individualized instruction for students learning English 
• Provide the GATE curriculum to all students 
• Provide the GATE as a pull-out program 
• Recommend monthly evening events for families 
        
 
Administrative Council stakeholder feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• Appreciate counseling services 
• Appreciate support for students not meeting grade level expectations 
 
Suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• Expand counseling services, ultimately to one full-time counselor per school 
• Review the local metrics for ELA and math that are used to measure student progress during the school year to ensure they both inform 

instruction and predict student success on the SBAC 
 
All questions were answered at the meeting.  The council did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded 
to in writing. 
        
 
The District English Learner Advisory Council feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• Appreciate Counseling resources for students 
• Appreciate academic resources and support for English learners 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 49 of 147

Suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• Provide after school homework and tutoring options for students 
• Provide ongoing parent education to prepare parents to support the learning of students at home 
 
All questions were answered at the meetings.  The DELAC did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted 
responded to in writing. 
        
 
The Superintendent's Student Advisory Committee stakeholder feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• Appreciate counseling services 
• Appreciate the PlayWorks program that provides various activities at recess 
• Appreciate the extra support students receive when needed 
 
Suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• Provide more than one game option each day under the PlayWorks program 
• Provide indoor recess options such as opening the library or for chess clubs 
• Provide students an anonymous way to provide their teachers feedback or state concerns 
• Adjust instructional activities that activate each students' curiosity, thus increasing interest and motivation to learn 
 
All questions were answered at the meeting.  The committee did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted 
responded to in writing. 
        
 
The Parent Advisory Committee stakeholder feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• Appreciate counseling services 
• Appreciate communication efforts through One-Call-Now and Facebook 
 
Suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• Provide on going parent education, especially in the areas of strategies to monitor a child's social media interactions and in transitioning to 

middle school 
 
All questions were answered at the meeting.  The committee did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted 
responded to in writing. 
        
 
Community-wide LCAP stakeholder feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• Appreciate counseling services 
• Appreciate support for students not meeting grade level expectations 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 50 of 147

 
Suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• Incorporate the Art Docent program as a parent partnership opportunity within parent engagement 
• Suggest that high achieving and GATE students are identified for services within the LCAP 
• Provide a summer program for GATE students 
• Provide parents training in the Kimochi program 
 
All questions were answered at the various meetings. 
        
 
Parent community LCAP stakeholder survey result feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• All proposed actions and services received support of at least 85% of the respondents 
• The actions/services receiving the highest level of support were (in order): 
* Strengthen intervention support in primary grades in ELA 
* Strengthen support for all students in math 
* Maintain counseling services 
* Provide instructional support for English learners 
* Provide school-based activities such as Family Math night, etc. 
 
Parent community suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• More resources for struggling students in the upper grades 
• Options for students who are quick learners in math as the instructional pace can frustrate them 
• Strengthen resources to eliminate bullying behavior, such as counseling 
• Increase site-based community events as they are more successful and useful than district-wide ones 
 
English learner parent community LCAP stakeholder survey result feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• This survey only received two submissions, therefore the results are not valid 
 
English learner parent community suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• N/A 
 
Employee community LCAP stakeholder survey result feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• All proposed actions and services received support of at least 95% of the respondents 
• The actions/services receiving the highest level of support were (in order): 
* Strengthen intervention support in primary grades in ELA 
* Strengthen support for all students in math 
* Maintain counseling services 
* Provide instructional support for English learners 
* Provide school-based activities such as Family Math night, etc. 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 51 of 147

 
Employee community community suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• Keep Writing By Design as core writing program 
• Maintain small class sizes in primary grades 
• Provide additional resources to supplement ENY; intervention and 1st instruction 
• Full-time counselors at each school site 
• Additional classroom support during DELD instruction 
 
Middle school student community LCAP stakeholder survey result feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• All proposed actions and services received support of at least 85% of the respondents 
• The actions/services receiving the highest level of support were (in order): 
* Maintain counseling services 
* Strengthen intervention support in primary grades in ELA 
* Strengthen support for all students in math 
* Strengthen tools to measure student growth in meeting math standards 
* Provide instructional support for English learners 
 
Middle school student community community suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• Provide more time during the school day for students to read 
• Additional teacher time for students who are struggling 
• Add opportunities for parent to be in classrooms 
 
Results were posted on the district website. 
        
 
RVUTA stakeholder feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• The association generally supports the goals and actions/services proposed by the district 
 
Suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• RVUTA did not provide specific suggestions 
 
All questions were answered at the meeting.  The association did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted 
responded to in writing. 
        
 
CSEA stakeholder feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• The association generally supports the goals and actions/services proposed by the district 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 52 of 147

Suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• CSEA suggested we conduct a survey during the Annual Update portion of our process as well as the one held to receive feedback on our 

first draft of actions/services. 
 
All questions were answered at the meeting.  The association did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted 
responded to in writing. 
        
 
At the April 10, 2018 Regular meeting, Trustees reviewed the draft LCAP for the 2018-19 school year.  Trustees appreciated the 
incorporation of the California Dashboard into the document. 
        
 
At the May 8, 2018 Regular meeting, The Governing Board provided an opportunity for community comment. 
        
 
At the June 12, 2018 Regular meeting, the Governing Board approved the 2018-19, 2019-20, 2020-19 LCAP as presented. 
        

         
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 53 of 147

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Modified Goal        
 

Goal 1 
Every student has access to highly qualified teachers, standards aligned instructional materials, facilities in good repair (Basic 
Supports) and to the full range of course offered by the District.         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        

X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Identified Need: 
Every student benefits when they are provided core instruction from highly qualified teachers, are provided standards aligned 
instructional materials, and are housed in facilities in good repair.  The Rincon Valley Union School District consistently provides every 
student with these Basic Supports and is committed to continue to do so.  As a primarily TK-6 grade district, every student in the 
Rincon Valley Union school District is provided the full range of core instructional subjects offered by the District to include English 
Language Arts, Math, Science, Social Science/History, and Physical Education. 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

1.  Every teacher 
providing core 
instruction is classified 
as highly qualified as 
defined by the State of 
California's Highly 
Qualified teacher criteria 

 1.  Every student 
received all core 
instruction from highly 
qualified teachers as 
defined by the State of 
California's Highly 
Qualified teacher criteria 

 1.  Every teacher 
providing core 
instruction is classified 
as highly qualified as 
defined by the State of 
California's Highly 
Qualified teacher criteria 

 1.  Every teacher 
providing core 
instruction is classified 
as highly qualified as 
defined by the State of 
California's Highly 
Qualified teacher criteria 

 1.  Every teacher 
providing core 
instruction is classified 
as highly qualified as 
defined by the State of 
California's Highly 
Qualified teacher criteria 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 54 of 147

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

and measured by an 
audit of all teacher 
credentials. 
2.  Every student is 
provided core 
instructional materials 
that align to the 
California State adopted 
standards as supported 
by the State textbook 
adoption criteria as 
verified by the 
Instructional Materials 
Order Form submitted 
by each teacher. 
3.  Every school and 
learning facility operated 
by the District meets the 
State's criteria of good 
repair as verified by 
annual FIT site 
inspections. 
4.  Each school has full 
parent leadership 
participation on parent 
groups, site councils, 
and ELACS for schools 
with 50 or more English 
learners, as defined by 
each groups bylaws. 
        

and measured by an 
audit of all teacher 
credentials. 
2.  Every student was 
provided standards 
aligned instructional 
materials in all core 
subject areas as 
supported by the State 
textbook adoption 
criteria as verified by the 
Instructional Materials 
Order Form submitted 
by each teacher. 
3.  Every student was 
housed in facilities that 
meet the State criteria 
for being in good repair 
as verified by annual FIT 
site inspections. 
4.  Parents were 
provided multiple 
opportunities to 
participate in leadership 
groups including  
PTA/PTO, School Site 
Council, School and 
District Advisory 
Committees, and 
ELAC/DELAC,  that 
consult and advise 
individual schools and 
the District. 
 
 

and measured by an 
audit of all teacher 
credentials. 
2.  Every student is 
provided core 
instructional materials 
that align to the 
California State adopted 
standards as supported 
by the State textbook 
adoption criteria as 
verified by the 
Instructional Materials 
Order Form submitted 
by each teacher. 
3.  Every school and 
learning facility operated 
by the District meets the 
State's criteria of good 
repair as verified by 
annual FIT site 
inspections. 
4.  Parent groups have 
multiple opportunities to 
advise individual 
schools and the District 
as evidenced by school 
and district calendared 
events. 
 

and measured by an 
audit of all teacher 
credentials. 
2.  Every student is 
provided core 
instructional materials 
that align to the 
California State adopted 
standards as supported 
by the State textbook 
adoption criteria as 
verified by the 
Instructional Materials 
Order Form submitted 
by each teacher. 
3.  Every school and 
learning facility operated 
by the District meets the 
State's criteria of good 
repair as verified by 
annual FIT site 
inspections. 
4.  Every student has 
access to the full range 
of courses offered by 
the District to include 
English Language Arts, 
Math, Science, Social 
Science/History, and 
Physical Education. 
5.  Parent groups have 
multiple opportunities to 
advise individual 
schools and the District 
as evidenced by school 
and district calendared 
events. 

and measured by an 
audit of all teacher 
credentials. 
2.  Every student is 
provided core 
instructional materials 
that align to the 
California State adopted 
standards as supported 
by the State textbook 
adoption criteria as 
verified by the 
Instructional Materials 
Order Form submitted 
by each teacher. 
3.  Every school and 
learning facility operated 
by the District meets the 
State's criteria of good 
repair as verified by 
annual FIT site 
inspections. 
4.  Every student has 
access to the full range 
of courses offered by 
the District to include 
English Language Arts, 
Math, Science, Social 
Science/History, and 
Physical Education. 
5.  Parent groups have 
multiple opportunities to 
advise individual 
schools and the District 
as evidenced by school 
and district calendared 
events. 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 55 of 147

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

  
 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Ensure every student receives all core 
instruction from highly qualified teachers.        

 Ensure every student receives all core 
instruction from highly qualified teachers. 

 Ensure every student receives all core 
instruction from highly qualified teachers. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 56 of 147

Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $52,000  $53,000  $54,000 
        $52,000  $53,000  $54,000 Source        LCFF  LCFF  LCFF 
        $52,000  $53,000  $54,000 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
Kindergarten Assistants salary and 
benefits (mgmt KIND, OBJ 2-3) 

 0000: Unrestricted 
Kindergarten Assistants salary and 
benefits 

 0000: Unrestricted 
Kindergarten Assistants salary and 
benefits 

Amount        $5,800,000  $5,900,000  $6,000,000 
        $5,800,000  $5,900,000  $6,000,000 Source        LCFF  LCFF  LCFF 
        $5,800,000  $5,900,000  $6,000,000 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
Maintain highly qualified teachers 
and site staff– salary and benefits 
(Mgmt 0100, Obj.  11-3)  

 0000: Unrestricted 
Maintain highly qualified teachers 
and site staff– salary and benefits 
(Mgmt 0100, Obj.  11-3)  

 0000: Unrestricted 
Maintain highly qualified teachers 
and site staff– salary and benefits 
(Mgmt 0100, Obj.  11-3)  

Amount        $208,000  $209,000  $210,000 
        $208,000  $209,000  $210,000 Source        LCFF  LCFF  LCFF 
        $208,000  $209,000  $210,000 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
District staff salary and benefits  
(MGMT 5100, obj. 1-3) 

 0000: Unrestricted 
District staff salary and benefits  
(MGMT 5100, obj. 1-3) 

 0000: Unrestricted 
District staff salary and benefits  
(MGMT 5100, obj. 1-3) 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 57 of 147

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Ensure every student is provided with 
standards aligned instructional materials in 
all core subject areas.        

 Ensure every student is provided with 
standards aligned instructional materials in 
all core subject areas. 

 Ensure every student is provided with 
standards aligned instructional materials in 
all core subject areas. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $100,000  $102,000  $104,000 
        $100,000  $102,000  $104,000 Source        LCFF  LCFF  LCFF 
        $100,000  $102,000  $104,000 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
Obj 4110  MGMT 5200 

 0000: Unrestricted 
Maintain highly qualified teachers 
and site staff– salary and benefits 
(Mgmt 0100, Obj.  11-3)  

 0000: Unrestricted 
Obj 4110  MGMT 5200 

Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 58 of 147

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Ensure every student is housed in facilities 
that meet the State criteria for being in 
good repair.          

 Ensure every student is housed in facilities 
that meet the State criteria for being in 
good repair.   

 Ensure every student is housed in facilities 
that meet the State criteria for being in 
good repair.   

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $1,500,000  $1,600,000  $1,700,000 
        $1,500,000  $1,600,000  $1,700,000 Source        LCFF  LCFF  LCFF 
        $1,500,000  $1,600,000  $1,700,000 Budget 
Reference        

 
8150 

  
8150 

  
8150 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 59 of 147

 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Ensure each school has full parent 
leadership participation on parent groups, 
site councils, and ELACS for schools with 
50 or more English learners.        

 Ensure each school has full parent 
leadership participation on parent groups, 
site councils, and ELACS for schools with 
21 or more English learners. 

 Ensure each school has full parent 
leadership participation on parent groups, 
site councils, and ELACS for schools with 
21 or more English learners. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No additional costs 

  
No additional costs 

  
No additional costs 

Action 5 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 6 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 7 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 60 of 147

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 8 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 9 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 10 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 11 
 

OR 
DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 61 of 147

 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 12 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 13 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 14 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 62 of 147

Action 15 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 16 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 17 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 18 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 63 of 147

Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 19 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 20 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 64 of 147

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 

Goal 2 
Every student has access to the full range of courses offered by the District.         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
Local Priorities:   

 
Identified Need: 
Beginning with the 2018-19 school year, this goal has been incorporated within Goal #1 (Basic Supports).  Access to the full range of 
courses is as foundational to each students' educational experience as highly qualified teachers, access to instructional materials, 
adequate facilities, and involved and engaged parents.  In RVUSD, our foundation is strong and each of these Basic Supports are in 
place. 
 
 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Participation of students 
in the District's GATE, 
special education, and 
advanced coursework 
programs mirror the 
demographics of the 
District's students, 
especially for English 

 Every student in the 
Rincon Valley Union 
School District has 
access to the full range 
of courses offered by 
the District.  As a core 
K-6 district, courses are 
provided through grade 

 Participation of students 
in the District's GATE, 
special education, and 
advanced coursework 
programs mirror the 
demographics of the 
District's students, 
especially for English 

 Not Applicable  Not Applicable 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 65 of 147

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

learner and socio-
economically 
disadvantaged students 
as measured by an audit 
of the sub-group 
participation in each 
program.          

level classes.  In the 
charter middle school 
(grades 7-8), every 
student maintains a 
similar schedule, 
differing by elective 
choice.  Programs such 
as GATE, advanced 
coursework (grades 7-
8), and special 
education are only 
offered to students who 
meet predefined criteria. 
 
An examination of 
students who are 
identified as gifted 
revealed three 
subgroups are 
underrepresented based 
on the demographics of 
our district as a whole: 
Hispanic/Latino (27% of 
our total population, 
11% of the GATE 
population), English 
Learners (10% of our 
total population, 0% of 
the GATE population), 
and Economically 
Disadvantaged students 
(33% of our total 
population, 14% of the 
GATE population). 
 
An examination of 
students who have been 

learner and socio-
economically 
disadvantaged students 
as measured by an audit 
of the sub-group 
participation in each 
program.   

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 66 of 147

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

identified as being 
eligible for special 
education and related 
services revealed over 
representation of two 
subgroups of students:  
English Learners (10% 
of the total population, 
18% of the special 
education population) 
and Economically 
Disadvantaged students 
(33% of the total 
population, 44% of the 
special education 
population).  The 
examination also 
identified an under 
represented group: 
White (58% of our total 
population, 43% of our 
special education 
population). 
 
An examination of 
students who were 
identified for Advanced 
Coursework in middle 
school revealed two 
subgroups are 
underrepresented based 
on the demographics of 
the school as a whole: 
Hispanic/Latino (27% of 
our total population, 8% 
of the Advanced 
Coursework population) 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 67 of 147

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

and Economically 
Disadvantaged students 
(27% of our total 
population, 11% of the 
Advanced Coursework 
population). 
 
 

 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action            
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Implement any changes to the District's 
GATE identification process found to 
unfairly identify students based on any 
demographic factor such as English 

 Not Applicable  Not Applicable 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 68 of 147

language proficiency, culture, or socio-
economic background.        
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No additional costs 

  
 

  
 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X New Action        
X Modified Action        

    

 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Implement any changes to the District's 
special education identification process 
found to unfairly identify students based 
on any demographic factor such as 
English language proficiency, culture, or 
socio-economic background.        

 Not Applicable  Not Applicable 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 69 of 147

Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No additional costs 

  
 

  
 

Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action            
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Implement any changes to the District's 
special education identification process 
found to unfairly identify students based 
on any demographic factor such as 
English language proficiency, culture, or 
socio-economic background.        

 Not Applicable  Not Applicable 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No additional costs 

  
 

  
 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 70 of 147

Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action            
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Identify middle school students eligible for 
advanced coursework at the beginning of 
each school year based on quantitative 
(placement test) and qualitative (prior 
teacher recommendation, observation of 
student critical thinking/problem solving) 
measures.         

 Not Applicable  Not Applicable 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No additional costs 

  
 

  
 

Action 5 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 71 of 147

 

Action 6 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 7 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 8 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 9 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 72 of 147

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 10 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 11 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 12 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 13 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 73 of 147

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 14 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 15 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 16 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 17 
 

OR 
DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 74 of 147

 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 18 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 19 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 20 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 75 of 147

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 

Goal 3 
Every student is enrolled in a school that promotes a positive school climate that results in a safe learning environment.         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        

X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Identified Need: 
Rincon Valley Union School District has high attendance rates, low chronic absenteeism rates, and has no history of its charter middle 
school student dropping out of school.  The District also benefits from an extremely low suspension and expulsion rates in recent 
years.  The most recent Student Survey indicates that 79% of students often/always feel safe at school while 82% are often/always 
happy to be at their school. 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

1.  Maintain district-wide 
P-2 attendance rate at 
96% for all students and 
significant subgroups to 
include English learner, 
socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and 

 The number of students 
who self-identify they 
attend a school with a 
positive school climate 
as measured by the 
district-wide local 
student climate survey 
was 79% of students 

 1.  Increase district-wide 
P-2 attendance rate to 
96.5% for all students 
and significant 
subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically 
disadvantaged, and 

 1.  Reduce district-wide 
P-2 attendance rate to 
96.75% for all students 
and significant 
subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically 
disadvantaged, and 

 1.  Maintain district-wide 
P-2 attendance rate at 
97% for all students and 
significant subgroups to 
include English learner, 
socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 76 of 147

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

special education 
students. 
2.  Reduce district-wide 
P-2 chronic 
absenteeism rate to 
below 5% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students. 
3.  Maintain district-wide 
P-2 charter middle 
school drop-out rate at 
0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to 
include English learner, 
socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students as measured 
by CALPADS. 
4.  Reduce district-wide 
P-2 pupil suspension 
rate below 1.1% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students. 
5.  Maintain district-wide 
P-2 pupil expulsion rate 
at 0% for all students 

report "often"/"always" 
feeling safe at school 
and 78% of students 
reported being happy at 
school "often/always". 
 

special education 
students. 
2.  Reduce district-wide 
P-2 chronic 
absenteeism rate to 
below 5% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students. 
3.  Maintain district-wide 
P-2 charter middle 
school drop-out rate at 
0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to 
include English learner, 
socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students as measured 
by CALPADS. 
4.  Reduce district-wide 
P-2 pupil suspension 
rate below 1.1% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students. 
5.  Maintain district-wide 
P-2 pupil expulsion rate 
at 0% for all students 

special education 
students. 
2.  Maintain district-wide 
P-2 chronic 
absenteeism rate to 
below 5% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students. 
3.  Maintain district-wide 
P-2 charter middle 
school drop-out rate at 
0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to 
include English learner, 
socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students as measured 
by CALPADS. 
4.  Reduce district-wide 
P-2 pupil suspension 
rate below 1.1% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students. 
5.  Maintain district-wide 
P-2 pupil expulsion rate 
at 0% for all students 

special education 
students. 
2.  Maintain district-wide 
P-2 chronic 
absenteeism rate to 
below 5% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students. 
3.  Maintain district-wide 
P-2 charter middle 
school drop-out rate at 
0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to 
include English learner, 
socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students as measured 
by CALPADS. 
4.  Reduce district-wide 
P-2 pupil suspension 
rate below 1.1% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students. 
5.  Maintain district-wide 
P-2 pupil expulsion rate 
at 0% for all students 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 77 of 147

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

and significant 
subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students. 
6.  Increase the number 
of students who self-
identify they attend a 
school with a positive 
school climate as 
measured by the district-
wide local student 
climate survey (79% of 
students report 
"often"/"always" feeling 
safe at school and 82% 
of students reported 
being happy at school 
"often/always". 
 
As an elementary 
district, high school 
drop-out and graduation 
rates do not apply. 
        

and significant 
subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students. 
6.  Increase the number 
of students who self-
identify they attend a 
school with a positive 
school climate as 
measured by the district-
wide local student 
climate survey (79% of 
students report 
"often"/"always" feeling 
safe at school and 78% 
of students reported 
being happy at school 
"often/always". 
 
As an elementary 
district, high school 
drop-out and graduation 
rates do not apply. 
 

and significant 
subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students. 
6.  Increase the number 
of students who self-
identify they attend a 
school with a positive 
school climate as 
measured by the district-
wide local student 
climate survey (79% of 
students report 
"often"/"always" feeling 
safe at school and 78% 
of students reported 
being happy at school 
"often/always". 
 
As an elementary 
district, high school 
drop-out and graduation 
rates do not apply. 
 

and significant 
subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students. 
6.  Increase the number 
of students who self-
identify they attend a 
school with a positive 
school climate as 
measured by the district-
wide local student 
climate survey (79% of 
students report 
"often"/"always" feeling 
safe at school and 78% 
of students reported 
being happy at school 
"often/always". 
 
As an elementary 
district, high school 
drop-out and graduation 
rates do not apply. 
 

 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 78 of 147

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Maintain counseling programs at each 
school.        

 Maintain counseling programs at each 
school. 

 Maintain counseling programs at each 
school. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $165,000  $167,000  $169,000 
        $165,000  $167,000  $169,000 Source        LCFF  LCFF  LCFF 
        $165,000  $167,000  $169,000 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
MNGMT 6150 

 0000: Unrestricted 
MNGMT 6150 

 0000: Unrestricted 
MNGMT 6150 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 79 of 147

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Maintain clerical attendance support for 
each school.        

 Maintain clerical attendance support for 
each school. 

 Maintain clerical attendance support for 
each school. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $235,500  $237,500  $240,000 
        $235,500  $237,500  $240,000 Source        LCFF  LCFF  LCFF 
        $235,500  $237,500  $240,000 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT OFFC 

 0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT OFFC 

 0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT OFFC 

Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 80 of 147

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Expand school site participation in 
Restorative Practices.        

 Maintain school site participation in 
Restorative Practices. 

 Strengthen school site participation in 
Restorative Practices. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $30,000  $35,000  $37,000 
        $30,000  $35,000  $37,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $30,000  $35,000  $37,000 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT MAAD 

 0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT MAAD 

 0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT MAAD 

Amount        $14,005  $16,000  $18,000 
        $14,005  $16,000  $18,000 Source        LCFF  LCFF  LCFF 
        $14,005  $16,000  $18,000 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT MAAD 

 0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT MAAD 

 0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT MAAD 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 81 of 147

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Maintain the PlayWorks program to 
increase student participation.         

 Maintain the PlayWorks program to 
increase student participation.  

 Strengthen recess activity programs to 
increase student participation.  

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        0  0  0 
        0  0  0 Source        LCFF  LCFF  LCFF 
        0  0  0 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
Part of designated reserve 

 0000: Unrestricted 
Part of designated reserve 

 0000: Unrestricted 
Part of designated reserve 

Action 5 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 82 of 147

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Provide ongoing school-based activities 
that promote school to home/school 
collaboration such as Back to School 
Night, Open House, Family Math Night, 
Family Literacy Night, and other site-
based community events.        

 Provide ongoing school-based activities 
that promote school to home/school 
collaboration such as Back to School 
Night, Open House, Family Math Night, 
Family Literacy Night, and other site-
based community events. 

 Provide ongoing school-based activities 
that promote school to home/school 
collaboration such as Back to School 
Night, Open House, Family Math Night, 
Family Literacy Night, and other site-
based community events. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No additional costs 

  
No additional costs 

  
No additional costs 

Action 6 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 83 of 147

Continue district-wide efforts to implement 
culturally responsive teaching practices.        

 This action has been discontinued.  This action has been discontinued. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $12,000     
        $12,000     Source        LCFF     
        $12,000     Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT 5200  OBJ 5200 

  
 

  
 

Action 7 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 8 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 9 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 84 of 147

 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 10 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 11 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 12 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 13 
 

OR 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 85 of 147

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 14 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 15 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 16 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 86 of 147

Action 17 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 18 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 19 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 20 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 87 of 147

Budgeted Expenditures 
 

 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 88 of 147

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Modified Goal        
 

Goal 4 
Ensure that all students, including significant subgroups, demonstrate growth year to year as measured by the ELA CAASPP 
assessments and reflected on the status and change placement on the California School Dashboard.         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        

X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Identified Need: 
Obtaining grade level expectations for reading by 3rd grade is a key indicator of subsequent student success in English language arts.  
Spring 2016 CAASPP results reveal that 52% of all Rincon Valley 3rd grade students met or exceeded the standard for English 
language arts.  For 6th grade, the last year in the district for most students, 58% of all students met the grade level criteria.  For 
English learners, 14% of 3rd and 46% of 6th graders met or exceeded this standard.  For socio-economically disadvantaged students, 
35% of 3rd and 37% 6th graders met or exceeded this standard. 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

1.  Increase the percent 
of all 3rd grade students 
meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard 

 Spring 2017 CAASPP 
results are unavailable 
at the time the LCAP 
was adopted, therefore 

 1.  Increase the percent 
of all 3rd grade students 
meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard 

 1.  Increase the percent 
of all 3rd grade students 
meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard 

 1.  Increase the percent 
of all 3rd grade students 
meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 89 of 147

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

for language arts to 
60%. 
2.  Increase the percent 
of English learner 3rd 
students grade meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 30%. 
3.  Increase the percent 
of socio-economically 
disadvantaged 3rd 
grade students meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 50%. 
4.  60% of students will 
meet or exceed local 
benchmarks at each 
trimester. 
 
The Academic 
Performance Index, 
UC/CSU/CTE courses, 
AP test participation, 
and EAP do not apply 
as the district does not 
serve high school 
students. 
        

the districts progress in 
meeting the expected 
annual outcomes will be 
included in the 2016-17 
Annual Update that is 
incorporated into the 
2018-19 LCAP. 
 
Based on CAASPP 
results, the California 
School Dashboard 
report designates the 
District as Medium (8.2 
pts. above Level 3) for 
our Status and 
Maintained (+0.2 pts.) 
for our Change.  Our 
rubric color is Yellow.  
However, these results 
are relevant to the 2015-
16 LCAP year, not the 
2016-17 LCAP year this 
update is intended to 
address. 
 
Trimester 2 local 
benchmark (STAR 
Reading) data: 
 
District-wide:  68% of all 
students met 
benchmark; 29% of 
English learners met 
benchmark; 53% of 
economically 
disadvantaged students 
met benchmark. 

for language arts to 
70%. 
2.  Increase the percent 
of English learners 3rd 
students grade meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 40%. 
3.  Increase the percent 
of socio-economically 
disadvantaged 3rd 
grade students meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 60%. 
4.  65% of students will 
meet or exceed local 
benchmarks at each 
trimester. 
 

for language arts to 
80%. 
2.  Increase the percent 
of English learners 3rd 
students grade meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 50%. 
3.  Increase the percent 
of socio-economically 
disadvantaged 3rd 
grade students meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 70%. 
4.  70% of students will 
meet or exceed local 
benchmarks at each 
trimester. 
 

for language arts to 
85%. 
2.  Increase the percent 
of English learners 3rd 
students grade meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 60%. 
3.  Increase the percent 
of socio-economically 
disadvantaged 3rd 
grade students meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 80%. 
4.  75% of students will 
meet or exceed local 
benchmarks at each 
trimester. 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 90 of 147

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Third grade: 64% of all 
students met 
benchmark; 40% of 
English learners met 
benchmark; 57% of 
economically 
disadvantaged students 
met benchmark. 
 
Early literacy screening 
(DIBELS) data for K-1: 
70% of all students 
ready for "core" 
instruction, 51% of 
English learners ready 
for "core instruction; 
56% of economically 
disadvantaged students 
ready for "core" 
instruction. 
 
Kindergarten Readiness 
(READY) data:  52% of 
all students entered 
Kindergarten "ready to 
go", 28% of English 
earners entered 
Kindergarten "ready to 
go"; (economically 
disadvantaged status 
was not tracked for this 
data. 
 
 

 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 91 of 147

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Maintain a systematic reading instructional 
program (K-3 SIPPS).        

 Maintain a systematic reading instructional 
program (K-3 SIPPS). 

 Maintain a systematic reading instructional 
program (K-3 SIPPS). 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No additional Cost 

  
No additional Cost 

  
No additional costs 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 92 of 147

Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Maintain and utilize a Multi-tiered System 
of Support (MTSS) for students not 
meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark 
assessment targets.        

 Maintain and utilize a Multi-tiered System 
of Support (MTSS) for students not 
meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark 
assessment targets. 

 Utilize a Multi-tiered System of Support 
(MTSS) for students not meeting CAASPP 
and/or local benchmark assessment 
targets. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $240,000  $245,000  $250,00 
        $240,000  $245,000  $250,00 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $240,000  $245,000  $250,00 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0652-
0653) 

 0000: Unrestricted 
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0652-
0653) 

 0000: Unrestricted 
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0652-
0653) 

Action 3 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 93 of 147

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        
 Specific Grade Spans: Kindergarten         

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Participate in the Sonoma County READY 
Program to measure school readiness of 
all Kindergarten students.        

 Participate in the Sonoma County READY 
Program to measure school readiness of 
all Kindergarten students. 

 Participate in the Sonoma County READY 
Program to measure school readiness of 
all Kindergarten students. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No additional Cost 

  
No additional Cost 

  
No additional costs 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 94 of 147

 Specific Student Groups: Special Education        
 [Add Students to be Served selection here]         

  [Add Location(s) selection here]         

 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Provide a summer school program for 
primary grade students not on track to 
meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA targets.        

 Provide a summer school program for 
primary grade students not on track to 
meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA targets. 

 Provide a summer school program for 
primary grade students not on track to 
meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA targets. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $35,000  $35,000  $36,000 
        $35,000  $35,000  $36,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $35,000  $35,000  $36,000 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT 0650 

 0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT 0650 

 0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT 0650 

Amount        $8,000  $10,000  12,000 
        $8,000  $10,000  12,000 Source        LCFF  LCFF  LCFF 
        $8,000  $10,000  12,000 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT 0650 

 0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT 0650 

 0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT 0650 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 95 of 147

Action 5 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Continue to provide support and 
professional development for teachers and 
principals towards full alignment of 
instruction to the California State ELA/ELD 
standards.        

 Continue to provide support and 
professional development for teachers and 
principals towards full alignment of 
instruction to the California State ELA/ELD 
standards. 

 Continue to provide support and 
professional development for teachers and 
principals towards full alignment of 
instruction to the California State ELA/ELD 
standards. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness Funds 

  
No additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness Funds 

  
No Additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness  

Action 6 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 96 of 147

Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Provide a Technology Summer Institute to 
train staff in effective integration of 
technology into ELA instruction.        

 Provide a Technology Summer Institute to 
train staff in effective integration of 
technology into ELA instruction. 

 Provide parent education that provides 
strategies for families to support reading 
skills, such as, decoding, fluency, and 
comprehension, for their children.  

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness Funds 

  
No additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness Funds 

  
Included in Student Support Budget  

Action 7 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 97 of 147

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

  X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Provide parent education that provides 
strategies for families to support reading 
skills, such as, decoding, fluency, and 
comprehension, for their children.         

 Provide parent education that provides 
strategies for families to support reading 
skills, such as, decoding, fluency, and 
comprehension, for their children.  

 Provide parent education that provides 
strategies for families to support reading 
skills, such as, decoding, fluency, and 
comprehension, for their children.  

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
Included in Student Support Budget  

  
Included in Student Support Budget  

  
Included in Student Support Budget  

Action 8 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 9 
 

OR 
DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 98 of 147

 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 10 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 11 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 12 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 99 of 147

Action 13 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 14 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 15 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 16 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 100 of 147

Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 17 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 18 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 19 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 20 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 101 of 147

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 102 of 147

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Modified Goal        
 

Goal 5 
Ensure that all students, including significant subgroups, demonstrate growth year to year as measured by the Math CAASPP 
assessments and reflected on the status and change placement on the California School Dashboard.         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        

X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Identified Need: 
Obtaining grade level expectations for math by 8th grade is a key indicator of student success in high school math courses.  As a 
primarily TK-6th grade district, students entering 7th grade that meet or exceed the 6th grade CAASPP standard are best equipped to 
continue their success in math through middle school.  Spring 2016 CAASPP results reveal that 43% of all Rincon Valley 6th grade 
students met or exceeded the standard for math.  For English learners, 41% of 6th graders met or exceeded this standard.  For socio-
economically disadvantaged students, 20% of 6th graders met or exceeded this standard. 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

1.  Increase the percent 
of all 6th grade students 
meeting or exceeding 

 Spring 2017 CAASPP 
results are unavailable 
at the time the LCAP 
was adopted, therefore 

 1.  Increase the percent 
of all 6th grade students 
meeting or exceeding 

 1.  Increase the percent 
of all 6th grade students 
meeting or exceeding 

 1.  Increase the percent 
of all 6th grade students 
meeting or exceeding 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 103 of 147

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

the CAASPP standard 
for math to 55%. 
2.  Increase the percent 
of English learner 6th 
students grade meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for 
math to 55%. 
3.  Increase the percent 
of socio-economically 
disadvantaged 6th 
grade students meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP math to 35%. 
4.  Establish a baseline 
for local benchmark 
assessments to ensure 
students are on track to 
meet 6th grade 
CAASPP standard. 
        

the districts progress in 
meeting the expected 
annual outcomes will be 
included in the 2016-17 
Annual Update that is 
incorporated into the 
2018-19 LCAP. 
 
Based on CAASPP 
results, the California 
School Dashboard 
report designates the 
District as Medium (-
17.0 pts. above Level 3) 
for our Status and 
Declined (-1.3 pts.) for 
our Change.  Our rubric 
color is Orange.  
However, these results 
are relevant to the 2015-
16 LCAP year, not the 
2016-17 LCAP year this 
update is intended to 
address. 
 
2016-17 Local 
Measures 
 
We piloted a new local 
benchmark this year and 
our goal was to 
establish a baseline. 
The platform we piloted 
proved difficult to 
manage and our 
Trimester 2 data could 
not be compared to 

the CAASPP standard 
for math to 55%. 
2.  Increase the percent 
of English learner 6th 
students grade meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for 
math to 55%. 
3.  Increase the percent 
of socio-economically 
disadvantaged 6th 
grade students meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP math to 35%. 
4.  Establish a baseline 
for local benchmark 
assessments to ensure 
students are on track to 
meet 6th grade 
CAASPP standard. 
 

the CAASPP standard 
for math to 70%. 
2.  Increase the percent 
of English learner 6th 
grade students meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for 
math to 70%. 
3.  Increase the percent 
of socio-economically 
disadvantaged 6th 
grade students meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP math to 50%. 
4.  Establish a baseline 
for local benchmark 
assessments to ensure 
students are on track to 
meet 6th grade 
CAASPP standard. 
 

the CAASPP standard 
for math to 85%. 
2.  Increase the percent 
of English learner 6th 
grade students meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for 
math to 85%. 
3.  Increase the percent 
of socio-economically 
disadvantaged 6th 
grade students meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP math to 65%. 
4.  Establish a baseline 
for local benchmark 
assessments to ensure 
students are on track to 
meet 6th grade 
CAASPP standard. 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 104 of 147

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Trimester 1 due to 
concerns about validity 
of scores in Trimester 
1). If we set the 
benchmark at 70% 
correct for Trimester 2: 
District-wide:  37% of all 
students met 
benchmark; 12% of 
English learners met 
benchmark; 22% of 
economically 
disadvantaged students 
met benchmark. 
 
 

 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All        
 Specific Student Groups: Students not meeting standards        

 X All Schools        

 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 105 of 147

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action        
X Unchanged Action        

 X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        

 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Maintain intervention programs for 
students not meeting CAASPP and/or 
local benchmark targets.        

 Maintain intervention programs for 
students not meeting CAASPP and/or 
local benchmark targets. 

 Maintain intervention programs for 
students not meeting CAASPP and/or 
local benchmark targets. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No additional cost 

  
No additional cost 

  
No additional cost 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All        
 Specific Student Groups: Students not meeting standards        

 X All Schools        

 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 106 of 147

X Modified Action        
X Unchanged Action        

 X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        

 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Provide a summer school program for 
intermediate grade students not on track 
to meet 8th grade CAASPP Math targets.        

 Provide a summer school program for 
intermediate grade students not on track 
to meet 6th grade CAASPP Math targets. 

 Provide a summer school program for 
intermediate grade students not on track 
to meet 6th grade CAASPP Math targets. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No additional cost - Included in Goal 
4 #2 

  
No additional cost - Included in Goal 
4 #2 

  
No additional cost - Included in Goal 
4 #2 

Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 107 of 147

Continue to provide support and 
professional development for teachers and 
principals towards full alignment of 
instruction to the California State Math 
standards.        

 Continue to provide support and 
professional development for teachers and 
principals towards full alignment of 
instruction to the California State Math 
standards. 

 Continue to provide support and 
professional development for teachers and 
principals towards full alignment of 
instruction to the California State Math 
standards. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness Funds 

  
No additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness Funds 

  
No additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness Funds 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action        
X Unchanged Action        

 X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        

 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 108 of 147

Provide a Technology Summer Institute to 
train staff in effective integration of 
technology into Math instruction.        

 Provide a Technology Summer Institute to 
train staff in effective integration of 
technology into Math instruction. 

 Continue to support teachers and 
principals in the effective use of the local 
math benchmark assessment. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No additional cost 

  
No additional cost 

  
No additional cost 

Action 5 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Modified Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Provide training to teachers and principals 
in the implementation of a new local math 
benchmark assessment.        

 Provide training to teachers and principals 
in the implementation of a new local math 
benchmark assessment. 

 This action will have been met. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 109 of 147

Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No additional cost 

  
No additional cost 

  
No additional cost 

Action 6 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

  X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Provide parent education that strengthens 
parent understanding of the mathematical 
concepts and practices embedded within 
the California State standards.        

 Provide parent education that strengthens 
parent understanding of the mathematical 
concepts and practices embedded within 
the California State standards. 

 Provide parent education that strengthens 
parent understanding of the mathematical 
concepts and practices embedded within 
the California State standards. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
Immaterial cost  

  
Immaterial cost  

  
Immaterial cost  

Action 7 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 110 of 147

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 8 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 9 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 10 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 111 of 147

Action 11 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 12 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 13 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 14 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 112 of 147

Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 15 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 16 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 17 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 18 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 113 of 147

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 19 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 20 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 114 of 147

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Modified Goal        
 

Goal 6 
Every English learner moves at least one level on the California English learner assessment (CELDT or ELPAC) and is on target and 
within timelines, as defined by State and local criteria, to be Reclassified as Fluent English Proficient (R-FEP)         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        

X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
Local Priorities:   

 
Identified Need: 
The California Dashboard results show that the percentage of English learners, plus RFEP students, demonstrating at least one level 
of growth on the 2015 CELDT from the 2014 CELDT was 69.4%.  This represents a status of Medium.  These results were a Decline 
from the previous year of 6.4% (75.8%) of English learners demonstrated at least one level of growth on the CELDT.  The percent of 
English learners reclassified at the October census for the 2016-17 school year was 17.2%.  This is a four year high and an increase 
of 4.8% over the prior year. 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

1.  The California 
Dashboard will show a 
Status of High, with 75% 
or more of English 
learners demonstrating 
at least one level of 
growth on the CELDT, 
representing an 

 The California 
Dashboard results show 
the percentage of 
English learners, plus 
RFEP students, 
demonstrating at least 
one level of growth on 
the 2015 CELDT from 

 1.  The California 
Dashboard will show a 
Status of High, with 75% 
or more of English 
learners demonstrating 
at least one level of 
growth on the CELDT, 
representing an 

 1.  The California School 
Dashboard English 
learner indictors will be 
frozen for at east two 
years due to the 
transition from the 
CELDT to the ELPAC.  
Therefore, the District is 

 1.  The California School 
Dashboard English 
learner indictors will be 
frozen for at east two 
years due to the 
transition from the 
CELDT to the ELPAC.  
Therefore, the District is 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 115 of 147

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Increase towards 
Change. 
2.  15% of English 
learners district wide will 
be reclassified as Fluent 
English Proficient 
(RFEP). 
        

the 2014 CELDT was 
69.4%.  This represents 
a status of Medium.  
These results were a 
Decline from the 
previous year of 6.4% 
(75.8%) of English 
learners demonstrated 
at least one level of 
growth on the CELDT. 
 
The percent of English 
learners reclassified at 
the October census for 
the 2016-17 school year 
was 17.2%.  This is a 
four year high and an 
increase of 4.8% over 
the prior year. 
 
 

Increase towards 
Change. 
2.  15% of English 
learners district wide will 
be reclassified as Fluent 
English Proficient 
(RFEP). 
 

only including 
reclassification rates as 
the sole indicator for 
these two years. 
2.  15% of English 
learners district wide will 
be reclassified as Fluent 
English Proficient 
(RFEP). 
 

only including 
reclassification rates as 
the sole indicator for 
these two years. 
2.  15% of English 
learners district wide will 
be reclassified as Fluent 
English Proficient 
(RFEP). 
 

 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 116 of 147

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners         X LEA-wide         X All Schools        
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Implement designated ELD programs and 
adopt for the 2017-18 school year.        

 Maintain designated ELD programs and 
deepen Implementation. 

 Maintain designated ELD programs and 
deepen Implementation. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $22,000  $25,000  $27,000 
        $22,000  $25,000  $27,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $22,000  $25,000  $27,000 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 

 0000: Unrestricted 
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 

 0000: Unrestricted 
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 

Amount        $59,215  $60,000  $61,000 
        $59,215  $60,000  $61,000 Source        LCFF  LCFF  LCFF 
        $59,215  $60,000  $61,000 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC)  

 0000: Unrestricted 
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 

 0000: Unrestricted 
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

OR 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 117 of 147

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners         X LEA-wide         X All Schools        
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Maintain support and professional 
development for teachers and principals 
with full implementation of integrated ELD.        

 Maintain support and professional 
development for teachers and principals 
with full implementation of integrated ELD. 

 Maintain support and professional 
development for teachers and principals 
with full implementation of integrated ELD. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No Additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness  

  
No Additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness 

  
No Additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness  

Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners         X LEA-wide         X All Schools        
DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 118 of 147

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Provide a summer ELD academy that 
targets English learners at the 
intermediate CELDT level to accelerate 
their acquisition of English toward 
reclassification thereby preventing their 
classification as a long term English 
learner.        

 Provide a summer ELD academy that 
targets English learners at the 
intermediate CELDT level to accelerate 
their acquisition of English toward 
reclassification thereby preventing their 
classification as a long term English 
learner. 

 Provide a summer ELD academy that 
targets English learners at the 
intermediate CELDT level to accelerate 
their acquisition of English toward 
reclassification thereby preventing their 
classification as a long term English 
learner. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $25,000  $26,000  $28,000 
        $25,000  $26,000  $28,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $25,000  $26,000  $28,000 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT ELDA 

 0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT ELDA 

 0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT ELDA 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners         X LEA-wide         X All Schools        
DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 119 of 147

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Provide parents of English learners 
support and resources in order for them to 
assist their children with homework.        

 Provide parents of English learners 
support and resources in order for them to 
assist their children with homework. 

 Provide parents of English learners 
support and resources in order for them to 
assist their children with homework. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
Included in MGMT 0652 - no 
additional cost 

  
Included in MGMT 0652 - no 
additional cost 

  
Included in MGMT 0652 - no 
additional cost 

Action 5 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners         X LEA-wide         X All Schools        
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 120 of 147

 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Provide adult English classes for parents 
who are English learners.        

 Provide adult English classes for parents 
who are English learners. 

 Provide adult English classes for parents 
who are English learners. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $25,000  $27,000  $28,000 
        $25,000  $27,000  $28,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $25,000  $27,000  $28,000 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201 

 0000: Unrestricted 
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201 

 0000: Unrestricted 
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201 

Action 6 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners         X LEA-wide         X All Schools        
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Provide instructional support to EL 
students with EL Assistants.        

 Provide instructional support to EL 
students with EL Assistants. 

 Provide instructional support to EL 
students with EL Assistants. 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 121 of 147

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $16,500  $17,500  $18,500 
        $16,500  $17,500  $18,500 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $16,500  $17,500  $18,500 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 

 0000: Unrestricted 
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 

 0000: Unrestricted 
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 

Amount        $5,986  $6,500  $7,000 
        $5,986  $6,500  $7,000 Source        LCFF  LCFF  LCFF 
        $5,986  $6,500  $7,000 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 

 0000: Unrestricted 
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 

 0000: Unrestricted 
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 

Action 7 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 8 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 9 
 

OR 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 122 of 147

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 10 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 11 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 12 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 123 of 147

Action 13 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 14 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 15 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 16 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 124 of 147

Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 17 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 18 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 19 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 20 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 125 of 147

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 126 of 147

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils 
 
LCAP Year: 2018-19 
 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds  Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 

$  % 
 
Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 

 
 
------- 
------- 

 

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils 
LCAP Year: 2017-18 
 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds  Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 

$382,590  3.5% 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 127 of 147

Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 

The District does not receive Concentration funds.  Supplemental funds for the 2018-19 school year will be used for our Multi Tiered 
System of Support (MTSS) programs.  The components of our MTSS program funded with supplemental funding include a range of 
intervention support, an ELD Summer Academy, to support a district-wide ELD coordinator, support the district's restorative practices 
program, fund a summer learning program, fund a portion of our family liaisons, and fund a portion of our EL assistants.   (Averill & 
Rinaldi, 2011; California Department of Education, 2015) 
 
Intervention Programs:  These resources are principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing direct instruction to 
students who are not meeting grade level CAASPP and/or local assessment targets.  While these services are not strictly limited to 
our unduplicated students, these subgroups comprise the majority of students benefiting from the services.  Intervention services are 
provided within an extensive MTSS system that includes Student Support Coordinators, classroom teachers, and intervention 
teachers.  Student Support Coordinators provide direct instruction to students, monitor the progress of all students being served with 
support services and meet with grade level teams and principals to review the progress of groups and individuals.  English language 
arts and mathematics are the targeted subjects for identifying and supporting students.  Supplemental funds are used for Student 
Support Coordinator and intervention teachers' salaries and benefits.  (California Department of Education, 2015) 
 
Cost of the Intervention Programs charged to Supplemental Funds:  $222,240, Resource Code 0000 Object 1000-6000 (Management 
Codes 0652) 
 
Summer ELD Academy:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing direct instruction and 
monitoring of student progress within our overall system of supports.  Students participating in the Summer ELD Academy are English 
learners at the Intermediate level as measured by CELDT.  The goal of this service is to accelerate English language acquisition so 
that English learners do not become long term ELs.  Summer EL Academy classroom teachers provide the instruction.  Supplemental 
funds are used for Summer ELD Academy classroom teachers' and classified employees' salaries and benefits and instructional 
materials. (Ward-Singer, 2007; California Department of Education, ELD Standards Appendix C, 2015) 
 
Cost of the Summer ELD Academy charged to Supplemental Funds:  $20,307, Resource Code 0000 Object 1000-6000 (Management 
Code ELDA) 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 128 of 147

Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 
EL Coordinator:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by coordinating and monitoring of EL student 
progress within our overall system of supports. Supplemental funds are used for EL Coordinator salary and benefits. (Schmoker, 
2006) 
 
Cost of the EL Coordinator charged to Supplemental Funds:  $105,961, Resource Code 0000 & 0016, Object 1000-6000 
(Management Code ELDC) 
 
Restorative Practices:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing counseling related 
services.  While these services are not strictly limited to our unduplicated students, these subgroups comprise a significant subset of 
students benefiting from the services.  Supplemental funds are used to support the training for certificated and classified personnel in 
the use of the Restorative Practices protocols.  This effort will result in district-wide implementation of this practice.  (International 
Institute for Restorative Practices, 2007) 
 
Cost of Maintaining Restorative Practices charged to Supplemental Funds:  $44,005, Resource Code 0000 Object 1000-6000 
(Management Code MAAD) 
 
Summer Learning:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing counseling related services.  
While these services are not strictly limited to our unduplicated students, these subgroups comprise a significant subset of students 
benefiting from the services.  Supplemental funds are used for Summer Learning classroom teachers' and classified employees' 
salaries and benefits. (Smith, ASCD, 2012) 
 
Cost of the Summer Learning program charged to Supplemental Funds:  $0, Resource Code 0000 Object 1XXX (Management Code 
0650) 
 
Family Liaison:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing school-to-home related services.  
While these services are not strictly limited to our unduplicated students, these subgroups comprise a significant subset of students 
benefiting from the services.  Family Liaisons provide an important link between our schools and families.  These individuals provide 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 129 of 147

Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 
support for families across a wide range of school attendance, social/emotional needs, and connecting to community-wide resources.  
Supplemental funds are used for classified employees' salaries and benefits. (Breiseth, Robertson & Lafond, 2015) 
 
Cost of the Family Liaisons charged to Supplemental Funds:  $26,085, Resource Code 0000 Object 1000-3000 (Management Code 
4201) 
 
EL Assistants:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing instructional services.  EL 
Assistants provide direction instructional support to our newcomer EL students.  Supplemental funds are used for classified 
employees' salaries and benefits. (Robertson & Ford, 2013) 
 
Cost of the EL Assistants charged to Supplemental Funds:  $22,486, Resource Code 0000 Object 1000-3000 (Management Code 
4203) 
 
Note: Although the minimum is $426,176, the District is spending  approximately $15K over the minimum. 
 
 
The District is increasing services by directing all new Supplemental funds to services that are principally directed towards our 
unduplicated students.  All new and ongoing Supplemental funding is directed towards our Multi Tiered System of Support services.  
Detailed information concerning the use of these funds are included in Section 3:A.  ------- 
------- 
 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 130 of 147

Addendum 
The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Annual Update Template documents and 
communicates local educational agencies’ (LEAs) actions and expenditures to support student 
outcomes and overall performance. The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is reviewed and updated 
annually, as required. Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter 
school’s budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. The LCAP and 
Annual Update Template must be completed by all LEAs each year. 

For school districts, the LCAP must describe, for the school district and each school within the district, 
goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each student group identified by 
the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) (ethnic, socioeconomically disadvantaged, English 
learners, foster youth, pupils with disabilities, and homeless youth), for each of the state priorities and 
any locally identified priorities. 

For county offices of education, the LCAP must describe, for each county office of education-
operated school and program, goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and 
each LCFF student group funded through the county office of education (students attending juvenile 
court schools, on probation or parole, or expelled under certain conditions) for each of the state 
priorities and any locally identified priorities. School districts and county offices of education may 
additionally coordinate and describe in their LCAPs services funded by a school district that are 
provided to students attending county-operated schools and programs, including special education 
programs.  

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of 
education and the governing board of the school district may adopt and file for review and approval a 
single LCAP consistent with the requirements in Education Code (EC) sections 52060, 52062, 52066, 
52068, and 52070.  The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or 
county superintendent of schools) all budgeted and actual expenditures are aligned.  

Charter schools must describe goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and 
each LCFF subgroup of students including students with disabilities and homeless youth, for each of 
the state priorities that apply for the grade levels served or the nature of the program operated by the 
charter school, and any locally identified priorities. For charter schools, the inclusion and description 
of goals for state priorities in the LCAP may be modified to meet the grade levels served and the 
nature of the programs provided, including modifications to reflect only the statutory requirements 
explicitly applicable to charter schools in the EC. Changes in LCAP goals and actions/services for 
charter schools that result from the annual update process do not necessarily constitute a material 
revision to the school’s charter petition. 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 131 of 147

For questions related to specific sections of the template, please see instructions below: 

Instructions: Linked Table of Contents 
Plan Summary 
Annual Update 
Stakeholder Engagement 
Goals, Actions, and Services 
Planned Actions/Services 
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students 
 

For additional questions or technical assistance related to completion of the LCAP template, please 
contact the local county office of education, or the CDE’s Local Agency Systems Support Office at: 
916-319-0809 or by email at: lcff@cde.ca.gov.  

Plan Summary 
The LCAP is intended to reflect an LEA’s annual goals, actions, services and expenditures within a 
fixed three-year planning cycle. LEAs must include a plan summary for the LCAP each year.  
When developing the LCAP, enter the appropriate LCAP year, and address the prompts provided in 
these sections.  When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, enter the appropriate LCAP year and 
replace the previous summary information with information relevant to the current year LCAP. 
In this section, briefly address the prompts provided. These prompts are not limits.  LEAs may include 
information regarding local program(s), community demographics, and the overall vision of the LEA. 
LEAs may also attach documents (e.g., the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics data reports) if desired and/or 
include charts illustrating goals, planned outcomes, actual outcomes, or related planned and actual 
expenditures. 
An LEA may use an alternative format for the plan summary as long as it includes the information 
specified in each prompt and the budget summary table. 
The reference to LCFF Evaluation Rubrics means the evaluation rubrics adopted by the State Board 
of Education under EC Section 52064.5.   
 
Budget Summary 

The LEA must complete the LCAP Budget Summary table as follows: 

 Total LEA General Fund Budget Expenditures for the LCAP Year: This amount is the 
LEA’s total budgeted General Fund expenditures for the LCAP year. The LCAP year 
means the fiscal year for which an LCAP is adopted or updated by July 1. The General 
Fund is the main operating fund of the LEA and accounts for all activities not accounted for 
in another fund. All activities are reported in the General Fund unless there is a compelling 
reason to account for an activity in another fund. For further information please refer to the 
California School Accounting Manual (http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/). (Note: For some 
charter schools that follow governmental fund accounting, this amount is the total budgeted 
expenditures in the Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund. For charter schools that follow 
the not-for-profit accounting model, this amount is total budgeted expenses, such as those 
budgeted in the Charter Schools Enterprise Fund.) 

 Total Funds Budgeted for Planned Actions/Services to Meet the Goals in the LCAP 
for the LCAP Year: This amount is the total of the budgeted expenditures associated with 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018

mailto:lcff@cde.ca.gov
http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/


Page 132 of 147

the actions/services included for the LCAP year from all sources of funds, as reflected in 
the LCAP. To the extent actions/services and/or expenditures are listed in the LCAP under 
more than one goal, the expenditures should be counted only once. 

 Description of any use(s) of the General Fund Budget Expenditures specified above 
for the LCAP year not included in the LCAP: Briefly describe expenditures included in 
total General Fund Expenditures that are not included in the total funds budgeted for 
planned actions/services for the LCAP year. (Note: The total funds budgeted for planned 
actions/services may include funds other than general fund expenditures.) 

 Total Projected LCFF Revenues for LCAP Year: This amount is the total amount of 
LCFF funding the LEA estimates it will receive pursuant to EC sections 42238.02 (for 
school districts and charter schools) and 2574 (for county offices of education), as 
implemented by EC sections 42238.03 and 2575 for the LCAP year respectively.  

Annual Update 
The planned goals, expected outcomes, actions/services, and budgeted expenditures must be copied 
verbatim from the previous year’s* approved LCAP; in addition, list the state and/or local priorities 
addressed by the planned goals. Minor typographical errors may be corrected.   

* For example, for LCAP year 2017/18 of the 2017/18 – 2019/20 LCAP, review the goals in the 
2016/17 LCAP. Moving forward, review the goals from the most recent LCAP year. For example, 
LCAP year 2020/21 will review goals from the 2019/20 LCAP year, which is the last year of the 
2017/18 – 2019/20 LCAP.  

Annual Measurable Outcomes 
For each goal in the prior year, identify and review the actual measurable outcomes as 
compared to the expected annual measurable outcomes identified in the prior year for the 
goal.  

Actions/Services 
Identify the planned Actions/Services and the budgeted expenditures to implement these 
actions toward achieving the described goal. Identify the actual actions/services implemented 
to meet the described goal and the estimated actual annual expenditures to implement the 
actions/services. As applicable, identify any changes to the students or student groups served, 
or to the planned location of the actions/services provided.   

Analysis 
Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the LCFF Evaluation 
Rubrics, analyze whether the planned actions/services were effective in achieving the goal. 
Respond to the prompts as instructed. 

 Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated 
goal. Include a discussion of relevant challenges and successes experienced with the 
implementation process.  

 Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal 
as measured by the LEA. 

 Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual 
Expenditures. Minor variances in expenditures or a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not 
required. 

 Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and 
services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the data provided 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 133 of 147

in the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be 
found in the LCAP. 

Stakeholder Engagement 
Meaningful engagement of parents, students, and other stakeholders, including those representing 
the student groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget 
process. EC identifies the minimum consultation requirements for school districts and county offices 
of education as consulting with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, local 
bargaining units of the school district, parents, and pupils in developing the LCAP. EC requires 
charter schools to consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, 
and pupils in developing the LCAP. In addition, EC Section 48985 specifies the requirements for the 
translation of notices, reports, statements, or records sent to a parent or guardian. 
 
The LCAP should be shared with, and LEAs should request input from, school site-level advisory 
groups, as applicable (e.g., school site councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, student advisory 
groups, etc.), to facilitate alignment between school-site and district-level goals and actions. An LEA 
may incorporate or reference actions described in other plans that are being undertaken to meet 
specific goals.   

Instructions: The stakeholder engagement process is an ongoing, annual process. The 
requirements for this section are the same for each year of a three-year LCAP. When developing 
the LCAP, enter the appropriate LCAP year, and describe the stakeholder engagement process 
used to develop the LCAP and Annual Update. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, 
enter the appropriate LCAP year and replace the previous stakeholder narrative(s) and describe 
the stakeholder engagement process used to develop the current year LCAP and Annual 
Update. 

School districts and county offices of education: Describe the process used to consult 
with the Parent Advisory Committee, the English Learner Parent Advisory Committee, 
parents, students, school personnel, the LEA’s local bargaining units, and the community 
to inform the development of the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the 
indicated LCAP year. 
Charter schools: Describe the process used to consult with teachers, principals, 
administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students to inform the development of 
the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the indicated LCAP year.  

Describe how the consultation process impacted the development of the LCAP and annual 
update for the indicated LCAP year, including the goals, actions, services, and expenditures. 

Goals, Actions, and Services 
LEAs must include a description of the annual goals, for all students and each LCFF identified group 
of students, to be achieved for each state priority as applicable to type of LEA. An LEA may also 
include additional local priorities. This section shall also include a description of the specific planned 
actions an LEA will take to meet the identified goals, and a description of the expenditures required to 
implement the specific actions. 

School districts and county offices of education: The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is 
reviewed and updated annually, as required.   
Charter schools: The number of years addressed in the LCAP may align with the term of the 
charter schools budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. If year 
2 and/or year 3 is not applicable, charter schools must specify as such.   

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 134 of 147

New, Modified, Unchanged 
As part of the LCAP development process, which includes the annual update and stakeholder 
engagement, indicate if the goal, identified need, related state and/or local priorities, and/or 
expected annual measurable outcomes for the current LCAP year or future LCAP years are 
modified or unchanged from the previous year’s LCAP; or, specify if the goal is new. 

Goal 
State the goal. LEAs may number the goals using the “Goal #” box for ease of reference. A 
goal is a broad statement that describes the desired result to which all actions/services are 
directed. A goal answers the question: What is the LEA seeking to achieve?   

Related State and/or Local Priorities 
List the state and/or local priorities addressed by the goal. The LCAP must include goals that 
address each of the state priorities, as applicable to the type of LEA, and any additional local 
priorities; however, one goal may address multiple priorities. (Link to State Priorities) 

Identified Need 
Describe the needs that led to establishing the goal.  The identified needs may be based on 
quantitative or qualitative information, including, but not limited to, results of the annual update 
process or performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. 

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 
For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) or indicator(s) that the LEA will use to track 
progress toward the expected outcomes. LEAs may identify metrics for specific student 
groups. Include in the baseline column the most recent data associated with this metric or 
indicator available at the time of adoption of the LCAP for the first year of the three-year plan. 
The most recent data associated with a metric or indicator includes data as reported in the 
annual update of the LCAP year immediately preceding the three-year plan, as applicable. The 
baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year LCAP. In the subsequent 
year columns, identify the progress to be made in each year of the three-year cycle of the 
LCAP. Consider how expected outcomes in any given year are related to the expected 
outcomes for subsequent years. 
The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative, but at minimum an LEA must use the applicable 
required metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of 
LEA.  For the student engagement priority metrics, as applicable, LEAs must calculate the 
rates as described in the LCAP Template Appendix, sections (a) through (d). 
 

Planned Actions/Services 
For each action/service, the LEA must complete either the section “For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to meeting Increased or Improved Services Requirement” or the 
section “For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement.” The LEA shall not complete both sections for a single action. 

For Actions/Services Not Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services 
Requirement 

Students to be Served 
The “Students to be Served” box is to be completed for all actions/services except for those 
which are included by the LEA as contributing to meeting the requirement to increase or 
improve services for unduplicated students. Indicate in this box which students will benefit from 
the actions/services by entering “All”, “Students with Disabilities”, or “Specific Student 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 135 of 147

Group(s)”. If “Specific Student Group(s)” is entered, identify the specific student group(s) as 
appropriate. 

Location(s) 
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to 
all schools within the LEA, the LEA must identify “All Schools”. If the services are provided to 
specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must enter “Specific 
Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or 
grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades K-5), as appropriate. 

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter 
petition, may choose to distinguish between sites by entering “Specific Schools” and 
identifying the site(s) where the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools 
operating only one site, “All Schools” and “Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, 
therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter schools may use either term provided they 
are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP. 

For Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services 
Requirement: 

Students to be Served 
For any action/service contributing to the LEA’s overall demonstration that it has increased or 
improved services for unduplicated students above what is provided to all students (see 
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students section, below), 
the LEA must identify the unduplicated student group(s) being served.   

Scope of Service 
For each action/service contributing to meeting the increased or improved services 
requirement, identify the scope of service by indicating “LEA-wide”, “Schoolwide”, or “Limited 
to Unduplicated Student Group(s)”. The LEA must identify one of the following three options: 

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational 
program of the LEA, enter “LEA-wide.” 

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational 
program of a particular school or schools, enter “schoolwide”.  

 If the action/service being funded and provided is limited to the unduplicated students 
identified in “Students to be Served”, enter “Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)”.  

For charter schools and single-school school districts, “LEA-wide” and “Schoolwide” 
may be synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. For charter schools 
operating multiple schools (determined by a unique CDS code) under a single charter, use 
“LEA-wide” to refer to all schools under the charter and use “Schoolwide” to refer to a 
single school authorized within the same charter petition. Charter schools operating a 
single school may use “LEA-wide” or “Schoolwide” provided these terms are used in a 
consistent manner through the LCAP. 

Location(s) 
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to 
all schools within the LEA, the LEA must indicate “All Schools”. If the services are provided to 
specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must enter “Specific 
Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or 
grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades K-5), as appropriate. 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 136 of 147

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter 
petition, may choose to distinguish between sites by entering “Specific Schools” and 
identify the site(s) where the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools 
operating only one site, “All Schools” and “Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, 
therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter schools may use either term provided they 
are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP. 

Actions/Services 
For each LCAP year, identify the actions to be performed and services provided to meet the 
described goal.  Actions and services that are implemented to achieve the identified goal may 
be grouped together.  LEAs may number the action/service using the “Action #” box for ease of 
reference. 

 

New/Modified/Unchanged:  
 Enter “New Action” if the action/service is being added in any of the three years of 

the LCAP to meet the articulated goal.  

 Enter “Modified Action” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated goal 
and has been changed or modified in any way from the prior year description. 

 Enter “Unchanged Action” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated 
goal and has not been changed or modified in any way from the prior year 
description.   

o If a planned action/service is anticipated to remain unchanged for the 
duration of the plan, an LEA may enter “Unchanged Action” and leave the 
subsequent year columns blank rather than having to copy/paste the 
action/service into the subsequent year columns. Budgeted expenditures 
may be treated in the same way as applicable. 

Note: The goal from the prior year may or may not be included in the current three-year 
LCAP. For example, when developing year 1 of the LCAP, the goals articulated in year 3 
of the preceding three-year LCAP will be from the prior year. 

Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter school’s budget 
that is submitted to the school’s authorizer. Accordingly, a charter school submitting a one-year 
budget to its authorizer may choose not to complete the year 2 and year 3 portions of the 
“Goals, Actions, and Services” section of the template.  If year 2 and/or year 3 is not 
applicable, charter schools must specify as such. 

Budgeted Expenditures 
For each action/service, list and describe budgeted expenditures for each school year to 
implement these actions, including where those expenditures can be found in the LEA’s 
budget. The LEA must reference all fund sources for each proposed expenditure. Expenditures 
must be classified using the California School Accounting Manual as required by EC sections 
52061, 52067, and 47606.5.  
Expenditures that are included more than once in an LCAP must be indicated as a duplicated 
expenditure and include a reference to the goal and action/service where the expenditure first 
appears in the LCAP. 
If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, and chooses 
to complete a single LCAP, the LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school 
district or county superintendent of schools) all budgeted expenditures are aligned.  

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 137 of 147

 

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for 
Unduplicated Students 
This section must be completed for each LCAP year. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, 
copy the “Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students” table and 
enter the appropriate LCAP year. Using the copy of the section, complete the section as required for 
the current year LCAP. Retain all prior year sections for each of the three years within the LCAP. 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds 
Identify the amount of funds in the LCAP year calculated on the basis of the number and 
concentration of low income, foster youth, and English learner students as determined 
pursuant to California Code of Regulations, Title 5 (5 CCR) Section 15496(a)(5).  

Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 
Identify the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or 
improved as compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated 
pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7). 

Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR Section 15496, describe how services provided for 
unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage calculated as compared to 
services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  To improve services means to grow services in 
quality and to increase services means to grow services in quantity.  This description must address 
how the action(s)/service(s) limited for one or more unduplicated student group(s), and any 
schoolwide or districtwide action(s)/service(s) supported by the appropriate description, taken 
together, result in the required proportional increase or improvement in services for unduplicated 
pupils. 

If the overall increased or improved services include any actions/services being funded and provided 
on a schoolwide or districtwide basis, identify each action/service and include the required 
descriptions supporting each action/service as follows.  
For those services being provided on an LEA-wide basis: 

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55% or more, and for charter 
schools and county offices of education: Describe how these services are principally directed 
to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. 

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55%: Describe how these 
services are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in 
the state and any local priorities. Also describe how the services are the most effective use of 
the funds to meet these goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this 
determination, including any alternatives considered, supporting research, experience or 
educational theory. 

For school districts only, identify in the description those services being funded and provided on a 
schoolwide basis, and include the required description supporting the use of the funds on a 
schoolwide basis: 

 For schools with 40% or more enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services 
are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the 
state and any local priorities. 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 138 of 147

 For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40% 
enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services are principally directed to and 
how the services are the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for English 
learners, low income students and foster youth, in the state and any local priorities. 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 139 of 147

State Priorities 
Priority 1: Basic Services addresses the degree to which: 

A. Teachers in the LEA are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the subject area and for the 
pupils they are teaching; 

B. Pupils in the school district have sufficient access to the standards-aligned instructional materials; and 
C. School facilities are maintained in good repair. 

Priority 2: Implementation of State Standards addresses: 
A. The implementation of state board adopted academic content and performance standards for all 

students, which are:  
a. English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards (CCSS) for English Language Arts 
b. Mathematics – CCSS for Mathematics 
c. English Language Development (ELD) 
d. Career Technical Education 
e. Health Education Content Standards 
f. History-Social Science 
g. Model School Library Standards 
h. Physical Education Model Content Standards 
i. Next Generation Science Standards 
j. Visual and Performing Arts 
k. World Language; and 

B. How the programs and services will enable English learners to access the CCSS and the ELD 
standards for purposes of gaining academic content knowledge and English language proficiency. 

Priority 3: Parental Involvement addresses: 
A. The efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and 

each individual school site; 
B. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for unduplicated pupils; and  
C. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for individuals with exceptional 

needs. 
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 

A. Statewide assessments; 
B. The Academic Performance Index; 
C. The percentage of pupils who have successfully completed courses that satisfy University of California 

(UC) or California State University (CSU) entrance requirements, or programs of study that align with 
state board approved career technical educational standards and framework; 

D. The percentage of English learner pupils who make progress toward English proficiency as measured 
by the California English Language Development Test (CELDT); 

E. The English learner reclassification rate; 
F. The percentage of pupils who have passed an advanced placement examination with a score of 3 or 

higher; and 
G. The percentage of pupils who participate in, and demonstrate college preparedness pursuant to, the 

Early Assessment Program, or any subsequent assessment of college preparedness. 
Priority 5: Pupil Engagement as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 

A. School attendance rates; 
B. Chronic absenteeism rates; 
C. Middle school dropout rates; 
D. High school dropout rates; and 
E. High school graduation rates; 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 140 of 147

Priority 6: School Climate as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 
A. Pupil suspension rates; 
B. Pupil expulsion rates; and 
C. Other local measures, including surveys of pupils, parents, and teachers on the sense of safety and 

school connectedness. 
Priority 7: Course Access addresses the extent to which pupils have access to and are enrolled in: 

A. S broad course of study including courses described under EC sections 51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as 
applicable; 

B. Programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated pupils; and 
C. Programs and services developed and provided to individuals with exceptional needs. 

Priority 8: Pupil Outcomes addresses pupil outcomes, if available, for courses described under EC sections 
51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as applicable.  
Priority 9: Coordination of Instruction of Expelled Pupils (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate instruction of expelled pupils. 
Priority 10. Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate services for foster children, including:  

A. Working with the county child welfare agency to minimize changes in school placement  
B. Providing education-related information to the county child welfare agency to assist in the delivery of 

services to foster children, including educational status and progress information that is required to be 
included in court reports; 

C. Responding to requests from the juvenile court for information and working with the juvenile court to 
ensure the delivery and coordination of necessary educational services; and 

D. Establishing a mechanism for the efficient expeditious transfer of health and education records and the 
health and education passport. 

Local Priorities address: 
A. Local priority goals; and 
B. Methods for measuring progress toward local goals. 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 141 of 147

APPENDIX A: PRIORITIES 5 AND 6 RATE 
CALCULATION INSTRUCTIONS 
For the purposes of completing the LCAP in reference to the state priorities under EC sections 52060 
and 52066, as applicable to type of LEA, the following shall apply: 

(a) “Chronic absenteeism rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The number of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the 

academic year (July 1 – June 30) who are chronically absent where “chronic absentee” 
means a pupil who is absent 10 percent or more of the schooldays in the school year when 
the total number of days a pupil is absent is divided by the total number of days the pupil is 
enrolled and school was actually taught in the total number of days the pupil is enrolled and 
school was actually taught in the regular day schools of the district, exclusive of Saturdays 
and Sundays. 

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during 
the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 

(3) Divide (1) by (2). 
(b) “Middle School dropout rate” shall be calculated as set forth in 5 CCR Section 1039.1. 
(c) “High school dropout rate” shall be calculated as follows:  

(1) The number of cohort members who dropout by the end of year 4 in the cohort where 
“cohort” is defined as the number of first-time grade 9 pupils in year 1 (starting cohort) plus 
pupils who transfer in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during school years 
1, 2, 3, and 4. 

(2) The total number of cohort members. 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 

(d) “High school graduation rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The number of cohort members who earned a regular high school diploma [or earned an 

adult education high school diploma or passed the California High School Proficiency 
Exam] by the end of year 4 in the cohort where “cohort” is defined as the number of first-
time grade 9 pupils in year 1 (starting cohort) plus pupils who transfer in, minus pupils who 
transfer out, emigrate, or die during school years 1, 2, 3, and 4. 

(2) The total number of cohort members. 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 

(e) “Suspension rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was 

suspended during the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during 

the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 

(f) “Expulsion rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was 

expelled during the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during 

the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 

 
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 42238.07 and 52064, Education Code. Reference: Sections 2574, 
2575, 42238.01, 42238.02, 42238.03, 42238.07, 47605, 47605.6, 47606.5, 48926, 52052, 52060, 
52061, 52062, 52063, 52064, 52066, 52067, 52068, 52069, 52070, 52070.5, and 64001,; 20 U.S.C. 
Sections 6312 and 6314.  

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 142 of 147

 

APPENDIX B: GUIDING QUESTIONS 
Guiding Questions: Annual Review and Analysis 

1)  How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all pupils and did the provisions of 
those services result in the desired outcomes? 

2) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all subgroups of pupils identified 
pursuant to EC Section 52052, including, but not limited to, English learners, low-income 
pupils, and foster youth; and did the provision of those actions/services result in the desired 
outcomes?  

3) How have the actions/services addressed the identified needs and goals of specific school 
sites and were these actions/services effective in achieving the desired outcomes? 

4) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was examined to review 
progress toward goals in the annual update? 

5) What progress has been achieved toward the goal and expected measurable outcome(s)? 
How effective were the actions and services in making progress toward the goal? What 
changes to goals, actions, services, and expenditures are being made in the LCAP as a result 
of the review of progress and assessment of the effectiveness of the actions and services?  

6) What differences are there between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual annual 
expenditures? What were the reasons for any differences? 

 

Guiding Questions: Stakeholder Engagement 
1) How have applicable stakeholders (e.g., parents and pupils, including parents of unduplicated 

pupils and unduplicated pupils identified in EC Section 42238.01; community members; local 
bargaining units; LEA personnel; county child welfare agencies; county office of education 
foster youth services programs, court-appointed special advocates, and other foster youth 
stakeholders; community organizations representing English learners; and others as 
appropriate) been engaged and involved in developing, reviewing, and supporting 
implementation of the LCAP?  

2) How have stakeholders been included in the LEA’s process in a timely manner to allow for 
engagement in the development of the LCAP? 

3) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was made available to 
stakeholders related to the state priorities and used by the LEA to inform the LCAP goal setting 
process? How was the information made available? 

4)  What changes, if any, were made in the LCAP prior to adoption as a result of written 
comments or other feedback received by the LEA through any of the LEA’s engagement 
processes? 

5) What specific actions were taken to meet statutory requirements for stakeholder engagement 
pursuant to EC sections 52062, 52068, or 47606.5, as applicable, including engagement with 
representatives of parents and guardians of pupils identified in EC Section 42238.01? 

6) What specific actions were taken to consult with pupils to meet the requirements 5 CCR 
Section 15495(a)? 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 143 of 147

7) How has stakeholder involvement been continued and supported?  How has the involvement 
of these stakeholders supported improved outcomes for pupils, including unduplicated pupils, 
related to the state priorities? 

 

Guiding Questions: Goals, Actions, and Services 
1) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Conditions of Learning”: Basic 

Services (Priority 1), the Implementation of State Standards (Priority 2), and Course Access 
(Priority 7)? 

2) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Pupil Outcomes”: Pupil 
Achievement (Priority 4), Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8), Coordination of Instruction of Expelled 
Pupils (Priority 9 – COE Only), and Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (Priority 10 – 
COE Only)?  

3) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to parent and pupil 
“Engagement”: Parental Involvement (Priority 3), Pupil Engagement (Priority 5), and School 
Climate (Priority 6)? 

4) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address any locally-identified priorities?  
5) How have the unique needs of individual school sites been evaluated to inform the 

development of meaningful district and/or individual school site goals (e.g., input from site level 
advisory groups, staff, parents, community, pupils; review of school level plans; in-depth 
school level data analysis, etc.)?  

6) What are the unique goals for unduplicated pupils as defined in EC Section 42238.01 and 
groups as defined in EC Section 52052 that are different from the LEA’s goals for all pupils? 

7) What are the specific expected measurable outcomes associated with each of the goals 
annually and over the term of the LCAP? 

8) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was considered/reviewed to 
develop goals to address each state or local priority? 

9) What information was considered/reviewed for individual school sites? 
10) What information was considered/reviewed for subgroups identified in EC Section 52052? 
11) What actions/services will be provided to all pupils, to subgroups of pupils identified pursuant 

to EC Section 52052, to specific school sites, to English learners, to low-income pupils, and/or 
to foster youth to achieve goals identified in the LCAP? 

12) How do these actions/services link to identified goals and expected measurable outcomes?  
13) What expenditures support changes to actions/services as a result of the goal identified?  

Where can these expenditures be found in the LEA’s budget? 
 
 
Prepared by the California Department of Education, October 2016 

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 144 of 147

 

LCAP Expenditure Summary 
 

Total Expenditures by Funding Source 

Funding Source 
2017-18 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2017-18 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

2017-18 
through 
2019-20 

Total 
All Funding Sources 8,553,206.00 8,509,897.00 8,553,206.00 8,771,500.00 8,774,500.00 26,099,206.00 
LCFF  8,165,202.00 8,159,706.00 8,361,000.00 8,575,000.00 25,095,706.00 
Supplemental  344,695.00 393,500.00 410,500.00 199,500.00 1,003,500.00 

 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 145 of 147

Total Expenditures by Object Type 

Object Type 
2017-18 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2017-18 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

2017-18 
through 
2019-20 

Total 
All Expenditure Types 8,553,206.00 8,509,897.00 8,553,206.00 8,771,500.00 8,774,500.00 26,099,206.00 
 1,500,000.00 1,493,140.00 1,500,000.00 1,600,000.00 1,700,000.00 4,800,000.00 
0000: Unrestricted 7,053,206.00 7,016,757.00 7,053,206.00 7,171,500.00 7,074,500.00 21,299,206.00 

 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 146 of 147

Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source 

Object Type Funding Source 
2017-18 
Annual 
Update 

Budgeted 

2017-18 
Annual 
Update 
Actual 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
2017-18 
through 
2019-20 

Total 
All Expenditure Types All Funding Sources 8,553,206.00 8,509,897.00 8,553,206.00 8,771,500.00 8,774,500.00 26,099,206.00 
 LCFF 1,500,000.00 1,493,140.00 1,500,000.00 1,600,000.00 1,700,000.00 4,800,000.00 
0000: Unrestricted LCFF 6,659,706.00 6,672,062.00 6,659,706.00 6,761,000.00 6,875,000.00 20,295,706.00 
0000: Unrestricted Supplemental 393,500.00 344,695.00 393,500.00 410,500.00 199,500.00 1,003,500.00 

 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



Page 147 of 147

Total Expenditures by Goal 

Goal 
2017-18 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2017-18 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

2017-18 
through 
2019-20 

Total 
Goal 1 7,660,000.00 7,710,649.00 7,660,000.00 7,864,000.00 8,068,000.00 23,592,000.00 

Goal 2   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Goal 3 456,505.00 400,055.00 456,505.00 455,500.00 464,000.00 1,376,005.00 

Goal 4 283,000.00 230,726.00 283,000.00 290,000.00 73,000.00 646,000.00 

Goal 5   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Goal 6 153,701.00 168,467.00 153,701.00 162,000.00 169,500.00 485,201.00 

Goal 7   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Goal 8   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Goal 10   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Goal 12   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

DRAFT: May 8, 2018



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-PUBLIC HEARING- 

 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

1000 YULUPA AVE. 

SANTA ROSA, CA  95405 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

TUESDAY, May 8, 2018 

6:03 P.M. 

RINCON VALLEY UNION DISTRICT OFFICE 

 
Proposed Budget  

 

 

The Board of Trustees shall encourage participation by parents, teachers, members of the 

community interested in the affairs of the school district, and bargaining unit leaders, to 

discuss the 2018-19 preliminary budget at the public hearing on May 8, 2018. 

 

The 2018-19 preliminary budget will be available in the lobby of the Rincon Valley Union 

School District office, located at 1000 Yulupa Ave., Santa Rosa, CA  95405, for public 

inspection between the hours of 8 a.m. and 5 p.m. from May 1 to May 8, 2018.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 











Rincon Valley Union School District 
2017 – 2018 

6th Grade Community Service 
100 Hours or More 

 
Binkley 

Jorge Arias Garfias             111 
Bayle Mansell               120 
Nikki Budhathoki              121 
Jaime Onate                190 
 

Madrone 
Sophia Arnold               110 
Gabriella Torres Fuentes          192.75 
 

Matanzas 
Hugo Bertrand              105 
Max Azevedo                           107 
Maya Martinez              114.5 
Olivia Liles                302.5 
 
 

Sequoia 
Ricardo Bolanos              104 

 
Whited 

Leslie Robles                115 
Julia Garza                128 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: May 8, 2018 

Agenda Item: Information Item 14.1a 

Subject: Art Program and Participation 

Submitter:  Dr. Terry Metzger, Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum 
    
 
Background: Mrs. Jeannie Behr will provide a summary of the Art Docent program. 
 
Highlights:  

Challenges:  

Analysis:  

Next Steps:  

 
Attachments: none 
  
 
Fiscal Impact:  NA 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: May 8, 2018 

Agenda Item: Information Item 14.1b 

Subject: Professional Development Summary 

Submitter:  Dr. Terry Metzger, Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum 
    
 
Background: This year, we focused on our first-year implementation of the Benchmark Advance 

ELA/ELD program, and deeper implementation of Engage New York Math. Nearly 
all of our professional development centered on those two areas. 

 
Highlights: Providing two days of training during the summer for nearly all (90%) of our 

elementary teachers was a very good decision. Teachers got their materials early 
and were able to get a head start on planning and preparation for the school year. 
Teachers who were not available in the summer were trained at the August 
Buyback Day and assigned a Consulting Teacher to assist with initial planning. We 
also provided two days of training for Math during the summer. About 75% of our 
teachers attended, which made a big difference in how ENY Math was 
implemented this year. Teachers who were not available in the summer were 
trained by the same trainer mid-year so that everyone heard a consistent message. 
District Wednesday Inservices focused on ELs (2), ELA (3), and CAASPP (1). 

 
 Based on assessment data and teacher feedback, we provided teachers in grades 5 

& 6 some additional training in math and science. We focused on developing 
deeper content understanding in these two areas. 

 
 Middle school faculty had specialized professional development in Project Based 

Learning (PBL) that was very beneficial and well received. 

Challenges: We made a conscious decision to limit the number of release day PD sessions we 
offered, as we recognized that teachers needed to be in their classrooms as much as 
possible (particularly after the fires). 

Analysis: While teachers are grateful to not be pulled from their classrooms, they have also 
requested more time with their district grade level teams to plan and refine their 
work in ELA, ELD, and Math. 

 
Teachers have indicated that they appreciate and want PD opportunities in the 
summer. As we discussed at the December Board Study Session, we are keeping 
the focus narrow for this summer. 
 
Implementation of Benchmark Advance and ENY Math is clearly evident during 
classroom observations. 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 

 

Next Steps: For 2018-19, we plan to: 

 Offer summer PD opportunities to help teachers as they move into second year 
implementation of Benchmark Advance. These trainings will include 
presentations from RVUSD teachers who have had very good success with the 
program components so far. 

 Offer summer PD opportunities to help teachers with overall math instruction 
and program pacing. These trainings will include presentations from RVUSD 
teachers who have had very good success with blending practices such as 
number talks with ENY Math. 

 Maintain our professional learning focus on ELA, ELD, and Math, with a 
common thread of developing a common understanding and agreements 
around HQI in all content areas. 

 
Attachments: None 
  
 
Fiscal Impact:  NA 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: May 8, 2018 

Agenda Item: Information Item 14.1c 

Subject: Home Study Report 

Submitter:  Dr. Terry Metzger, Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum 
    
 
Background: Mrs. Emily Davis will present a summary of the district’s Home Study program. 
 
Highlights:  

Challenges:  

Analysis:  

Next Steps:  

 
Attachments: 2017-18 Home Study Report 
  
 
Fiscal Impact:  NA 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



	
	

Home	Study	Program	Update	
Prepared	by	Emily	Davis,	Coordinator	

	
Enrollment	History	
	 2013-14	 2014-15	 2015-16	 2016-17	 2017-18	
Start	of	Year	 2	 16	 27	 37	 29	
End	of	Year	 24	 27	 45	 47	 42	

	
Program	Highlights	
Curriculum	pacing	to	fit	individual	needs	(monitored	by	benchmarks	to	ensure	standard	mastery)	
Weekly	enrichment	–	K-6	art	&	writing	
Bi-weekly	campus	part	days	(9:30-11:30)	to	monitor	and	assist	with	core	subject	areas	
Group	field	trips	to	SR	Symphony,	Marine	Mammal	Center,	LBC	performances	
Oral	report	presentations	to	group	at	each	trimester	
3	week	Lego	Robotics	class	
Family	Outing	&	Picnic	(End-of-Year	Celebration)	
Spring	marketing	campaign	underway	
	
Successes	
Increased	enrollment	
Families	happy	with	program		
NGSS	lessons	and	labs	offered	to	families	
Larger	growth	than	last	year		
	
Challenges	
Enrichment	for	K-2	and	3-8	making	lessons	fit	all	grades	
Enrichment	optional,	so	inconsistent	attendance	
Five	8th	graders	aging	out	of	program	
Not	enough	enrollment	to	have	grade	range	specific	classes	
	
Next	Year	
Starting	with	35-37	students	in	Kindergarten-8th	grades	(+/-8	new	to	program)	
Singapore	Math	K-8,	year	4	
Consistent	staffing	(year	3)	
Increased	enrichment	to	include	more	science	
Separate	K-2,	3-8	enrichment	groups	
Rosetta	Stone	offered	to	families	
Chromebook	availability	if	needed	by	family	
More	family	social	times	
Edgenuity	to	continue	for	6/7/8	online	curriculum	
Parent	trainings		

	
Looking	Ahead	beyond	2018-19	
Grow	to	100	students,	5.0	FTE	staff,	more	enrichment	offerings	
Program	flexibility	to	accommodate	individual	family	needs		

	



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: May 8, 2018 

Agenda Item: Information Item 14.2a 

Subject: Student Support Summary 

Submitter:  Mrs. Cathy Myhers, Assistant Superintendent for Student Services 
    
 
Background: This has been a unique year for our Student Support Team.   In our 3rd year of 

having counselors we were confronted with a devastating natural disaster.  The 
data continues to show the impact they are having on district, site and student 
levels.   

 
Highlights: As a District the counselors have provided the following number of services to 

their school sites.   
 
   

 

 

 

 These services were provided in addition to the unplanned interventions that 
happen on a day to day basis.   

Challenges: The counselors continue to wear many hats at their school sites.  They are typically 
the “Go-To Person” when a student is having behavioral or emotional difficulties, 
in addition to being the person who monitors attendance at each site.  They support 
the implementation of social-emotional learning curriculum and respond to crises 
when needed.   The challenge is defining the role of the counselor and supporting 
them to be successful in that role, while continuing to be responsive to unplanned 
needs.    

Analysis: Analyzing the numbers from year to year, it is easy to see how busy the counselors 
have been.  Through the counseling response to the Wildfires, we see a dramatic 
increase in the number of students being seen for individual counseling and an 
increase in Restorative Circles.         

Next Steps: The counselors will be a key group as we roll out the Tier I behavior guidelines.  
They will work directly with teachers to support the implementation of the 
programs and to help students who move to Tier II based on needing a more 
targeted level of support.  The counselors will also be supporting the district goals 
of parent engagement as they continue to lead parent discussions.     

 

   16/17  17/18 

Kimochi Lessons  350+  730+ 

Restorative Circles  225+  250+ 

Classroom Guidance  200+  225+ 

Small Groups  50+  65+ 

Individual Counseling  250+  345+ 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Attachments: None 
  
Fiscal Impact:  NA 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: May 8, 2018 

Agenda Item: Information Item 14.2b 

Subject: Family Survey Summary 

Submitter:  Mrs. Cathy Myhers, Assistant Superintendent for Student Services 
    
 
Background: The Family Survey was sent out to all of the families in the district.  This survey is 

sent out annually to collect information from families on how they view their 
schools.  503 families completed the English survey and 5 completed the Spanish 
survey.    

 
Highlights: The overall results of the survey are consistent with the results that we received 

last year.  Some areas that showed a positive increase were in parents feeling that 
they are receiving communication from the school on expectations and how their 
child is progressing.  One area that showed a decrease in positive parent response 
was in feeling that the schools are safe and orderly for their child.  This survey 
continues to be a good tool for the district to be able to review and make 
adjustments to how we interact with our families. 

Challenges: A few of the challenges are, that we are not getting the number of family responses 
that we would like.  Approximately 15% of families took the survey.  Of the 508, 
only 5 Spanish speaking families completed it.  There is a marked decline in 
responses are the survey goes on.  By question 27 only 439 families marked a 
response.   

Analysis: The overall results are very positive, for the families who completed the survey.  It 
is difficult to generalize that these results reflect the beliefs of all of the families in 
the district.  Analyzing with caution, the results indicate that communication to 
parents is improving and that parents are treated with respect by the staff at their 
child’s school.   

Next Steps: An important next step is to increase the number of families who participate in the 
survey.  Considerations are: shortening the survey, having a computer available for 
families to use before/after school during the survey window and reaching out to 
parents in a different way to encourage their participation.   

 
Attachments: Family Survey Results Spring 2017 and 2018 
  
 
Fiscal Impact:  NA 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



Family Survey Spring 2017 and Spring 2018 

Percent Choosing “Always” or “Most of the Time” 

 

 Item 2017 2018  
     

1. Communication with my child’s school is effective. 88.52 88.56  

2. Communication with my child’s classroom is effective. 85.80 90.04  

3. I am informed about what my child is expected to learn. 78.60 84.11  

4. I am informed about my child’s progress. 80.16 84.96  

5. I am satisfied with the quality of the instructional program. 87.08 88.55  

6. I feel homework is reasonable and adequate. 78.53 81.64  

7. My child is being challenged at an appropriate level. 80.12 83.15  

8. My child is showing academic growth this year. 86.48 87.69  

9. The school is safe and orderly for students. 93.16 87.36  

10. The school has clear expectations for student behavior. 89.94 88.67  

11. The school buildings and grounds are clean. 94.56 93.68  

12. My child feels comfortable going to a staff member when he/she needs 

help solving a problem. 

79.20 83.88  

13. My child feels safe on the playground. 89.54 86.27  

14. I am satisfied with the school’s efforts to improve student well-being 

(physical and mental health). 

85.65 82.38  

15. I am confident that the school will act appropriately should my child 

require assistance. 

85.46 85.02  

16. I feel welcome at school. 92.81 91.57  

17. People who work at the school treat me with respect. 95.68 94.99  

18. Parents/community members are encouraged to participate. 91.99 92.26  

19. The School welcomes parent input. 79.26 83.37  

20. The staff provides my child with what he or she needs. 88.71 89.06  

21. I feel comfortable approaching the staff with questions or concerns. 90.14 88.61  

22. The staff responds to my questions/concerns in a satisfactory time 

frame. 

87.27 88.38  

23. I feel the staff truly cares about my child. 90.14 90.43  

24. My child is recognized/praised by staff members for his/her effort. 80.08 83.37  

25. My child is generally happy about coming to school. 83.99 87.02  
Spring 2017 # of Respondents = 549; Spring 2018 # of Respondents = 508 

 

 

 

The Rincon Valley Union School District Values communication between home and district.  

Please indicate how you value the following. 

Percentage of families stating Excellent/Useful: 

     16/17    17/18 
 The RVUSD Website  75.38%   79.19% 

 The RVUSD Chalkboard 65.28%   66.01% 

 Email Contact   88.84%   91.41% 

 Phone Contact   84.60%   79.95% 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: May 8, 2018 

Agenda Item: Information Item 14.3 

Subject: Oak Park Property Update 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  
    
 
Background: The Superintendent recently established a committee to oversee several key tasks 

when the District assumes ownership of the Oak Grove property.  The committee 
has met on three occasions, including a visit to walk the property and inspect the 
two residences.  

 
Highlights: The committee has focused on the immediate needs towards ensuring a smooth 

transition of ownership occurs.  Among the topics discussed and decisions made 
are: 

1. Security of the property to include ensuring that infrastructure is in place 
to prevent trespassing and unlawful/unauthorized use of the property.  
After touring the site, it is clear that a six foot fence surrounding the 
property would be both expensive and change the look of the 
neighborhood.  Therefore, the committee intends to shore up the existing 
fencing while securing some of the back areas that are less visible.  In 
addition, the committee recommends removal of interior fencing, light 
poles, and some vegetation in order to make it easier to mow and maintain 
the property. 

2. Liability and insurance coverage to limit the District’s liability, to the 
degree possible, for unforeseen circumstances with appropriate insurance 
to cover such incidents.  Once ownership has been established, the property 
will come under current insurance policies.  Staff is confident the level of 
insurance will protect the district in the same manner as any other district 
owned property. 

3. Use of the two residences to include steps needed to rent the residences 
including potential Board action and possible improvements to the homes.  
Both homes are structurally secure with solid roofing systems.  However, 
both require new flooring, cabinetry, and appliances.  There are some areas 
where drywall will need to be replaced.   

4. Establishment of a communication plan that provides information to 
neighbors, District residents, and other stakeholders on the District’s Oak 
Park website and via Facebook.  Once we fully understand the various 
steps to be taken, the committee will provide communication to the 
neighbors in the area, as well as all individuals that have expressed an 
interest in the project.  Additional communication will be via the 
Chalkboard, our website, and our Facebook page. 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 

Challenges: The most important challenge is the timing of the end of our option agreement to 
purchase the property.  The District must initiate closing proceedings by May 15, 
2018 or the purchase option expires.  While the site has been cleaned and soil 
testing complete with no issues found, there remains one final step in this process.  
Paperwork has been submitted to the County for their final certification that the 
cleanup is complete and meets their criteria.  Ideally, this certification would occur 
before we close on the property.  However, given the long timelines for the County 
to act, it is very likely final certification will not occur before our need to finalize 
the purchase.   

Analysis: Staff has conferred with legal counsel and has been assured that there is little to no 
risk of finalizing the purchase prior to the County’s final certification.  The future 
State requirements before developing for a public school are much more strenuous 
and exacting than the County’s.   Therefore, staff intends to proceed with finalizing 
the purchase.   

Next Steps: Next steps for the committee include getting pricing for fencing and remodels of 
the residences.  The next step for staff is to proceed to finalize the purchase. 

  
Attachments:  None 
 
Fiscal Impact:   None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: May 8, 2018 

Agenda Item: Information Item 14.4 

Subject: Draft 2018-19 District Goals 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  
    
 
Background: The Governing Board establishes annual goals that serve to focus the district 

and ensure coherence across the district schools.  Having recently reviewed our 
progress in meeting the current year goals, it is time to begin formalizing the 
Board’s goals for the 2018-19 school year. 

 
 The attached five draft goals are aligned to the District’s LCAP and provide 

specific actions designed to attain each goal.    
 
Highlights: In prior years, the Board and District goals incorporated a range of actions that 

spread across four domains to include 1) Instruction, Assessment, Support, and 
Character Development, 2) Professional Development, 3) Facilities and 
Finance, and 4) Governance and Communication.  In order to focus the District 
and Governing Board, five key goals have been separated into a single 
document that comprise the Board and District proposed goals for 2018-19.  
The remaining goals are included in a new document titled Administrative 
Calendar.  The Professional Development section has been embedded within 
the other topic areas.   

Challenges:  N/A 

Analysis: This approach provides greater attention to the key goals while providing staff 
with specific timelines to address and report back to the Board throughout the year. 

Next Steps: After receiving feedback from the Governing Board, the documents will be revised 
and brought back in June for consideration of adoption. 

 
Attachments: 2018-19 Board/District Goals DRAFT 
 2018-19 Administrative Calendar DRAFT 
  
 
Fiscal Impact:   None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District                             
2018-19 District and Board Goals 

DRAFT May 8, 2018 1 

 

Over-arching Goal:   Continuously improve instructional programs to fully engage students, enabling them to be successful 
in rigorous academic programs, the arts, health and wellness.  Guide students in their development of collaborative 
communication, responsible decision-making skills, and innovation.   
 

Instruction, Assessment, Support, and Character Development  
Goals/Metrics Actions/Services Report Timeline  Status 

 
1.0  Ensure that all students, including 
significant subgroups, demonstrate 
growth year to year as measured by 
the ELA CAASPP assessments and 
reflected on the status and change 
placement on the California School 
Dashboard. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1.1  Evaluate the writing program options 
(Benchmark Advance and Writing by Design) for 
selection as the core approach. 
 
1.2  Evaluate the phonic program options 
(Benchmark Advance and SIPPS) to ensure all 
students reach mastery of all skills in a timely 
manner)  
 
1.3  Provide site specific professional development 
for teachers and principals in the use of the SBAC 
ELA interim assessments in order to gauge student 
performance and to provide students practice taking 
assessments in that format. 
 
1.4  Continue to support principals, support 
coordinators, and counselors in developing site-
based systems to provide appropriate intervention 
support to at-risk students in ELA and to monitor 
the success of the interventions. 
 
1.5  Establish the district-wide expectation that 
grade alike teachers use their new common prep 
time to regularly (2x per month)  meet for common 
grade level planning. 
 
1.6  Study options for supporting teachers and 
principals to implement Benchmark Advance and 
evaluate options against the current consulting 
teacher model. 
 
 
 
 

 
November – ELA/Benchmark Advance 
Status Report 
 
 
November – ELA/Benchmark Advance 
Status Report 
 
 
 
November – Professional Development 
Report 
 
 
 
 
December – Student Support Report 
 
 
 
 
 
February – Professional Development 
Report  
 
 
 
February – Professional Development 
Report  
 
As topics are appropriate, to be included in 
monthly Curriculum Committee Reports 
 
September – CAASPP Results Report 
TBD – CA School Dashboard Report 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District                             
2018-19 District and Board Goals 

DRAFT May 8, 2018 2 

Instruction, Assessment, Support, and Character Development (continued) 

Goals/Metrics Actions/Services Report Timeline Status 
 
2.0  Ensure that all students, including 
significant subgroups, demonstrate 
growth year to year as measured by 
the Math CAASPP assessments and 
reflected on the status and change 
placement on the California School 
Dashboard. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2.1  Analyze the Engage New York program to 
identify potential gaps and to identify key the key 
conceptual development through the grade levels. 
 
2.2  Provide math literacy professional 
development to our teachers and principals to 
bolster their understanding of mathematical 
concepts and relationships.   
 
2.3  Provide site specific professional development 
for teachers and principals in the use of the SBAC 
math interim assessments in order to gauge student 
performance and to provide students practice taking 
assessments in that format. 
 
2.4  Continue to support principals, support 
coordinators, and counselors in developing site-
based systems to provide appropriate intervention 
support to at-risk students in math and to monitor 
the success of the interventions. 
 
2.5  Study options for supporting teachers and 
principals to implement effective instruction in 
math and evaluate options against the current 
consulting teacher model. 
 
2.6  Explore scheduling options for middle school 
that support effective math instruction. 
 
2.7  Select math program options for middle school 
and pilot the materials. 
 
 
 

 
November – Math Status Report 
 
 
 
February – Professional Development 
Report  
 
 
 
November – Professional Development 
Report 
 
 
 
 
November – Math Status Report 
 
 
 
 
 
February – Professional Development 
Report  
 
 
 
November – Math Status Report 
 
 
March – Math Status Report 
 
 

 
As topics are appropriate, to be included 
in monthly Curriculum Committee 
Reports 
 
September – CAASPP Results Report 
TBD – CA School Dashboard Report 

 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District                             
2018-19 District and Board Goals 

DRAFT May 8, 2018 3 

 Instruction, Assessment, Support, and Character Development (continued) 

Goals/Metrics Actions/Services Report Timeline  Status 
 
3.0  Every English learner moves at 
least one level on the California 
English learner assessment (CELDT 
or ELPAC) and is on target and within 
timelines, as defined by State and 
local criteria, to be Reclassified as 
Fluent English Proficient (R-FEP) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
3.1  Use the resource of the EL Coordinator to 
quarterly pull language acquisition and academic 
performance data for at risk of and long term 
English learners by grade and school, provide the 
reports to principals to be used by teachers in 
planning instruction and by the support coordinator 
in planning interventions. 
 
3.2  Examine current designated ELD structures to 
ensure instruction is targeted to the language 
acquisition level of each English learner. 
 
3.3  Study options for supporting teachers and 
principals implement effective instruction that 
accelerates English language acquisition for 
English learners and increases academic 
performance.  Once done, evaluate options against 
the current consulting teacher model. 
 
3.4  Provide professional development for teachers 
and principals specific to second language 
acquisition and the relationship between core 
access (integrated) and language development 
(designated) instruction.   
 
3.5  Provide targeted instruction for English 
learners both during the school year and during 
summer. 

 
February EL Status Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
October EL Status Report 
 
 
 
February – Professional Development 
Report  
 
 
 
 
 
November – Professional Development 
Report 
 
 
 
 
September – Summer Intervention Report 
 
 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District                             
2018-19 District and Board Goals 

DRAFT May 8, 2018 4 

Instruction, Assessment, Support, and Character Development (continued) 

Goals/Metrics Actions/Services Report Timeline  Status 
 
4.0  Every student is enrolled in a 
school that promotes a positive school 
climate that results in a safe learning 
environment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
4.1  Continue to support principals and counselors 
in developing site-based systems to monitor 
students benefitting from services to improve their 
behavior. 
 
4.2  Expand RVP options to serve students with 
behavior issues that significantly impact their 
learning. 
 
4.3  Provide refresh training to teachers and 
support personnel on the various SEL programs to 
include Kimochi’s, ToolBox, Restorative 
Practices, and Time to Teach.  Provide this 
professional development to other employees that 
have not been trained. 
 
4.4  Deepen our commitment to provide 
PlayWorks options at all elementary schools so 
that personnel are not pulled away from providing 
this program. 
 
4.5  Review the District’s Code of Behavior to 
ensure it clearly articulates district-wide grade 
level expectations. 
 
4.6  Restructure Back-to-School Night to provide 
parents with examples of curricular and behavioral 
programs and expectations.   
 
4.7  Provide parent education through Parent 
University and site-based community events when 
large numbers of parents normally attend. 
 
 
 
 

 
December – Student Support Report 
 
 
 
 
October – RVP Report 
 
 
 
February – Professional Development 
Report 
 
 
 
 
 
September – Student Support Services 
Report 
 
 
 
September – Student Support Services 
Report 
 
 
September – Student Support Services 
Report 
 
 
December – Parent Education Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
As topics are appropriate, to be included in 
monthly Behavior Committee Reports 
 
 
 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District                             
2018-19 District and Board Goals 

DRAFT May 8, 2018 5 

Instruction, Assessment, Support, and Character Development (continued) 

Goals/Metrics Actions/Services Report Timeline  Status 
 
5.0  Every site administrator has a 
highly developed understanding of 
locally defined, high quality 
instructional practices.  Each site 
administrator has collaborated their 
understanding of these practices with 
colleagues across the district.  As a 
result, teachers are provided consistent 
feedback and support in implementing 
core instruction. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5.1  Continue the work with CEL in 2018-19 in 
order to further enhance the capacity of our site 
administrative team as instructional leaders.  
Expand this effort in 2018-19 to include teacher 
leaders at each school.   
 
5.2  Develop by our site administrative team, a 
common model of effective grade level planning 
that includes monitoring of the practice by site 
administrators. 
 
5.3  Develop district and school-bases systems that 
allow for and encourage grade level and across 
grade level articulation for academic and social 
emotional purposes. 
 
 

 
September – Administrative Professional 
Development Report (follow-up in 
February) 
 
 
 
November – Professional Development 
Report 
 
 
 
December – Student Support Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District                             
2018-19 Administrative Calendar 

DRAFT May 8, 2018 1 

 

Over-arching Goal:   Continuously improve instructional programs to fully engage students, enabling them to be successful 
in rigorous academic programs, the arts, health and wellness.  Guide students in their development of collaborative 
communication, responsible decision-making skills, and innovation.   
 

Area 1:  Instruction, Assessment, Support, and Character Development  
Goals/Metrics Actions/Services Report Timeline  Status 

 
1.0 Every teacher providing core 
instruction is classified as highly 
qualified as defined by the State of 
California's Highly Qualified teacher 
criteria and measured by an audit of all 
teacher credentials. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.0  Every student is provided core 
instructional materials that align to the 
California State adopted standards as 
supported by the State textbook 
adoption criteria as verified by the 
Instructional Materials Order Form 
submitted by each teacher. 
 

 
1.1  Ensure every teacher is Highly Qualified and 
appropriately credentialed for their assignment 
 
1.2  Provide a “New Teachers” series to help them 
navigate the culture and practices of the district 
 
1.3  Implement “Diff Cert” classes A-D for a new 
cohort and prepare participants to successfully 
complete class E in Fall 2018. 
 
1.4  Recognize “certified” teachers at end-of-year 
celebration  
 
1.5  Explore evaluation rubric options 
 
 
2.1  Ensure every student is provided with standards 
aligned instructional materials in all core subject 
areas. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
October – Personnel Report 
 
 
September – New Teacher Training Report 
 
 
January – Diff Cert update 
 
 
 
 
 
 
October & April – Evaluation Report 
 
 
September – Sufficiency Resolution 
 
 

 

  
 
 
 
 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District                             
2018-19 Administrative Calendar 

DRAFT May 8, 2018 2 

Goal Area 1(continued):  Instruction, Assessment, Support, and Character Development 
Goals/Metrics Actions/Services Report Timeline  Status 

 
3.0  Ensure that all students have 
access to high quality visual and 
performing art programs at the district, 
school, and classroom level. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.0  Increase student access to, and 
competence with, technology 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.0  Increase enrollment in Home 
Study Program 
 

 
3.1  Provide professional development 
opportunities for Music, Art and Drama teachers 
 
3.2.  Provide collaboration opportunities between 
music teachers and classroom teachers 
 
3.3.  Provide Art Docent and Dance Docent 
lessons at all schools; maintain adequate number 
of docents and provide regular training 
 
3.4.  Provide a forum to share ideas and resources 
for Fine Arts Days, classroom plays and 
presentations, and school-wide assemblies and 
performances 
 
3.5  Pilot the “music for all” concept at least four 
schools in 2018-19 as a strategy to reduce 
classroom interruptions during core instruction 
time, ensure all students are involved in music, and 
provide grade alike teachers with weekly common 
planning time. 
 
 
4.1  Expand how grade 3-8 students utilize mobile 
devices in their classrooms in lieu of computer lab 
sessions as appropriate for instruction.  
 
4.2  Continue implementation of K-8 scope and 
sequence of technology skills and experiences. 
 
4.3  Develop long-range plan for library and 
computer lab configuration and usage (i.e. 
instructional media centers/maker spaces) 
 
 
5.1  Expand Home Study Program to include 
online learning, advanced class options, 
enrichment classes and other offerings that provide 
options for families looking for alternatives to the 
traditional school setting 
 

 
March – Music Program Report 
 
 
March – Music Program Report 
 
 
May – Visual and Performing Arts Report 

 

 
May – Visual and Performing Arts Report 

 

 
March – Music Program Report 

 
 

 
 

 

November – Technology Report 

 

 
March – Instructional Technology 
Summary 
 
April – Library/Media Center Plan  
 
 
 
 
September – Enrollment report 
 
 
 
 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District                             
2018-19 Administrative Calendar 

DRAFT May 8, 2018 3 

Goal Area 1(continued):  Instruction, Assessment, Support, and Character Development 
Goals/Metrics Actions/Services Report Timeline  Status 

 
6.0  Provide an appropriately 
challenging program for gifted and 
talented students 

- STAR reading and math scores 
- Student and parent survey 
- Individual Learning Plans 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.0  Increase student awareness of 
health and wellness factors 

- 5th grade PE test 
- Use of gardens 
- PE minutes 

 
 
 
 

 
8.0  Study and plan for revision of the 
middle school program (s) 
 
 
 
 
 
9.0  Provide safety training for all 
staff. 
 
 
 
 

 
6.1  Develop criteria that accurately identifies 
students from all demographic subgroups 
 
6.2  Provide teacher support through demo lessons, 
observations of students, coaching, and planning 
 
6.3  Provide opportunities and support for students 
to extend their learning in the classroom 
 
6.4  Provide enrichment opportunities outside of 
the classroom 
 
 
7.1  Ensure that CA Physical Education standards 
are taught through the PE program 
 
7.2  Promote participation in President’s Physical 
Fitness program  
 
7.3  Promote school gardens 
 
7.4  Provide opportunities for healthy lifestyle (i.e. 
top chef competition, walk-a-thons, district track 
meet) 
 
 
8.1  Evaluate the work to date of the middle school 
refresh committee to either finalize 
recommendations to the Board or to begin 
implementation of those recommendations 
approved by the Board 
 
 
9.1  Develop plan for safety training for all staff  

- Digital citizenship 
- Sexual harassment prevention  
- Child abuse reporting 
- Emergency procedures (fire drill, 

earthquake, lockdown) 
 
9.2  Implement safety training plan  

 
September – Identification process  
 
 
May – End of Year Report 
 
 
May – End of Year Report 
 
 
May – End of Year Report 
 
 
 
September – PE Testing Results 
 
 
April – Student Health Initiatives   
 
 
April – Student Health Initiatives   
 
April – Student Health Initiatives   
 
 
 
 
October – Middle Schools Programs 
 
 
 
 
 
 
January – Safety Training Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
January – Safety Training Report 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District                             
2018-19 Administrative Calendar 

DRAFT May 8, 2018 4 

Goal Area 2:  Facilities and Finances 
Goals/Metrics Actions/Services Report Timeline Status 

 
10.0  Every school and learning 
facility operated by the District meets 
the State's criteria of good repair as 
verified by annual FIT site 
inspections.  
 
 
11.0  Develop well managed budgets 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
12.0  Increase contributions from 
Rincon Valley Ed Foundation.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
13.0  Implement the Master Facility 
Plan 
 

 
101.  Ensure every student is housed in facilities 
that meet the State criteria for being in good repair.   

 
 
 

 
 

11.1  Review Original, 1st & 2nd, Interim Budgets 
and Actuals 
 
11.2  Align financial allocations to priorities and 
goals 
 
11.3  Convene a comprehensive budget committee 
 
   
 
12.1  Assist Foundation Board and Executive 
Director with identifying professional development 
opportunities. 
 
12.2  Align RVEF goals with District’s goals 
 
12.3  Annually identify shared funding priorities 
 
12.4  Annually recruit RVEF Site Liaisons to report 
monthly to PTA/PTO 
 
 
13.1  Review and if needed modify the schedule of 
construction work on each campus based on need 
and available funding  
 
13.2  Continue to discuss facility update priorities 
and needs with site principals and other 
stakeholders 
 
13.3  Research and discuss configuration of 
learning spaces to meet instructional needs 

 
January – School Accountability Report 
cards 
 
 
 
 
 
September – Unaudited Actuals 
December – 1st Interim Report 
March –  2nd Interim Report 
June – Initial Budget 
 
 
October, February, May – Committee 
Reports 
 
 
September & May – RVEF Report 
 
 
 
September & May – RVEF Report 
 
September & May – RVEF Report 
 
September & May – RVEF Report 
 
 
 
 
September, December, February, June – 
Facility Reports 
 
 
September, December, February, June – 
Facility Reports 
 
 
TBD 

 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District                             
2018-19 Administrative Calendar 

DRAFT May 8, 2018 5 

Goal Area 2 (continued):  Facilities and Finances 
Goals/Metrics Actions/Services Report Timeline Status 

 
13.0  Implement the Master Facility 
Plan (con’t) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
14.0  Maintain performance and 
reliability of technology at all school 
sites and district office (infrastructure, 
hardware and software) 
 

 
13.4.  Proceed with construction as indicated on the 
schedule of construction work 
 
13.5  Meet with Bond Oversight Committee as 
required  
 
13.6  Manage construction projects 
 
13.7  Maintain Oak Park Committee to plan needed 
actions after acquiring the property 
 
13.8  Hold a Board session to review the 
recommendations made by the RVCS Exploratory 
Committee so a decision is made in a timely manner 
 
 
14.1  Improving Campus Security 
• Camera Upgrades and Installations at RVCS-

MT, WT, and AC 
• Introduction of ID Badges to All Employees 

  
14.2  Phone System Replacement 
• Beta Testing (at District Office) of Potential 

Site Phone System Replacement 
   
14.3  Network Reliability 
• Re-wiring of Information Data Feeds (IDFs) to 

increase network reliability and throughput 
• Exploration of e-rate funding to expand 

wireless offerings both outside of classrooms 
and load balancing of existing APs 
 

 

 
Monthly construction updates provided to 
board 
 
Meetings requested twice per year 
 
 
Weekly formal construction meetings 
 
Monthly Committee Reports 
 
 
October – RVCS Exploratory Committee 
Recommendations 
 
 
 
 
November – Technology Report 
 
 
 
 
November Technology Report 
 
 
 
November Technology Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
As topics are appropriate, to be included in 
monthly Budget Committee Reports 
 
 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District                             
2018-19 Administrative Calendar 

DRAFT May 8, 2018 6 

Goal Area 3:  Governance and Communication 

Goals/Metrics Actions/Services Report Timeline Status 
 
15.0  Each school has full parent 
leadership participation on parent 
groups, site councils, and ELACS for 
schools with 50 or more English 
learners, as defined by each groups 
bylaws. 
 
 
16.0  Increase the capacity of parents/ 
guardians to create a positive climate 
outside of school for their children. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
17.0  Increase the capacity of parents/ 
guardians to support the learning of 
their students outside of school. 

 
15.1  Provide opportunities for parent participation 
in leadership groups, such as PTA/PTO, School Site 
Council, School and District Advisory Committees, 
and ELAC/DELAC, that consult and advise 
individual schools and the District. 
 
 
 
16.1  Provide ongoing school-based activities that 
promote school to home/school collaboration such 
as Back to School Night, Open House, Family Math 
Night, Family Literacy Night, and other site-based 
community events. 
 
16.2.  Provide networking opportunities for parents 
to engage and learn from one another.   
Hold a parent event where parents can network, 
attend workshops and become familiar with 
community resources.   
 
16. 3  Provide parent education that provides 
strategies for families to support reading skills, such 
as, decoding, fluency, and comprehension, for their 
children. 
 
 
17.1  Provide parent education that strengthens 
parent understanding of the mathematical concepts 
and practices embedded within the new California 
State standards. 
 
17.2  Provide parents of English learners support 
and resources in order for them to assist their 
children with homework. 
 
17.3  Provide annual cybersafety parent education. 
 
17.4  Provide adult English classes for parents who 
are English learners. 
 

 
March – LCAP Annual Update Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
December – Parent Education Report 
 
 
 
 
 
December – Parent Education Report 
 
 
 
 
 
December – Parent Education Report 
 
 
 
 
 
December – Parent Education Report 
 
 
 
 
December – Parent Education Report 
 
 
 
December – Parent Education Report 
 
December – Parent Education Report 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District                             
2018-19 Administrative Calendar 

DRAFT May 8, 2018 7 

Goal Area 3 (continued):   Governance and Communication 
Goals/Metrics Actions/Services Report Timeline Status 

  
18.0  Increase capacity of 
administrative and Governance team. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
19.0  Strengthen home-to-school two 
way communication systems so that 
parent/community input is increased 
and acted upon. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
18.1  Provide professional development for 
administrators, district staff and school board  

 
18.2  Encourage central office and board to take 
part in professional development  

 
18.3.  Participate in state and local education 
organizations   
 
 
 
19.1  Utilize the LCAP Annual Update process to 
determine other parent education areas of focus 
 
19.2  Meet with principals to develop strategies to 
increase parent/community input 
 
19.3  Develop district-wide and site-based social 
media platforms that provide and receive real time 
updates and information 
 
19.4  Incorporate real time parent/community input 
at the time of events, such as a survey of parents 
immediately following parent conferences 
 
19.5  Hold several district-wide community events 
such as Parent University, facility improvement 
grand-openings, and the District’s 70th anniversary 
celebration. 
 
19.6  Provide resources to increase parent 
understanding of the report card (revision of the 
report card is planned once the district is ready to 
incorporate the Next Generation Science Standards 
into the document) 
 

 
August – Board professional development 
opportunities 
 
September – Administrator professional 
development plan 
 
February – Administrative report on 
implementation of professional 
development trainings 
 
 

March – LCAP Annual Update Report 
 

 
March – State of Schools Report 
 
 

March – State of Schools Report 
 
 
 

March – State of Schools Report 
 
 
 

December – Parent Education Report 
 
 
 
 

December – Parent Education Report 
 

 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: May 8 2018 

Agenda Item: Action Item 15.1 

Subject: Odyssey of the Mind State Competition Res. #05-18-20 

Submitter:  Dr. Terry Metzger, Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum  

Background: From the Odyssey of the Mind website: OM teaches students how to think in 
different ways by providing open-ended problems that appeal to a wide range of 
interests. Students learn how to identify challenges and to think creatively to solve 
those problems. They are free to express their ideas and suggestions without fear 
of criticism. The creative problem-solving process rewards thinking beyond the 
box. Students participate in regional competitions to show off their skills. Teams 
can move to state and world levels based on their tournament scores. 

 
 RVUSD promotes and supports OM as part of our GATE services. While many 

gifted students participate, the teams are open to all students in the district. This 
year we had 7 OM teams district wide. Some years we have had as many as 13 
teams. Thank you to retired GATE Coordinator Kathy Alexander, for training and 
supporting coaches and teams this year! 

 
Highlights: This year the Sequoia Elementary 

team of Quinne Crocker, Sloane 
Crocker, Cassidy Cornelius, and 
Alessandra Bey (and coach Kinna 
Crocker) advanced from regionals 
to state, then took first place in 
their division AND won the 
spontaneous competition! 

 

Challenges:  n/a 

Analysis: n/a 

 

Next Steps: We will recognize the team at one of the end-of-year events at Sequoia 
Elementary. 

 
Attachments:  OM Resolution 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
 
Recommendation: Approve 



BEFORE THE GOVERNING BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE  
RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SONOMA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 
 

A RESOLUTION HONORING STUDENTS OF SEQUOIA ELEMENTARY 
SCHOOL UPON WINNING THE CALIFORNIA STATE ODYSSEY OF THE MIND 

COMPETITION AND MOVING ON TO THE NATIONAL COMPETITION  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 05-18-20 

 

WHEREAS, a group of four students from Sequoia Elementary School entered the 

regional Odyssey of the Mind competition and won the competition, thus moving on to 

the California State Odyssey of the Mind Competition; and  

WHERAS, this group of Sequoia Elementary School student proceeded to win the 

California State Odyssey of the Mind Competition, thus qualifying for the National 

Odyssey of the Mind Competition, and  

WHEREAS, the winners of the California State Odyssey of the Mind Competition 

were Quinne Crocker, Sloane Crocker, Cassidy Cornelius, and Alessandra Bey. 

WHEREAS, the Rincon Valley Union School District Board of Trustees recognizes 

and honors these students for their success and wishes them best of luck in their future 

competition; 

NOW, THEREFORE, 

Be it resolved by the Governing Board of the Rincon Valley Union School District that 

the Governing Board hereby honors the students of Sequoia Elementary School who the 

Regional and State Odyssey of the Mind competitions, and thanks all those involved for 

their support of these students.  
 

I, Dr. Tony Roehrick, Secretary to the Board of Trustees of the Rincon Valley 

Union School District, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was proposed by 

Board member _____________________, seconded by Board member 

____________________, and was duly passed and adopted, by vote of said Board, at an 

official and public meeting thereof held on May 8, 2018, as follows: 



 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

 

Dated: May 8, 2018          

       Secretary, Board of Trustees 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 

Meeting Date: May 8 2018 

Agenda Item: Action Item 15.2 

Subject: Education Protection Account Res. #05-18-21 

Submitter:  Dr. Joseph Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent  

Background: The District is required to disclose money generated with Revenues provided from 
Proposition 30, which was passed in 2012.  These funds are deposited into a 
district account called the Education Protection Account (EPA).   
 

Highlights: The amount provided for the EPA has historically been approximately 20% of the 
District and its dependent charter schools state aid.  These funds will be used to 
pay for teacher salary and/or benefits.  The budget software the District uses for 
financial reporting (SACS) combines this new resource into the unrestricted LCFF 
funding.  The final amount of the EPA account will be determined at year end 
when the District closes its books. 

 
Challenges: School Districts must track this money separately in the general fund and charge 

only allowable expenses against these revenues.  These monies may not be spent 
on any administrative expenses. 

Analysis: Approving this resolution will ensure that the District complies with the provisions 
mandated for the receipt and use of EPA funds. 

 

Next Steps: Consider approval of EPA resolution. 

 
Attachments:  Resolution #05-18-21 
 Spreadsheet with EPA breakdown 
  
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: Approve 



 

Resolution #05-18-21 
 

,. 
 

 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION REGARDING THE EDUCATION PROTECTION ACCOUNT 

WHEREAS, the voters approved Proposition 30 on November  6, 2012; 

WHEREAS, Proposition 30  added  Article  XUI,  Section  36  to  the  California 

Constitution effective November 7, 2012; 
 

 
 

WHEREAS, the provisions of  Article  XIII, Section  36(e)  create  in  the  state 

General   Fund  an  Education Protection  Account  to  receive  and  disburse  the  revenues 

derived  from the incremental increases in taxes imposed by Article XUI, Section 36(f); 

 

 
WHEREAS, before June 30th of each year, the Director  of Finance shall estimate 

the  total   amount   of  additional  revenues,  less  refunds  that  will  be  derived from the 

· I incremental increases in tax rates made pursuant to Article XIII, Section 36 (f) that will be 
 

I available for transfer into the Education Protection Account during the next fiscal year; 
 

 
 

WHEREAS, if the sum determined by the State  Controller is positive,  the State 

Controller shall  transfer  the  amount  calculated  into  the  Education  Protection  Account 

within  ten days preceding the end of the fiscal year; 

 
 

WHEREAS, all monies i n  the Education Protection Account are hereby continuously 

appropriated for the support  of school districts and charter schools; 

 
 

WHEREAS, monies deposited in the Education Protection Account  shall  not be used  

to pay any  costs  incurred  by the Legislature, the Governor  or any agency  of state 

government; 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1 



 
 
 
 
 

WHEREAS, a school district or charter school shall have the sole authority to 

determine how the monies received from the Education Protection Account are spent in 

the school or schools within its jurisdiction; 

 
 

WHEREAS, the governing board of the district shall make the spending 

determinations with respect to monies received from the Education Protection Account in 

open session of a public meeting of the governing board; 

 
 

WHEREAS, the monies received from the Education Protection Account shall not 

be used for salaries or benefits for administrators or any other administrative cost; 

 
 

WHEREAS, each school district and charter school shall annually publish on its 

Internet website an accounting of how much money was received from the Education 

Protection Account and how that money was spent; 

 
 

WHEREAS, the annual independent financial and compliance audit required of 

school districts and charter schools shall ascertain and verify whether the funds provided 

from the Education Protection Account have been properly disbursed and expended as 

required by Article XUI, Section 36 of the California Constitution;. 

 
 

WHEREAS, expenses  incurred by school districts and charter schools to comply 

with  the additional  audit requirements of Article XIII, Section 36 may  be paid with 

funding  from  the Education Protection Act and shall not be considered administrative 

costs for purposes of Article XIII, Section 36. 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED: 
 

 
 

1.        The monies received from the Education Protection Account shall be spent 

as  required  by Article XIII, Section 36 and the spending determinations on how the 

money will be spent shall be made in open session of a public meeting of the governing 

board of Rincon Valley Union School District; 
 

 
2 . 



 

 
 
 
 
 

2. In compliance with Article XIII, Section  36(e), with the California 
 

Constitution, the governing board of the Rincon Valley Union School District has 
 

determined to spend the monies received from the Education Protection Act as attached. 
 
 
 

DATED:       
Board Member 

Board Member 

Board Member 

Board Member 

Board Member 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3 



2017/18 Estimated "Educational Protection Account" Entitlement

These amounts will pay for teacher salary and/or benefits.

Rincon Valley Union School District $ 264,560

Binkley Elementary Charter School $ 73,850

Spring Creek Matanzas Elementary Charter School $ 111,424

Village Elementary Charter School $ 76,726

Whited Elementary Charter School $ 82,942

Rincon Valley Charter School $ 100,062



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 

Meeting Date: May 8 2018 

Agenda Item: Action Item 15.3 

Subject: District Program Fees 

Submitter:  Dr. Joseph Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent  

Background:  The District annually determines fees for programs that charge for goods or 
services.   
 

Highlights: N/A 

Challenges: The Daycare Fund and Food Service Fund are both projected to operate at a loss 
without a fee increase for each program.   Also, the Daycare program must be able 
to pay for its use of District facilities without transferring money from the general 
fund to do so, which would be considered a gift of public funds.  In order to meet 
this legal requirement, fees must be increased sufficiently to cover the full facility 
cost. 

 The District’s legal team is also researching if the difference between the cost of 
the daycare program for paying families and employees is a taxable fringe benefit.   
The District should know how to handle this situation by the fall.    

Analysis: The increase in Food Service Fees (see attached) is estimated to increase revenues 
between $25,000 and $30,000.    This increase will help to reduce the current 
operating deficit. 

The proposal for the Daycare Program is to provide an employee discount of 50% 
of the full rate but not to increase rates.  The rates for next year are attached.  The 
additional revenue generated by this change is more difficult to project since we do 
not know how many employee families may discontinue with the daycare program 
when asked to pay 50% of the full rate, and whether or not their slots will be filled 
with district families who pay the entire fee.   However, if enrollment stayed the 
same as it is currently, the fee change would conservatively generate 
approximately $75,000 in additional revenue.    

Next Steps: Consider approving both Daycare and Food Service rates. 

 
Attachments:  Proposed Daycare and Food Service Rates for FY 2019 
  
 
Fiscal Impact: Approximately $25-$30K increase in food service revenues 
 Approximately $75K in Daycare Revenues 
  
Recommendation: Approve 



                                           RVUSD EXTENDED CARE CALENDAR AND FEE SCHEDULE

Tuition rates are based on 180 school days. Holidays and School In-Service days are not included.

Rates below are the cost per month and divided into 9 payments per school year. Payments are due            

on the 1st of each month. (If you attend in August and drop before September 1st, you will be charged

the daily rate per days attended.)

Morning Only

Month/Payment Due Dates 1 Day 2 Day 3 Day 4 Day 5 Day 

August NO PAYMENT DUE

September, Tuesday the 4th $28 $56 $84 $112 $140

October, Monday the 1st $28 $56 $84 $112 $140

November, Thursday the 1st $28 $56 $84 $112 $140

December, Monday the 3rd $28 $56 $84 $112 $140

January, Tuesday the 8th $28 $56 $84 $112 $140

February, Friday the 1st $28 $56 $84 $112 $140

March, Friday the 1st $28 $56 $84 $112 $140

April, Monday the 1st $28 $56 $84 $112 $140

May, Wednesday the 1st $28 $56 $84 $112 $140

JUNE NO PAYMENT DUE

Afternoons Only

Month/Payment Due Dates 1 Day 2 Day 3 Day 4 Day 5 Day 

August NO PAYMENT DUE

September, Tuesday the 4th $64 $128 $192 $256 $320

October, Monday the 1st $64 $128 $192 $256 $320

November, Thursday the 1st $64 $128 $192 $256 $320

December, Monday the 3rd $64 $128 $192 $256 $320

January, Tuesday the 8th $64 $128 $192 $256 $320

February, Friday the 1st $64 $128 $192 $256 $320

March, Friday the 1st $64 $128 $192 $256 $320

April, Monday the 1st $64 $128 $192 $256 $320

May, Wednesday the 1st $64 $128 $192 $256 $320

JUNE NO PAYMENT DUE

Intersession Day Care is available for $45 per day. 7:00a.m.- 6:00p.m. (Locations TBA)

Thanksgiving Break: November 19th, 20th, 21st

Winter Break: December 26th, 27th, 28th January: 2nd, 3rd, 4th

Spring Break: March 18th, 19th, 20th, 21st, 22nd

No School and Care Not Provided  

September, 3rd, 21st  January, 1st, 7th, 21st

November, 2nd, 12th,22nd, 23rd February, 11th, 18th

December, 21st, 24th, 25th 31st May, 27th



                        RVUSD EXTENDED CARE REDUCED RATE CALENDAR AND FEE SCHEDULE

Tuition rates are based on 180 school days. Holidays and School In-Service days are not included.

Rates below are the cost per month and divided into 9 payments per school year. Payments are due            

on the 1st of each month.

Morning Only

Month/Payment Due Dates 1 Day 2 Day 3 Day 4 Day 5 Day 

August NO PAYMENT DUE

September, Tuesday the 4th $20 $40 $60 $80 $100

October, Monday the 1st $20 $40 $60 $80 $100

November, Thursday the 1st $20 $40 $60 $80 $100

December, Monday the 3rd $20 $40 $60 $80 $100

January, Tuesday the 8th $20 $40 $60 $80 $100

February, Friday the 1st $20 $40 $60 $80 $100

March, Friday the 1st $20 $40 $60 $80 $100

April, Monday the 1st $20 $40 $60 $80 $100

May, Wednesday the 1st $20 $40 $60 $80 $100

JUNE NO PAYMENT DUE

Afternoons  

Month/Payment Due Dates 1 Day 2 Day 3 Day 4 Day 5 Day 

August NO PAYMENT DUE

September, Tuesday the 4th $44 $88 $132 $176 $220

October, Monday the 1st $44 $88 $132 $176 $220

November, Thursday the 1st $44 $88 $132 $176 $220

December, Monday the 3rd $44 $88 $132 $176 $220

January, Tuesday the 8th $44 $88 $132 $176 $220

February, Friday the 1st $44 $88 $132 $176 $220

March, Friday the 1st $44 $88 $132 $176 $220

April, Monday the 1st $44 $88 $132 $176 $220

May, Wednesday the 1st $44 $88 $132 $176 $220

JUNE NO PAYMENT DUE

Intersession Day Care is available for $35 per day. 7:00a.m.- 6:00p.m. (Locations TBA)

Thanksgiving Break: November 19th, 20th, 21st

Winter Break: December 26th, 27th, 28th January: 2nd, 3rd, 4th

Spring Break: March 18th, 19th, 20th, 21st, 22nd

No School and Care Not Provided  

September, 3rd, 21st  January, 1st, 7th, 21st

November, 2nd, 12th,22nd, 23rd February, 11th, 18th

December, 21st, 24th, 25th 31st May, 27th



PROPOSED MEAL PRICE INCREASE FOR 2018/19 SCHOOL YEAR 
 
Current Prices 2017/18 School Year 

Kinder - 8th Breakfast $1.75 

Kinder - 6th grade Lunch $3.00 

7th - 8th grade Lunch $3.25 

Adult Breakfast $2.75 

Adult Lunch $3.75 

 
 
 
Fee Increases for 2018/19 School Year 

Kinder - 8th Breakfast $2.00 

Kinder - 6th grade Lunch $3.25 

7th - 8th grade Lunch $3.50 

Adult Breakfast $3.00 

Adult Lunch $4.00 

 
 
 
$28,141 projected increase in revenue for the 2018/19 School Year. 
 
16/17 breakfast #37648 x 0.25 = $9,412 
16/17 lunch #85895 x 0.25 = $20,723 
Total = $30,135 
 
17/18 breakfast #33217 x 0.25 = $8,304 
17/18 lunch #71373 x 0.25 = 17,843 
Total = $26,147 
 
($30,135 + $26,147)/2 = $28,141 projected revenue increase 
 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 

Meeting Date: May 8 2018 

Agenda Item: Action Item 15.4 

Subject: Sodexo Contract Renewal 

Submitter:  Dr. Joseph Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent  

Background:  The District contracts with Sodexo to help operate the food service program.  The 
contract allows for up to five one-year extensions to the original contract.   This is 
the fifth and final year that we can extend the original contract. 
 

Highlights: One of the advantages to partnering with Sodexo is the volume purchasing 
discounts the District receives, assistance in remaining compliant with state and 
federal regulations, as well as menu development, nutritional analysis, and in other 
areas as needed. 

 

Challenges: The Food Service program is highly regulated and at times can be a difficult 
program to manage.   The program has operated in the red two years in a row. 

Analysis: The partnership with Sodexo benefits the District.   Although the requested 3% 
increase is slightly higher than inflation, Sodexo guarantees for the amount of meal 
sold each year and has cut an $11,000 check to the district last year when meal 
sales were down and will likely do so again this year. 

Next Steps: Consider approving a one-year contract extension. 

Attachments:  Sodexo Contract Amendment 
  
 
Fiscal Impact: Contract Value is approximately $750,000 annually 
  
Recommendation:  Approve 

















Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 

Meeting Date: May 8 2018 

Agenda Item: Action Item 15.5 

Subject: Rincon Valley Union School District Actuarial Study of Retiree Health 
Liabilities Under GASB 74/75 

Submitter:  Dr. Joseph Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent  

Background: The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) require a full actuarial 
evaluation of retiree’s health liability at least every two years.   As a school 
district, we are required to follow GASB mandates.   The District’s retiree 
liabilities is often referred to other post-employment benefits (OPEB). 
 

Highlights: The District contract with Total Compensation Systems, Inc. to provide an 
actuarial study that complies with GASB 74/75. 

Challenges: According to the report, the District’s total retiree health liability is (referred to in 
the report as the actuarial present value of projected benefits (APVPBP) is over 
$3.3M.  The District pays for the benefits out of the annual budget, which is 
estimated to cost the District between $137,000 and $200,000 between 2018 and 
2031. 

Analysis: The District has not accrued funds for this liability; therefore, the 
District pays this obligation every year from operating funds.    

Next Steps: Consider accepting the actuarial report. 

 
Attachments:  Total Compensation System Actuarial Study of Retiree Health Benefits 
  
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: Accept 



Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 
 

 

Rincon Valley Union School District 
Actuarial Study of 

Retiree Health Liabilities Under GASB 74/75 

Valuation Date: June 30, 2017 

Measurement Date: June 30, 2017 

 

Prepared by: 

Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 

 

Date: April 23, 2018 

 

 

 

 



Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 
 

 

 
 

Table of Contents 

 

PART I: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ............................................................................................................ 1 

A.  INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................................................................................ 1 
B.  GENERAL FINDINGS ..................................................................................................................................................................... 2 
C.  DESCRIPTION OF RETIREE BENEFITS ............................................................................................................................................ 3 
D.  RECOMMENDATIONS ................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

PART II:  BACKGROUND ........................................................................................................................... 5 

A.  SUMMARY .................................................................................................................................................................................... 5 
B.  ACTUARIAL ACCRUAL ................................................................................................................................................................. 5 

PART III:  LIABILITIES AND COSTS FOR RETIREE BENEFITS ................................................... 7 

A.  INTRODUCTION. ........................................................................................................................................................................... 7 
B.  LIABILITY FOR RETIREE BENEFITS. .............................................................................................................................................. 7 
C.  COST TO PREFUND RETIREE BENEFITS ........................................................................................................................................ 8 

1.  Service Cost............................................................................................................................................................................. 8 
2.  Total OPEB Liability (TOL) and Net OPEB Liability (NOL) ................................................................................................ 9 
3.  OPEB Expense ...................................................................................................................................................................... 10 
4.  Deferred Inflows and Outflows ............................................................................................................................................. 10 

PART IV: "PAY AS YOU GO" FUNDING OF RETIREE BENEFITS ............................................... 11 

PART V:  RECOMMENDATIONS FOR FUTURE VALUATIONS ................................................... 12 

PART VI:  APPENDICES ............................................................................................................................ 13 

APPENDIX A:  MATERIALS USED FOR THIS STUDY .......................................................................................................... 13 
APPENDIX B:  EFFECT OF ASSUMPTIONS USED IN CALCULATIONS ............................................................................ 14 
APPENDIX C:  ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS AND METHODS ........................................................................................... 15 
APPENDIX D:  DISTRIBUTION OF ELIGIBLE PARTICIPANTS BY AGE ........................................................................... 19 
APPENDIX E:  GASB 74/75 ACCOUNTING ENTRIES AND DISCLOSURES ...................................................................... 20 
APPENDIX F:  GLOSSARY OF RETIREE HEALTH VALUATION TERMS ......................................................................... 24 

 

 



Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 
 

 

 
 1 

Rincon Valley Union School District 
Actuarial Study of Retiree Health Liabilities 

PART I: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

A.  Introduction 

 

 Rincon Valley Union School District engaged Total Compensation Systems, Inc. (TCS) to analyze liabilities 

associated with its current retiree health program as of June 30, 2017 (the measurement date). The numbers in this 

report are based on the assumption that they will first be used to determine accounting entries for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2017. If the report will first be used for a different fiscal year, the numbers may need to be adjusted 

accordingly. 

 

 This report does not reflect any cash benefits paid unless the retiree is required to provide proof that the 

cash benefits are used to reimburse the retiree’s cost of health benefits. Costs and liabilities attributable to cash 

benefits paid to retirees are reportable under applicable Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 

Standards. 

 

 This actuarial study is intended to serve the following purposes: 

 

 To provide information to enable Rincon Valley USD to manage the costs and liabilities associated 

with its retiree health benefits. 

 

 To provide information to enable Rincon Valley USD to communicate the financial implications of 

retiree health benefits to internal financial staff, the Board, employee groups and other affected 

parties. 

 

 To provide information needed to comply with Governmental Accounting Standards Board 

Accounting Standards 74 and 75 related to "other postemployment benefits" (OPEB's). 

 

 Because this report was prepared in compliance with GASB 74 and 75,  Rincon Valley USD should not use 

this report for any other purpose without discussion with TCS. This means that any discussions with employee 

groups, governing Boards, etc. should be restricted to the implications of GASB 74 and 75 compliance. 

 

 This actuarial report includes several estimates for Rincon Valley USD's retiree health program. In addition 

to the tables included in this report, we also performed cash flow adequacy tests as required under Actuarial 

Standard of Practice 6 (ASOP 6). Our cash flow adequacy testing covers a twenty-year period. We would be happy 

to make this cash flow adequacy test available to Rincon Valley USD in spreadsheet format upon request. 

 

 We calculated the following estimates separately for active employees and retirees.  As requested, we also 

separated results by the following employee classifications: Certificated Management, Certificated, Classified and 

Confidential/Supervisory.  We estimated the following: 

 

  the total liability created. (The actuarial present value of projected benefits or APVPBP) 

 

  fifteen years of projected benefit payments. 

 

  the "total OPEB liability (TOL)."  (The TOL is the portion of the APVPBP attributable to 

employees’ service prior to the measurement date.)  



Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 
 

 

 
 2 

 

  the “net OPEB liability” (NOL). For plans funded through a trust, this represents the 

unfunded portion of the liability. 

 

 the service cost (SC). This is the value of OPEB benefits earned for one year of service. 

 

 deferred inflows and outflows of resources attributable to the OPEB plan. 

 

 “OPEB expense.” This is the amount recognized in accrual basis financial statements as the 

current period expense. The OPEB expense includes service cost, interest and certain 

changes in the OPEB liability, adjusted to reflect deferred inflows and outflows. This 

amount may need to be adjusted to reflect any contributions received after the 

Measurement Date. 

 

 Amounts to support financial statement Note Disclosures and Required Supplementary 

Information (RSI) schedules. 

 

 We summarized the data used to perform this study in Appendix A. No effort was made to verify this 

information beyond brief tests for reasonableness and consistency. 

 

 All cost and liability figures contained in this study are estimates of future results.  Future results can vary 

dramatically and the accuracy of estimates contained in this report depends on the actuarial assumptions used.  

Service costs and liabilities could easily vary by 10 - 20% or more from estimates contained in this report.   

B.  General Findings 

 

 We estimate the "pay-as-you-go" cost of providing retiree health benefits in the year beginning July 1, 2017 

to be $148,131 (see Section IV.A.). The “pay-as-you-go” cost is the cost of benefits for current retirees.  

 

 For current employees, the value of benefits "accrued" in the year beginning July 1, 2017 (the service cost) 

is $152,633. This service cost would increase each year based on covered payroll.  Had Rincon Valley USD begun 

accruing retiree health benefits when each current employee and retiree was hired, a substantial liability would have 

accumulated.  We estimate the amount that would have accumulated to be $2,049,151. This amount is called the 

"Total OPEB Liability” (TOL).  

 

 Based on the information we were provided, the OPEB Expense for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017 is 

$217,634. As noted in this report adjustments may be needed – particularly if the reporting date is not the same as 

the measurement date. 

 

 We based all of the above estimates on employees as of October, 2017. Over time, liabilities and cash flow 

will vary based on the number and demographic characteristics of employees and retirees. 



Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 
 

 

 
 3 

C.  Description of Retiree Benefits 

 

 Following is a description of the current retiree benefit plan: 
 

 Certificated 

hired before 

6/30/86 

Classified, Confidential 

and Supervisors hired 

before 7/1/14 

Designated 

Certificated 

Management  

Benefit types provided Medical only Medical only Medical only 

Duration of Benefits To age 65*** To age 65 To age 65*** 

Required Service 20 years*** 5 years 20 years*** 

Minimum Age 55 55 55 

Dependent Coverage Yes*** Yes Yes* 

District Contribution % 100% 100% 100% 

District Cap Active cap 100% of Active cap at 

15 years of service; 

 

5 to 15 years, prorated 

percentage of cap 

Active cap 

* At 20 years of service, employee only coverage to age 65; At 25 years of service, a choice of employee only 

coverage to age 70 or employee plus dependent coverage to age 65 

*** At 20 years of service, employee plus one dependent coverage to age 65; At 25 years of service, a choice of 

employee only coverage to age 70 or employee plus dependent coverage to age 65 

D.  Recommendations 

 

 It is outside the scope of this report to make specific recommendations of actions Rincon Valley USD 

should take to manage the liability created by the current retiree health program. Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 

can assist in identifying and evaluating options once this report has been studied. The following recommendations 

are intended only to allow the District to get more information from this and future studies. Because we have not 

conducted a comprehensive administrative audit of Rincon Valley USD’s practices, it is possible that Rincon Valley 

USD is already complying with some or all of our recommendations. 

 

  We recommend that Rincon Valley USD maintain an inventory of all benefits and services 

provided to retirees – whether contractually or not and whether retiree-paid or not. For each, Rincon 

Valley USD should determine whether the benefit is material and subject to GASB 74 and/or 75. 

  We recommend that Rincon Valley USD conduct a study whenever events or contemplated 

actions significantly affect present or future liabilities, but no less frequently than every two 

years, as required under GASB 74/75.  

  Under GASB 75, it is important to isolate the cost of retiree health benefits. Rincon Valley 

USD should have all premiums, claims and expenses for retirees separated from active 

employee premiums, claims, expenses, etc. To the extent any retiree benefits are made 

available to retirees over the age of 65 – even on a retiree-pay-all basis – all premiums, 

claims and expenses for post-65 retiree coverage should be segregated from those for pre-

65 coverage. Furthermore, Rincon Valley USD should arrange for the rates or prices of all 

retiree benefits to be set on what is expected to be a self-sustaining basis. 



Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 
 

 

 
 4 

  Rincon Valley USD should establish a way of designating employees as eligible or ineligible for 

future OPEB benefits. Ineligible employees can include those in ineligible job classes; those hired 

after a designated date restricting eligibility; those who, due to their age at hire cannot qualify for 

District-paid OPEB benefits; employees who exceed the termination age for OPEB benefits, etc. 

  Several assumptions were made in estimating costs and liabilities under Rincon Valley 

USD's retiree health program.  Further studies may be desired to validate any assumptions 

where there is any doubt that the assumption is appropriate.  (See Appendices B and C for a 

list of assumptions and concerns.) For example, Rincon Valley USD should maintain a 

retiree database that includes – in addition to date of birth, gender and employee 

classification – retirement date and (if applicable) dependent date of birth, relationship and 

gender. It will also be helpful for Rincon Valley USD to maintain employment termination 

information – namely, the number of OPEB-eligible employees in each employee class that 

terminate employment each year for reasons other than death, disability or retirement. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Geoffrey L. Kischuk, FSA, MAAA, FCA 

Consultant 

Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 

(805) 496-1700 



Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 
 

 

 
 5 

 PART II:  BACKGROUND 

A.  Summary 

 

 Accounting principles provide that the cost of retiree benefits should be “accrued” over employees' working 

lifetime. For this reason, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued in June of 2015 Accounting 

Standards 74 and 75 for retiree health benefits. These standards apply to all public employers that pay any part of the 

cost of retiree health benefits for current or future retirees (including early retirees), whether they pay directly or 

indirectly (via an “implicit rate subsidy”), 

B.  Actuarial Accrual 

 

 To actuarially accrue retiree health benefits requires determining the amount to expense each year so that 

the liability accumulated at retirement is, on average, sufficient (with interest) to cover all retiree health expenditures 

without the need for additional expenses. There are many different ways to determine the annual accrual amount. 

The calculation method used is called an “actuarial cost method.” 

 

 The actuarial cost method mandated by GASB 75 is the “entry age actuarial cost method”. Under this 

method, there are two components of actuarial cost – a “service cost” (SC) and the “Total OPEB Liability” (TOL). 

GASB 75 allows certain changes in the TOL to be deferred (i.e. deferred inflows and outflows of resources). 

 

 The service cost can be thought of as the value of the benefit earned each year if benefits are accrued during 

the working lifetime of employees. Under the entry age actuarial cost method, the actuary determines the annual 

amount needing to be expensed  from hire until retirement to fully accrue the cost of retiree health benefits. This 

amount is the service cost. Under GASB 75, the service cost is calculated to be a level percentage of each 

employee’s projected pay. 

 

 The service cost is determined using several key assumptions: 

 

  The current cost of retiree health benefits (often varying by age, Medicare status and/or dependent 

coverage). The higher the current cost of retiree benefits, the higher the service cost. 

 

  The “trend” rate at which retiree health benefits are expected to increase over time. A higher trend 

rate increases the service cost.  A “cap” on District contributions can reduce trend to zero once the 

cap is reached thereby dramatically reducing service costs. 

 

  Mortality rates varying by age and sex. (Unisex mortality rates are not often used as individual 

OPEB benefits do not depend on the mortality table used.) If employees die prior to retirement, past 

contributions are available to fund benefits for employees who live to retirement. After retirement, 

death results in benefit termination or reduction. Although higher mortality rates reduce service 

costs, the mortality assumption is not likely to vary from employer to employer. 

 

  Employment termination rates have the same effect as mortality inasmuch as higher termination 

rates reduce service costs. Employment termination can vary considerably between public agencies. 

 

  The service requirement reflects years of service required to earn full or partial retiree benefits.  

While a longer service requirement reduces costs, cost reductions are not usually substantial unless 

the service period exceeds 20 years of service. 



Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 
 

 

 
 6 

 

  Retirement rates determine what proportion of employees retire at each age (assuming employees 

reach the requisite length of service). Retirement rates often vary by employee classification and 

implicitly reflect the minimum retirement age required for eligibility. Retirement rates also depend 

on the amount of pension benefits available. Higher retirement rates increase service costs but, 

except for differences in minimum retirement age, retirement rates tend to be consistent between 

public agencies for each employee type. 

 

  Participation rates indicate what proportion of retirees are expected to elect retiree health benefits 

if a significant retiree contribution is required. Higher participation rates increase costs. 

 

  The discount rate estimates investment earnings for assets earmarked to cover retiree health benefit 

liabilities. The discount rate depends on the nature of underlying assets for funded plans. The rate 

used for a funded plan is the real rate of return expected for plan assets plus long term inflation 

assumption. For an unfunded plan, the discount rate is based on an index of 20 year General 

Obligation municipal bonds. For partially funded plans, the discount rate is a blend of the funded 

and unfunded rates. 

 

 The assumptions listed above are not exhaustive, but are the most common assumptions used in actuarial 

cost calculations. If all actuarial assumptions are exactly met and an employer expensed the service cost every year 

for all past and current employees and retirees, a sizeable liability would have accumulated (after adding interest and 

subtracting retiree benefit costs). The liability that would have accumulated is called the Total OPEB Liability 

(TOL). The excess of TOL over the value of plan assets is called the Net OPEB Liability (NOL).  Under GASB 74 

and 75, in order for assets to count toward offsetting the TOL, the assets have to be held in an irrevocable trust that 

is safe from creditors and can only be used  to provide OPEB benefits to eligible participants. 

 

 The total OPEB liability (TOL) can arise in several ways - e.g., as a result of plan changes or changes in 

actuarial assumptions.  TOL can also arise from actuarial gains and losses. Actuarial gains and losses result from 

differences between actuarial assumptions and actual plan experience. 

 

 Under GASB 74 and 75, a portion of actuarial gains and losses can be deferred as follows: 

 

 Investment gains and losses can be deferred five years 

 

 Experience gains and losses can be deferred over the expected average remaining service lives 

(EARSL) of plan participants. In calculating the EARSL, terminated employees (primarily retirees) are 

considered to have a working lifetime of zero. This often makes the EARSL quite short. 

 

 Liability changes resulting from changes in economic and demographic assumptions are also deferred 

based on the average working lifetime 

 

 Liability changes resulting from plan changes, for example, cannot be deferred. 



Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 
 

 

 
 7 

PART III:  LIABILITIES AND COSTS FOR RETIREE BENEFITS 

A.  Introduction. 

 

 We calculated the actuarial present value of projected benefit payments (APVPBP) separately for each 

employee. We determined eligibility for retiree benefits based on information supplied by Rincon Valley USD. We 

then selected assumptions for the factors discussed in the above Section that, based on plan provisions and our 

training and experience, represent our best prediction of future plan experience. For each employee, we applied the 

appropriate factors based on the employee's age, sex, length of service, and employee classification. 

 

 We summarized actuarial assumptions used for this study in Appendix C. 

B.  Liability for Retiree Benefits. 

 

 For each employee, we projected future premium costs using an assumed trend rate (see Appendix C). To 

the extent Rincon Valley USD uses contribution caps, the influence of the trend factor is further reduced. We 

multiplied each year's benefit payments by the probability that benefits will be paid; i.e. based on the probability that 

the employee is living, has not terminated employment, has retired and remains eligible. The probability that benefit 

will be paid is zero if the employee is not eligible. The employee is not eligible if s/he has not met minimum service, 

minimum age or, if applicable, maximum age requirements. 

 

 The product of each year's benefit payments and the probability the benefit will be paid equals the expected 

cost for that year. We discounted the expected cost for each year to the measurement date June 30, 2017 at 3.5% 

interest. Finally, we multiplied the above discounted expected cost figures by the probability that the retiree would 

elect coverage. A retiree may not elect to be covered if retiree health coverage is available less expensively from 

another source (e.g. Medicare risk contract) or the retiree is covered under a spouse's plan. 

 

 For any current retirees, the approach used was similar.  The major difference is that the probability of 

payment for current retirees depends only on mortality and age restrictions (i.e. for retired employees the probability 

of being retired and of not being terminated are always both 1.0000). 

 

 We added the APVPBP for all employees to get the actuarial present value of projected benefit payments 

(APVPBP) for all participants. The APVPBP is the estimated present value of all future retiree health benefits for all 

current employees and retirees. The APVPBP is the amount on June 30, 2017 that, if all actuarial assumptions are 

exactly right, would be sufficient to expense all promised benefits until the last current employee or retiree dies or 

reaches the maximum eligibility age. 



Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 
 

 

 
 8 

Actuarial Present Value of Projected Benefit Payments at June 30, 2017 

  Total 

Certificated 

Management Certificated Classified Confidential/Supervisory 

Active: Pre-65 $2,645,050 $387,813 $111,290 $2,068,216 $77,731 

Post-65 $215,092 $148,001 $67,091 $0 $0 

Subtotal $2,860,142 $535,814 $178,381 $2,068,216 $77,731 

      

Retiree: Pre-65 $236,103 $0 $148,412 $87,691 $0 

Post-65 $220,026 $10,488 $209,538 $0 $0 

Subtotal $456,129 $10,488 $357,950 $87,691 $0 

      

Grand Total $3,316,271 $546,302 $536,331 $2,155,907 $77,731 

      

Subtotal Pre-65 $2,881,153 $387,813 $259,702 $2,155,907 $77,731 

Subtotal Post-65 $435,118 $158,489 $276,629 $0 $0 

 

 The APVPBP should be accrued over the working lifetime of employees. At any time much of it has not 

been “earned” by employees. The APVPBP is used to develop expense and liability figures. To do so, the APVPBP 

is divided into two parts: the portions attributable to service rendered prior to the measurement date (the past service 

liability or Total OPEB Liability (TOL) under GASB 74 and 75) and to service after the measurement date but prior 

to retirement (the future service liability). 

 

 The past service and future service liabilities are each accrued in a different way. We will start with the 

future service liability which is funded by the service cost. 

C.  Cost to Prefund Retiree Benefits 

 1.  Service Cost 

 The average hire age for eligible employees is 38. To accrue the liability by retirement, the District would 

accrue the retiree liability over a period of about 24 years (assuming an average retirement age of 62). We applied an 

"entry age" actuarial cost method to determine funding rates for active employees. The table below summarizes the 

calculated service cost. 

 

Service Cost Year Beginning June 30, 2017 

  Total 

Certificated 

Management Certificated Classified Confidential/Supervisory 

# of Employees 139 11 3 119 6 

Per  Capita Service 

Cost 

     

Pre-65 Benefit N/A $1,953 $0 $969 $933 

Post-65 Benefit N/A $931 $0 $0 $0 

      

First Year Service Cost      

Pre-65 Benefit $142,392 $21,483 $0 $115,311 $5,598 

Post-65 Benefit $10,241 $10,241 $0 $0 $0 

Total $152,633 $31,724 $0 $115,311 $5,598 

 

 Accruing retiree health benefit costs using service costs levels out the cost of retiree health benefits over 

time and more fairly reflects the value of benefits "earned" each year by employees. This service cost would increase 



Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 
 

 

 
 9 

each year based on covered payroll. 

 2.  Total OPEB Liability (TOL) and Net OPEB Liability (NOL) 

 

 If actuarial assumptions are borne out by experience, the District will fully accrue retiree benefits by 

expensing an amount each year that equals the service cost. If no accruals had taken place in the past, there would be 

a shortfall of many years' accruals, accumulated interest and forfeitures for terminated or deceased employees. This 

shortfall is called the Total OPEB Liability (TOL). We calculated the TOL as the APVPBP minus the present value 

of future service costs. To the extent that benefits are funded through a GASB 74 qualifying trust, the trust’s 

Fiduciary Net Position (FNP) is subtracted to get the NOL. The FNP is the value of assets adjusted for any 

applicable payables and receivables. 

 

Total OPEB Liability (TOL) and Net OPEB Liability (NOL) as of June 30, 2017 

  Total 

Certificated 

Management Certificated Classified Confidential/Supervisory 

Active: Pre-65 $1,492,189 $148,128 $111,290 $1,184,807 $47,964 

Active: Post-65 $100,833 $33,742 $67,091 $0 $0 

Subtotal $1,593,022 $181,870 $178,381 $1,184,807 $47,964 

      

Retiree: Pre-65 $236,103 $0 $148,412 $87,691 $0 

Retiree: Post-65 $220,026 $10,488 $209,538 $0 $0 

Subtotal $456,129 $10,488 $357,950 $87,691 $0 

      

Subtotal: Pre-65 $1,728,292 $148,128 $259,702 $1,272,498 $47,964 

Subtotal: Post-65 $320,859 $44,230 $276,629 $0 $0 

      

Total OPEB Liability 

(TOL) $2,049,151 $192,358 $536,331 $1,272,498 $47,964 

Fiduciary Net Position as 

of June 30, 2017 $0 

Net OPEB Liability 

(NOL) $2,049,151 

 

 Because Rincon Valley USD concluded that it would be too expensive and time-consuming to rerun prior 

valuations under GASB 75, we invoked Paragraph 244 of GASB 75 for the transition. Consequently, in order to 

determine the beginning NOL, we used a “roll-back” technique. The following table shows the results of the roll-

back. Rincon Valley USD should restate its June 30, 2016 NOL accordingly. 

Changes in Net OPEB Liability as of June 30, 2017 

  TOL FNP NOL 

Roll back balance at June 30, 2016 $1,971,816 $0 $1,971,816 

Service Cost $148,548 $0 $148,548 

Interest on TOL $69,086 $0 $69,086 

Employer Contributions $0 $140,299 ($140,299) 

Employee Contributions $0 $0 $0 

Actual Investment Income $0 $0 $0 

Administrative Expense $0 $0 $0 

Benefit Payments ($140,299) ($140,299) $0 

Other $0 $0 $0 

Net Change during 2016-17 $77,335 $0 $77,335 

Balance at June 30, 2017 * $2,049,151 $0 $2,049,151 

* May include a slight rounding error. 



Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 
 

 

 
 10 

 3.  OPEB Expense 

 

 Under GASB 74 and 75, OPEB expense includes service cost, interest cost, change in TOL due to plan 

changes; all adjusted for deferred inflows and outflows. Rincon Valley USD determined that it was not reasonable to 

rerun prior valuations under GASB 75. Therefore, we used the transition approach provided in GASB 75, Paragraph 

244. That means that there are no deferred inflows/outflows in the first year (with the possible exception of 

contributions after the measurement date).The OPEB expense shown below is considered to be preliminary because 

there can be employer specific deferred items (e.g., contributions made after the measurement date, and active 

employee contributions toward the OPEB plan). 

 

 OPEB Expense Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017 

  Total 

Service Cost $148,548 

Interest on Total OPEB Liability (TOL) $69,086 

Employee Contributions $0 

Recognized Actuarial Gains/Losses $0 

Recognized Assumption Changes $0 

Actual Investment Income $0 

Recognized Investment Gains/Losses $0 

Contributions After Measurement Date* $0 

Liability Change Due to Benefit Changes $0 

Administrative Expense $0 

OPEB Expense** $217,634 

* Should be added by Rincon Valley USD if reporting date is after the measurement date. 

** May include a slight rounding error. 

 

 The above OPEB expense does not include an estimated $140,299 in employer contributions. 

 

 4.  Deferred Inflows and Outflows 

 

 Certain types of TOL changes are subject to deferral, as are investment gains/losses. To qualify for deferral, 

gains and losses must be based on GASB 74/75 compliant valuations. Since the District’s prior valuation was 

performed in accordance with GASB 43/45, it is not possible to calculate compliant gains and losses. (Please see 

Appendix E, Paragraph 244 for more information.) Therefore, valuation-based deferred items will not begin until the 

next valuation. However, there could be employer-specific deferred items that need to be reflected, as mentioned 

earlier. 



Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 
 

 

 
 11 

PART IV: "PAY AS YOU GO" FUNDING OF RETIREE BENEFITS 

 

 We used the actuarial assumptions shown in Appendix C to project the District’s fifteen year retiree benefit 

outlay, including any implicit rate subsidy. Because these cost estimates reflect average assumptions applied to a 

relatively small number of employees, estimates for individual years are certain to be inaccurate. However, these 

estimates show the size of cash outflow. 

 

 The following table shows a projection of annual amounts needed to pay the District’s share of retiree 

health costs, including any implicit rate subsidy. 

 

 

Year Beginning 

July 1 Total 

Certificated 

Management Certificated Classified Confidential/Supervisory 

2017 $148,131 $10,844 $103,243 $32,180 $1,864 

2018 $136,767 $713 $83,350 $48,977 $3,727 

2019 $151,189 $1,486 $67,131 $74,950 $7,622 

2020 $182,539 $2,460 $68,087 $100,896 $11,096 

2021 $198,592 $3,829 $74,881 $109,851 $10,031 

2022 $200,420 $5,400 $60,669 $126,742 $7,609 

2023 $209,441 $7,620 $57,401 $135,258 $9,162 

2024 $172,359 $11,960 $24,141 $131,181 $5,077 

2025 $172,104 $14,659 $25,676 $131,769 $0 

2026 $175,286 $17,298 $18,576 $139,412 $0 

2027 $173,749 $20,248 $6,478 $147,023 $0 

2028 $178,803 $14,049 $6,769 $157,985 $0 

2029 $188,620 $16,921 $7,043 $164,656 $0 

2030 $199,770 $19,854 $7,304 $172,612 $0 

2031 $177,488 $24,898 $0 $151,309 $1,281 

 



Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 
 

 

 
 12 

PART V:  RECOMMENDATIONS FOR FUTURE VALUATIONS 

 

 To effectively manage benefit costs, an employer must periodically examine the existing liability for retiree 

benefits as well as future annual expected premium costs. GASB 74/75 require biennial valuations. In addition, a 

valuation should be conducted whenever plan changes, changes in actuarial assumptions or other employer actions 

are likely to cause a material change in accrual costs and/or liabilities. 

 

 Following are examples of actions that could trigger a new valuation. 

 

   An employer should perform a valuation whenever the employer considers or puts in place 

an early retirement incentive program. 

 

   An employer should perform a valuation whenever the employer adopts a retiree benefit 

plan for some or all employees. 

 

   An employer should perform a valuation whenever the employer considers or implements 

changes to retiree benefit provisions or eligibility requirements. 

 

   An employer should perform a valuation whenever the employer introduces or changes 

retiree contributions. 

 

   An employer should perform a valuation whenever the employer forms a qualifying trust or 

changes its investment policy. 

 

   An employer should perform a valuation whenever the employer adds or terminates a group 

of participants that constitutes a significant part of the covered group. 

 

 We recommend Rincon Valley USD take the following actions to ease future valuations. 

 

  We have used our training, experience and information available to us to establish the 

actuarial assumptions used in this valuation. We have no information to indicate that any of 

the assumptions do not reasonably reflect future plan experience. However, the District 

should review the actuarial assumptions in Appendix C carefully. If the District has any 

reason to believe that any of these assumptions do not reasonably represent the expected 

future experience of the retiree health plan, the District should engage in discussions or 

perform analyses to determine the best estimate of the assumption in question. 

  

  



Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 
 

 

 
 13 

PART VI:  APPENDICES 

APPENDIX A:  MATERIALS USED FOR THIS STUDY 

 

 We relied on the following materials to complete this study. 

 

      We used paper reports and digital files containing employee demographic data from the 

District personnel records. 

      We used relevant sections of collective bargaining agreements provided by the District. 



Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 
 

 

 
 14 

APPENDIX B:  EFFECT OF ASSUMPTIONS USED IN CALCULATIONS 

 

 While we believe the estimates in this study are reasonable overall, it was necessary for us to use 

assumptions which inevitably introduce errors.  We believe that the errors caused by our assumptions will not 

materially affect study results. If the District wants more refined estimates for decision-making, we recommend 

additional investigation. 

 



Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 
 

 

 
 15 

APPENDIX C:  ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS AND METHODS 

 

 Following is a summary of actuarial assumptions and methods used in this study. The District should 

carefully review these assumptions and methods to make sure they reflect the District's assessment of its underlying 

experience. It is important for Rincon Valley USD to understand that the appropriateness of all selected actuarial 

assumptions and methods are Rincon Valley USD’s responsibility. Unless otherwise disclosed in this report, TCS 

believes that all methods and assumptions are within a reasonable range based on the provisions of GASB 74 and 

75, applicable actuarial standards of practice, Rincon Valley USD’s actual historical experience, and TCS’s 

judgment based on experience and training. 

 

ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS: 

 

 ACTUARIAL COST METHOD: GASB 74/75 require use of the entry age actuarial cost method.  

 

Entry age is based on the age at hire for eligible employees. The attribution period is 

determined as the difference between the expected retirement age and the age at hire. The 

APVPBP and present value of future service costs are determined on an employee by 

employee basis and then aggregated. 

 

To the extent that different benefit formulas apply to different employees of the same class, 

the service cost is based on the benefit plan applicable to the most recently hired employees 

(including future hires if a new benefit formula has been agreed to and communicated to 

employees). This greatly simplifies administration and accounting; as well as resulting in 

the correct service cost for new hires. 

 

 SUBSTANTIVE PLAN: As required under GASB 74 and 75, we based the valuation on the substantive 

plan. The formulation of the substantive plan was based on a review of written plan 

documents as well as historical information provided by Rincon Valley USD regarding 

practices with respect to employer and employee contributions and other relevant factors. 



Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 
 

 

 
 16 

ECONOMIC ASSUMPTIONS: 

Economic assumptions are set under the guidance of Actuarial Standard of Practice 27 (ASOP 27). Among other 

things, ASOP 27 provides that economic assumptions should reflect a consistent underlying rate of general inflation. 

For that reason, we show our assumed long-term inflation rate below. 

 

 INFLATION: We assumed 2.75% per year used for pension purposes. Actuarial standards require using 

the same rate for OPEB that is used for pension. 

 

 INVESTMENT RETURN / DISCOUNT RATE:  We assumed 3.5% per year net of expenses. This is based on 

the Bond Buyer 20 Bond Index. 

 

 TREND: We assumed 4% per year. Our long-term trend assumption is based on the conclusion that, 

while medical trend will continue to be cyclical, the average increase over time cannot 

continue to outstrip general inflation by a wide margin. Trend increases in excess of 

general inflation result in dramatic increases in unemployment, the number of uninsured 

and the number of underinsured. These effects are nearing a tipping point which will 

inevitably result in fundamental changes in health care finance and/or delivery which will 

bring increases in health care costs more closely in line with general inflation. We do not 

believe it is reasonable to project historical trend vs. inflation differences several decades 

into the future. 

 

 PAYROLL INCREASE: We assumed 2.75% per year. Since benefits do not depend on salary (as they do for 

pensions), using an aggregate payroll assumption for the purpose of calculating the service 

cost results in a negligible error. 

 

 FIDUCIARY NET POSITION (FNP):  The following table shows the beginning and ending FNP numbers 

that were provided by Rincon Valley USD. 

 

Fiduciary Net Position as of June 30, 2017 

  06/30/2016  06/30/2017 

Cash and Equivalents $0  $0 

Contributions Receivable $0  $0 

Total Investments $0  $0 

Capital Assets  $0  $0 

Total Assets $0  $0 

    

Benefits Payable $0  $0 

 Fiduciary Net Position $0  $0 

 



Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 
 

 

 
 17 

NON-ECONOMIC ASSUMPTIONS: 

Economic assumptions are set under the guidance of Actuarial Standard of Practice 35 (ASOP 35). See Appendix E, 

Paragraph 52 for more information. 

 

MORTALITY 

Employee Type Mortality Tables 

Certificated 2009 CalSTRS Mortality 

Classified 2009 CalPERS Mortality for Active Miscellaneous Employees 

 

RETIREMENT RATES 

Employee Type Retirement Rate Tables 

Certificated 2009 CalSTRS Retirement Rates 

Classified Hired before 2013: 2009 CalPERS Retirement Rates for School Employees 

Hired after 2012: 2009 CalPERS 2%@60 Retirement Rates for Miscellaneous Employees 

adjusted to reflect a minimum retirement age of 52 

 

SERVICE REQUIREMENT 

Employee Type Service Requirement Tables 

Certificated 100% at 20 Years of Service 

25 years for option of single coverage to age 70 

Classified Years of service divided by 15; minimum of 33% at 5 years of service, maximum of 100% with 

15 or more years of service 

 

COSTS FOR RETIREE COVERAGE 

Retiree liabilities are based on actual retiree premium plus an implicit rate subsidy of 17.7% of non-Medicare medical 

premium. Liabilities for active participants are based on the first year costs shown below, which include the implicit rate 

subsidy. Subsequent years’ costs are based on first year costs adjusted for trend and limited by any District contribution 

caps. 

 

Employee Type Future Retirees Pre-65 Future Retirees Post-65 

Certificated $11,045 $5,832 

Certificated Management $11,045 $5,832 

Classified $6,245  

Classified Management $6,245  

 

PARTICIPATION RATES 

Employee Type <65 Non-Medicare Participation % 65+ Medicare Participation % 

Certificated 100% 80% 

Classified 100%  

 

TURNOVER 

Employee Type Turnover Rate Tables 

Certificated 2009 CalSTRS Termination Rates 

Classified 2009 CalPERS Termination Rates for School Employees 

 

SPOUSE PREVALENCE 

To the extent not provided and when needed to calculate benefit liabilities, 80% of retirees assumed to be married at 

retirement. After retirement, the percentage married is adjusted to reflect mortality. 

 



Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 
 

 

 
 18 

SPOUSE AGES 

To the extent spouse dates of birth are not provided and when needed to calculate benefit liabilities, female spouse 

assumed to be three years younger than male. 

 



Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 
 

 

 
 19 

APPENDIX D:  DISTRIBUTION OF ELIGIBLE PARTICIPANTS BY AGE 

  

ELIGIBLE ACTIVE EMPLOYEES 

Age Total 

Certificated 

Management Certificated Classified Confidential/Supervisory 

Under 25 2 0 0 2 0 

25-29 4 0 0 3 1 

30-34 6 0 0 6 0 

35-39 11 3 0 8 0 

40-44 17 2 0 14 1 

45-49 25 3 0 22 0 

50-54 22 1 0 21 0 

55-59 31 2 3 24 2 

60-64 21 0 0 19 2 

65 and older 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 139 11 3 119 6 

 

ELIGIBLE RETIREES 

Age Total 

Certificated 

Management Certificated Classified Confidential/Supervisory 

Under 50 0 0 0 0 0 

50-54 0 0 0 0 0 

55-59 3 0 1 2 0 

60-64 7 0 5 2 0 

65-69 9 2 7 0 0 

70-74 0 0 0 0 0 

75-79 0 0 0 0 0 

80-84 0 0 0 0 0 

85-89 0 0 0 0 0 

90 and older 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 19 2 13 4 0 

 



Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 
 

 

 
 20 

APPENDIX E:  GASB 74/75 ACCOUNTING ENTRIES AND DISCLOSURES 

 

 This report does not necessarily include the entire accounting values. As mentioned earlier, there are certain 

deferred items that are employer-specific. The District should consult with its auditor if there are any questions 

about what, if any, adjustments may be appropriate. 

 

 GASB 74/75 include a large number of items that should be included in the Note Disclosures and Required 

Supplementary Information (RSI) Schedules. Many of these items are outside the scope of the actuarial valuation. 

However, following is information to assist the District in complying with GASB 74/75 disclosure requirements: 

 

Paragraph 50:  Information about the OPEB Plan 

 

Most of the information about the OPEB plan should be supplied by Rincon Valley USD. 

Following is information to help fulfill Paragraph 50 reporting requirements. 

 

50.c: Following is a table of plan participants 

  Number of Participants 

Inactive Employees Receiving Benefits 19 

Inactive Employees Entitled to But Not Receiving Benefits* 0 

Participating Active Employees 139 

Total Number of participants 158 

*We were not provided with information about any terminated, vested employees 

 

Paragraph 51:  Significant Assumptions and Other Inputs 

 

shown in Appendix C. 

 

Paragraph 52:  Information Related to Assumptions and Other Inputs 

 

The following information is intended to assist Rincon Valley USD in complying with the 

requirements of Paragraph 52. 

 

52.b: Mortality Assumptions Following are the tables the mortality assumptions are based 

upon. Inasmuch as these tables are based on appropriate populations, and that these tables 

are used for pension purposes, we believe these tables to be the most appropriate for the 

valuation. 

 

Mortality Table 2009 CalSTRS Mortality 

Disclosure The mortality assumptions are based on the 2009 CalSTRS 

Mortality table created by CalSTRS. CalSTRS periodically 

studies mortality for participating agencies and establishes 

mortality tables that are modified versions of commonly used 

tables. This table incorporates mortality projection as deemed 

appropriate based on CalPERS analysis.  

 



Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 
 

 

 
 21 

Mortality Table 2009 CalPERS Mortality for Retired Miscellaneous Employees 

Disclosure The mortality assumptions are based on the 2009 CalPERS 

Mortality for Retired Miscellaneous Employees table created by 

CalPERS. CalPERS periodically studies mortality for 

participating agencies and establishes mortality tables that are 

modified versions of commonly used tables. This table 

incorporates mortality projection as deemed appropriate based on 

CalPERS analysis.  

Mortality Table 

 

2009 CalPERS Mortality for Active Miscellaneous Employees 

Disclosure The mortality assumptions are based on the 2009 CalPERS 

Mortality for Active Miscellaneous Employees table created by 

CalPERS. CalPERS periodically studies mortality for 

participating agencies and establishes mortality tables that are 

modified versions of commonly used tables. This table 

incorporates mortality projection as deemed appropriate based on 

CalPERS analysis.  

 

52.c: Experience Studies Following are the tables the retirement and turnover assumptions 

are based upon. Inasmuch as these tables are based on appropriate populations, and that 

these tables are used for pension purposes, we believe these tables to be the most 

appropriate for the valuation. 

 

 Retirement Tables 

 

Retirement Table 2009 CalSTRS Retirement Rates 

Disclosure The retirement assumptions are based on the 2009 CalSTRS 

Retirement Rates table created by CalSTRS. CalSTRS 

periodically studies the experience for participating agencies and 

establishes tables that are appropriate for each pool. 

 

Retirement Table 2009 CalPERS 2.0%@60 Rates for Miscellaneous Employees 

Disclosure The retirement assumptions are based on the 2009 CalPERS 

2.0%@60 Rates for Miscellaneous Employees table created by 

CalPERS. CalPERS periodically studies the experience for 

participating agencies and establishes tables that are appropriate 

for each pool. 

 

Retirement Table 2009 CalPERS Retirement Rates for School Employees 

Disclosure The retirement assumptions are based on the 2009 CalPERS 

Retirement Rates for School Employees table created by 

CalPERS. CalPERS periodically studies the experience for 

participating agencies and establishes tables that are appropriate 

for each pool. 

 



Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 
 

 

 
 22 

 Turnover Tables 

 

Turnover Table 2009 CalSTRS Termination Rates 

Disclosure The turnover assumptions are based on the 2009 CalSTRS 

Termination Rates table created by CalSTRS. CalSTRS 

periodically studies the experience for participating agencies and 

establishes tables that are appropriate for each pool. 

 

Turnover Table 2009 CalPERS Termination Rates for School Employees 

Disclosure The turnover assumptions are based on the 2009 CalPERS 

Termination Rates for School Employees table created by 

CalPERS. CalPERS periodically studies the experience for 

participating agencies and establishes tables that are appropriate 

for each pool. 

 

For other assumptions, we use actual plan provisions and plan data. 

 

52.d: The alternative measurement method was not used in this valuation. 

 

52.e: NOL Using alternative trend assumptions The following table shows the Net OPEB 

Liability with a healthcare cost trend rate 1% higher and 1% lower than assumed in 

the valuation. 

 

 Trend 1% Lower  Valuation Trend Trend 1% Higher 

Net OPEB Liability $1,945,605 $2,049,151 $2,154,742 

 

Paragraph 53:  Discount Rate 

 

The following information is intended to assist Rincon Valley USD to comply with 

Paragraph 53 requirements. 

 

53.a: A discount rate of 3.5% was used in the valuation. 

 

53.b: We assumed that contributions would be sufficient to fully fund the obligation over a 

period not to exceed 30 years. 

 

53.c: There are no plan assets. 

  

53.d and 53.e.: N/A 

 

53.f: There are no plan assets. 

 

53.g: The following table shows the Net OPEB liability with a discount rate 1% higher and 

1% lower than assumed in the valuation. 

 

 Discount Rate 

1% Lower  

Valuation 

Discount Rate 

Discount Rate 

1% Higher 

Net OPEB Liability $2,189,902 $2,049,151 $1,925,325 

 



Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 
 

 

 
 23 

Paragraph 55:  Changes in the Net OPEB Liability 

 

Please see reconciliation on page 9. Please see the notes for Paragraph 244 below for more 

information. 

 

Paragraph 56:  Additional Net OPEB Liability Information 

 

The following information is intended to assist Rincon Valley USD to comply with 

Paragraph 56 requirements. 

 

56.a: The valuation date is June 30, 2017. 

The measurement date is June 30, 2017. 

56 b; 56 c; 56.d; 56.e; 56.f: Not applicable 

56.g: To be determined by the employer 

56.h.(1) through (4): Not applicable 

56.h.(5): To be determined by the employer 

56.i: Not applicable 

 

Paragraph 57:  Required Supplementary Information 

 

57.a: Please see reconciliation on page 9. Please see the notes for Paragraph 244 below for 

more information. 

57.b: These items are provided on page 9 for the current valuation, except for covered 

payroll, which should be determined based on appropriate methods. 

57.c: We have not been asked to calculate an actuarially determined contribution amount. 

We assume the District contributes on an ad hoc basis, but in an amount sufficient to 

fully fund the obligation over a period not to exceed 30 years. 

57.d: We are not aware that there are any statutorily or contractually established 

contribution requirements. 

 

Paragraph 58:  Actuarially Determined Contributions 

 

We have not been asked to calculate an actuarially determined contribution amount. We 

assume the District contributes on an ad hoc basis, but in an amount sufficient to fully fund 

the obligation over a period not to exceed 30 years. 

 

Paragraph 244: Transition Option 

 

Prior periods were not restated due to the fact that prior valuations were not rerun in 

accordance with GASB 75. It was determined that the time and expense necessary to rerun 

prior valuations and to restate prior financial statements was not justified. 



Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 
 

 

 
 24 

APPENDIX F:  GLOSSARY OF RETIREE HEALTH VALUATION TERMS 

 

 

Note: The following definitions are intended to help a non-actuary understand concepts related to retiree health 

valuations.  Therefore, the definitions may not be actuarially accurate. 

 

Actuarial Cost Method:  A mathematical model for allocating OPEB costs by year of service. The only 

actuarial cost method allowed under GASB 74/75 is the entry age actuarial cost 

method. 

 

Actuarial Present Value of 

Projected Benefit Payments: The projected amount of all OPEB benefits to be paid to current and future retirees 

discounted back to the valuation or measurement date. 

 

Deferred Inflows/Outflows 

of Resources:   A portion of certain items that can be deferred to future periods or that weren’t 

reflected in the valuation. The former includes investment gains/losses, actuarial 

gains/losses, and gains/losses due to changes in actuarial assumptions or methods. 

The latter includes contributions made to a trust subsequent to the measurement 

date but before the statement date. 

 

Discount Rate:   Assumed investment return net of all investment expenses.  Generally, a higher 

assumed interest rate leads to lower service costs and total OPEB liability. 

 

Fiduciary Net Position:  Net assets (liability) of a qualifying OPEB “plan” (i.e. qualifying irrevocable trust 

or equivalent arrangement). 

 

Implicit Rate Subsidy:  The estimated amount by which retiree rates are understated in situations where, 

for rating purposes, retirees are combined with active employees and the employer 

is expected, in the long run, to pay the underlying cost of retiree benefits. 

 

Measurement Date:  The date at which assets and liabilities are determined in order to estimate TOL 

and NOL. 

 

Mortality Rate:   Assumed proportion of people who die each year.  Mortality rates always vary by 

age and often by sex.  A mortality table should always be selected that is based on 

a similar “population” to the one being studied. 

 

Net OPEB Liability (NOL): The Total OPEB Liability minus the Fiduciary Net Position. 

 

OPEB Benefits:   Other Post Employment Benefits. Generally medical, dental, prescription drug, 

life, long-term care or other postemployment benefits that are not pension benefits. 

 

OPEB Expense:   This is the amount employers must recognize as an expense each year. The annual 

OPEB expense is equal to the Service Cost plus interest on the Total OPEB 

Liability TOL) plus change in TOL due to plan changes minus projected 

investment income; all adjusted to reflect deferred inflows and outflows of 

resources. 



Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 
 

 

 
 25 

 

Participation Rate:  The proportion of retirees who elect to receive retiree benefits.  A lower 

participation rate results in lower service cost and a TOL.  The participation rate 

often is related to retiree contributions. 

 

Retirement Rate:  The proportion of active employees who retire each year.  Retirement rates are 

usually based on age and/or length of service.  (Retirement rates can be used in 

conjunction with the service requirement to reflect both age and length of service). 

 The more likely employees are to retire early, the higher service costs and 

actuarial accrued liability will be. 

 

Service Cost:   The annual dollar value of the “earned” portion of retiree health benefits if retiree 

health benefits are to be fully accrued at retirement. 

 

Service Requirement:  The proportion of retiree benefits payable under the OPEB plan, based on length of 

service and, sometimes, age. A shorter service requirement increases service costs 

and TOL. 

 

Total OPEB Liability (TOL): The amount of the actuarial present value of projected benefit payments 

attributable to employees’ past service based on the actuarial cost method used. 

 

Trend Rate:   The rate at which the employer’s share of the cost of retiree benefits is expected to 

increase over time.  The trend rate usually varies by type of benefit (e.g. medical, 

dental, vision, etc.) and may vary over time.  A higher trend rate results in higher 

service costs and TOL. 

 

Turnover Rate:   The rate at which employees cease employment due to reasons other than death, 

disability or retirement.  Turnover rates usually vary based on length of service and 

may vary by other factors.  Higher turnover rates reduce service costs and TOL. 

 

Valuation Date:   The date as of which the OPEB obligation is determined by means of an actuarial 

valuation. Under GASB 74 and 75, the valuation date does not have to coincide 

with the statement date, but can’t be more than 30 months prior. 

 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 

Meeting Date: May 8 2018 

Agenda Item: Action Item 15.6 

Subject: Bid Approval for Roof Replacement – Sequoia School 

Submitter:  Dr. Joseph Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent  

Background: The District is developing a long term roof repair and replacement plan, which will 
be finalized in the next few weeks.  This plan included the repair of the Sequoia 
roof during the summer of 2018.   This is for only part of the roof work on this 
campus; the remaining roof work is integral to the HVAC project and will be 
added as a change order by Arntz Construction to the District HVAC project.    
 

Highlights: By refurbishing roofs, the District receives the same length of warrantee as a new 
roof at a fraction of the cost.   Refurbishing can only be done before the roof 
deteriorates, therefore it is advantageous for the District to be proactive in 
addressing roofing needs.   

Challenges: The construction market is extremely busy, and the District only received one bid 
from Cornerstone Roofing. 

Analysis: Although the bid was approximately $25,000 more than estimated, there is no 
benefit in delaying this project.   Rebidding this year will likely not generate much 
or any savings, and if the project is delayed until next year the cost may increase.  
Cornerstone Roofing has worked with us in the past and we have been satisfied 
with the results of their work. 

Next Steps: Consider Approving the Sequoia Roof Bid. 

 
Attachments:  Bid from Cornerstone Roofing 
  
 
Fiscal Impact: $202,972 
  
Recommendation: Approve 







Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 

Meeting Date: May 8 2018 

Agenda Item: Action Item 15.7 

Subject: Bid Approval for Binkley School Landscape and Paving 

Submitter:  Dr. Joe Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent  

Background: Part of the Master Plan for Binkley Elementary School is to update the entry way 
of the building including landscaping and paving.  Bids for this work will be 
received after this agenda summary is finalized; and, therefore, are not included in 
this board packet. 
 

Highlights: This work completes virtually all of the major construction needs on the Binkley 
campus. 

Challenges: The construction marked is very busy which is causing significant increases to 
pricing. 

Analysis: This work is needed and will greatly improve the aesthetics of the campus. 

Next Steps: Consider approving the bid as presented at the board meeting. 

 
Attachments:  None 
  
 
Fiscal Impact: Estimates for this project are approximately $1M. 
  
Recommendation: Approve 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 

Meeting Date: May 8 2018 

Agenda Item: Action Item 15.8 

Subject:  Lease Lease-back Agreement with Arntz Construction- Village Phase II 

Submitter:  Dr. Joseph Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent  

Background: Earlier this year the board sent out a “request for proposal/qualifications” 
(RFP/RFQ) for the Village Phase II construction Project.   The board required all 
general contractors as mechanical, electrical and plumbing contractors for this job 
to be prequalified.   There was only one respondent to the RFP/RFQ request, 
which was Arntz Builders, Inc.    
 

Highlights: The scope of work for Village Phase II includes a complete renovation and 
regrading of the playfields, a new track, significant paving and concrete work, a 
new student drop-off lane, a new eating area, demolition of old portables, as well 
as other renovations.  The cost for this work is $2,522,411 with a recommended 
contingency of an additional $126,121.  The bid for the landscaping portion of 
this contract is due this Friday and expected to increase the cost of this contract 
less than $250,000.   The entire contract cost will be available at the board 
meeting. 

Challenges: The construction market is extremely hectic and it was difficult for Arntz, Inc. to 
get more than one quote for some of the sub-contractor work.  The landscaping is 
not included in this contract amount and will be made available at the board 
meeting.   To save funds the District will also handle the sealcoating of the project 
directly with a vendor under a separate contract. 

Analysis: The Village Phase II project needs to be done this summer.   

Next Steps: Consider approval of Village Phase II Lease Lease-Back agreement with Arntz 
construction. 

 
Attachments:  None (The Agreement will be available at the Board meeting.) 
  
 
Fiscal Impact: Approximately $2,800,000 plus contingency.   Final exact amount to be presented 

at the board meeting. 
  
Recommendation: Approve 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 

Meeting Date: May 8 2018 

Agenda Item: Action Item 15.9 

Subject: Form J-13A – Request for Allowance of Attendance Due to Emergency 
Conditions 

Submitter:  Dr. Joe Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent  

Background: The J-13A form is required to be completed if the District finds a material decrease 
in attendance due to a declared emergency.   The firestorms this year caused in a 
decrease in RVP attendance since not all of the schools that RVP classes are held 
at were open when RVUSD reopened.   ADA generates funding for the District. 
 

Highlights: The District may claim a small amount of ADA, which will generate some 
revenue. 

Challenges: The amount of generated revenue is a relatively small amount. 

Analysis: Revenues will increase approximately $4,000. 

Next Steps: Consider approval of Form J-13A. 

 
Attachments:  Form J-13A. 
  
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: Approve 



REQUEST FOR ALLOWANCE OF ATTENDANCE 
DUE TO EMERGENCY CONDITIONS 

Form J-13A
(Revised December 2017)

California Department of Education 
School Fiscal Services Division 
Website: https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ 
Telephone: 916-324-4541 
Email: attendanceaccounting@cde.ca.gov 



Form J-13A Instructions 
Why file:
The Request for Allowance of Attendance Due to 
Emergency Conditions, Form J-13A is used to 
obtain approval of attendance and instructional time 
credit under one or more of the following 
conditions: 

When one or more schools were closed
because of conditions described in
Education Code (EC) Section 41422.

When one or more schools were kept open
but experienced a material decrease in
attendance pursuant to EC Section 46392
and California Code of Regulations (CCR),
Title 5, Section 428.

When attendance records have been lost or
destroyed as described in EC Section
46391.

The California Department of Education’s (CDE) 
approval of the J-13A, combined with other 
attendance records, serve to document the local 
educational agency’s (LEA) compliance with 
instructional time laws and provide authority to
maintain school for less than the required 
instructional days and minutes without incurring a 
fiscal penalty to the LEA’s Local Control Funding 
Formula (LCFF) funding.

How to file:
The Form J-13A is available at http ://
www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/pa/j13a.asp. Also available
on the J-13A Web page are FAQs and
supplemental pages for sections B and C in Excel 
format. All affidavits must have original signatures. 

Charter schools must file separately from the
authorizing school district or county office of
education (COE). 

The LEA governing board must approve each 
request by completing Section E, Affidavit of School 
District, County Office of Education, or Charter 
School Governing Board Members. Once the
majority of the governing board members have
approved the request, the LEA should keep a copy 
of the request and then submit the original to the 
county superintendent who must approve the 
request before it can be submitted to the State 
Superintendent of Public Instruction, CDE. Charter 
schools must submit the request to their authorizing 
LEA for approval, who will then forward to the
county superintendent for approval. 

The following summarizes the J-13A submittal and 
CDE review process: 

The county superintendent executes the
Affidavit of County Superintendent of
Schools, certifying the approval.

The COE should keep a copy of the request
and mail the original request to the listed
CDE address.

Once CDE has received the Form J-13A,
the request will go through a review
process. If the request is approved, CDE
will e-mail the approval letter and a copy of
the request to all contacts listed on the form.
CDE will also mail a hardcopy of the
approval letter. If the request is denied,
CDE will e-mail the denial letter and a copy
of the request to all contacts listed on the
form. CDE will also mail a hardcopy of the
denial letter.

Where to file:
Mail the entire original Form J-13A to: 

School Fiscal Services Division 
California Department of Education 

1430 N Street, Suite 3800 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

General Instructions:
Multiple emergency events and schools
may be included on one Form J-13A. Be
sure to include specific detailed information
and supporting documents for each event
and school.

If the emergency event resulted in a closure
and material decrease, complete sections B
and C.

Supplemental pages for sections B and C
are available in Excel format for a request
that requires more lines than allocated on
Form J-13A.

Attach supporting documentation. Redact
any personally identifiable information.
Examples of required supporting
documentation:

o Declaration of a State of Emergency
o News articles
o E-mails
o Invoices

Form J-13A Instructions | 1



Form J-13A Instructions 
o A local safety officer letter for any

incident involving police activity,
threats, cyber threats, etc.

o A county public health officer letter for
any incident involving epidemic-type
illness. The letter is to specify that the
illness was an epidemic or that there
was an increase in the number of
cases of a disease above what is
normally expected of the population in
that area.

SECTION A: REQUEST INFORMATION
Refer to the California School Directory at https://
www.cde.ca.gov/schooldirectory/ for information
needed to complete this section.

PART I: LOCAL EDUCATIONAL AGENCY (LEA)

County Code – Enter the two-digit county code
associated with this entity.

District Code – Enter the five-digit district code
associated with this entity.

Charter Number – If this request is for a charter
school, enter the charter number associated
with this entity.

Fiscal Year – Enter the fiscal year of the
requested emergency closure, material
decrease and/or lost or destroyed attendance
records.

Address – Enter the LEA’s full address
including:

o Number and street
o County name
o City
o State
o Zip code

Contact Information – Enter a contact person for
this request. Include the following:

o Name
o Title
o Phone number
o E-mail address

PART II: LEA TYPE AND SCHOOL SITE 
INFORMATION APPLICABLE TO THIS 
REQUEST 
Select the LEA type associated with the request 
and, for a school district or COE request, if all or 
select school sites are included in the request. Only 
one LEA type may be selected. 

PART III: CONDITION(S) APPLICABLE TO THIS 
REQUEST 
Read each condition carefully and select one or 
more that apply to this request. In addition, indicate 
if the request is associated with a Declaration of a 
State of Emergency by the Governor of California. 

SECTION B: SCHOOL CLOSURE 
This section is used for closures pursuant to EC
Section 41422. If the request does not include any 
school closures, select the “Not Applicable” box on 
the top right corner and proceed to Section C. 

PART I: NATURE OF EMERGENCY 
Use this field to describe in detail the nature of the 
emergency(s) that caused the school closure. 

PART II: SCHOOL INFORMATION 
The fields below correspond to the columns on 
Form J-13A. 

School Name – Enter the school name of
each school closed on a separate line. Use
the supplemental Excel form
at http ://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/pa/j13a.asp

more than 10 lines are needed for this
request and select the “Supplemental
Page(s) Attached” box on the top right
corner.

School Code – Enter the seven-digit school
code associated with the school listed in
Column A. Use the California School
Directory https://www.cde.ca.gov/
schooldirectory/

Site Type – Enter the site type associated
with the school listed in Column A. This site
information is need for CDE to determine
the specific instructional time requirements
for the listed school. Choose one of the
following site type options:

o Charter School
o Community Day
o Continuation School
o County Community
o Juvenile Court School

Form J-13A Instructions | 2



Form J-13A Instructions 
o Opportunity School 
o Special Education 
o Traditional 

D. Days in School Calendar – Provide the 
number of days in the school calendar. 
Attach a copy of the school calendar to the 
request. If the request includes multiple 
schools, attach a copy of each different 
school calendar and clearly identify which 
schools follow each calendar. If all schools 
have the same school calendar, note “all 
schools” at the top of the calendar. 

E. Emergency Days Built In – Provide the 
number of additional days the school has 
built in to the school calendar to use as 
make-up days for emergency closures. 

F. Built In Emergency Days Used – Provide 
the number of built in emergency days the 
school has used so far in the school year. 

G. Date(s) of Emergency Closure – Enter the 
date(s) closed for the emergency in the 
current request. 

H. Closure Dates Requested – Of the dates 
provided in Column G, enter the dates the 
school will not be able to make-up, and is 
requesting as part of the Form J-13A. 

I. Total Number of Days Requested – Enter 
the total number of days for the dates 
requested in Column H. 

PART III: CLOSURE HISTORY 
In this section, provide the closure history for the 
current and five prior fiscal years for all schools 
included in the request, regardless if a J-13A
request was submitted. For example, if a school 
had multiple closures in one year, group the 
closures by fiscal year and nature. 

School 
Name 

School 
Code 

Fiscal 
Year 

Closure 
Dates Nature 

Weather 
Related 
Yes/No 

School  #1 0123456 2016-17
12/5, 
2/10 Flooding Yes 

School  #1 0123456 2016-17 4/17-4/18 
Power 
Outage No

School  #1 0123456 2015-16
12/15-
12/6 

Road 
Closures Yes 

SECTION C: MATERIAL DECREASE 
This section is used to claim attendance for 
material decreases pursuant to EC Section 46392.
If the request does not include any credits for a 
material decrease in attendance, select the “Not 

Applicable” box on the top right corner and proceed 
to Section D. 

If the attendance of an LEA or a school is less than 
or equal to 90 percent of "normal" attendance for a 
reasonable time during or after an emergency 
event, the LEA may assume that a case exists for 
claiming emergency attendance credit for the 
"material decrease" of attendance. According to 
CCR, Title 5, Section 428, “normal” attendance is
the average daily attendance (ADA) for the month 
of either October or May of the same school year. If 
the emergency occurred between July and 
September of the current year, the LEA must wait 
to submit the request until after October ADA of the 
current year can be calculated. The October or May 
ADA is used as a proxy for a normal day of 
attendance for the emergency day. However, if an 
emergency occurs in October or May, the LEA may 
request to use a different month as a proxy for a 
normal day of attendance for the emergency day.

Pursuant to EC Section 46392, the 90 percent 
threshold may be waived when the Governor has 
declared a “State of Emergency.” A copy of the 
Governor’s declaration should be included in the 
submittal. Any reduction of attendance in a 
necessary small school (NSS), even if less than 10 
percent, may be considered material. 

Attendance must be provided at the school site 
level. Approval of a districtwide material decrease 
is contingent upon the inclusion of all district sites, 
and a districtwide percentage of 90 percent or less 
on each emergency day. For non-districtwide 
emergencies, each school must meet the 90 
percent threshold on each emergency day for 
approval of attendance credit. 

PART I: NATURE OF EMERGENCY 
Use this field to describe in detail the nature of the 
emergency(s) that caused the material decrease in 
attendance. Provide a detailed explanation for any 
gap in between emergencies. Request should be 
accompanied by supporting documents, if 
applicable.

PART II: MATERIAL DECREASE CALCULATION 
The information provided in Parts II and III will be 
used to determine if the loss of attendance meets 
the 90 percent threshold for attendance credit 
approval (except when the governor declares a 
state of emergency or in the case of a NSS site),
and to calculate the estimated attendance credit 

Form J-13A Instructions | 3



Form J-13A Instructions 
amount. The fields below correspond to the 
columns on Form J-13A. 

School Name – Enter the school name of 
each school requesting attendance credit on 
a separate line. Use the supplemental
Excel form http ://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/ 
pa/j13a.asp if more than 10 lines are
needed for this request and select the
“Supplemental Page(s) Attached” box on the 
top right corner.

School Code – Enter the seven-digit school
code associated with the school listed in
Column A. Use the California School 
Directory https://www.cde.ca.gov/
schooldirectory/ to

C. “Normal” Attendance – Provide the ADA for 
the school month of October or May of the 
same school year. 

A school month is 20 days, or four weeks of 
five days each, including legal holidays but 
excluding weekend makeup classes (EC
Section 37201). The school calendar begins 
on the first Monday of the week that 
includes July 1 or the Monday of the first 
week of school. As a result, school months 
can be split between September and 
October; October and November; April and 
May; May and June. Therefore, the CDE
advises LEAs to use the school month that 
has the most school days in either October 
or May. 

D. Dates Used for Determining "Normal" 
Attendance – Enter the date range of the 
school month used to provide the ADA in 
Column C. 

E. Date of Emergency – Enter the date of the 
emergency. If the emergency lasted for 
more than one day, use a separate line 
for each date. 

F. Actual Attendance – Provide the actual 
attendance for the school site on the date of 
emergency listed in Column E. 

G. Qualifier: 90 Percent or Less (F/C) –
Calculated field. If the nature of emergency 
is consistent with EC Section 46392, the 
school may qualify for an attendance 

adjustment when the Actual Attendance 
(Column F) divided by the “Normal” 
Attendance (Column C) yields a percentage 
of 90 percent or less. Exclude any 
emergency day that yields a percentage of 
more than 90 percent except when the 
governor declares a state of emergency or 
in a case of a NSS site.

H. Net Increase of Apportionment Days (C-F) –
Calculated field. The Actual Attendance 
(Column F) is subtracted from the “Normal” 
Attendance (Column C) to determine the 
Net Increase of Apportionment Days 
(Column H). When attendance on the date 
of emergency is greater than the “normal”
attendance, this field will yield zero and 
should be removed from the material 
decrease calculation table.

If the request is approved, CDE’s 
approval letter will include the total net 
increase of apportionment days, which 
may differ from the amount shown. The 
LEA will then divide this number by the days 
in the applicable P-1, P-2, or Annual 
reporting period to determine the ADA 
increase. 

PART III: MATERIAL DECREASE 
CALCULATION FOR CONTINUATION HIGH 
SCHOOLS 
Continuation education is an hourly program, 
therefore the attendance must be provided in hours 
for continuation schools. Three hours equals one 
apportionment day. The fields below correspond to 
the columns on Form J-13A. 

School Name – Enter the school name of 
each continuation school requesting
attendance credit on a separate line. Use
the supplemental Excel file http ://
www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/pa/j13a.asp re
than five lines are needed for 
this request and select the
“Supplemental Page(s) Attached” box 
on the top right corner.

School Code – Enter the seven-digit school
code associated with the school listed in
Column A. Use the California School 
Directory https://www.cde.ca.gov/
schooldirectory/ to locate the school code.

Form J-13A Instructions | 4



Form J-13A Instructions 
C. “Normal” Attendance Hours – Provide the 

attendance hours for the continuation 
school on the same day of the week prior to, 
or the week following the emergency. 

Example: If the emergency day is on a 
Tuesday, provide the attendance hours on 
the Tuesday of the week prior to or following 
the emergency. 

D. Date Used for Determining "Normal" 
Attendance – Enter the date of the school 
day used to provide the attendance hours in 
Column C. 

E. Date of Emergency – Enter the date of the 
emergency. If the emergency lasted for 
more than one day, use a separate line 
for each date. 

F. Actual Attendance Hours – Provide the 
actual attendance hours for the continuation 
school on the date of emergency. 

G. Qualifier: 90 Percent or Less (F/C) –
Calculated field. If the nature of emergency 
is consistent with EC Section 46392, the 
school may qualify for an attendance 
adjustment when the Actual Attendance 
Hours (Column F) divided by the “Normal” 
Attendance Hours (Column C) yields a 
percentage of 90 percent or less. Exclude 
any emergency day that yields a percentage 
of more than 90 percent except when the 
governor declares a state of emergency or 
in a case of a NSS site. 

H. Net Increase of Hours (C-F) – Calculated 
field. The Actual Attendance Hours (Column 
F) is subtracted from the “Normal” 
Attendance Hours (Column C) to determine 
the Net Increase of Hours (Column H).
When attendance on the date of emergency 
is greater than the “normal” attendance, this 
field will yield zero and should be removed 
from the material decrease calculation table. 

If the request is approved, the approval 
letter will include the total net increase of 
hours for all continuation schools on the 
form, which may differ from the amount 
shown. The LEA will then convert the hours 
to apportionment days and divide this 
number by the days in the applicable P-1, 

P-2, or Annual reporting period to determine 
the ADA increase. 

SECTION D: LOST OR DESTROYED 
ATTENDANCE RECORDS 
If this request does not include any lost or 
destroyed attendance records, select the “Not 
Applicable” box on the top right corner and proceed 
to Section E. 

PART I: PERIOD OF REQUEST 
Enter the dates of the records that were lost or 
destroyed. 

PART II: CIRCUMSTANCES 
Provide a detailed explanation on the emergency 
condition(s) and the extent of the lost or destroyed 
records. 

PART III: PROPOSAL 
Provide a detailed proposal or estimation in the 
allotted space. 

SECTION E: AFFIDAVIT 
A completed affidavit is required before submitting
the entire Form J-13A request to CDE. 

PART I: AFFIDAVIT OF SCHOOL DISTRICT
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION, OR
CHARTER SCHOOL GOVERNING BOARD 
MEMBERS 

,

Enter the name of the school district, COE, 
or charter school.

Enter the names of the all the board 
members.

At least a majority of the board members 
must sign this affidavit. 

The governing board signatures must be 
witnessed. The witness person must 
complete the following fields: 

o Witnessed date 
o Name 
o Signature 
o Title 
o County name 

PART II: APPROVAL BY SUPERINTENDENT OF 
CHARTER SCHOOL AUTHORIZER 
Only complete for a charter school request. Once 
the governing board members and witness fields 
have been completed, this request will be 
submitted to the charter school’s authorizer for 
approval. An authorizer for a charter school may be 

Form J-13A Instructions | 5



Form J-13A Instructions 
a school district, COE or State Board of Education.
If approved, the superintendent of the charter 
school’s authorizer will complete the following 
fields: 

o Name 
o Signature 
o Authorizing LEA Name 

PART III: AFFIDAVIT OF COUNTY 
SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 
All requests must go to the COE for approval. If 
approved, the COE will complete Part III of the 
affidavit. The county superintendent’s signature 
must be witnessed. 

o Name of the County Superintendent of
Schools (or designee) 

o Signature of the County 
Superintendent of Schools (or 
designee) 

o Witnessed date 
o Witness name 
o Witness signature 
o Witness title 
o County name 
o Contact person/individual responsible 

for completing the county affidavit. 
Include the contact person’s name, 
title, phone number and e-mail 
address. 

Form J-13A Instructions | 6



FORM J-13A, REVISED DECEMBER 2017
SECTION A: REQUEST INFORMATION 

This form is used to obtain approval of attendance and instructional time credit pursuant to Education Code (EC) sections 41422, 46200, 46391, 46392 and California Code of Regulations (CCR), Title 5, Section 428. 
Only schools that report Principal Apportionment average daily attendance (ADA) for the purpose of calculating a K–12 Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) entitlement should submit this form.
Refer to the instructions and frequently asked questions for information regarding the completion of this form.

PART I: LOCAL EDUCATIONAL AGENCY (LEA) 
LEA NAME: COUNTY CODE: DISTRICT CODE: CHARTER NUMBER (IF APPLICABLE):

LEA SUPERINTENDENT OR ADMINISTRATOR NAME: FISCAL YEAR: 

ADDRESS: COUNTY NAME: 

CITY: STATE: ZIP CODE: 

CONTACT NAME: TITLE: PHONE: E-MAIL: 

PART II:  LEA TYPE AND SCHOOL SITE INFORMATION APPLICABLE TO THIS REQUEST (Choose only one LEA type):
SCHOOL DISTRICT COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION (COE) CHARTER SCHOOL 

Choose one of the following: Choose one of the following: 
All district school sites All COE school sites 
Select district school sites Select COE school sites 

PART III: CONDITION(S) APPLICABLE TO THIS REQUEST:

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 
REQUEST FOR ALLOWANCE OF ATTENDANCE DUE TO EMERGENCY CONDITIONS 

There was a Declaration of a State of Emergency by the Governor of California during the dates associated with this request.

SCHOOL CLOSURE: When one or more schools were closed because of conditions described in EC Section 41422. LCFF apportionments should be maintained and instructional time credited in Section B for the 
school(s) without regard to the fact that the school(s) were closed on the dates listed, due to the nature of the emergency. Approval of this request authorizes the LEA to disregard these days in the computation of 
ADA (per EC Section 41422) without applicable penalty and obtain credit for instructional time for the days and the instructional minutes that would have been regularly offered on those days pursuant to EC Section 
46200, et seq. 

MATERIAL DECREASE: When one or more schools were kept open but experienced a material decrease in attendance pursuant to EC Section 46392 and CCR, Title 5, Section 428. Material decrease requests that 
include all school sites within the school district must demonstrate that the school district as a whole experienced a material decrease in attendance. Material decrease requests for one or more but not all sites within the school 
district must show that each site included in the request experienced a material decrease in attendance pursuant to EC Section 46392 and CCR, Title 5, Section 428. The request for substitution of estimated days of
attendance for actual days of attendance is in accordance with the provisions of EC Section 46392. Approval of this request will authorize use of the estimated days of attendance in the computation of LCFF 
apportionments for the described school(s) and dates in Section C during which school attendance was materially decreased due to the nature of the emergency. 

There was a Declaration of a State of Emergency by the Governor of California during the dates associated with this request. 

LOST OR DESTROYED ATTENDANCE RECORDS: When attendance records have been lost or destroyed as described in EC Section 46391. Requesting the use of estimated attendance in lieu of attendance that 
cannot be verified due to the loss or destruction of attendance records. This request is made pursuant to EC Section 46391: 

“Whenever any attendance records of any district have been lost or destroyed, making it impossible for an accurate report on average daily attendance for the district for any fiscal year to be rendered, which fact 
shall be shown to the satisfaction of the Superintendent of Public Instruction by the affidavits of the members of the governing board of the district and the county superintendent of schools, the Superintendent of 
Public Instruction shall estimate the average daily attendance of such district. The estimated average daily attendance shall be deemed to be the actual average daily attendance for that fiscal year for the 
making of apportionments to the school district from the State School Fund.”

Form J-13A | 1

Rincon Valley Union School District 49 70896

Tony Roehrick 2017/18

1000 Yulupa Avenue Sonoma

Santa Rosa CA 95405

Krystle Johnson Director of Fiscal Services (707) 542-7375 kjohnson@rvusd.org

●

●

●

●



FORM J-13A, REVISED DECEMBER 2017

SECTION B: SCHOOL CLOSURE Not Applicable (Proceed to Section C)
PART I: NATURE OF EMERGENCY (Describe in detail.) Supplemental Page(s) Attached 

PART II: SCHOOL INFORMATION (Use the supplemental form at http ://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/pa/j13a.asp if more than 10 lines are needed for this request. Attach a copy of a school calendar. If the request is for
multiple school sites, and the sites have differing school calendars, attach a copy of each different school calendar to the request.)

A B C D E F G H I

School Name School Code Site Type 
Days in School 

Calendar 
Emergency Days 

Built In 
Built In Emergency 

Days Used Date(s) of Emergency Closure Closure Dates Requested 
Total Number of 
Days Requested 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 
REQUEST FOR ALLOWANCE OF ATTENDANCE DUE TO EMERGENCY CONDITIONS 

PART III: CLOSURE HISTORY (List closure history for all schools in Part II. Refer to the instructions for an example.) 
A B C D E F

School Name School Code Fiscal Year Closure Dates Nature 

Weather 
Related 
Yes/No 

Form J-13A | 2

●



FORM J-13A, REVISED DECEMBER 2017 

SECTION C: MATERIAL DECREASE Not Applicable (Proceed to Section D)
PART I: NATURE OF EMERGENCY (Describe in detail.) Supplemental Page(s) Attached 

PART II: MATERIAL DECREASE CALCULATION (Use the supplemental Excel file at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/pa/j13a.asp if more than 10 lines are needed for this request. Refer to the instructions for information 
on completing the form including the definition of “normal” attendance.)

A B C D E F G* H

School Name School Code 
“Normal” Attendance 

(October/May) 
Dates Used for Determining 

“Normal” Attendance Date of Emergency Actual Attendance 
Qualifier: 90% or 

Less (F/C)
Net Increase of 

Apportionment Days (C-F)
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total: 

PART III: MATERIAL DECREASE CALCULATION FOR CONTINUATION HIGH SCHOOLS (Provide the attendance in hours. Use the supplemental Excel file at http ://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/pa/j13a.asp if more than 5
lines are needed for this request. Refer to the instructions for information on completing the form including the definition of “normal” attendance.)

A B C D E F G* H
Date Used for Determining Actual Attendance Qualifier: 90% or Net Increase of Hours 

School Name School Code “Normal” Attendance Hours “Normal” ttendance Date of Emergency Hours Less (F/C) (C-F) 

Total: 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 
REQUEST FOR ALLOWANCE OF ATTENDANCE DUE TO EMERGENCY CONDITIONS 

*Qualifier should be 90% or less except when the governor declares a state of emergency or in the case of a Necessary Small School (NSS) site.

Form J-13A | 3

Due to the North Bay Wildfires, a large part of the Rincon Valley Union School District was designated an evacuation zone. Many families
were evacuated and particulates from the ash caused the air quality to be extremely unhealthy and forced the District to cancel school from
Oct 9-23. The area lost over 6,000 structures and a large percentage of these structures were located within the Rincon Valley Union
School District attendance area. Major decrease in attendance with parents choosing to keep children home due to poor air quality,
temporary relocation and lack of access to some buildings for the Rincon Valley Partnership.

Redwood Consortium/Rincon Valley Partnership 0120980 63.05 9/11/17 10/6/17 10/24/17 38 60.27% 25.05

Redwood Consortium/Rincon Valley Partnership 0120980 63.05 9/11/17 10/6/17 10/25/17 43 68.20% 20.05

Redwood Consortium/Rincon Valley Partnership 0120980 63.05 9/11/17 10/6/17 10/26/17 43 68.20% 20.05

Redwood Consortium/Rincon Valley Partnership 0120980 63.05 9/11/17 10/6/17 10/27/17 41 65.02% 22.05

0.00% 0.00

0.00% 0.00

0.00% 0.00

0.00% 0.00

0.00% 0.00

0.00% 0.00

252.21 165 87.21

0.00% 0.00

0.00% 0.00

0.00% 0.00

0.00% 0.00

0.00% 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00



FORM J-13A, REVISED DECEMBER 2017

SECTION D: LOST OR DESTROYED ATTENDANCE RECORDS Not Applicable (Proceed to Section E)
PART I: PERIOD OF REQUEST The entire period covered by the lost or destroyed records commences with _______________________________ up to and including _______________________________. 
PART II: CIRCUMSTANCES (Describe below circumstances and extent of records lost or destroyed.)

PART III: PROPOSAL (Describe below the proposal to reconstruct attendance records or estimate attendance in the absence of records.)

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 
REQUEST FOR ALLOWANCE OF ATTENDANCE DUE TO EMERGENCY CONDITIONS 

Form J-13A | 4

●



FORM J-13A, REVISED DECEMBER 2017

SECTION E: AFFIDAVIT 
PART I: AFFIDAVIT OF SCHOOL DISTRICT, COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION, OR CHARTER SCHOOL GOVERNING BOARD MEMBERS – All applicable sections below must be completed to process this J-13A request. 

PART II: APPROVAL BY SUPERINTENDENT OF CHARTER SCHOOL AUTHORIZER (Only applicable to charter school requests) 

We, members constituting a majority of the governing board of ___ hereby swear (or affirm) that the foregoing statements are true and are based on official records. _______________________________________________, 
Board Members Names Board Members Signatures 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 
REQUEST FOR ALLOWANCE OF ATTENDANCE DUE TO EMERGENCY CONDITIONS 

At least a majority of the members of the governing board shall execute this affidavit. 

Subscribed and sworn (or affirmed) before me, this day of __ _____________________________, ______________. _______________________________ 

Witness: Title: ounty, California 
(Name) (Signature) 

______________________________ of ________________________________ C

Superintendent (or designee): Authorizing LEA Name:
(Name) (Signature) 

PART III: AFFIDAVIT OF COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 
The information and statements contained in the foregoing request are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.

County Superintendent of Schools (or designee):
(Name) (Signature) 

Subscribed and sworn (or affirmed) before me, this _______________________________ day of __ _____________________________, ______________. 

Witness: 

COE contact/individual respons
Name: 

(Name) 

ible for completing this section: 
Title: 

(Signature) 

Phone:

Title: ____ ounty, California 

E-mail:

_______________________ of ____________________________ C

Form J-13A | 5

Rincon Valley Union School District

Cynthia Evers
Jeff Gospe
Carl Lynn Wood
Chris Rafanelli
Mike Cook

Tony Roehrick Superintendent Sonoma



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 

Meeting Date: May 8 2018 

Agenda Item: Action Item 15.10 

Subject: Contract Amendment Exhibit A – Sun Light & Power 

Submitter:  Dr. Joseph Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent  

Background:  Last month the board approved a contract for the construction of a photovoltaic 
system at Village School and the District Office. 
 

Highlights: NA 

Challenges: The vendor requested changes to the contract after the board approval. 

Analysis: The changes to the contract are not unreasonable and have been reviewed by our 
legal counsel.   The changes address responsibility in case of unforeseen conditions 
and a request by the surety to limit the exposure of the performance bond to the 
construction period. 

Next Steps: Consider approving the amendments. 

 
Attachments:  Final Amendment to Sun Power and Light Agreement 
  
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: Approve 



 

 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO  

AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING 

OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM  

 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT (“First Amendment”) is entered into this 8th day of May, 

2018, between the Rincon Valley Union School District (“District”), and Sun Light & 

Power (“Contractor”).  District and Contractor may collectively be referred to as “Parties.” 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, District and Contractor entered into an Agreement for Design, Installation 

and Commissioning of Solar/Photovoltaic System (“Solar Agreement”), approved by the 

District’s governing board on April 10, 2018. 

WHEREAS, under the Solar Agreement, Contractor is to furnish to the District the labor, 

equipment, material, and services as described in the scope of work/services attached as 

Exhibit “A” to the Solar Agreement, at two District sites. 

WHEREAS, the original Exhibit “A” to the Solar Agreement excluded certain details 

relating to the Contractor’s scope of work, which were negotiated between the Parties. 

WHEREAS, the Parties now desire to memorialize their agreements and understanding 

with respect to clarifying the Contractor’s scope of work under the Solar Agreement. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and agreements set forth in this 

agreement, the Parties agree to the following: 

1. MODIFICATIONS TO SOLAR AGREEMENT.  The Solar Agreement is hereby amended 

as follows: 

1.1 The original Exhibit “A” attached to the Solar Agreement is hereby deleted in 

its entirety, and shall be replaced, in its entirety, with the new Exhibit “A (rev. 1)” attached 

to this First Amendment. 

1.1.1 The new Exhibit “A (rev. 1)” now includes details on work and services 

included and excluded from the Contractor’s proposed scope of Work.  

1.2 The original form of Performance Bond attached to the Solar Agreement is 

hereby deleted in its entirety, and shall be replaced, in its entirety, with the new Performance 

Bond attached to this First Amendment. 

1.2.1 The updated Performance Bond includes minor modifications, requested 

by Contractor’s surety, to clarify the duration of surety’s obligations under the contract.  

Specifically, the following changes were made to the original performance bond document: 

As a condition precedent to the satisfactory completion of the Contract, the 

above obligation shall hold good for a period ending one year after the date of 

Final Completion during which time Surety’s obligation shall continue if 

Contractor shall fail to make full, complete, and satisfactory repair and 

replacements and totally protect the District from loss or damage resulting from 

or caused by defective materials or faulty workmanship.  The above obligation 



 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO SOLAR AGREEMENT (Sun Light & Power)  pg. 2 
DWK DMS 3250637v1 

is separate from and does not affect to the obligations under the Performance 

Guarantee Agreement, the Operations and Maintenance Agreement, or any 

warranty obligations that are effective for any period longer than one year 

following the Final Completion date.  At the conclusion of the one year period 

from the date of Final Completion, the obligation of surety will cease, and all 

guarantees or warranty obligations under the Performance Guarantee 

Agreement, the Operations and Maintenance Agreement or any warranty 

obligations that are effective for any period longer than one year following Final 

Completion date shall be the sole responsibility of Contractor and/or its 

manufacturers or suppliers as a direct pass-through to the District.  Nothing 

herein shall limit the District’s rights or the Contractor or Surety’s obligations 

under the Contract, law or equity, including, but not limited to, the District’s 

rights against Contractor under California Code of Civil Procedure section 

337.15. 

2. ORIGINAL SOLAR AGREEMENT IN EFFECT.  Except as expressly amended, added, or 

deleted by this First Amendment, the Parties affirm all definitions, terms, obligations, and 

conditions of the Solar Agreement, and the Parties acknowledge that the terms and conditions 

of the Solar Agreement, as amended, shall remain binding upon them.  Any term not 

specifically defined in this First Amendment shall have the same definition as provided in the 

Solar Agreement. 

3. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

3.1 Conflict.  This First Amendment is and shall be construed as a part of the original 

Solar Agreement.  In case of any inconsistency between this First Amendment and the Solar 

Agreement, the terms of this First Amendment shall be controlling. 

3.2 Execution In Counterparts.  This First Amendment may be executed in 

counterparts, including by facsimile signature or in a .PDF sent by electronic mail, such that 

the signatures may appear on separate signature pages.  A copy, or an original, with all 

signatures appended together, shall be deemed a fully executed and binding agreement. 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT is executed by the duly authorized representatives of the 

Parties on the dates set forth below, and effective as of the date provided in the first 

paragraph. 

 

 

[ATTACHMENTS ON FOLLOWING PAGES.] 

 

DISTRICT: 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL 

DISTRICT 

 

 

By:        

Name:       

Title:        

Date:       

CONTRACTOR: 

SUN LIGHT & POWER 

 

 

 

By:        

Name:       

Title:        

Date:       



 

 

Exhibit “A (rev. 1)” 

 

Sun Light & Power proposes to perform the solar portion of the work at the above-referenced 

project in accordance with the following clarification of scope. 

 

DC System size: 168.36 kW peak   AC System size: 150.167 kW CEC 

 

SLP Contract Price:       $733,155 

Estimated Total System Cost to Client:    $733,155 

 

SECTION A: Materials and Description 

 
Village Elementary: 900 Yulupa, Santa Rosa 

 DC System Size - 100.05 kWp 

 (290) REC 345 TP2S72 

 (1) CPS SCA50KTL-DO-US-480 & (1) CPS SCA36KTL-DO-US-480 

 Balance of System including DSA Pre-Check Solar Canopy 

 Canopy orientation from due N = 186 degrees. 5 degree tilt 

 145,073 kwh Estimated Year 1 Production  

 

District Office:  1000 Yulupa, Santa Rosa 

 DC System Size - 68.31 kWp 

 (198) REC 345 TP2S72 

 (1) CPS SCA60KTL-DO-US-480 

 Balance of System including DSA Pre-Check Solar Canopy 

 Canopy orientation from due N = 161 degrees. 5 degree tilt 

 99,050 kwh Estimated Year 1 Production  

 

 

SECTION B: Inclusions 

 

1. Design all system components to meet standard code requirements. 

2. Generate submittal drawings and interface with the site designers. 

3. Secure a permit for the Solar portion of the project from the appropriate 

jurisdiction. 

4. Provide a GPR and utility survey on site before work begins. 

5. Provide temporary fencing around worksite prior to work beginning. 

6. Provide and install galvanized solar shade structure with a 13'-6" minimum 

clear height.  

7. Provide and install the modules on solar shade structure. 

8. Provide and install the Inverter(s) and associated equipment on shade structure 

columns. 

9. Provide and install a 650 foot underground conduit between the solar array and 

the interconnection point of Village Elementary School. 

10. Provide and install a 100 foot underground conduit between the solar array and 

the interconnection point of the Bus Yard. 

11. Provide (2) additional 3" underground conduits for each underground portion. 

12. Provide and install rigid and EMT conduit where appropriate for the PV System. 

13. Provide and install fused AC disconnect for line side point of interconnection. 

14. Provide and install LED lighting under each shade structure. 



 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO SOLAR AGREEMENT (Sun Light & Power)  EX. “A (rev. 1)” 
DWK DMS 3250637v1 

15. Sun Light and Power to commission the system; Coordinate all utility and local 

permit inspections. 

16. Provide and install a cellular enabled Data Acquisition System (DAS) to monitor 

the PV system production, the weather, and the building loads. 

17. Sun Light & Power to provide, install, and maintain SLP construction banner for 

the duration of the project. 

 

SECTION C: Exclusions 

 

1. All fireproofing, sound mitigation, hazardous material testing and remediation, 

unless otherwise noted. 

2. All site work including grading & restoring any surfaces which are included in 

the District’s other scope of work at the site, as long as the site is left safe. 

3. Any Caving, Rock Drilling, Refusal, Obstruction to Drilling, & Water Mitigation 

occurs or required to complete the project. 

4. Demolition, relocation and/or removal of equipment and material from the 

construction site. 

5. Painting of electrical equipment, conduits, or any other surfaces unless 

otherwise noted. 

 

SECTION D: Assumptions 

 

1. The "First Year" begins when "Permission To Operate" letter is issued by the 

local utility. 

2. Prevailing Wage rates will apply to this project. 

3. The existing switchgear, without upgrade, allows for a NEC compliant point of 

interconnection for the photovoltaic system. 

4. The provided switchgear does not include a center fed main panel. 

5. The AHJ does not require DC shunt disconnects for the DC conductors. 

6. Two weeks notice will be provided to SLP when work is required outside of 

normal operating hours including Fridays. 

7. PV array for Village Elementary will overhang the field and parking area. 

8. Design and layout approved by the local fire authority. 

9. One mobilization for loading all solar materials.  If additional mobilizations are 

required by the District, remobilization charges will apply. 

10. Owner to provide a location for a portable lavatory for the duration of project. 

 

 

END OF EXHIBIT “A (rev. 1)”



 

 

PERFORMANCE BOND 

(100% of Contract Price) 

 

(Note:  Contractor must use this form, NOT a surety company form.) 

 
KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: 

WHEREAS, the governing board (“Board”) of the Rincon Valley Union School District (“District”) 

and Sun Light & Power (“Principal”) have entered into a contract for the furnishing of all 

materials and labor, services and transportation, necessary, convenient, and proper to perform 

the following project: 

 

Solar Photovoltaic Project 

(“Project” or “Contract”) which Contract dated    , 2018, and all of the Contract 

Documents attached to or forming a part of the Contract, are hereby referred to and made a part 

hereof; and  

WHEREAS, said Principal is required under the terms of the Contract to furnish a bond for the 

faithful performance of the Contract. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Principal and        (“Surety”) are held 

and firmly bound unto the Board of the District in the penal sum of Seven Hundred Thirty-

Three Thousand One Hundred Fifty-Five Dollars ($733,155.00), lawful money of the 

United States, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made we bind ourselves, our 

heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns jointly and severally, firmly by these 

presents, to: 

- Promptly perform all the work required to complete the Project; and  

- Pay to the District all damages the District incurs as a result of the Principal’s failure 

to perform all the Work required to complete the Project. 

Or, at the District’s sole discretion and election, the Surety shall obtain a bid or bids for completing 

the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions, and upon determination by the District 

of the lowest responsible bidder, arrange for a contract between such bidder and the District and 

make available as Work progresses sufficient funds to pay the cost of completion less the “balance 

of the Total Contract Price,” and to pay and perform all obligations of Principals under the Contract, 

including, without limitation, all obligations with respect to warranties, guarantees and the 

payment of liquidated damages.  The term “balance of the Total Contract Price,” as used in this 

paragraph, shall mean the total amount payable to Principal by the District under the Contract and 

any modifications thereto, less the amount previously paid by the District to the Principal, less any 

withholdings by the District allowed under the Contract.  District shall not be required or obligated 

to accept a tender of a completion contractor from the Surety for any or no reason. 

The condition of the obligation is such that, if the above bound Principal, its heirs, executors, 

administrators, successors, or assigns, shall in all things stand to and abide by, and well and truly 

keep and perform the covenants, conditions, and agreements in the Contract and any alteration 

thereof made as therein provided, on its part to be kept and performed at the time and in the 

intent and meaning, including all contractual guarantees and warrantees of materials and 

workmanship, and shall indemnify and save harmless the District, its trustees, officers and agents, 

as therein stipulated, then this obligation shall become null and void, otherwise it shall be and 
remain in full force and virtue. 



 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO SOLAR AGREEMENT (Sun Light & Power)  Performance Bond 
DWK DMS 3250637v1 

Surety expressly agrees that the District may reject any contractor or subcontractor which may be 

proposed by Surety in fulfillment of its obligations in the event of default by the Principal.  Surety 

shall not utilize Principal in completing the Project nor shall Surety accept a Bid from Principal for 

completion of the Work if the District, when declaring the Principal in default, notifies Surety of the 

District’s objection to Principal’s further participation in the completion of the Work. 

As a condition precedent to the satisfactory completion of the Contract, the above obligation shall 

hold good for a period ending one year after the date of Final Completion during which time 

Surety’s obligation shall continue if Contractor shall fail to make full, complete, and satisfactory 

repair and replacements and totally protect the District from loss or damage resulting from or 

caused by defective materials or faulty workmanship.  At the conclusion of the one year period 

from the date of Final Completion, the obligation of surety will cease, and all guarantees or 

warranty obligations under the Performance Guarantee Agreement, the Operations and 

Maintenance Agreement or any warranty obligations that are effective for any period longer than 

one year following Final Completion date shall be the sole responsibility of Contractor and/or its 

manufacturers or suppliers as a direct pass-through to the District.  Nothing herein shall limit the 

District’s rights or the Contractor’s obligations under the Contract, law or equity, including, but not 

limited to, the District’s rights against Contractor under California Code of Civil Procedure section 

337.15. 

The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, 

alteration, or addition to the terms of the Contract or to the work to be performed thereunder or 

the specifications accompanying the same shall in any way affect its obligation on this bond.  The 

Surety also stipulates and agrees that it shall not be exonerated or released from the obligation of 

this bond by any overpayment or underpayment by the District that is based upon estimates 

approved by the architect.  The Surety does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of 

time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the Contract or to the work or to the specifications. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, two (2) identical counterparts of this instrument, each of which shall for 

all purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the Principal and Surety 

above named, on the    day of    , 20___. 

  

PRINCIPAL SURETY 

BY BY 

 NAME OF CALIFORNIA AGENT OF SURETY 

 ADDRESS OF CALIFORNIA AGENT OF SURETY 

 TELEPHONE NO. OF CALIFORNIA AGENT OF SURETY 

Contractor must attach a Notarial Acknowledgment for all Surety’s signatures and a 

Power of Attorney and Certificate of Authority for Surety.  The California Department of 

Insurance must authorize the Surety to be an admitted surety insurer. 

 

END OF DOCUMENT 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 

Meeting Date: May 8 2018 

Agenda Item: Action Item 15.11 

Subject: Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified Educators for 2018-2019 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  

Background: Each year, California public school districts are required to renew the Declaration 
of Need for Fully Qualified Educators.  This provides the district with the ability to 
hire in specialized areas such as resource specialist, special education limited 
assignment, as well as any CLAD/English Learner authorizations that are in 
progress.   
 

Highlights: N/A 

Challenges:  N/A 

Analysis: N/A 

Next Steps: N/A 

 
Attachments:  Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified Educators 2018-19 
  
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: Approve 









Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 

Meeting Date: May 8 2018 

Agenda Item: Action Item 15.12 

Subject: AB1200 Public Disclosure of Salary Settlement Agreement with California 
School Employees’ Association Chapter #284 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  

Background: In 1991, AB 1200 was passed in reaction to the Richmond School District 
financial collapse.  The goal of AB 1200 is for school districts to work with the 
county office of education to improve fiscal procedures, standards and 
accountability. AB 1200 expands the role of county offices of education in 
monitoring school districts and mandates that they intervene, if necessary, to 
ensure districts can pay for compensation increases.  This law requires a school 
district to document the cost of any salary and benefit increase and to send the 
documentation to the County office of Education ten days prior to the board 
meeting, which was done in late February.  The increase then needs to be approved 
by the Board so that the employees can receive their increases.  

 
 In addition, the District has settled with CSEA Local Chapter #284 on all issues for 

2017-18 and reached a settlement for compensation for 2018-19 
 

Highlights: The District and CSEA also finalized a multi-year job description and 
compensation study.  As a result, adjustments for certain classifications were 
increased. 

Challenges: N/A  

Analysis: The compensation agreement includes a me-too clause that provides the CSEA 
members to receive the same level of salary increase should RVUTA eventually 
settle for any amount greater than 1%.  Adjustments to the salary schedule will 
enhance the District’s ability to recruit and retain individuals in certain hard to fill 
positions. 

Next Steps: Once approved by the Governing Board, the joint RVUSD-CSEA Local Chapter 
#284 contract will be revised and distributed.   

Attachments:  AB 1200 form for classified employees 
 RVUSD-CSEA Local Chapter #284 Contractual Agreements for the 2017-18 and 

Compensation for 2018-19 
  
Fiscal Impact: The cost of the 1% raise and adjustment to the salary schedule will be 

approximately $160,000 in FY 2019, and $60.000 in FY 2020. 
  
Recommendation: Approve 













Tentative Agreement 

Between the Rincon Valley Union School District 

And 

California School Employees Association Chapter #284 

This Tentative Agreement ("TA") is entered the day of March 30, 2018, by and between the 

Rincon Valley Union School District and the California School Employees Association Chapter 

#284 to address the completion of negotiations for 2018-2019: 

Article IV Employee ·Rights-Evaluations 

Add: 

New form added to the Evaluation Report Form titled Assistance Improvement Plan for 

Classified Employees 

Article VI Hours of Work 

Increase the number of work days for the school based employee who currently work 182 days 

to 183 days. The additional day will be the day before school begins 

Article XXIII Pay and Allowances 

1) Auxiliary Rate of Pay:

Effective July 1, 2018 the stipend for Tutoring will be increase from $12.00 per hour to $18.00

per hour. 

2) The CSEA Salary Schedule for 2018-2019 will increase by one percent {1%) on July 1, 2018. If

any other group of employees receives more than a one percent (1%) salary increase, CSEA will

receive the same percentage increase.

Other 

1) Effective July 1, 2018, the bargaining unit position of Instructional Assistant-Special Education II 

will be reclassed to Instructional Assistant-Special Education Ill

2) Effective July 1, 2018, the bargaining unit position of Custodian title will be changed to Lead 

Custodian.  Job description to be negotiated. 

For the District For CSEA 

Date For CSEA 

Date 



RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
EVALUATION R~ORT FOR CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES 

Name (Last name first) Position 

Department or School Reporting Period Name/Title of Supervisor 

Instructions: Fill in the number for the phrase that best describes the employee's performance: 
1 - Unsatisfactory; 2 - Needs improvement to meet work performance standards; 3 - Meets work performance standards. If a factor is not applicable 
write in N/A. A written assistance plan is required for any rating less than 3. 

Quality: 
__ A. Performs duties in an acceptable manner. 
Comments: 

Dependability: 
__ A. Handles duties in absence of supervision. 
Comments: 

Quantity: 
__ A. Completes the work required in the allotted time. 
Comments: 

Attendance and Punctuality: 
__ A. Is present and reports to work on time. 
Comments: 

Work Habits and Attitudes: 
__ A. Organizes work. 
__ C. Learns and applies new ideas, procedures, rules & techniques. 
__ E. Complies with rules, regulations and policies. 
Comments: 

Contributes to a Positive Work Environment: 
__ A. Works effectively with other employees. 
__ C. Works effectively with public. 
Comments: 

__ B. Completes work with a minimum of errors. 

__ B. Follows written and oral instructions in performance of job . 

__ B. Complies with assigned hours of work and appointment schedules. 

__ B. Uses good judgment in the performance of work. 
__ D. Takes initiative in the work performed. 
__ F. Accepts job responsibilities. 

__ B. Works effectively with pupils. 



Supervisory Ability: (Only for employees who supervise) 
A. Plans and directs the work of others. 

Comments: 

Overall Work Performance: 
Comments: 

__ Assistance Improvement Plan Required (Indicate by marking X). 

Employee's Comments: 

Any written comments made by the Administrator shall be discussed with the superv isor and the employee. 

Signature of Supervisor Title 

Signature of H.R. Administrator Title 

Date 

Date 

It is understood that in signing the Evaluation Report Form, the employee acknowledges having seen and discussed the report. The employee's 
Signature does not necessarily imply agreement with the conclusions of the supervisor. 

Signature of Employee Date 



RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ASSISTANCE IMPROVEMENT PLAN FOR CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES 

Employee Name (Last name first) 

Department or School Reporting Period 

Instructions: Complete one form for each area designated for improvement. 

General Area for Improvement: 

Position 

Name/Title of Supervisor 

Specific Evidence used to Determine Employee is not Meeting Performance Standards (include a statement of the expected Performance Standard) : 

Plan to Support the Employee meet Expectations for Improvement: 

Evidence to Assess the Employee is making progress in meeting Expectations for Improvement: 

Timeline to Monitor the Employee's Plan to meet Expectations for Improvement: 

Signature of Supervisor Signature of Employee Date 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Auxiliary Rates of Pay 

I. 

II. 

Program 
G.A.T.E Classes 
After School Emichment Classes 
Art Docent (Lessons /firing) 
Noon Duty Leagues 
*Generic certificated hourly rate 
Tutoring - Certificated (RV employees) 

Certificated (non-employees) 
Classified 

Dance Docent Coordinator 

Stipend Positions 
Counseling Interns (hired before 6/30/16) 
Counseling Interns (hired after 7 /1 /16) 
*Counseling Intern Supervisor 
After School Sports Coordinator 
Coaches 
Year Book Coach 
Charter Spanish 
Charter PE 
Charter Drama 
Charter Art 
Strings Instructor 
Garden Coordinator 

Hourly Rates 
$50.00 per class 
$50.00 per class 
$60.00/lesson (3hr/lesson)/ $12.00/hr 
$12.00 per hour 
$40.00 per hour 
$40.00 per hour 
$25.00 per hour 
$18.00 per hour (Effective July 1, 2018) 
$25.00 per how-

Rate of Pay 
$7,000/per year 
$5,000/per year 
$1,200/per year 
$2,500/per year 
$750.00 per sport 
$1,500/per year 
$8,000 annual per period 
$8,000 annual per period 
$10,000 annual per period 
$10,000 annual per period 
$28,000 annual 

* All coaching stipends will be paid on the supplemental payroll following the end of that sport 
season. 

III. Professional Development 
*Differentiation Certification 4 classes 

* a. Completion of Certification 
*New Teacher Meetings (before school) 

IV. Substitute Teacher Pay K-8th 
*I - 5 days 
*Pre-Approved LIT 6+ days 
* Yi day 

V. Preferred Substitute Program 
*Daily Rate 
* Yi day Rate 

VI. Summer School 
ELD 
Summer School 
ESY 

*Certificated Only. 

$100 or Yi unit 
$600 or 3 units 
$100or Viunit 

$120 .00 per day 
$160 .00 per day 
$ 75.00 per Yi day 

$ 140.00 per day 
$ 85.00 per day 

$40.00 per hour. Generic certificated rate. 
$40.00 per hour. Generic certificated rate. 
$40.00 per hour. Generic certificated rate. 

Board Approved : 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Classified CSEA Salary Guide 2018-19 
Step 1 2 3 4 5 6-10 

Range 
03 $ 12.33 $ 12.92 $ 13.60 $ 14.26 $ 14.99 $ 15.71 
04 $ 12.63 $ 13.25 $ 13.95 $ 14.59 $ 15.37 $ 16.12 
05 $ 12.93 $ 13.60 $ 14.26 $ ·14.99 $ 15.71 $ 16.53 
06 $ 13.27 $ 13.95 $ 14.59 $ 15.37 $ 16.12 $ 16.94 
07 $ 13.62 $ 14.28 $ 15.00 $ 15.72 $ 16.54 $ 17.33 

08 $ 13.97 $ 14.61 $ 15.39 $ 16.13 $ 16.95 $ ~7.79 
09 $ 14.28 $ 15.00 $ 15.73 $ 16.54 $ 17.38 $ 18.23 

10 $ 14.61 $ 15.51 $ 16.14 $ 16.95 $ 17.79 $ 18.69 

11 $ 15.01 $ 15.73 $ 16.58 $ 17.38 $ 18.24 $ 19.18 

12 $ 15.40 $ 16.14 $ 16.96 $ 17.80 $ 18.70 $ 19.63 
13 $ 15.76 $ 16.58 $ 17.39 $ 18.24 $ 19.18 $ 20.12 
14 $ 16.16 $ 16.97 $ 17.82 $ 18.70 $ 19.66 $ 20 .60 
15 $ 16.59 $ 17.40 $ 18.25 $ 19.19 $ 20.12 $ 21 .14 
16 $ 16.97 $ 17.82 $ 18.72 $ 19.66 $ 20.61 $ 21 .66 
17 $ 17.40 $ 18.27 $ 19.22 $ 20 .13 $ 21.15 $ 22 .20 

18 $ 17.86 $ 18.73 $ 19.68 $ 20 .62 $ 21.69 $ 22 .76 
19 $ 18.27 $ 19.22 $ 20 .19 $ 21 .15 $ 22.21 $ 23 .34 
20 $ 18.73 $ 19.70 $ 20.63 $ 21 .70 $ 22.78 $ 23 .90 
21 $ 19.24 $ 20 .21 $ 21 .16 $ 22.22 $ 23.35 $ 24 .52 
22 $ 21 .79 $ 22.77 $ 23.71 $ 24.78 $ 25.91 $ 27 .09 

11-15 16-20 21-25 26-30 31 

$ 16.49 $ 17.32 $ 18.18 $ 19.10 $ 20 .06 
$ 16.94 $ 17.76 $ 18.65 $ 19.59 $ 20.57 
$ 17.36 $ 18.23 $ 19.15 $ 20 .11 $21 .12 
$ 17.76 $ 18.65 $ 19.59 $ 20.57 $ 21.60 
$ 18.20 $ 19.12 $ 20.08 $ 21 .08 $ 22.14 
$ 18.67 $ 19.61 $ 20.59 $ 21 .62 $ 22 .70 
$ 19.15 $ 20.11 $ 21.12 $ 22.17 $ 23.28 
$ 19.62 $ 20.60 $ 21.63 $ 22 .71 $ 23.85 
$ 20.14 $ 21.15 $ 22.21 $ 23 .31 $ 24.47 
$ 20 .61 $ 21.64 $ 22.73 $ 23 .86 $ 25 .06 
$21 .12 $ 22.18 $ 23 .28 $ 24.44 $ 25.65 
$ 21.63 $ 22.71 $ 23.85 $ 25 .04 $ 26.30 
$ 22.20 $ 23.30 $ 24.46 $ 25.67 $ 26.97 
$ 22.75 $ 23 .89 $ 25.08 $ 26.34 $ 27 .64 
$ 23.30 $ 24.46 $ 25.67 $ 26 .97 $ 28.31 
$ 23.89 $ 25.09 $ 26.35 $ 27.65 $ 29 .05 
$ 24.50 $ 25.71 $ 27.01 $ 28.37 $ 29.77 
$ 25.10 $ 26.36 $ 27.66 $ 29 .06 $ 30.52 
$ 25.77 $ 27 .05 $ 28.41 $ 29 .81 $ 31.31 
$ 28.45 $ 29.86 $ 31.35 $ 32.92 $ 34.56 



0 \D Rincon Valley Union School District 
_.----, Classified Job Description 

Job Title: Instructional Assistant- Special Education II 
Reports to: Assistant Superintendent , Student Services 

Summary: 

Under the direction of certificated staff and supervision of Assistant Superintendent , Student 
Services, assists certificated staff in the instruction, supervision and training of individuals or 
groups of students with a wide range of special education needs. 

Essential Functions and Duties: 

• Assists teacher in maintaining positive classroom behavior management, motivating, 
instructing and superv ising students. 

• Provides instruction and assistance to students individually and in small groups to 
reinforce skills or to supplement instruction to include academics, communication 
skills, motor skills, leisure and recreation , and self-help (personal hygiene, etiquette, 
and manners) 

• Supervises and supports students in designated areas around the school campus and on 
field trips . 

• Contributes relevant feedback/information on student progress through observation, 
interaction and maintaining accurate records. 

• Assists teacher in the preparation of classroom and lesson materials. 

• Operates instructional equipment as required. 

• Maintains confidential information in records and files. 

• Assists in the implementation of Behavior Plans. 

• Monitors and assist students in using adaptive devices , (i.e. wheelchairs, hearing aids, 
speech synthesizers, cassette players , VCR ' s), and various recreational equipment. 

• Performs other related duties as assigned. 

Knowledge and Abilities: 

• Ability to maintain the confidentiality of school related information. 
• Ability to maintain cooperative relationships with those contacted in the course of work. 
• Ability to understand and carry out oral and written instructions. 
• Ability to relate positively to students , staff and public. 
• Ability to learn and follow the practice , rules and regulations of the District and to the 

school to which assigned. 
• Must lift up to fifty pounds on a regular basis and occasionally lift in excess of fifty 

pounds . 

Education and Experience: 

• AA/ AS, successful passage of instructional assistant exam or 48 approved college units. 
• One year successful classroom experience as an instructional assistant desirable but not 

required. 
• Some experience with individuals with special needs desirable but not required. 



Required Licenses /Certificates: 

· • Current CPR and First Aid certificate. 
• Criminal Justice/Fingerprint clearance 
• Mandated Reporter - required annually 
• Verification of TB clearance 
• Successful passing of a physical. 

Salary Range - 8 

CSEA Approved: 
Board Approved: 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Classified Job Description 

Job Title: 
Reports to: 

Instructional Assistant-Special Education III 
RVP Program Manager 

Summary: 

Under the direction of certificated staff and supervision of RVP Program Manager , assists 
certificated staff in the instruction , supervision and training of individuals or groups of students 
with a wide range of special education needs . 

Essential Duties and Responsibilities: 

• Assists in directed instruction including: 
• Assists in direct instruction in academics , motor skills , speech and language, 

communication skills, and life skills. 
• Assists students in - toileting , diapering , feeding personal hygiene , dressing , etiquette 

and manners. 
• Supports an effective learning environment through student supervision , class 

management and student discipline. 
• Contributes relevant feedback/information on student progress through observation , 

interaction and maintaining accmate records . 
• Monitors and assists students in using adaptive devices , (i.e. electric wheelchairs, hearing 

aids, speech synthesizers , cassette players , VCR ' s), and various recreational equipment. 
• Performs related duties as required. 

Knowledge and Abilities: 

• Indoor/outdoor recreational activities suitable for students. 
• Safe work practices and proper lifting techniques. 
• Develop rapport with all students by being fair, consistent and respectful. 
• Plan, organize , and prioritize own work to meet deadlines and accomplish assigned tasks 

within established timelines . 
• Facilitate age-appropriate interactions , activities and instruction to all students regardless 

of disability. 
• Recognize , stimulate and solicit student interest , input and participation to the fullest 

extent of each student ' s potential. 
• Nonverbal communication skills 

Education and Experience: 

Any combination of education and experience that would likely provide the knowledge and 
abilities is qualifying . A typical way to obtain the knowledge and abilities would be formal or 
informal education or training , which ensures the ability to read and write at a level necessary for 
successful job performance and passing scores on the proficiency test. Any paid or volunteer 
experience working in an instructional environment is a plus . 

Required Licenses/Certificates: 

• Current CPR and First Aid certificate. 
• Passing score on instructional assistant proficiency test. 



• Successful passing of a physical. 
• Crimina l Justice/Fingerprint clearance 
• Mandated Repotter- required annually 
• Verification of TB clearance 

Pay Range: +-Oil 

CSEA Approved: 
Board Approved: 



Memorandum of Understanding 
Between the Rincon Valley Union School District 

And 
California School Employees Association Chapter #284 

This Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") is entered into the day of March 30, 2018, by 

and between the Rincon Valley Union School District and the California School Employees 

Association Chapter #284 to address the completion of the salary compensation study: 

Beginning July 1, 2018, the follow range for the bargaining unit below will be as followed: 

Bargaining unit ~osition Current Range New Range 
District Receptionist 9 10 
Special Ed Office Manager 17 18 
Curriculum Office Manager 17 18 
Payroll Technician 20 21 
HR/Business Office Assistant/Clerk 12 13 
Noon Duty 2 3 
Day Custodian 13 14 
Night Custodian 12 13 
Maintenance Ill 20 21 
Instructional Assistant Special Ed I 5 7 
Instructional Assistant Special Ed II 8 11 
Instructional Assistant Special Ed Ill 10 11 
Staff Day Care Assistant 2 3 
Staff Day Care Coordinator 7 8 
Food Service Cashier 5 6 
Food Service I 8 9 
Warehouseman 13 15 

Beginning July 1, 2019, the follow range for the bargaining unit below will be as followed: 

Bargaining unit ~osition Current Range New Range 
Payroll Technician 21 22 
HR/Business Office Assistant/Clerk 13 14 
Noon Duty 3 4 
Day Custodian 14 15 
Instructional Assistant Special Ed I 7 8 
Instructional Assistant Special Ed II 11 12 
Instructional Assistant Special Ed Ill 11 12 
Staff Day Care Assistant 3 4 
Staff Day Care Coordinator 8 9 



Food Service Cashier 

Warehouseman 

For the District 

Date 

6 

15 
7 

16 

For CSEA 

For CSEA 

Date 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Classified CSEA Salary Guide 2017-18 
Step 1 2 3 4 5 

Range 
03 $ 12.21 $ 12.79 $ 13.47 $14 .12 $ 14.84 
04 $ 12.50 $ 13.12 $ 13.81 $ 14.45 $ 15.22 
05 $ 12.80 $ 13.47 $ 14.12 $ 14.84 $ 15.55 
06 $ 13.14 $ 13.81 $ 14.45 $ 15.22 $ 15.96 
07 $ 13.49 $ 14.14 $ 14.85 $ 15.56 $ 16.38 
08 $ 13.83 $ 14.47 $ 15.24 $ 15.97 $ 16.78 
09 $ 14.14 $ 14.85 $ 15.57 $ 16.38 $ 17.21 
10 $ 14.47 $ 15.36 $ 15.98 $ 16.78 $ 17.61 
11 $ 14.86 $ 15.57 $ 16.42 $ 17.21 $ 18.06 
12 $ 15.25 $ 15.98 $ 16.79 $ 17.62 $ 18.51 
13 $ 15.60 $ 16.42 $ 17.22 $ 18.06 $ 18.99 
14 $ 16.00 $ 16.80 $ 17.64 $ 18.51 $ 19.47 
15 $ 16.43 $ 17.23 $ 18.07 $ 19.00 $ 19.92 
16 $ 16.80 $ 17.64 $ 18.53 $ 19.47 $ 20.41 
17 $ 17.23 $ 18.09 $ 19.03 $ 19.93 $ 20.94 
18 $ 17.68 $ 18.54 $ 19.49 $ 20.42 $ 21.48 
19 $ 18.09 $ 19.03 $ 19.99 $ 20.94 $ 21 .99 
20 $ 18.54 $ 19.50 $ 20.43 $ 21.49 $ 22.55 
21 $ 19.05 $ 20.01 $ 20 .95 $ 22.00 $ 23 .12 
22 $ 21.57 $ 22.54 $ 23.48 $ 24 .53 $ 25.65 

6-10 11-15 

$ 15.55 $ 16.33 
$ 15.96 $ 16.77 
$ 16.37 $ 17.19 
$ 16.77 $ 17.58 
$ 17.16 $ 18.02 
$ 17.61 $ 18.49 
$ 18.05 $ 18.96 
$ 18.50 $ 19.43 
$ 18.99 $ 19.94 
$ 19.44 $ 20.41 
$ 19.92 $ 20.91 
$ 20.40 $ 21.42 
$ 20.93 $ 21.98 
$ 21.45 $ 22.52 
$ 21.98 $ 23.07 
$ 22.53 $ 23.65 
$ 23.11 $ 24.26 
$ 23.66 $ 24.85 
$ 24.28 $ 25.51 
$ 26.82 $ 28.17 

16-20 21-25 26-30 31 

$ 17.15 $ 18.00 $18 .91 $ 19.86 
$ 17.58 $ 18.47 $19.40 $ 20.37 
$ 18.05 $ 18.96 $19 .91 $ 20.91 
$ 18.47 $ 19.40 $20.37 $ 21.39 
$ 18.93 $ 19.88 $20 .87 $ 21 .92 

$ 19.42 $ 20.39 $21.41 $ 22.48 
$ 19.91 $ 20.91 $21.95 $ 23.05 
$ 20.40 $ 21.42 $22.49 $ 23.61 
$ 20 .94 $ 21 .99 $23 .08 $ 24.23 

$ 21.43 $ 22.50 $23 .62 $ 24.81 
$ 21.96 $ 23.05 $24 .20 $ 25.40 
$ 22.49 $ 23 .61 $24.79 $ 26.04 
$ 23 .07 $ 24.22 $25.42 $ 26.70 
$ 23 .65 $ 24.83 $26 .08 $ 27 .37 
$ 24 .22 $ 25.42 $26.70 $ 28.03 

$ 24.84 $ 26.09 $27 .38 $ 28.76 
$ 25 .46 $ 26.74 $28.09 $ 29.48 
$ 26.10 $ 27 .39 $28 .77 $ 30.22 
$ 26 .78 $ 28.13 $29.51 $ 31.00 
$ 29 .56 $ 31.04 $32.59 $ 34.22 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 

Meeting Date: May 8, 2018 

Agenda Item: Action Item 15.13 

Subject: Contract-Interim Assistant Superintendent, Curriculum-Michael Herfurth 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  

Background: We recently learned that our current Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum and 
Instruction has secured a Superintendent position.  As a result, a vacancy has 
emerged within the senior cabinet.  Given the timing of this change, and the 
momentum of district-wide initiatives, it is critical for continuity to be quickly 
established.  Therefore, an internal appointment for an interim replacement is 
recommended.   
 

Highlights: Michael Herfurth is currently the principal at Madrone School.  He has spent his 
professional career in Rincon Valley as a teacher and a principal.  He was one of 
the founding faculty members of the Rincon Valley Charter School.  His 
knowledge and experience make him an ideal candidate for this position  

Challenges: N/A  

Analysis: N/A 

Next Steps: This is a one-year appointment as an interim.  The District intends to open the 
position next year to recruit and hire the permanent Assistant Superintendent – 
Curriculum and Instruction. 

 
Attachments:  2018-19 Contract with Michael Herfurth for the position of Interim Assistant 

Superintendent – Curriculum and Instruction 
  

 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: Approve 



 

1 
 

              RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT – INTERIM CURRICULUM & INSTRUCTION 

CONTRACT 
 
This agreement is entered into effective July 1, 2018 between the Governing Board (hereinafter "the 
Board") of and on behalf of the Rincon Valley Union School District (hereinafter "the District") and 
Michael Herfurth (hereinafter “the Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction”). 
 

1. Term.  The District hereby employs the Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum for a 
period of one (21 year, beginning on the 1st day of July 2018 and terminating on the 30th day of 
June 2019. 
 

2. Salary.  The Interim Assistant Superintendent’s annual salary shall be $144,724, payable in twelve 
(12) equal monthly payments.  The Superintendent and Board will review the Assistant 
Superintendent’s salary annually and provide an appropriate increase based on the 
Superintendent’s recommendation.  All salary adjustments shall be effective July 1 of the contract 
year.  In no event shall the Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction salary at 
anytime be reduced below the previous year’s salary, unless there is a district-wide salary 
reduction for all employees.    

 
The Board reserves the right to change the Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & 
Instruction salary for any year of this contract with the mutual written consent of the Interim 
Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction and the Board.  A change in salary shall not 
constitute the creation of a new contract nor extend the termination date of this Agreement. 

 
3. Duties.  The Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction is employed to assist the 

District Superintendent and shall perform the duties as assigned by the District Superintendent, as 
prescribed by the laws of the State of California and the District’s job description for Interim 
Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction. 

 
4. Outside Professional Activities.  By prior approval of the Superintendent, the Interim Assistant 

Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction may undertake for consideration outside professional 
activities, including, but not limited to, consulting, speaking and writing, so long as such outside 
professional activities do not, in the Superintendent's sole judgment, interfere with the 
performance of his duties.  His outside professional activities shall not occur during work hours 
unless authorized by the Superintendent.  In no event will the District be responsible for any 
expenses attendant to the performance of such outside activities.  The Interim Assistant 
Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction shall use vacation time to perform these activities. 

 
5. Powers and Duties of Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction.  All powers 

and duties which may lawfully and reasonably be delegated to the Interim Assistant 
Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction by the District Superintendent and/or Governing 
Board, are to be executed in accordance with the policies adopted by the Governing Board.  Such 
acts, which may require ratification by the Governing Board, shall be referred to said Governing 
Board at the earliest opportunity. 

 
6. Evaluation Format.  The District Superintendent shall evaluate and assess in writing the 

performance of the Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction at least once a 
year during the term of this agreement.  Said evaluation and assessment shall be reasonably related 



 

2 
 

to the position description of the Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction for 
the year in question.  The evaluation format shall be reasonably objective and shall contain at least 
the following evaluation criteria:  District Superintendent/ Interim Assistant Superintendent – 
Curriculum & Instruction relations, community relations, staff and personnel relations, educational 
program, and professional and leadership development.  The evaluation format shall provide for 
comments or a rating system such that the District Superintendent may indicate whether the 
performance of the Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction is superior, very 
satisfactory, satisfactory or unsatisfactory, both as to overall performance and as to the specific 
criteria set. 

 
7. Evaluation.  In the event that the District Superintendent determines, in the course of the 

evaluation process, that the performance of the Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & 
Instruction is unsatisfactory in any respect, he shall describe in writing in reasonable detail, 
indicating specific instances of unsatisfactory performance.  The evaluation shall include 
recommendations as to the areas of improvement in all instances where the District Superintendent 
deems performance to be unsatisfactory and all other instances where the District Superintendent 
deems improvement to be necessary or appropriate.  A copy of the written evaluation shall be 
delivered to the Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction and the Interim 
Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction shall have the right to make a written 
reaction or response to the evaluation, which shall become a permanent attachment to the Interim 
Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction’ personnel file.  Within 30 days of the 
delivery of the written evaluation to the Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & 
Instruction, the District Superintendent shall meet with the Interim Assistant Superintendent – 
Curriculum & Instruction to discuss the evaluation. 

 
A copy of any evaluation the District Superintendent deems to be of a negative nature, and a copy 
of the Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction’ response (if any) shall be 
delivered to the President of the Governing Board. 

 
8.  Termination of Contract.    

 
a. Mutual Consent.    This Agreement may be terminated at any time by mutual consent of the 

Board and the Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction upon thirty (30) 
days prior written notice. 

 
b. Nonrenewal of Agreement by the District.    The Governing Board may elect not to renew this 

Agreement for any reason by providing the Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & 
Instruction with forty-five (45) days written notice prior to the expiration of this Agreement, in 
accordance with Education Code Section 35031.  The Interim Assistant Superintendent – 
Curriculum & Instruction shall inform each member of the Board of this notice requirement on 
or before January 1 of the year in question. 

 
c. Termination of Status as a Certificated Employee.  The Interim Assistant Superintendent – 

Curriculum & Instruction’ status as a permanent or probationary certificated employee of the 
District may be terminated in accordance with the applicable provisions of law. 

 
d. Termination as Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction for Cause.    The Interim 

Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction’ status as Interim Assistant 
Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction and all of the Interim Assistant Superintendent – 



 

3 
 

Curriculum & Instruction’ rights under this Agreement may be terminated by the Board at any 
time for, but not limited to, breach of contract; any ground enumerated in the Education Code; 
or the Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction’ failure to perform his 
responsibilities as set forth in this agreement, as defined by law, or as specified in the Interim 
Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction’ job description, if any.  The Board shall 
not terminate this Agreement pursuant to this paragraph (d) until a written statement of the 
grounds of termination has first been served upon the Interim Assistant Superintendent – 
Curriculum & Instruction.  The Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction 
shall then be entitled to a conference with the Board at which time the Interim Assistant 
Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction shall be given a reasonable opportunity to address 
the Board’s concerns.  The Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction shall 
have the right to have a representative of his or her choice at the conference with the Board.  
The conference with the Board shall be the Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & 
Instruction’ exclusive right to any hearing otherwise required by law. 

 
e. Early Termination.    The Board unilaterally and without cause may terminate this Agreement 

and the Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction’ status as Interim 
Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction and reassign the Interim Assistant 
Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction to any available position which the Interim 
Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction is credentialed to perform by providing 
the Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction a minimum of forty-five (45) 
days notice of termination and reassignment.  In consideration of the Board’s right to terminate 
this Agreement without cause, the District shall pay to the Interim Assistant Superintendent – 
Curriculum & Instruction his or her then current salary for the remainder of the term of this 
Agreement or for a period of six (6) calendar months following the effective date of termination 
or reassignment, whichever is less.  If the Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & 
Instruction elects not to accept the position to which the Interim Assistant Superintendent – 
Curriculum & Instruction has been reassigned, the Interim Assistant Superintendent – 
Curriculum & Instruction may resign and elect to receive the difference between the Interim 
Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction’ then current monthly salary and the 
monthly salary rate for the position to which the Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum 
& Instruction has been reassigned for the remainder of the term of this Agreement or for a 
period of six (6) calendar months following the effective date of termination and reassignment, 
whichever is less. 

 
9.  Fringe Benefits.  The Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction shall be 

afforded fringe benefits provided in Board Policy 4354.  The Interim Assistant Superintendent – 
Curriculum & Instruction shall receive at District expense a $50,000 term life insurance policy.  In 
addition, District will pay the Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction annual 
dues in one Santa Rosa area service club and annual fees for the Association of California School 
Administrators (ACSA). 

 
3. Automobile Expense. The Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction is 

required to have a vehicle available at all times to exercise the powers and to perform the duties of 
the position. In order to reimburse his for this vehicle requirement, he shall be entitled to a 
$185.00 monthly vehicle allowance as reimbursement for reasonable transportation expenses 
incurred for travel required by her employment. In addition, he shall be reimbursed for reasonable 
transportation outside the County at the District established mileage rate.  
 



 

4 
 

11. Sick Leave.  The Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction shall be allocated 
12 days of sick leave annually. 

 
12.  Work Year and Vacation.  The Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction shall 

be required to render 12 months of full and regular service to the district during each annual period 
covered by this agreement except that he shall be entitled to 25 days of annual vacation with pay 
exclusive of holidays as defined in Education Code Section 37220 and 37221, which shall be 
accrued on a month-to-month basis. If he desires to take more than two continuous days of 
vacation, he shall obtain approval from the Superintendent prior to the use of vacation time. 
Vacation time may be accumulated from year to year but in no case shall a total of more than 25 
days of vacation be carried forward from one fiscal year to the next without written 
Superintendent approval. If this agreement is terminated, he shall be compensated for all unused 
accrued vacation at the salary rate effective at the time of termination. 

 
13. General Provisions. 

 
a. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement and understanding between 

the parties.  There are no oral understandings, terms or conditions, and neither party has relied 
upon any representation, express or implied, not contained in this Agreement.            

 
b. No Assignment.  The Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction may not 

assign or transfer any rights granted or obligations assumed under this Agreement. 
 

c. Seniority.  The Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction shall not be 
considered a school site administrator for purposes of Education Code Section 44956.5. 

 
d. Modification.  This Agreement cannot be changed or supplemented orally.  It may be modified 

or superceded only by a written instrument executed by both of the parties. 
 

e. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid or unenforceable by a 
court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions of the Agreement shall continue in 
full force and effect. 

 
14. Applicable Law.  This agreement is subject to all applicable laws of the State of California, rules 

and regulations of the State Board of Education, and rules and regulations and policies of this 
Board, all of which are made a part of the terms and conditions of this contract as though set forth 
herein. 

 
 
______________________________________________ Date:____________________ 
Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

5 
 

15. Acceptance of Offer.  I hereby accept the above offer of employment and agree to comply with the 
terms and conditions thereof, and to fulfill all of the duties of Interim Assistant Superintendent – 
Curriculum & Instruction to the Governing Board of the Rincon Valley Union School District during 
the term specified in the foregoing employment contract. 

 
 
______________________________________________   Date:____________________ 
Michael Herfurth, Interim Assistant Superintendent – Curriculum & Instruction 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 

Meeting Date: May 8 2018 

Agenda Item: Action Item 15.14 

Subject: Classified Employee of the year, Resolution #05-18-22 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  

Background: Jeff Exline has been selected as the 2018 Classified Employee of the Year.  Jeff 
has worked with the District since November 24, 2014 as our Warehouse Manager.  
During this time, he served for one year as our Food Service/Operations 
Coordinator.  He has since returned to his current position.  Prior to working in 
Rincon Valley, Jeff worked at Sprouts Market in Petaluma as a Lead 
Shipping/Receiving Clerk.  He also worked for the Millennium Group as a Claims 
Operations Specialist. 

 
Highlights: N/A 

Challenges: N/A  

Analysis: N/A 

Next Steps:  Jeff will receive special recognition and his resolution at the May 10  
   End-of-Year Celebration. 

 

 
Attachments:  Classified Employee of the Year, Resolution #05-18-22 
  
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: Approve 



 
 

Resolution # 05-18-22 
 
 

Commending JEFF EXLINE as CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE OF THE YEAR 
for 2018. 
 
WHEREAS, JEFF has served with outstanding distinction in his tenure 
with the Rincon Valley Union School District; and  
 
WHEREAS, he has been a valued employee of the Rincon Valley Union 
School District since November 24, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, he is respected and admired throughout the Rincon Valley 
Union School District by his peers and supervisors; and 
 
WHEREAS, through JEFF’S contributions and endeavors, he has 
performed above and beyond the scope of his position and is recognized 
as an exceptional employee; and 
 
WHEREAS, he is representative of the finest qualities desired of an 
employee; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that we, the Board of Trustees 
and the Administration of the Rincon Valley Union School District, hereby 
commend JEFF EXLINE as an employee who has made a difference and 
are proud to recognize him as CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE OF THE YEAR 
FOR 2018. 
 
Date:  May 10, 2018 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

___________________________ __________________________ 
                      President                                                     Clerk 
 
___________________________ __________________________ 
                       Trustee                                                    Trustee 
 
___________________________ __________________________ 
                       Trustee                                                Superintendent 
 
_________________________  __________________________ 
 Assistant Superintendent, Curriculum       Deputy Superintendent, Business 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
     President, CSEA Chapter #284                  Assistant Superintendent, Student Services  

 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 

Meeting Date: May 8 2018 

Agenda Item: Action Item 15.15 

Subject: Certificated Employee of the year, Resolution #05-18-23 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  

Background: Diane Wagner has been selected as the 2018 Certificated Employee of the Year.  
Diane has worked in the District since August 14, 2006.  She currently teaches at 
RVCS-Sequoia and has done so her entire career in Rincon Valley.  Prior to 
working in Rincon Valley, Diane was an RSP teacher in Sebastopol and also 
taught in the Poway Unified School District.  Diane is retiring at the end of this 
school year. 

 
Highlights: N/A 

Challenges: N/A  

Analysis: N/A 

Next Steps:  Diane will receive special recognition and her resolution at the May 10  
   End-of-Year Celebration. 

 

 
Attachments:  Certificated Employee of the Year, Resolution #05-18-23 
  
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: Approve 



 
Resolution # 05-18-23 

 
Commending DIANE WAGNER as CERTIFICATED EMPLOYEE OF THE 
YEAR for 2018. 
 
WHEREAS, DIANE has served with outstanding distinction in her tenure 
with the Rincon Valley Union School District; and  
 
WHEREAS, SHE HAS BEEN A VALUED EMPLOYEE OF THE Rincon 
Valley Union School District since August 14, 2006; and 
 
WHEREAS, she is respected and admired throughout the Rincon Valley 
Union School District by her peers and supervisors for her contributions 
and endeavors and she has performed above and beyond the scope of 
her position and is recognized as an exceptional teacher; and 
 
WHEREAS, she is representative of the finest qualities desired of a 
teacher; and 
 
WHEREAS, she has served as a change agent who has accepted 
leadership roles to improve the educational programs for children; and  
 
WHEREAS, she is passionate about teaching and serves as a positive 
role model for students and faculty; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that we, the Board of Trustees 
and the Administration of the Rincon Valley Union School District, hereby 
commend DIANE WAGNER as a teacher who has made a difference and 
are proud to recognize her as CERTIFICATED EMPLOYEE OF THE 
YEAR FOR 2018. 
 
Date:  May 10, 2018 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

___________________________ __________________________ 
                      President                                                     Clerk 
___________________________ __________________________ 
                       Trustee                                                    Trustee 
___________________________ __________________________ 
                       Trustee                                                Superintendent 
___________________________ __________________________ 
 Assistant Superintendent, Curriculum       Deputy Superintendent, Business 
 
_________________________________ _______________________________ 
                  President, RVUTA               Assistant Superintendent, Student Services 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 

Meeting Date: May 8 2018 

Agenda Item: Action Item 15.16 

Subject: Safe Schools Plan - Binkley 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  

Background:  Each school, through their Site Councils, annually review their Safe Schools plan 
and revise the document as needed.  Once approved at the site level, plans are 
brought to the Board for your approval.  Last month, Safe School plans were 
approved by the Governing Board.  Due to Principal Kelly Lister’s recent return 
from Parental Leave, there was a mix-up in the due date for Binkley’s Safe School 
Plan.   
 

Highlights: It’s important to distinguish between a safe school plan and an emergency 
response plan.  Safe school plans are limited in scope to ensure schools are 
thoughtful about certain structures that support student safety.  Emergency 
response plans, on the other hand, are comprehensive documents that outline the 
various practices, procedures, and protocols for handing a myriad of emergencies 
that could occur on any given school site.  Safe school plans may reference an 
emergency response plan, but is not one. 

Challenges: N/A  

Analysis: The Safe School Plans presented meet the requirements of California Education 
Code Sections 32281, 32282 (1), 32284, and 32288. 

Next Steps: These plans will be reviewed by each school’s Site Council next and amended as 
necessary. 

Attachments:  Safe School Plan for the following Binkley Elementary Charter School 
  
  
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: Approve 



BINKLEY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

SAFE SCHOOLS PLAN 

2018-2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1. District Mission Statement, Safe Schools Planning

Committee, Data sources

2. Component #1  The School Climate – People and

Programs

3. Component #2 Safe and Orderly Environment

4. School Board adopted procedures and policies complying

with Calif. Legislature sb187 (Ed code sections 35294,

Statutes of 1998 and sections 32280-32289)



Page 1 

  

DISTRICT MISSION STATEMENT 
 
The  Rincon Valley  Union School  District pursues excellence in education through a 
differentiated curriculum  focusing on  rigor, relevance, and relationships. The District 
provides  a  solid  foundation  for  every student through the development of critical 
thinking,  communication,  collaboration, and creativity.  

 
 

District Vision Statement 
 

Rincon Valley  Union  School  District provides all students an exemplary academic 
education  and  the foundation to  become  productive citizens of their community. 

 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
Robin Foss Teacher 
Kristine Warren Teacher 
Candace Corwonski School Counselor 
Alicia Graves Classified Staff  
Valerie Goulart Parent SSC Member 
Daniela Ribbecke Parent SSC Member 
Alyssa Dossat Parent SSC Member 
Jonathan Smith Parent SSC Member 
Miguel Gonzales Parent SSC Member 
Kelly Lister Principal 

 
DATA SOURCES 

Staff Meetings 
School Site Council Meetings 
ELAC Meetings 
Parent Survey 
Student Survey 
Booster Meetings 
District Policies 

 
 
CONCLUSIONS FROM DATA 

 
The school climate and learning environment are very positive. There 
is a strong feeling of community. The school is perceived as a safe 
place for students and welcoming place for our members. In order to 
keep a clear focus on behavioral expectations (Be our Binkley Best!) 
we frequently review the three rules: be safe, be respectful, and be 



Page 2 

responsible. Our school motto is “One Team, One Dream, Go 
Binkley!” Each month, our school focuses on a character quality, 
explicitly teaches skills around that quality, and recognizes students 
who demonstrate those qualities.  

 
  



Page 3 

COMMUNICATION PLAN 
 

o Review at SSC and Booster Meetings 
 

o Faculty Meetings 
 

o School Newsletter 
 

o Plan available in school office 
 

o Plan available on website as part of SARC 
 
EVALUATION 

The comprehensive school safety plan shall be evaluated and 
amended as needed, by the school site council no less than once a 
year. 

  



Page 4 

COMPONENT #1 The School Climate – People and Programs 
 
GOAL #1 Implement specific instruction addressing pro-social behaviors, using 

social emotional learning programs, and connecting a monthly theme 
to an overall school motto: One Team, One Dream, Go Binkley!  

 
OBJECTIVES: Teachers will explicitly teach the rules around school 
so students know exactly what is expected. Teacher will recognize 
students following the rules by awarding them tickets.  

 
Teachers and counselor will use the Kimochis curriculum in 
Kindergarten, The Toolbox Project curriculum in first through third 
grades, and Restorative Practices and Circles in fourth through sixth 
grades to teach resiliency skills, conflict resolution skills, 
communication skills, and empathy.  
 
The counselor will provide small group instruction to develop 
resiliency, conflict resolution skills, friendships skills, and anger 
management skills for students who need additional support in these 
areas.  

 
Noon Duty II personnel will provide structured games during lunch 
recess times so students can practice pro-social behavior under direct 
supervision. Structured game schedule will be communicated to 
teachers so pre-teaching is an option during PE.  
 
School office will recognize students over the loudspeaker who are on 
time and ready to learn at the start of school, in order to encourage all 
students to have good attendance. Good attendance will be recognized 
weekly, and perfect attendance will be recognized and rewarded every 
trimester. 
 
School staff will implement the Advocacy Program, pairing up 
students who need an additional adult relationships to help them be 
their “Binkley Best” with staff members who will spend quality time 
with them. Staff will also implement Safe School Ambassadors in 
4th-6th grades, which develops student leadership in helping resolve 
conflicts and stop relational aggression, and which provides staff with 
additional data about peer-to-peer issues.  
 
Survey responses will indicate that more than 75% of the students feel 
safe at school and have an understanding of how to make better 
decisions when faced with difficult situations.  

 
RELATED ACTIVITIES: 

● Curriculum activities including Toolbox lessons, Kimochi’s 
lessons 

● Advocacy Program twice a month 



Page 5 

● Safe School Ambassadors training and meetings with SSA 
“families”  

● Communication to and with parents 
● Daily games at lunch recess  
● Monday assembly topics, awards, and End-of-Year Awards 
● Daily morning announcements 
● Social skills groups with counselor 
● School-wide Kindness Month and Random Act of Kindness 

Challenge 
● Buddy Bench  
● Staff professional development days – Restorative Practices 
● Release time for advocates to meet with students 
● Playground behavior training days 4 times per year, and 

weekly assemblies addressing specific rules around being safe, 
respectful, and responsible.  

● Weekly Care Team meeting to create behavior plans for 
individual students  

 
RESOURCES NEEDED 

 
Kimochis curriculum  
Toolbox curriculum 
Safe School Ambassador Training  
Time to discuss at faculty meetings 
Utilize school counselor time 
Planning time for teachers 
Restorative Practices training  
Substitutes for Advocacy Days and Safe School Ambassador training  

 
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION 

● Classroom Teachers 
● Classified Staff 
● Principal 
● School Counselor 
● Office Staff  

 
 
TIMELINE 

2017-2018 SCHOOL YEAR 
 
 
  



Page 6 

GOAL #2 
To promote a caring and connected school climate for the Binkley 
students and community. 

 
OBJECTIVE: Binkley staff will maintain programs and activities 
intended to promote a caring and connected school climate.  

 
RELATED ACTIVITIES: 

Camp Binkley 
Student Council Spirit Days and visits by mascot  
Walk and Roll to School Wednesdays/Safe Routes to School events  
Booster’s events: Welcome Back Family Night, Booster’s Halloween 
Party, Make-Your-Own Craft Fair, Family Color Run, Multi-cultural 
Night,  
Playground rules and procedures- Reviewed two times per year 
Playworks games at lunchtime 
Best Behavior topics addressed at faculty and classified meetings 
Referral form to track and monitor areas of concern  
Monday morning assemblies and Monthly Dream Theme assembly  
Garden Club 
Family Literacy Night, Family Math Night, Science Fair Night, 3rd 
Grade Biography Report Night, 2nd Grade Three Piggy Opera Night, 
ELAC Events, Talent Show  
Positive Recognition 

o Awards for displaying attributes of our school theme. 
o Names and scholar cards posted 
o Schoolwide ticket program 

Music Program and Sing alongs  
Parent / Student Conferences 
Cross-Age Buddies 
Drives to help those in need  
Staff vs. Student Basketball and Volleyball Games 
Field Trips into the community and assemblies such as author visits  
6th Grade reading competition and community service  

 
RESOURCES NEEDED: 

● Site budget money  
● Booster funds  

 
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE 

● Principal 
● Teachers 
● Parents and Community Members 
● Classified Personnel 
● Students 
● Counselor  
 

TIMELINE 



Page 7 

2017-2018 SCHOOL YEAR 
 
COMPONENT #2 Safe and Orderly Environment 
 
GOAL #1 Continue to create and maintain a positive physical environment, 

which promotes school pride, social, and academic success. 
 

OBJECTIVE 
 

Identify, teach, and implement Binkley procedures and routines for all 
students to show on a regular basis.  

 
Students will be expected, encouraged and recognized for 
demonstrating their Binkley Best by being safe, respectful, and 
responsible.  

 
RELATED ACTIVITIES 

● Develop and revise procedures and routines with staff at 
beginning of school year 

● Create, teach, and post rules for the new play structure  
● Purchase equipment for Playworks games, post games on 

signage,  and allocate specific areas of the yard for facilitated 
games 

● Review playground games and rules for games during first 
weeks of school and mid-year 

● Hold a classroom poster contest to promote the Binkley Best 
theme and decorate the gym 

● Beautify the campus through cleaning monthly and planting.  
● At staff meetings, Instructional Leadership Team meetings, 

weekly noon duty meetings, and monthly classified meetings, 
discuss problem areas and strategize solutions. 

● 6th graders are responsible for recycling on Fridays 
● Provide support and training to noon duty team for a positive 

lunchtime routine, including systematic  rewards and 
consequences for playground behavior.  

● Positive recognition of school spirit through Spirit Fridays, 
recognition of teams at school assemblies.  

RESOURCES 
● Site Budget Funds 
● Booster Funds 
● District  

 
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE 

● School Site Council 
● Boosters 
● Staff 
● Student Council 
● Principal 



Page 8 

 
TIMELINE 

2017-2018 School Year 
 
 

4. Identification of appropriate strategies and programs that will provide 
or maintain a high level of school safety and address the school procedures 
for complying with existing laws related to school safety, to include: 
 
A. Child abuse reporting procedures 
 

a. RVUSD Board Policy 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9/5141.4 
 
B. Disaster procedures, routine and emergency, including earthquakes, fire, and lockdown. 
 

a. RVUSD Board Policy 3514/3514.1/3515/3515.2/3515.5/3516/3520 
 
C.  Procedures to allow a public agency to use school buildings, rounds, and equipment for 
mass care and welfare shelter during an emergency, which affects public health or welfare.  
 

a. RVUSD Administrative Regulation 1330 b #8 
 
D. School discipline rules and procedures 
 

a.    RVUSD Administration Regulation 5144.1/5144.2 
b.  School Discipline Plan 

 
E. Procedures to notify teacher of dangerous pupils 

 
a. RVUSD Board Policy 5131/5131.7 

 
F. Policy prohibiting discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and bullying.  
 

a.    RVUSD Board Policy 5131.2/5145.3 
 
G. Provisions of any school wide dress code prohibiting “gang-related apparel” 
 

a. RVUSD Administrative Regulation 5132 – Refer to Section 6 “Dress”/ 5132 
 
H. Procedures for safe ingress and egress of pupils, students, and school employees to and 
from school 
 

a. RVUSD Administration Regulation 5142/5142.1/5142.2 
 
I. A safe and orderly environment conducive of learning 
 

a.    RVUSD Administrative Regulation 5131 
b.    RVUSD Board Policy 5137 



Page 9 

 
J. Access to the school campus (visitors).  
 

a. RVUSD Administrative Regulation 1240/1250 
 
 
 
 
K. Suspension and expulsion policies 
 

a.    RVUSD Board Policy 5144.1 
 
L. Crisis Response Plan 
 

a.   RVUSD Administrative Regulation 3516/3516.5 
 
M. Sexual harassment policy 
 

a.    RVUSD Board Policy 5145.7/4119.1/4219.1/4319.1 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 

Meeting Date: May 8 2018 

Agenda Item: Action Item 15.17 

Subject: Specifications of Election Order, Res. #05-18-24 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  

Background: Rincon Valley, as all public school districts in California, are overseen by an 
elected Governing Board.  Every two years Trustee terms expire and an election is 
held. The terms for three current Trustees will be decided on November 6, 2018. 
 

Highlights: This action by the Governing Board is required in order to set the number of 
candidates, along the length of terms.   

Challenges: N/A 

Analysis: N/A 

Next Steps: The approved resolution will be filed with the Sonoma County Office of 
Education, Office of the Superintendent. In turn, the County Superintendent will 
file this document with the appropriate Sonoma County agency. 

 
Attachments:  Specifications of Election Order Resolution  
  
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: Approve 



RESOLUTION 05-18-24 
Rincon Valley Union School District 

 
 
On motion by___________________, seconded________________, the resolution set forth below was adopted by the 
following vote: 
AYES:           NOES:            ABSENT:       

 

SSSPPPEEECCCIIIFFFIIICCCAAATTTIIIOOONNNSSS   OOOFFF   TTTHHHEEE   EEELLLEEECCCTTTIIIOOONNN   OOORRRDDDEEERRR   
 

RESOLVED, that pursuant to Education Code Sections 5304 and 5322 – the authority for the specifications of the election 

order – I hereby specify the following with respect to the Governing Board member election in the Rincon Valley Union 

School District. 

  
Date of Election: November 6, 2018 
Purpose of Election:   To elect 3 member(s) to serve the 2018-2022 full term (term ending 2022) 

  N/A member(s) to serve the 2018-2020 short term  (term ending 2020) 

  *Term of Office to be Filled (Check One) 
Name of Current Incumbent 2-Year (To complete the 2016-2020 term)     4-Year (2018-2022) 
   
Cynthia Evers      X     

Christopher Rafanelli      X 

Jeffrey Gospe      X 

            

            

*Four-year terms on the governing board are staggered.  The November 6, 2018 election will fill regular openings on the 
governing board for the 2018-2022 term as well as filling current 2016-2020 term vacancies, or those previously filled by 
appointment. If a vacancy has been filled during the first 2 years of a term, candidates must file for election to complete that 
term.  If a vacancy has been filled during the last 2 years of a term, candidates will file for the new 4-year term. 
 
IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, that the Rincon Valley Union School District will hold an election on November 6, 2018 to 

elect 3 member(s) to the governing board as listed in the Specifications of the Election Order. 

 
STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS/TIE VOTE 

 
THAT the *( candidate  district) is responsible for cost incurred in publishing a Statement of Qualifications if such a 
statement is desired.  If payment is the responsibility of the candidate, each candidate will pay the cost of publication         
*(before  after) the statement is printed in the voter pamphlet portion of the sample ballot.  Payments for statements are 
to be made to the district. Following the election, the district will be billed for all costs incurred in conducting the district’s 
election. Statements shall not exceed *( 200  400) words, based on standard word count. 
 
THAT any tie vote which results in said election will be resolved by *(  run off  drawing lots). 
* Select one option 

CLERK’S CERTIFICATE 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct excerpt from the minutes of the governing board of said school 

district, pertaining to the adoption of the above resolution, at a meeting held on November 6, 2018 

      
Jeff Gospe, Clerk, Governing Board      
Rincon Valley Union School District 


	Board Agenda 5-8-18
	Board Minutes 4-10-18
	Board Retreat Minutes 4-20-18
	Purchase Orders
	Warrants
	3-18 Packet w-o notes
	Pub Hearing - LCAP
	Draft LCAP 5-8-18 for Public Hearing
	Local Control Accountability Plan and Annual Update (LCAP) Template
	2017-20 Plan Summary
	The Story
	LCAP Highlights
	Review of Performance
	Greatest Progress
	Greatest Needs
	Performance Gaps
	Increased or Improved services

	Budget Summary

	Annual Update
	Goal 1
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Annual Update
	Goal 2
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Annual Update
	Goal 3
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Annual Update
	Goal 4
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Annual Update
	Goal 5
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Annual Update
	Goal 6
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Stakeholder Engagement
	Involvement Process for LCAP and Annual Update
	Impact on LCAP and Annual Update

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 1
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 2
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 3
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 4
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 5
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 6
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils
	Addendum
	Instructions: Linked Table of Contents
	Plan Summary
	Budget Summary

	Annual Update
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions/Services
	Analysis

	Stakeholder Engagement
	Goals, Actions, and Services
	New, Modified, Unchanged
	Goal
	Related State and/or Local Priorities
	Identified Need
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions/Services
	For Actions/Services Not Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement
	Students to be Served
	Location(s)

	For Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:
	Students to be Served
	Scope of Service
	Location(s)

	Actions/Services
	New/Modified/Unchanged:

	Budgeted Expenditures


	Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students
	Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds
	Percentage to Increase or Improve Services


	State Priorities
	APPENDIX A: PRIORITIES 5 AND 6 RATE CALCULATION INSTRUCTIONS
	APPENDIX B: GUIDING QUESTIONS
	Guiding Questions: Annual Review and Analysis
	Guiding Questions: Stakeholder Engagement
	Guiding Questions: Goals, Actions, and Services

	LCAP Expenditure Summary


	Pub Hearing - Budget
	Budget Public Hearing Documents
	6th Grade 100 Hours 2018
	Info. Item 14.1a Art Program and Participation
	Info. Item 14.1b Professional Development Summary
	Info. Item 14.1c Home Study Report
	2017-18 Home Study Report 5.2.18
	Info. Item 14.2a Student Support Summary
	Info. Item 14.2b Community Input Summary
	Family Survey Results Spring 2017 and 2018
	Info. Item 14.3 Oak Park Update
	Info. Item 14.4  Draft 2018-19 District Goals
	2018-19 District & Board Goalsv2
	2018-19 District Tasks_v1
	Action Item 15.1 OM State Competition- Res. 05-18-20
	Odd_Mind Resolution
	Action Item 15.2 Education Protection Account
	Education Protection Account Resolution
	2017-18 estimated EPA entitlement #'s for May Board Meeting
	Action Item 15.3 District Program Fees
	RVUSD EXTENDED CARE CALENDAR AND FEE SCHEDULE
	Reduced Rate Calendar
	PROPOSED MEAL PRICE INCREASE FOR 2018%2F19 SCHOOL YEAR
	Action Item 15.4 Sodexo Contract
	Action Item 15.5 GASB 74-75
	RinconValleyUnionSDGASB75Final2017Report
	Action Item 15.6 Bid approval Sequoia Roof
	Seqouia Roof Bid
	Action Item 15.7 Bid Approval Binkley landscape and paving
	Action Item 15.8 Lease Leaseback Arntz-Village Phase 2
	Action Item 15.9 Form J-13A
	J-13A Form - (CA Dept of Education)
	Action Item 15.10 Contract Amendment Sun Light & Power
	FINAL First Amendment to Agreement for Design, Installation and Commissioning - Sun Light Power_3250637_1(DMS) (1)
	Action Item 15.11 Declaration of Need
	Declaration of Need
	Action Item 15.12 AB1200 Salary Settlement Agreement with CSEA Chapter #284
	AB1200Disclosure
	RVUSD-CSEA TA2 3-30-18
	Action Item 15.13 Interim Assistant Superintendent Curriculum Contract
	Contract for Mike Herfurth 2018-2019
	Action Item 15.14 Classified Employee of the Year
	EOY Res. Class
	Action Item 15.15 Certificated Employee of the Year
	EOY Res. Cert
	Action Item 15.16 Safe Schools Plan
	Binkley Safe Schools Plan 2017-18
	Action Item 15.17 Specifications of Elections Order
	resolution-specification of election



